

AGENDA

Please access via zoom:

https://www.zoomgov.com/webinar/register/WN_vEI0GEwpREev5F8LQIii1A

Telephone: 1-669-254-5252

Webinar ID: 160 938 9743

- I. Welcome, Roll Call, and Public Comment Instructions: Chairman, Jason Rhynes, O.D.
- II. Action Item: Approval of Minutes of the January 5, 2023: Medical Advisory Committee Meeting
- III. Public Comments (2 minute limit)
- IV. MAC Member Comments/Discussion
- V. Financial Report: Tasha Black, Senior Director of Financial Services
- VI. Legislative Update: Christina Foss, Deputy Chief of Staff
- VII. Medicaid Directors Update: Traylor Rains, State Medicaid Director
 - A. PHE Unwinding: April Anonsen, Senior Director of Eligibility & Coverage Service
- VIII. Proposed Rule Changes: Presentation, Discussion, and Vote: Kasie McCarty, Senior Director of Federal and State Authorities
 - A. **APA WF # 22-23A&B ADvantage Waiver Rule Changes**
 - B. **APA WF # 22-24A&B Developmental Disabilities Services (DDS) Policy Changes**
 - C. **APA WF # 22-25 Behavioral Health Rules Cleanup**
 - D. **APA WF # 22-26 Crisis Intervention Rule Revisions**
 - E. **APA WF # 22-27 Physician Assistant Rule Revisions**
 - F. **APA WF # 22-28 Opioid Treatment Program (OTP) Rule Changes**
 - G. **APA WF # 22-29 Laboratory Services Policy Cleanup**
 - H. **APA WF # 22-30 Outdated/Obsolete Policy Language Cleanup –**
 - I. **APA WF # 22-31 Eliminate Certificate of Medical Necessity (CMN) Form Requirement for Most Medical Supplies, Equipment, and Appliances**
 - J. **APA WF # 23-01 State Plan Personal Care Services for Expansion Adults, TEFRA Eligible Children and Certain MAGI Populations**

Oklahoma Health Care Authority
MEDICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

K. APA WF # 23-05 Notification of Date of Service (NODOS) Timeframe Change

L. APA WF # 23-06A&B Transition to SoonerSelect

IX. New Business: **Chairman, Jason Rhynes, O.D.**

X. Future Meeting: **Chairman, Jason Rhynes, O.D.**

May 4, 2023

July 6, 2023

September 7, 2023

November 2, 2023

XI. Adjourn **Chairman, Jason Rhynes, O.D.**

DRAFT

Oklahoma Health Care Authority
MEDICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the January 5, 2023, Meeting
4345 N. Lincoln Blvd., Oklahoma City, OK 73105

I. Welcome, Roll Call, and Public Comment Instructions:

Vice-Chairman, Ms. Wanda Felty called the meeting to order at 1:00 PM.

Delegates present were: Mr. Nick Barton, Mr. Brett Coble, Dr. Steven Crawford, Ms. Janet Cizek, Ms. Wanda Felty, Ms. Tina Johnson, Ms. Jennifer King, Ms. Melissa Miller, Dr. Daniel Post, Dr. Eve Switzer and Dr. Whitney Yeates, providing a quorum.

Alternates present were: Ms. Heather Pike

Delegates absent without an alternate were: Dr. Arlen Foulks, Dr. Jason Rhynes and Dr. Raymond Smith.

II. Approval of the November 10th, 2022 Minutes

Medical Advisory Committee

The motion to approve the minutes was by Dr. Steven Crawford and seconded by Dr. Daniel Post with 3 abstaining and passed unanimously.

III. Public Comments (2-minute limit):

Mr. Steven Goldman with legal aid services spoke regarding two grants that were given to them by CMS. One being, the CMS Navigator grant for marketplace, and Medicaid, and the second, Healthy Kids to Coverage grant. Mr. Goldman is hopeful for a greater collaboration between our groups.

IV. MAC Member Comments/Discussion:

Ms. Janet Cizek is interested in discussing doula services, specifically what services are covered and what the credentials/certifications and requirements for obtaining an OHCA contract for these services. Mr. Traylor Rains replied we are still in the rule making process and we hope they will be covered by July. There will be plenty of Provider education and notice before then. The rules regarding Doula's should be to the MAC in March and will have more information. We did a robust analysis of other states that have come before us in their Medicaid program.

Ms. Cizek also has some serious concerns about individuals have serious issues with access to controlled substances medications from pharmacies, with the self-imposed script limits and limitations on number of medication pills per patient. Mr. Rains responded that OHCA would investigate this.

Oklahoma Health Care Authority
MEDICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the January 5, 2023, Meeting
4345 N. Lincoln Blvd., Oklahoma City, OK 73105

V. Financial Report:

Tasha Black, Senior Director of Financial Services

Aaron Morris presented the financial report ending in October 2022. OHCA is 4.4% over budget in revenues and 6.1% over budget in expenditures with the result that our budget variance is a negative \$31,802,840. The budget variance is primarily attributed to the following: Medicaid Program Variance is a positive 33.1 million state dollars, and administration is a positive 0.7 million state dollars. For more detailed information, see item 5 in the MAC agenda. For more detailed information, see item 5 in the MAC agenda.

VI. Medicaid Directors Update:

Traylor Rains, State Medicaid Director

Mr. Rains gave an update that we have expanded our Federal Poverty income limit to for pregnant women, which is now up to 185%. OHCA is also expanding the postpartum coverage period from 60 days to 12 months. Doula services will come in July as an added benefit and It's possible the PHE could continue to extend. On our website, we have a dedicated PHE page filled with resources for providers, and members. Members will get direct mailers 45 and 15 days prior to their expiration. The spending bill requires OHCA to provide continuous eligibility for children and adolescents in our CHIP program by January 2024. We're assessing impacts across the agency in terms of our operation with kids. Another requirement will be that our provider directory be more interactive as well.

A. living Choice Overview and Update:

David Ward, Long Term Services and Supports Director

Mr. Ward gave an update regarding the Living Choice Project. Mr. Ward discussed money follows the person living choice demonstration and how it was created from the 2005 Deficit Reduction Act. Why we serve, rebalancing funds, who, when and how we serve, as well as a member success story and how to start the process. For more detailed information, see item 6A in the MAC agenda.

Mr. Johnney Johnson gave an update on the Pathways to Community Living (Money follows the person- Tribal initiative) He discussed the grant being approved by CMS in 2014, the program goal, how this benefits tribes, OHCA partnership, MFP-TI Tribal partners, ending with what has been accomplished. For more detailed information, see item 6A in the MAC agenda.

B. PERM Update:

Josh Richards, Senior Director of Program Integrity & Account

Oklahoma Health Care Authority
MEDICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the January 5, 2023, Meeting
4345 N. Lincoln Blvd., Oklahoma City, OK 73105

Mr. Richards discussed our latest PERM review. Payment Error Rates Measurement (PERM) is an audit that CMS does on state agency Medicaid office on a 3-year basis. Two main components to the review, they look at our claims processing and eligibility. Our 2022 review just concluded and in those finding out of 1000 claims OHCA had 0 errors noted. On the eligibility side they looked over 340 eligibility decisions with only 7 errors on that side. They issue what is called a PERM rate, or error rate, and OHCA's rate 1.95%, the 2nd lowest state, with the national average being at 15.62%.

VIII. New Coverage with Prior Authorization:

Paula Root, Senior Medical Director

Dr. Root presented a background on Optune Therapy, Elastography ultrasound of organ tissue, Thoracoscopy for lung volume surgery (LVRS), Inherited bone marrow failure syndrome (IBMFS), and the Cochlear stimulating systems: new codes. For more detailed information, see item 8 in the MAC agenda.

IX. Proposed Rule Change: Presentation, Discussions, and Vote:

Kasie McCarty, Senior Director of Federal and State Authorities

APA WF # 22-11 Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnostic and Treatment (EPSDT) Visit and Sick

Visit on the Same Day – Policy will be revised to allow reimbursement for an EPSDT visit and a sick visit that occur on the same date of service, when it is deemed medically appropriate. The revisions will outline the requirements that must be met including, but not limited to, separate documentation/note to justify additional condition(s), information on the appropriate use of Modifier 25, a provider's ability to only claim the additional time required above and beyond the completion of the EPSDT screening, and clarification that any health problem that is encountered in the EPSDT screening and does not require significant additional work will be included in the EPSDT visit and should not be billed separately.

Budget Impact: The estimated budget impact, for SFY2023, will be an increase in the total amount of \$418,468; with \$115,665 in state share. The estimated budget impact, for SFY2024 will be an increase in the total amount of \$1,255,404; with \$409,513 in state share.

Proposed Emergency Rule Timeline:

Tribal Consultation: Nov. 1, 2022

15-Day Public Comment Period: Nov. 1 – Nov. 16, 2022

OHCA Board Meeting: Jan. 18, 2023

Emergency Rule Requested Effective Date: Contingent upon Governor's approval or the 45th day post submission of the rules to the Governor (Mar. 6, 2023)

Oklahoma Health Care Authority
MEDICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the January 5, 2023, Meeting
4345 N. Lincoln Blvd., Oklahoma City, OK 73105

The rule change motion to approve was by Dr. Steven Crawford and seconded by Mr. Brett Coble and passes unanimously.

APA WF # 22-21A&B Increase Income Standard for Pregnant Women and Extend Postpartum

Coverage – The proposed policy revisions will expand Medicaid eligibility for pregnant women by increasing the federal poverty level (FPL) percentage income standard from 133% to 185%, or 210% FPL once converted to MAGI and applying the applicable MAGI disregards. Additionally, the proposed revisions will extend Medicaid postpartum coverage from sixty (60) days to twelve (12) months. This new coverage option afforded through the American Rescue Plan Act was made permanent with the passing of the 2023 Consolidated Appropriations Act.

Budget Impact: The estimated budget impact, for SFY 2023, will be an increase in the total amount of \$6,150,000; with \$1,509,210 in state share. The estimated budget impact, for SFY 2024, will be an increase in the total amount of \$12,300,000; with \$4,054,326 in state share.

Proposed Emergency Rule Timeline:

Tribal Consultation: Nov. 1, 2022

15-Day Public Comment Period: Nov. 1 – Nov. 16, 2022

OHCA Board Meeting: Jan. 18, 2023

Emergency Rule Requested Effective Date: Contingent upon Governor's approval or the 45th day post submission of the rules to the Governor (Mar. 6, 2023)

The rule change motion to approve was by Dr. Steven Crawford and seconded by Mr. Brett Coble and passes unanimously.

APA WF # 22-22 Ukrainian Humanitarian Parolees – Policy will be updated to comply with Public Law 117-128, which entitles certain Ukrainian nationals who enter the United States, during a designated period of time, to receive SoonerCare services provided all other eligibility factors are met. Ukrainian humanitarian parolees are eligible for the same benefits available to refugees admitted under Section 207 of the Immigration and Nationality Act, except for the program of initial resettlement.

Budget Impact: The estimated budget impact, for SFY 2023, will be an increase in the total amount of \$323,915; with \$62,517 in state share. The estimated budget impact, for SFY 2024, will be an increase in the total amount of \$680,220, with \$211,419 in state share.

Proposed Emergency Rule Timeline:

Tribal Consultation: Nov. 1, 2022

Oklahoma Health Care Authority
MEDICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the January 5, 2023, Meeting
4345 N. Lincoln Blvd., Oklahoma City, OK 73105

15-Day Public Comment Period: Nov. 1 – Nov. 16, 2022

OHCA Board Meeting: Jan. 18, 2023

Emergency Rule Requested Effective Date: Contingent upon Governor's approval or the 45th day post submission of the rules to the Governor (Mar. 6, 2023)

The rule change motion to approve was by Dr. Steven Crawford and seconded by Mr. Brett Coble and passes unanimously.

X. Election of Chairman and Vice-Chairman:

Chairman, Jason Rhynes, O.D.

Dr. Daniel Post made a motion for election of 2023 officers, nominating Dr. Jason Rhynes for Chair, and Ms. Wanda Felty for Vice-Chairman, seconded by Dr. Steven Crawford and passes unanimously.

XI. MAC Meeting Dates for Calendar 2023:

Chairman, Jason Rhynes, O.D.

March 2, 2023

May 4, 2023

July 6, 2023

September 7, 2023

November 2, 2023

XII. New Business:

Chairman, Jason Rhynes, O.D.

No new business was addressed.

XIII. Adjourn:

Chairman, Jason Rhynes, O.D.

Chairman Rhynes asked for a motion to adjourn. Motion was provided by Dr. Steven Crawford and seconded by Mr. Brett Coble, there was no dissent and the meeting adjourned at 2:37pm.



OKLAHOMA

Health Care Authority

FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Five Month Period Ending November 30, 2022
Submitted to the CEO & Board

- Revenues for OHCA through November, accounting for receivables, were **\$3,271,554,724** or **5.2% over** budget.
- Expenditures for OHCA, accounting for encumbrances, were **\$3,117,487,827** or **6.6% over** budget.
- The state dollar budget variance through November is a negative **\$31,775,113**.
- The budget variance is primarily attributable to the following (in millions):

Expenditures:	
Medicaid Program Variance	(32.6)
Administration	(.7)
Revenues:	
Drug Rebate	4.9
Medical Refunds	(0.9)
Taxes and Fees	(2.5)
Total FY 23 Variance	\$ (31.8)

ATTACHMENTS

Summary of Revenue and Expenditures: OHCA	1
Medicaid Program Expenditures by Source of Funds	2
Other State Agencies Medicaid Payments	3
Fund 205: Supplemental Hospital Offset Payment Program Fund	4
Fund 230: Quality of Care Fund Summary	5
Fund 245: Insure Oklahoma Program (HEEIA Fund)	6
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Fund Balance	7
Medicaid Expansion - Healthy Adult Program: OHCA	8

OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
Summary of Revenues & Expenditures: OHCA
SFY 2023, For the Five Month Period Ending November 30, 2022

REVENUES	FY23 Budget YTD	FY23 Actual YTD	Variance	% Over/ (Under)
State Appropriations	\$ 501,791,315	\$ 501,791,315	\$ -	0.0%
Federal Funds	2,238,595,152	2,383,928,542	145,333,390	6.5%
Tobacco Tax Collections	19,403,137	17,941,937	(1,461,200)	(7.5)%
Quality of Care Collections	39,228,014	38,161,433	(1,066,581)	(2.7)%
Prior Year Carryover	8,605,791	8,605,791	-	0.0%
Federal Deferral - Interest	392,695	392,695	-	0.0%
Drug Rebates	161,410,716	184,997,613	23,586,897	14.6%
Medical Refunds	15,336,415	10,960,845	(4,375,570)	(28.5)%
Prior Year Carryover Supplemental Hospital Offset Payment Program	-	-	-	0.0%
Supplemental Hospital Offset Payment Program	123,205,659	123,205,659	-	0.0%
Other Revenues	1,528,123	1,568,895	40,772	2.7%
TOTAL REVENUES	\$ 3,109,497,016	\$ 3,271,554,724	\$ 162,057,708	5.2%

EXPENDITURES	FY23 Budget YTD	FY23 Actual YTD	Variance	% (Over)/ Under
ADMINISTRATION - OPERATING	\$ 27,577,281	\$ 24,711,120	\$ 2,866,161	10.4%
ADMINISTRATION - CONTRACTS	\$ 53,271,446	\$ 55,464,096	\$ (2,192,650)	(4.1)%
MEDICAID PROGRAMS				
<u>Managed Care:</u>				
SoonerCare Choice	23,635,424	23,821,680	(186,256)	(0.8)%
<u>Acute Fee for Service Payments:</u>				
Hospital Services	717,519,676	711,001,669	6,518,008	0.9%
Behavioral Health	13,402,851	13,036,801	366,050	2.7%
Physicians	252,752,457	258,102,779	(5,350,322)	(2.1)%
Dentists	95,222,581	102,433,365	(7,210,784)	(7.6)%
Other Practitioners	31,377,326	38,124,463	(6,747,137)	(21.5)%
Home Health Care	14,562,069	12,106,608	2,455,461	16.9%
Lab & Radiology	21,961,475	19,781,209	2,180,266	9.9%
Medical Supplies	36,369,807	41,221,906	(4,852,099)	(13.3)%
Ambulatory/Clinics	239,992,995	266,093,362	(26,100,366)	(10.9)%
Prescription Drugs	569,674,406	655,983,980	(86,309,573)	(15.2)%
OHCA Therapeutic Foster Care	240,388	190,590	49,798	20.7%
<u>Other Payments:</u>				
Nursing Facilities	278,934,383	353,477,166	(74,542,782)	(26.7)%
Intermediate Care Facilities for Individuals with Intellectual Disabilities Private	29,396,061	27,756,082	1,639,979	5.6%
Medicare Buy-In	102,450,304	102,900,870	(450,565)	(0.4)%
Transportation	40,019,540	45,431,934	(5,412,395)	(13.5)%
Money Follows the Person-OHCA	216,533	258,480	(41,946)	(19.4)%
Electronic Health Records-Incentive Payments	(13,130)	(13,130)	-	0.0%
Part D Phase-In Contribution	30,784,774	30,953,218	(168,443)	(0.5)%
Supplemental Hospital Offset Payment Program	338,983,631	330,200,696	8,782,935	2.6%
Telligen	5,233,343	4,448,884	784,459	15.0%
Total OHCA Medical Programs	2,842,716,896	3,037,312,611	(194,595,715)	(6.8)%
OHCA Non-Title XIX Medical Payments	89,382	-	89,382	0.0%
TOTAL OHCA	\$ 2,923,655,006	\$ 3,117,487,827	\$ (193,832,821)	(6.6)%
REVENUES OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES	\$ 185,842,011	\$ 154,066,897	\$ (31,775,113)	

OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
Total Medicaid Program Expenditures
by Source of State Funds
SFY 2023, For the Five Month Period Ending November 30, 2022

Category of Service	Total	Health Care Authority	Quality of Care	Insure Oklahoma	SHOPP	BCC	Other State Agencies
SoonerCare Choice	\$ 23,821,680	\$ 23,819,179	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	2,501	\$ -
Inpatient Acute Care	785,615,959	392,233,873	202,786	(1,859)	254,942,108	323,441	137,915,610
Outpatient Acute Care	378,456,780	316,919,804	17,335	(391)	60,215,602	1,304,429	-
Behavioral Health - Inpatient	50,586,415	8,267,541	-	-	12,331,029	-	29,987,844
Behavioral Health - Psychiatrist	7,481,217	4,763,777	-	-	2,711,958	5,483	-
Behavioral Health - Outpatient	8,690,392	-	-	-	-	-	8,690,392
Behavioral Health-Health Home	(2,398)	-	-	-	-	-	(2,398)
Behavioral Health Facility- Rehab	114,984,208	-	-	-	-	110,184	114,984,208
Behavioral Health - Case Management	2,727,303	-	-	-	-	-	2,727,303
Behavioral Health - PRTF	6,378,457	-	-	-	-	-	6,378,457
Behavioral Health - CCBHC	149,162,941	-	-	-	-	-	149,162,941
Residential Behavioral Management	8,216,385	-	-	-	-	-	8,216,385
Targeted Case Management	30,146,017	-	-	-	-	-	30,146,017
Therapeutic Foster Care	190,590	190,590	-	-	-	-	-
Physicians	314,039,283	257,427,909	24,209	2,184	-	650,661	55,934,320
Dentists	102,433,365	102,395,398	-	-	-	37,967	-
Mid Level Practitioners	643,070	642,077	-	-	-	994	-
Other Practitioners	37,481,392	37,266,558	185,985	-	-	28,849	-
Home Health Care	12,106,608	12,106,062	-	-	-	547	-
Lab & Radiology	19,781,209	19,738,551	-	-	-	42,658	-
Medical Supplies	41,221,906	40,074,996	1,129,805	-	-	17,105	-
Clinic Services	269,020,070	261,122,297	-	398	-	139,975	7,757,399
Ambulatory Surgery Centers	4,831,089	4,825,368	-	-	-	5,721	-
Personal Care Services	3,870,011	-	-	-	-	-	3,870,011
Nursing Facilities	353,477,166	174,949,054	178,528,112	-	-	-	-
Transportation	45,292,596	44,296,864	909,686	1,871	-	84,174	-
IME/DME	46,503,762	-	-	-	-	-	46,503,762
ICF/IID Private	27,756,082	18,440,605	9,315,477	-	-	-	-
ICF/IID Public	8,934,458	-	-	-	-	-	8,934,458
CMS Payments	133,854,087	133,656,620	197,467	-	-	-	-
Prescription Drugs	655,976,924	654,786,155	-	(7,056)	-	1,197,824	-
Miscellaneous Medical Payments	141,210	138,817	-	-	-	2,393	-
Home and Community Based Waiver	115,439,921	-	-	-	-	-	115,439,921
Homeward Bound Waiver	31,330,377	-	-	-	-	-	31,330,377
Money Follows the Person	1,246,523	258,480	-	-	-	-	988,043
In-Home Support Waiver	13,449,571	-	-	-	-	-	13,449,571
ADvantage Waiver	87,811,494	-	-	-	-	-	87,811,494
Family Planning/Family Planning Waiver	730,836	-	-	-	-	-	730,836
Premium Assistance*	17,624,084	-	-	17,624,084.22	-	-	-
Telligen	4,448,884	4,448,884	-	-	-	-	-
Electronic Health Records Incentive Payments	(13,130)	(13,130)	-	-	-	-	-
Total Medicaid Expenditures	\$ 3,915,888,794	\$ 2,512,756,331	\$ 190,510,862	\$ 17,619,232	\$ 330,200,696	\$ 3,954,906	\$ 860,956,952

* Includes \$17,443,783.38 paid out of Fund 245

OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
Summary of Revenues & Expenditures:
Other State Agencies
SFY 2023, For the Five Month Period Ending November 30, 2022

REVENUE	FY23 Actual YTD
Revenues from Other State Agencies	181,999,495
Federal Funds	697,770,649
TOTAL REVENUES	\$ 879,770,144
EXPENDITURES	Actual YTD
Oklahoma Human Services	
Home and Community Based Waiver	115,439,921
Money Follows the Person	988,043
Homeward Bound Waiver	31,330,377
In-Home Support Waivers	13,449,571
Advantage Waiver	87,811,494
Intermediate Care Facilities for Individuals with Intellectual Disabilities Public	8,934,458
Personal Care	3,870,011
Residential Behavioral Management	5,516,912
Targeted Case Management	26,383,770
Total Oklahoma Human Services	293,724,557
State Employees Physician Payment	
Physician Payments	55,934,320
Total State Employees Physician Payment	55,934,320
Education Payments	
Indirect Medical Education	39,124,998
Direct Medical Education	2,138,541
DSH	5,240,223
Total Education Payments	46,503,762
Office of Juvenile Affairs	
Targeted Case Management	680,927
Residential Behavioral Management	2,699,474
Total Office of Juvenile Affairs	3,380,400
Department of Mental Health & Substance Abuse Services	
Case Management	2,727,303
Inpatient Psychiatric Free-standing	29,987,844
Outpatient	8,690,392
Health Homes	(2,398)
Psychiatric Residential Treatment Facility	6,378,457
Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics	149,162,941
Rehabilitation Centers	114,984,208
Total Department of Mental Health & Substance Abuse Services	311,928,747
State Department of Health	
Children's First	185,510
Sooner Start	666,860
Early Intervention	1,680,235
Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment Clinic	653,746
Family Planning	319,432
Family Planning Waiver	411,404
Maternity Clinic	7,911
Total Department of Health	3,925,099
County Health Departments	
EPSDT Clinic	201,709
Family Planning Waiver	-
Total County Health Departments	201,709
State Department of Education	83,801
Public Schools	1,131,774
Medicare DRG Limit	124,010,018
Native American Tribal Agreements	6,227,173
Department of Corrections	1,321,753
JD McCarty	12,583,839
Total OSA Medicaid Programs	\$ 860,956,952
OSA Non-Medicaid Programs	\$ 47,163,723
Accounts Receivable from OSA	\$ 28,350,530

OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
SUMMARY OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES:
Fund 205: Supplemental Hospital Offset Payment Program Fund
SFY 2023, For the Five Month Period Ending November 30, 2022

REVENUES	FY 23 Revenue
SHOPP Assessment Fee	123,126,551
Federal Draws	\$ 278,431,348
Interest	79,108
Penalties	-
TOTAL REVENUES	\$ 401,637,006

EXPENDITURES	Quarter	Quarter	Quarter	Quarter	FY 23 Expenditures
	7/1/22 - 9/30/22	10/1/22 - 12/31/22	1/1/23 - 3/31/23	4/1/23 - 6/30/23	
Program Costs:					
Hospital - Inpatient Care	62,885,681	64,627,323	-	-	\$ 127,513,005
Hospital -Outpatient Care	17,328,429	16,164,122	-	-	\$ 33,492,551
Psychiatric Facilities-Inpatient	3,500,773	4,594,904	-	-	\$ 8,095,678
Rehabilitation Facilities-Inpatient	749,525	1,055,631	-	-	\$ 1,805,157
Hospital - Inpatient Care - Expansion	64,714,551	62,714,551	-	-	\$ 127,429,103
Hospital -Outpatient Care - Expansion	13,361,525	13,361,525	-	-	\$ 26,723,051
Psychiatric Facilities-Inpatient - Expansion	2,117,676	2,117,676	-	-	\$ 4,235,351
Rehabilitation Facilities-Inpatient - Expansion	453,400	453,400	-	-	\$ 906,801
Total OHCA Program Costs	165,111,562	165,089,134	-	-	\$ 330,200,696
Total Expenditures					\$ 330,200,696

<i>SHOPP Revenue transferred to Fund 340 for Medicaid Program expense</i>	<i>\$ 71,436,310</i>
---	----------------------

*** Expenditures and Federal Revenue processed through Fund 340

OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
SUMMARY OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES:
Fund 230: Nursing Facility Quality of Care Fund
SFY 2023, For the Five Month Period Ending November 30, 2022

REVENUES	Total Revenue	State Share
Quality of Care Assessment	\$ 38,149,010	\$ 38,149,010
Quality of Care Penalties (*Non-Spendable Revenue)	\$ 80,373	\$ 80,373
Interest Earned	12,423	\$ 12,423
TOTAL REVENUES	\$ 38,241,807	\$ 38,241,807

EXPENDITURES	FY 23 Total \$ YTD	FY 23 State \$ YTD	Total State \$ Cost
Program Costs			
Nursing Facility Rate Adjustment	\$ 108,710,243	\$ 22,696,323	
Eyeglasses and Dentures	103,647	\$ 21,639	
Personal Allowance Increase	1,274,720	\$ 266,077	
Coverage for Durable Medical Equipment and Supplies	1,129,805	\$ 235,790	
Coverage of Qualified Medicare Beneficiary	430,315	\$ 89,807	
Part D Phase-In	197,467	\$ 197,467	
ICF/IID Rate Adjustment	2,151,034	\$ 448,984	
Acute Services ICF/IID	3,070,252	\$ 640,539	
Non-emergency Transportation - Soonerride	909,686	\$ 189,894	
NF Covid-19 Supplemental Payment	68,439,502	\$ 14,353,490	
ICF Covid-19 Supplemental Payment	4,094,191	\$ 858,524	
Ventilator NF DME Supplemental Payment		\$ -	
Total Program Costs	\$ 190,510,862	\$ 39,998,535	\$ 39,998,535
Administration			
OHCA Administration Costs	\$ 127,758	\$ 63,879	
OHS-Ombudsmen	-	-	
OSDH-Nursing Facility Inspectors	-	-	
Mike Fine, CPA	-	-	
Total Administration Costs	\$ 127,758	\$ 63,879	\$ 63,879
Total Quality of Care Fee Costs	\$ 190,638,620	\$ 40,062,413	
TOTAL STATE SHARE OF COSTS			\$ 40,062,413

Note: Expenditure amounts are for informational purposes only. Actual payments are made from Fund 340. Revenues deposited into the fund are transferred to Fund 340 to support the costs, not to exceed the calculated state share amount.

OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
SUMMARY OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES:
 Insure Oklahoma Program (Fund 245: HEEIA)
 SFY 2023, For the Five Month Period Ending November 30, 2022

REVENUES	FY 22 Carryover	FY 23 Revenue	Total Revenue
Prior Year Balance	\$ 14,187,453		
State Appropriations	-		
Federal Draws - Prior Year	265,676		
Total Prior Year Revenue			14,453,129
Transfer to 340 for Expansion-current year		-	-
Tobacco Tax Collections	-	14,756,620	14,756,620
Interest Income	-	106,943	106,943
Federal Draws	-	14,284,354	14,284,354
TOTAL REVENUES	\$ 14,453,129	\$ 29,147,917	\$ 43,601,046

EXPENDITURES	FY 22 Expenditures	FY 23 Expenditures	Total State \$ YTD
Program Costs:			
Employer Sponsored Insurance		\$ 17,443,783	\$ 17,443,783
College Students/ESI Dental		180,301	37,642
Individual Plan			
SoonerCare Choice	\$	-	-
Inpatient Hospital		(1,859)	(388)
Outpatient Hospital		(571)	(117)
BH - Inpatient Services-DRG		-	-
BH -Psychiatrist		-	-
Physicians		2,184	439
Dentists		-	-
Mid Level Practitioner		-	-
Other Practitioners		-	-
Home Health		-	-
Lab and Radiology		-	-
Medical Supplies		-	-
Clinic Services		398	82
Ambulatory Surgery Center		-	-
Skilled Nursing		-	-
Prescription Drugs		(7,056)	(1,471)
Transportation		1,871	383
Premiums Collected		-	-
Total Individual Plan		\$ (5,033)	\$ (1,072)
College Students-Service Costs		\$ 181	\$ 39
Total OHCA Program Costs		\$ 17,619,232	\$ 17,480,392
Administrative Costs			
Salaries	\$ -	\$ 596,151	\$ 596,151
Operating Costs	323	516	838
E&E Development Gainwell	-	-	-
Contract - Gainwell	375,519	362,020	737,539
Total Administrative Costs	\$ 375,842	\$ 958,686	\$ 1,334,528
Total Expenditures			\$ 18,814,920
Transfer to Fund 340 for Expansion Costs			\$ 5,889,367
NET CASH BALANCE	\$ 14,077,287	\$ 4,819,473	\$ 18,896,759

OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
SFY 2023, For the Five Month Period Ending November 30, 2022

	Administration Fund 200	Supplemental Hospital Offset Payment Program Fund 205	Quality of Care Fund 230	Rate Preservation Fund 236	Federal Deferral Fund 240	Health Employee and Economy Act Fund 245	Belle Maxine Hilliard Breast & Cervical Cancer Treatment (Tobacco) Fund 250	Medicaid Program (Tobacco) Fund 255	Medicaid Program Fund 340	Clearing Account 1807B	Total Cash Balance
November Beginning Fund Balance:											
Prior year	30,193,601	954,274	158,274	173,190,614	66,105,110	14,077,287	-	-	884,956,391	14,945,358	1,184,580,908
Current year	(405,122)	(227,309)	(12,445)	48,924,793	299,789	2,718,597	-	-	105,011,728	2,604,149	158,914,180
Total	29,788,479	726,965	145,829	222,115,407	66,404,899	16,795,884	-	-	989,968,119	17,549,506	1,343,495,088
November Revenues:											
Prior year	463,325	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	174,491	-	637,816
Current year	10,373,723	811,989	7,523,617	-	92,906	5,630,679	55,247	3,310,415	711,636,434	17,724,794	757,159,803
Total	10,837,049	811,989	7,523,617	-	92,906	5,630,679	55,247	3,310,415	711,810,924	17,724,794	757,797,619
November Expenditures:											
Prior year	2,332,191	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	2,332,191
Current year	8,133,067	-	-	-	-	3,493,195	-	-	814,482,793	-	826,109,055
Total	10,465,257	-	-	-	-	3,493,195	-	-	814,482,793	-	828,441,245
Operating Transfers In											
Prior year	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Current year	5,765,823	-	-	13,678,171	-	-	-	-	89,056,167	-	108,500,161
Total	5,765,823	-	-	13,678,171	-	-	-	-	89,056,167	-	108,500,161
Operating Transfers Out											
Prior year	1,147,870	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1,147,870
Current year	-	-	7,399,232	-	-	-	55,247	3,310,415	-	14,945,358	25,710,251
Total	1,147,870	-	7,399,232	-	-	-	55,247	3,310,415	-	14,945,358	26,858,121
Change in CY Fund Balance	7,601,357	584,681	111,941	62,602,964	392,695	4,856,081	-	-	91,221,536	5,383,585	172,754,839
Ending Fund Balance	34,778,223	1,538,955	270,214	235,793,578	66,497,805	18,933,368	-	-	976,352,417	20,328,943	1,354,493,503

OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
HEALTHY ADULT PROGRAM EXPENDITURES - OHCA
SFY 2023, For the Five Month Period Ending November 30, 2022

PROGRAM / ACTIVITY	FY23 BUDGETED EXPENDITURES		FY23 ACTUAL EXPENDITURES	BUDGET VARIANCE
	Full Year	Year to Date	YTD through November	(Over)/ Under
OHCA MEDICAID PROGRAMS				
Managed Care				
SoonerCare Choice	3,765,223	1,568,843	1,720,822	(151,979)
Total Managed Care	3,765,223	1,568,843	1,720,822	(151,979)
Fee for Service				
Hospital Services:				
Inpatient Acute Care	273,604,093	117,202,501	106,207,709	10,994,792
SHOPP	265,696,456	130,067,538	159,294,306	(29,226,768)
Outpatient Acute Care	261,235,739	111,808,967	120,699,944	(8,890,977)
Total Hospitals	800,536,288	359,079,005	386,201,959	(27,122,953)
Behavioral Mental Health:				
Inpatient Services - DRG	9,301,433	3,935,222	10,139,510	(6,204,288)
Outpatient	-	-	-	-
Total Behavioral Mental Health	9,301,433	3,935,222	10,139,510	(6,204,288)
Physicians & Other Providers:				
Physicians	165,125,830	71,066,697	77,804,389	(6,737,691)
Dentists	41,644,615	17,618,876	25,088,139	(7,469,263)
Mid-Level Practitioner	470,555	199,081	192,216	6,865
Other Practitioners	17,826,615	7,542,030	9,626,732	(2,084,702)
Home Health Care	1,057,567	447,432	501,205	(53,773)
Lab & Radiology	18,732,473	7,925,277	8,657,957	(732,680)
Medical Supplies	12,693,042	5,370,133	6,949,532	(1,579,399)
Clinic Services	143,276,094	61,822,578	71,029,964	(9,207,385)
Ambulatory Clinics	3,935,341	1,664,952	1,993,601	(328,649)
Total Physicians & Other Providers	404,762,132	173,657,056	201,843,733	(28,186,677)
Misc Medical & Health Access Network	81,869	34,637	53,120	(18,483)
Transportation	22,433,552	9,491,118	12,767,211	(3,276,093)
Health Access Network	-	-	13,805	(13,805)
Prescription Drugs	538,724,708	230,815,838	287,986,004	(57,170,166)
Total OHCA Medicaid Programs	1,779,605,206	778,581,719	900,726,165	(122,144,445)

DRAFT

**March MAC
Proposed Rules Amendment Summaries**

These proposed PERMANENT rules were presented at the Jan. 3, 2023, Tribal Consultation, and were subject to a 30-day public comment period from Feb. 1 through Mar. 3, 2023.

The Agency is requesting the effective date to be Sept. 2023, contingent upon receiving legislature and gubernatorial approval.

APA WF # 22-23A&B ADvantage Waiver Rule Changes – The proposed revisions align policy with the recently approved waiver amendment, which added Assistive Technology and Remote Support services. Revisions outline and define the purpose and scope of remote support services, service description, provider requirements, guidelines, limitations, and service discontinuation. Additional revisions outline the assistive technology services and devices that are covered/non-covered. Further revisions correct formatting and grammatical errors.

Budget Impact: The estimated total cost for SFY 2023 is \$958,875. The estimated total cost for SFY 2024 is \$2,025,000. Oklahoma Human Services (OKDHS) is responsible for the projected cost of services.

APA WF # 22-24A&B Developmental Disabilities Services (DDS) Policy Changes – The proposed revisions update coverage limits for individual family training and group family training from \$5,500 to \$6,500 and remove outdated documentation requirements for family support services. The revisions add new criteria and standards for specialized foster care and criteria for providers of respite care and homemaker, remote, and agency companion services. The revisions also add optometry benefits to include routine eye examination and purchase of corrective lenses. Finally, revisions add language to support the increase of the public transportation limit, correct formatting/grammatical errors, and align policy with current business practices.

Budget Impact: Budget neutral.

APA WF # 22-25 Behavioral Health Rules Cleanup – The proposed revisions clarify timely completion of the placement tool for a substance use disorder (SUD) admission or extension request and update service plan, documentation, and signature requirements. Furthermore, the proposed revisions require providers to report to OKDHS instances of child abuse/neglect in residential settings in accordance with state law. Revisions also include grammatical and formatting changes as needed.

Budget Impact: Budget neutral.

APA WF # 22-26 Crisis Intervention Rule Revisions – The proposed revisions clarify crisis intervention services (CIS) as the provision of these services is expanding in the State. Rule changes will clearly define mobile versus on-site CIS and include other grammatical and formatting changes as needed.

Budget Impact: Budget neutral.

APA WF # 22-27 Physician Assistant Rule Revisions – The proposed revisions ensure that previous amendments to the Physician Assistant Practice Act by the State's Legislature are reflected in the rules. Rule changes include: updating the term "supervising" physician to "delegating" physician; removing the application to practice requirements and replace it with the practice agreement requirements; and a new timeframe of 10 business days for providers to submit any updated copy of the practice agreement due to changes. Other revisions will involve limited rewriting aimed at improving readability and overall flow of policy language.

Budget Impact: Budget neutral.

APA WF # 22-28 Opioid Treatment Program (OTP) Rule Changes – The proposed revisions revise OTP rules to align with federal regulations with updates to the phase requirements. Further revisions update service plan signatures to clarify requirements according to the member's age.

Budget Impact: Budget neutral.

APA WF # 22-29 Laboratory Services Policy Cleanup – The proposed revisions combine the existing laboratory policies into one centralized location. This will allow for better access to the policies and an easier understanding of services covered under the laboratory benefit. Language will be placed into policy to clarify coverage of reference (outside) laboratories when an independent or hospital laboratory refers a service to another laboratory.

Budget Impact: Budget neutral.

APA WF # 22-30 Outdated/Obsolete Policy Language Cleanup – The proposed revisions amend language to remove obsolete references and combine sections of policy to remove the overabundant number of sections that are currently in Title 317. These changes are necessary to comply with Oklahoma Executive Order 2020-03.

Budget Impact: Budget neutral.

APA WF # 22-31 Eliminate Certificate of Medical Necessity (CMN) Form Requirement for Most Medical Supplies, Equipment, and Appliances – The proposed revisions eliminate the requirement to include a CMN form when requesting the prior authorization (PA) for most medical supplies, equipment, and appliances. Rules will state that the CMN form continues to be required for enteral and parenteral nutrition.

Budget Impact: Budget neutral.

These proposed EMERGENCY rules were presented at the Jan. 3, 2023, Tribal Consultation, and were subject to at least a 15-day public comment period.

The Agency is requesting the effective date to be immediately upon receiving gubernatorial approval. The Governor will have until May 8, 2023, to approve or disapprove each rule, upon the Agency's submission for gubernatorial review.

APA WF # 23-01 State Plan Personal Care Services for Expansion Adults, TEFRA Eligible Children and Certain MAGI Populations – The proposed revisions will add new policy to delineate eligibility requirements, definitions, medical eligibility criteria for personal care, and the process for medical eligibility determinations. Additionally, rules add the current business practice for approving the TEFRA population and any EPSDT members who meet medical necessity to receive personal care services.

Budget Impact: The estimated budget impact, for SFY2023, will be an increase in the total amount of \$91,173; with \$25,200 in state share. The estimated budget impact, for SFY2024 will be an increase in the total amount of \$273,520; with \$88,921 in state share.

APA WF # 23-05 Notification of Date of Service (NODOS) Timeframe Change – The proposed revisions update rules on application procedures for filing a Notification of Date of Service (NODOS). The current five-day requirement for the hospital to file the electronic NODOS will remain in effect; however, after the electronic NODOS is filed, the applicant or someone acting on behalf of the applicant will have 40 days to submit a completed SoonerCare application instead of the current fifteen 15 days.

Budget Impact: The estimated total cost for SFY 2024 is \$420,861 (\$284,039 in federal share and \$136,822 in state share). The estimated total cost for SFY 2025 is \$561,147 (\$378,718 in federal share and \$182,429 in state share).

APA WF # 23-06A&B Transition to SoonerSelect – These changes comply with Oklahoma Senate Bill SB1337 and Oklahoma Senate Bill 1396 (SB 1396), which directed the Oklahoma Health Care Authority to transition to a new health care program, called SoonerSelect. Policy will define terms, processes, and regulations from SB1337 and the published Model Contract/Request for Proposals (RFP). The proposed rule additions/revisions outline and address state-sanctions and complementary non-compliance remedies required of the medical contracted entities (CEs) and dental benefit managers (DBMs). Other rule additions include, but are not limited to, managed care mandatory and voluntary populations (American Indian/Alaskan Native (AI/AN) members), processes for network adequacy, provider requirements, termination of contracts, transition of care policies, medical necessity, required notices and grievances and appeals.

Budget Impact: The OHCA Board approved expenditure authority for the SoonerSelect RFP at the January 18, 2023 meeting. The goal of the SoonerSelect delivery model over the term of the contracts (first year, plus 5 renewal years) is budget neutrality.

DRAFT

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 30. MEDICAL PROVIDERS-FEE FOR SERVICE**

SUBCHAPTER 5. INDIVIDUAL PROVIDERS AND SPECIALTIES

PART 85. ADVANTAGE PROGRAM WAIVER SERVICES

317:30-5-763. Description of services

Services included in the ADvantage program are:

(1) Case management.

(A) Case management services, regardless of payment source, assist a member to gain access to medical, social, educational, or other services that may benefit him or her to maintain health and safety. Case managers:

(i) Initiate and oversee necessary assessments and reassessments to establish or reestablish waiver program eligibility;

(ii) Develop the member's comprehensive person-centered service plan, listing only the services necessary to prevent institutionalization of the member, as determined through the assessments;

(iii) Initiate the addition of necessary services or deletion of unnecessary services, as dictated by the member's condition and available support; and

(iv) Monitor the member's condition to ensure delivery and appropriateness of services and initiate person-centered service plan reviews. Case managers submit an individualized ~~Form 02CB014, Services Backup Plan~~, on all initial service plans, annually at reassessment, and on updates as appropriate throughout the year, reflecting risk factors and measures in place to minimize risks. When a member requires hospital or nursing facility (NF) services, the case manager:

(I) Assists the member in accessing institutional care and, as appropriate, periodically monitors the member's progress during the institutional stay;

(II) Helps the member transition from institution to home by updating the person-centered service plan;

(III) Prepares services to start on the date the member is discharged from the institution; and

(IV) Must meet ADvantage program minimum requirements for qualification and training prior to providing services to ADvantage members.

(B) Providers of ADvantage services for the member or for those who have an interest in or are employed by an ADvantage provider for the member must not provide case management or develop the person-centered service plan, except when the ADvantage Administration (AA) demonstrates the only willing and qualified entity to provide case management and/or develop person-centered service plans in a geographic area, also provides other ADvantage services. Prior to providing services to members receiving ~~Consumer Directed~~ Consumer Directed Personal Assistance Services and Supports (CD-PASS), case manager supervisors, and case managers are required to receive training and demonstrate knowledge regarding the CD-PASS service delivery model, "Independent Living Philosophy," and demonstrate competency in person-centered planning.

(C) Providers may only claim time for billable case management activities, described as:

(i) Any task or function, per Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:30-5-763(1)(A) that only an ADvantage case manager ~~can perform on behalf of the member~~, because of skill, training, or authority, can perform on behalf of a member; and

(ii) Ancillary activities, such as clerical tasks, including, but not limited to, mailing, copying, filing, faxing, driving time, or supervisory and administrative activities are not billable case management activities. The administrative cost of these activities and other normal and customary business overhead costs are included in the reimbursement rate for billable activities.

(D) Case management services are prior authorized and billed per fifteen (15) minute unit of service using the rate associated with the location of residence of the member served.

(i) Case management services are billed using a standard rate for reimbursement for billable service activities provided to a member who resides in a county with a population density greater than twenty-five (25) persons per square mile.

(ii) Case management services are billed using a very rural/outside providers' service area rate for billable service activities provided to a member who resides in a county with a population density equal to, or less than twenty-five (25) persons per square mile. Exceptions are services to members who reside in Oklahoma Department of Human Services (OKDHS) Community Living, Aging and Protective Services identified zip codes in Osage County adjacent to the metropolitan areas of Tulsa and Washington counties. Services to these members are prior authorized and billed using the standard rate.

(iii) The latest United States Census, Oklahoma counties population data is the source for determination of whether a member resides in a county with a population density equal to, or less than twenty-five (25) persons per square mile; or resides in a county with a population density greater than twenty-five (25) persons per square mile.

(2) Respite.

(A) Respite services are provided to members who are unable to care for themselves. Services are provided on a short-term basis due to the primary caregiver's absence or need for relief. Payment for respite care does not include room and board costs unless more than seven (7) hours are provided in a NF. Respite care is only utilized when other sources of care and support are exhausted. Respite care is only listed on the service plan when it is necessary to prevent institutionalization of the member. Units of services are limited to the number of units approved on the service plan.

(B) In-home respite services are billed per fifteen (15) minute unit of service. Within any one (1) day period, a minimum of eight (8) units [two (2) hours] must be provided with a maximum of twenty-eight (28) units [seven (7) hours] provided. The service is provided in the member's home.

(C) Facility-based extended respite is filed for a per diem rate when provided in a NF. Extended respite must be at least eight (8) hours in duration.

(D) In-home extended respite is filed for a per diem rate. A minimum of eight (8) hours must be provided in the member's home.

(3) Adult day health (ADH) care.

(A) ADH is furnished on a ~~regularly scheduled~~ regularly scheduled basis for one (1) or more days per week in an outpatient setting. It provides both health and social services

necessary to ensure the member's optimal functioning. Most assistance with activities of daily living (ADLs), such as eating, mobility, toileting, and nail care are integral services to the ADH care service and are covered by the ADH care basic reimbursement rate.

(B) ADH care is a fifteen (15) minute unit of service. No more than eight (8) hours, [thirty-two (32) units] are authorized per day. The number of units of service a member may receive is limited to the number of units approved on the member's approved service plan.

(C) Physical, occupational, and speech therapies are only provided as an enhancement to the basic ADH care service when authorized by the service plan and are billed as a separate procedure. ADH care therapy enhancement is a maximum of one (1) session unit per day of service.

(D) Meals provided as part of this service do not constitute a full nutritional regimen. One (1) meal, that contains at least one-third (1/3) of the current daily dietary recommended intake (DRI), as established by the Food and Nutrition Board of the National Academies of Sciences, Engineering, and Medicine, is provided to those participants who are in the center for four (4) or more hours per day; and does not constitute a full nutritional regimen. Member's access to food at any time must also be available in addition to the required meal and is consistent with an individual not receiving Medicaid-funded services and supports.

(E) ~~Personal care~~ Personal care service enhancement in ADH is assistance in bathing, hair care, or laundry service, authorized by the person-centered service plan and billed as separate procedures. This service is authorized when an ADvantage waiver member who uses ADH requires assistance with bathing, hair care, or laundry to maintain health and safety. Assistance with bathing, hair care, or laundry service is not a usual and customary ADH care service. ADH personal care enhancement is a maximum of one (1) unit per day of bathing, hair care, or laundry service.

(F) OKDHS Home and Community-Based Services (HCBS) waiver settings have qualities defined in Home and Community-Based Services: Waiver Requirements, 42 Code of Federal Regulations, Section (§) 441.301 (c)(4) based on the individual's needs, defined in the member's authorized service plan.

(i) The ADH center is integrated and supports full access of ADvantage members to the greater community, including opportunities to:

- (I) Seek employment and work in competitive integrated ADH Center, not a requirement for persons that are retirement age;
- (II) Engage in community life;
- (III) Control personal resources; and
- (IV) Receive services in the community, to the same degree as individuals not receiving ADvantage Program or other Medicaid HBCS waiver services.

(ii) The ADH is selected by the member from all available service options and given the opportunity to visit and understand the options.

(iii) The ADH ensures the member's rights of privacy, dignity, respect, and freedom from coercion and restraint.

(iv) The ADH optimizes the member's initiative, autonomy, and independence in making life choices including, but not limited to:

- (I) Daily activities;
- (II) The physical environment; and

(III) Social interactions.

(v) The ADH facilitates the member's choice regarding services and supports including the provider.

(vi) Each member has the freedom and support to control his or her own schedules, activities, and access to food at any time.

(vii) Each member may have visitors whenever he or she chooses.

(viii) The ADH center is physically accessible to the member.

(G) ADH centers that are presumed not to be HCBS settings per 42 C.F.R. § 441.301(c)(5)(v) include, ADH centers:

(i) ~~in~~In a publicly- or privately-owned facility providing inpatient treatment;

(ii) ~~on~~On the grounds of or adjacent to a public institution; and

(iii) ~~with~~With the effect of isolating individuals from the broader community of individuals not receiving ADvantage program or another Medicaid HCBS;

(H) When the ADH is presumed not HCBS, according to 42 C.F.R. § 441.301(c)(5)(v), it may be subject to heightened scrutiny by AA, the Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA), and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). The ADH must provide evidence that the ADH portion of the facility has clear administrative, financial, programmatic, and environmental distinctions from the institution and comply with additional monitoring by the AA.

(4) Environmental modifications.

(A) Environmental modifications are physical adaptations to the home, required by the member's person-centered service plan that are necessary to ensure the member's health, welfare, and safety or enable the member to function with greater independence in the home, and that without such, the member would require institutionalization. Adaptations or improvements to the home ~~but~~ not of direct medical or remedial benefit to the waiver member are excluded.

(B) All services require prior authorization.

(5) Specialized medical equipment and supplies.

(A) Specialized medical equipment and supplies are devices, controls, or appliances specified in the person-centered service plan that enable members to increase their abilities to perform ADLs, or to perceive, control, or communicate with the environment in which they live. Necessary items for life support, ancillary supplies, and equipment necessary for the proper functioning of such items, and durable and non-durable medical equipment not available under the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan are also included. This service excludes any equipment ~~and/or~~or supply items not of direct medical or remedial benefit to the waiver member and necessary to prevent institutionalization.

(B) Specialized medical equipment and supplies are billed using the appropriate HealthCare Common Procedure Code (HCPC). Reoccurring supplies shipped and delivered to the member are compensable only when the member remains eligible for waiver services, continues to reside in the home, and is not institutionalized in a hospital, skilled nursing facility, or nursing home. It is the provider's responsibility to verify the member's status prior to shipping and delivering these items. Payment for medical supplies is limited to the SoonerCare (Medicaid) rate when established, to the Medicare rate, or to actual acquisition cost, plus thirty percent (30%). All services must have prior authorization.

(6) Advanced supportive/restorative assistance.

(A) Advanced supportive/restorative assistance services are maintenance services used to assist a member who has a chronic, yet stable condition. These services assist with ADLs that require devices and procedures related to altered body functions. These services are for maintenance only and are not utilized as treatment services.

(B) Advanced supportive/restorative assistance service is billed per fifteen (15) minute unit of service. The number of units of service a member may receive is limited to the number of units approved on the person-centered service plan.

(7) Nursing.

(A) Nursing services are services listed in the person-centered service plan that are within the scope of the state's Nurse Practice Act. These services are provided by a registered nurse (RN), a licensed practical nurse (LPN), or a licensed vocational nurse (LVN) under the supervision of an RN licensed to practice and in good standing in the state in which services are provided. Nursing services may be provided on an intermittent or part-time basis or may be comprised of continuous care. The provision of the nursing service works to prevent or postpone the institutionalization of the member.

(B) Nursing services are services of a maintenance or preventative nature provided to members with stable, chronic conditions. These services are not intended to treat an acute health condition and may not include services reimbursable under either the Medicaid or Medicare home health program. This service primarily provides nurse supervision to the personal care assistant or to the advanced supportive/restorative assistance aide and assesses the member's health and prescribed medical services to ensure they meet the member's needs as specified in the person-centered service plan. A nursing assessment/evaluation, on-site visit is made to each member, with additional visits for members with advanced supportive/restorative assistance services authorized to evaluate the condition of the member and medical appropriateness of services. An assessment/evaluation report is forwarded to the ADvantage program case manager and the skilled nurse in accordance with review schedule determined between the case manager and the skilled nurse and outlined in the member's person-centered service plan, to report the member's condition or other significant information concerning each ADvantage member.

(i) The ADvantage program case manager may recommend authorization of nursing services as part of the interdisciplinary team planning for the member's person-centered service plan and/or assessment/evaluation of the:

(I) Member's general health, functional ability, and needs; and/or

(II) Adequacy of personal care and/or advanced supportive/restorative assistance services to meet the member's needs, including providing on-the-job training and competency testing for personal care or advanced supportive/restorative care aides per rules and regulations for the delegation of nursing tasks established by the ~~board of nursing~~ Board of Nursing in the state in which services are provided.

(ii) In addition to assessment/evaluation, the ADvantage program case manager may recommend authorization of nursing services to:

(I) Prepare a one (1) week supply of insulin syringes for a person who is blind and has diabetes and can safely self-inject the medication but cannot fill his or her own syringe. This service includes monitoring the member's continued ability to self-administer the insulin;

(II) Prepare oral medications in divided daily compartments for a member who self-administers prescribed medications but needs assistance and monitoring due to a minimal level of disorientation or confusion;

(III) Monitor a member's skin condition when a member is at risk for skin breakdown due to immobility or incontinence or the member has a chronic stage II decubitus ulcer requiring maintenance care and monitoring;

(IV) Provide nail care for ~~the~~ a member with diabetes or ~~member~~ who has circulatory or neurological compromise; and

(V) Provide consultation and education to the member, member's family, or other informal caregivers identified in the person-centered service plan, regarding the nature of the member's chronic condition. Skills training, including return skills demonstration to establish competency, to the member, family, or other informal caregivers as specified in the person-centered service plan for preventive and rehabilitative care procedures are also provided.

(C) Nursing service includes interdisciplinary team planning and recommendations for the member's person-centered service plan development and/or assessment/evaluation or for other services within the scope of the nurse's license, including private duty nursing. Nursing services are billed per fifteen (15) minute unit of service. A specific procedure code is used to bill for interdisciplinary team planning and recommendations for the member's person-centered service plan, but other procedure codes may be used to bill for all other authorized nursing services. A maximum of eight (8) units [two (2) hours], per day of nursing for service plan development and assessment evaluation are allowed. An agreement by a provider to perform a nurse evaluation is also an agreement to provide the Medicaid in-home care services for which the provider is certified and contracted. Reimbursement for a nurse evaluation is denied when the provider that produced the nurse evaluation fails to provide the nurse assessment identified in the Medicaid in-home care services for which the provider is certified and contracted.

(8) Skilled nursing services.

(A) Skilled nursing services are listed in the person-centered service plan, ~~that are~~ within the state's Nurse Practice Act scope, ~~of the state's Nurse Practice Act~~ and are ordered by a licensed physician, osteopathic physician, physician assistant, or ~~an~~ advanced practice nurse, and are provided by an RN, LPN, or LVN under the supervision of an RN, licensed to practice and in good standing in the state ~~in which~~ where services are provided. Skilled nursing services provided in the member's home or other community setting are services requiring the specialized skills of a licensed nurse. The scope and nature of these services are intended for treatment of a disease or a medical condition and are beyond the scope of ADvantage nursing services. These intermittent nursing services are targeted toward a prescribed treatment or procedure that must be performed at a specific time or other predictable rate of occurrence. The RN contacts the member's physician to obtain necessary information or orders pertaining to the member's care. When the member has an ongoing need for service activities requiring more or less units than authorized, the RN must recommend, in writing, that the service plan be revised.

(B) Skilled nursing services are provided on an intermittent or part-time basis, and billed per fifteen (15) minute unit of service. Skilled nursing services are provided when nursing services are not available through Medicare or other sources or when SoonerCare plan

nursing services limits are exhausted. Amount, frequency, and duration of services are prior-authorized in accordance with the member's person-centered service plan.

(9) Home-delivered meals.

(A) Home-delivered meals provide one (1) meal per day. A home-delivered meal is a meal prepared in advance and brought to the member's home. Each meal must have a nutritional content equal to at least one-third (1/3) of the dietary reference intakes as established by the Food and Nutrition Board of the National Academies of Sciences, Engineering and Medicine. Home-delivered meals are only provided to members who are unable to prepare meals and lack an informal provider to do meal preparation.

(B) Home-delivered meals are billed per meal, with one (1) meal equaling one (1) unit of service. The limit of the number of units a member is allowed to receive is in accordance with the member's person-centered service plan. The provider must obtain a signature from the member or the member's representative at the time the meal is delivered. In the event the member is temporarily unavailable, such as at a doctor's appointment, and the meal is left at the member's home, the provider must document the reason a signature was not obtained. The signature logs must be available for review.

(10) Occupational therapy services.

(A) Occupational therapy services are services that increase functional independence by enhancing the development of adaptive skills and performance capacities of members with physical disabilities and related psychological and cognitive impairments. Services are provided in the member's home and are intended to help the member achieve greater independence, enabling him or her to reside and participate in the community. Treatment involves the therapeutic use of self-care, work, and play activities, and may include modification of the tasks or environment to enable the member to achieve maximum independence, prevent further disability, and maintain health. Under a physician's order, a licensed occupational therapist evaluates the member's rehabilitation potential and develops an appropriate written, therapeutic regimen. The regimen utilizes paraprofessional, occupational therapy assistant services, within the limitations of his or her practice, working under the supervision of a licensed occupational therapist. The regimen includes education and training for informal caregivers to assist with and/or maintain services when appropriate. The occupational therapist ensures monitoring and documentation of the member's rehabilitative progress and reports to the member's case manager and physician to coordinate the necessary addition or deletion of services, based on the member's condition and ongoing rehabilitation potential.

(B) Occupational therapy services are billed per fifteen (15) minute unit of service. Payment is not allowed solely for written reports or record documentation.

(11) Physical therapy services.

(A) Physical therapy services are those services that maintain or improve physical disability through the evaluation and rehabilitation of members disabled by pain, disease, or injury. Services are provided in the member's home and are intended to help the member achieve greater independence to reside and participate in the community. Treatment involves the use of physical therapeutic means, such as massage, manipulation, therapeutic exercise, cold and/or heat therapy, hydrotherapy, electrical stimulation, and light therapy. Under a physician's order, a licensed physical therapist evaluates the member's rehabilitation potential and develops an appropriate, written, therapeutic regimen. Under the Oklahoma Physical Therapy Practice Act, a physical therapist may

evaluate a member's rehabilitation potential and develop and implement an appropriate, written, therapeutic regimen without a referral from a licensed health care practitioner for a period not to exceed thirty (30) calendar days. Any treatment required after the thirty (30) calendar day period requires a prescription from a physician or the physician's assistant of the licensee. The regimen utilizes paraprofessional physical therapy assistant services, within the limitations of his or her practice, working under the licensed physical therapist's supervision ~~of the licensed physical therapist~~. The regimen includes education and training for informal caregivers to assist with and/or maintain services when appropriate. The licensed physical therapist ensures monitoring and documentation of the member's rehabilitative progress and reports to the member's case manager and physician to coordinate the necessary addition or deletion of services, based on the member's condition and ongoing rehabilitation potential.

(B) Physical therapy services ~~are~~ may be authorized as ADH care therapy enhancement and are a maximum of one (1) session unit per day of service. Payment is not allowed solely for written reports or record documentation.

(12) Speech and language therapy services.

(A) Speech and language therapy services are those that maintain or improve speech and language communication and swallowing disorders/disability through the evaluation and rehabilitation of members disabled by pain, disease, or injury. Services are provided in ~~the member's home~~ an ADH service setting and are intended to help the member achieve greater independence to reside and participate in the community. Services involve the use of therapeutic means, such as evaluation, specialized treatment, or development and oversight of a therapeutic maintenance program. Under a physician's order, a licensed speech and language pathologist evaluates the member's rehabilitation potential and develops an appropriate, written, therapeutic regimen. The regimen utilizes speech language pathology assistant services within the limitations of his or her practice, working under the supervision of the licensed speech and language pathologist. The regimen includes education and training for informal caregivers to assist with, and/or maintain services when appropriate. The speech and language pathologist ensures monitoring and documentation of the member's rehabilitative progress and reports to the member's case manager and physician to coordinate the necessary addition and/or deletion of services, based on the member's condition and ongoing rehabilitation potential.

(B) Speech and language therapy services are authorized as ADH care-therapy enhancement and are a maximum of one (1) session unit per day of service. Payment is not allowed solely for written reports or record documentation.

(13) Hospice services.

(A) Hospice services are palliative and comfort care provided to the member and his or her family when a physician certifies the member has a terminal illness, with a life expectancy of six (6) months or less, and orders hospice care. ADvantage hospice care is authorized for a six (6) month period and requires physician certification of a terminal illness and orders of hospice care. When the member requires more than six (6) months of hospice care, a physician or nurse practitioner must have a face-to-face visit with the member thirty (30) calendar days prior to the initial hospice authorization end-date, and re-certify that the member has a terminal illness, has six (6) months or less to live, and orders additional hospice care. After the initial authorization period, additional periods of ADvantage hospice may be authorized for a maximum of sixty (60) calendar day

increments with physician certification that the member has a terminal illness and six (6) months or less to live. A member's person-centered service plan that includes hospice care must comply with Waiver requirements to be within total person-centered service plan cost limits.

(B) A hospice program offers palliative and supportive care to meet the special needs arising out of the physical, emotional, and spiritual stresses experienced during the final stages of illness, through the end of life, and bereavement. The member signs a statement choosing hospice care instead of routine medical care with the objective to treat and cure the member's illness. Once the member has elected hospice care, the hospice medical team assumes responsibility for the member's medical care for the illness in the home environment. Hospice care services include nursing care, physician services, medical equipment and supplies, drugs for symptom and pain relief, home health aide and personal care services, physical, occupational and speech therapies, medical social services, dietary counseling, and grief and bereavement counseling to the member and/or the member's family.

(C) A hospice person-centered service plan must be developed by the hospice team in conjunction with the member's ADvantage case manager before hospice services are provided. The hospice services must be related to the palliation or management of the member's terminal illness, symptom control, or to enable the member to maintain ADL and basic functional skills. A member who is eligible for Medicare hospice provided as a Medicare Part A benefit, is not eligible to receive ADvantage hospice services.

(D) Hospice services are billed per diem of service for days covered by a hospice person-centered service plan and while the hospice provider is responsible for providing hospice services as needed by the member or member's family. The maximum total annual reimbursement for a member's hospice care within a twelve (12) month period is limited to an amount equivalent to eighty-five percent (85%) of the Medicare hospice cap payment, and must be authorized on the member's person-centered service plan.

(14) ADvantage personal care.

(A) ADvantage personal care is assistance to a member in carrying out ADLs, such as bathing, grooming, and toileting or in carrying out instrumental activities of daily living (IADLs), such as preparing meals and laundry service, to ensure the member's personal health and safety, or to prevent or minimize physical health regression or deterioration. Personal care services do not include service provision of a technical nature, such as tracheal suctioning, bladder catheterization, colostomy irrigation, or the operation and maintenance of equipment of a technical nature.

(B) ADvantage home care agency skilled nursing staff working in coordination with an ADvantage case manager is responsible for the development and monitoring of the member's personal care services.

(C) ADvantage personal care services are prior-authorized and billed per fifteen (15) minute unit of service, with units of service limited to the number of units on the ADvantage approved person-centered service plan.

(15) Personal emergency response system (PERS).

(A) PERS is an electronic device that enables members at high risk of institutionalization, to secure help in an emergency. Members may also wear a portable "help" button to allow for mobility. PERS is connected to the person's phone and programmed to signal, per member preference, a friend, relative, or a response center, once the "help" button is

activated. For an ADvantage member to be eligible for PERS service, the member must meet all of the service criteria in (i) through (vi). The member:

- (i) Has a recent history of falls as a result of an existing medical condition that prevents the member from getting up unassisted from a fall;
- (ii) Lives alone and without a regular caregiver, paid or unpaid, and therefore is left alone for long periods of time;
- (iii) Demonstrates the capability to comprehend the purpose of and activate the PERS;
- (iv) Has a health and safety plan detailing the interventions beyond the PERS to ensure the member's health and safety in his or her home;
- (v) Has ~~has~~ a disease management plan to implement medical and health interventions that reduce the possibility of falls by managing the member's underlying medical condition causing the falls; and
- (vi) Will likely avoid premature or unnecessary institutionalization as a result of PERS.

(B) PERS services are billed using the appropriate HCPC procedure code for installation, monthly service, or PERS purchase. All services are prior authorized per the ADvantage approved service plan.

(16) CD-PASS.

(A) CD-PASS are personal services assistance (PSA) and advanced personal services assistance (APSA) that enables a member in need of assistance to reside in his or her home and community of choice, rather than in an institution; and to carry out functions of daily living, self-care, and mobility. CD-PASS services are delivered as authorized on the person-centered service plan. The member becomes the employer of record and employs the PSA and the APSA. The member is responsible, with assistance from ADvantage program administrative Financial Management Services (FMS), for ensuring the employment complies with state and federal labor law requirements. The member/employer may designate an adult family member or friend, who is not a PSA or APSA to the member, as an "authorized representative" to assist in executing the employer functions. The member/employer:

- (i) Recruits, hires, and, as necessary, discharges the PSA or APSA;
- (ii) Ensures ~~that~~ the PSA or APSA has received sufficient instruction and training. If needed, the member/employer will work with the consumer-directed agent/case manager (CDA) to obtain training assistance from ADvantage skilled nurses. Prior to performing an APSA task for the first time, the APSA must demonstrate competency in the tasks in an on-the-job training session conducted by the member, and the member must document the attendant's competency in performing each task in the APSA's personnel file;
- (iii) Determines where and how the PSA or APSA works, hours of work, what is to be accomplished and, within individual budget allocation limits, wages to be paid for the work;
- (iv) Supervises and documents employee work time; and
- (v) Provides tools and materials for work to be accomplished.

(B) The services the PSA may provide include:

- (i) Assistance with mobility and transferring in and out of bed, wheelchair, or motor vehicle, or all;

- (ii) Assistance with routine bodily functions, such as:
 - (I) Bathing and personal hygiene;
 - (II) Dressing and grooming; and
 - (III) Eating, including meal preparation and cleanup;
 - (iii) Assistance with home services, such as shopping, laundry, cleaning, and seasonal chores;
 - (iv) Companion assistance, such as letter writing, reading mail, and providing escort or transportation to participate in approved activities or events. "Approved activities or events," means community, civic participation guaranteed to all citizens including, but not limited to, exercise of religion, voting or participation in daily life activities in which exercise of choice and decision making is important to the member, and may include shopping for food, clothing, or other necessities, or for participation in other activities or events specifically approved on the person-centered service plan.
- (C) An APSA provides assistance with ADLs to a member with a stable, chronic condition, when such assistance requires devices and procedures related to altered body function if such activities, in the opinion of the attending physician or licensed nurse, may be performed if the member were physically capable, and the procedure may be safely performed in the home. Services provided by the APSA are maintenance services and are never used as therapeutic treatment. Members who develop medical complications requiring skilled nursing services while receiving APSA services are referred to his or her attending physician, who may order home health services, as appropriate. APSA includes assistance with health maintenance activities that may include:
- (i) Routine personal care for persons with ostomies, including tracheotomies, gastrostomies, and colostomies with well-healed stoma, external, indwelling, and suprapubic catheters that include changing bags and soap and water hygiene around the ostomy or catheter site;
 - (ii) Removing external catheters, inspecting skin, and reapplication of same;
 - (iii) Administering prescribed bowel program, including use of suppositories and sphincter stimulation, and enemas pre-packaged only without contraindicating rectal or intestinal conditions;
 - (iv) Applying medicated prescription lotions or ointments and dry, non-sterile dressings to unbroken skin;
 - (v) Using a lift for transfers;
 - (vi) Manually assisting with oral medications;
 - (vii) Providing passive range of motion (non-resistive flexion of joint) therapy, delivered in accordance with the person-centered service plan unless contraindicated by underlying joint pathology;
 - (viii) Applying non-sterile dressings to superficial skin breaks or abrasions; and
 - (ix) Using universal precautions as defined by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.
- (D) FMS are program administrative services provided to participating CD-PASS members/employers by AA. FMS are employer-related assistance that provides Internal Revenue Service (IRS) fiscal reporting agent and other financial management tasks and functions, including, but not limited to:
- (i) Processing employer payroll, after the member/employer has verified and approved the employee timesheet, at a minimum of semi-monthly, and associated

withholding for taxes, or for other payroll withholdings performed on behalf of the member as employer of the PSA or APSA;

(ii) Other employer-related payment disbursements as agreed to with the member/employer and in accordance with the member/employer's individual budget allocation;

(iii) Responsibility for obtaining criminal and abuse registry background checks on prospective hires for PSA or APSA on the member/employer's behalf;

(iv) Providing orientation and training regarding employer responsibilities, as well as employer information and management guidelines, materials, tools, and staff consultant expertise to support and assist the member to successfully perform employer-related functions; and

(v) Making Hepatitis B vaccine and vaccination series available to PSA and APSA employees in compliance with Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) standards.

(E) The PSA service is billed per fifteen (15) minute unit of service. The number of units of PSA a member may receive is limited to the number of units approved on the person-centered service plan.

(F) The APSA service is billed per fifteen (15) minute unit of service. The number of units of APSA a member may receive is limited to the number of units approved on the person-centered service plan.

(17) ~~Institutional~~Institution transition services.

(A) ~~Institutional~~Institution transition services are those services necessary to enable a member to leave the institution and receive necessary support through ADvantage waiver services in his or her home and community.

(B) Transitional case management services are services per OAC 317:30-5-763(1) required by the member and included on the member's person-centered service plan that are necessary to ensure the member's health, welfare, and safety, or to enable the member to function with greater independence in the home, and without which, the member would continue to require institutionalization. ADvantage transitional case management services assist institutionalized members who are eligible to receive ADvantage services in gaining access to needed waiver and other State Plan services, as well as needed medical, social, educational, and other services to assist in the transition, regardless of the funding source for the services to which access is gained. Transitional case management services may be authorized for periodic monitoring of an ADvantage member's progress during an institutional stay and for assisting the member to transition from institution to home by updating the person-centered service plan, including necessary ~~institutional~~institution transition services to prepare services and supports to be in place or to start on the date the member is discharged from the institution. Transitional case management services may be authorized to assist individuals that have not previously received ADvantage services, but were referred by **OKDHS ASCAP** to the case management provider for assistance in transitioning from the institution to the community with ADvantage services support.

(i) ~~Institutional~~Institution transition case management services are prior authorized and billed per fifteen (15) minute unit of service using the appropriate HCPC procedure code and modifier associated with the location of residence of the member served, per OAC 317:30-5-763(1)~~(C)~~:(D).

- (ii) A unique modifier code is used to distinguish institution transitional case management services from regular case management services.
- (C) ~~Institutional~~Institution transition services may be authorized and reimbursed, per the conditions in (i) through (iv).
 - (i) The service is necessary to enable the member to move from the institution to his or her home.
 - (ii) The member is eligible to receive ADvantage services outside of the institutional setting.
 - (iii) ~~Institutional~~Institution transition services are provided to the member within one-hundred and eighty (180) calendar-days of discharge from the institution.
 - (iv) Services provided while the member is in the institution are claimed as delivered on the day of discharge from the institution.
- (D) When the member receives ~~institutional~~institution transition services but fails to enter the waiver, any ~~institutional~~institution transition services provided are not reimbursable.
- (18) **Assisted living services (ALS).**
 - (A) ALS are personal care and supportive services furnished to waiver members who reside in a homelike, non-institutional setting that includes twenty-four (24) hour on-site response capability to meet scheduled or unpredictable member needs and to provide supervision, safety, and security. Services also include social and recreational programming and medication assistance, to the extent permitted under State law. The ALS provider is responsible for coordinating services provided by third parties to ADvantage members in the assisted living center (ALC). Nursing services are incidental rather than integral to the provision of ALS. ADvantage reimbursement for ALS includes services of personal care, housekeeping, laundry, meal preparation, periodic nursing evaluations, nursing supervision during nursing intervention, intermittent or unscheduled nursing care, medication administration, assistance with cognitive orientation, assistance with transfer and ambulation, planned programs for socialization, activities, and exercise, and for arranging or coordinating transportation to and from medical appointments. Services, except for planned programs for socialization, activities, and exercise, are to meet the member's specific needs as determined through the individualized assessment and documented on the member's person-centered service plan.
 - (B) The ADvantage ALS philosophy of service delivery promotes member choice, and to the greatest extent possible, member control. A member has control over his or her living space and his or her choice of personal amenities, furnishings, and activities in the residence. The ADvantage member must have the freedom to control his or her schedule and activities. The ALS provider's documented operating philosophy, including policies and procedures, must reflect and support the principles and values associated with the ADvantage assisted living philosophy and approach to service delivery emphasizing member dignity, privacy, individuality, and independence.
 - (C) ADvantage ALS required policies for admission and termination of services and definitions.
 - (i) ADvantage-certified assisted living centers (ALC) are required to accept all eligible ADvantage members who choose to receive services through the ALC, subject only to issues relating to, one (1) or more of the following:
 - (I) Rental unit availability;
 - (II) The member's compatibility with other residents;

(III) The center's ability to accommodate residents who have behavior problems, wander, or have needs that exceed the services the center provides; or

(IV) Restrictions initiated by statutory limitations.

(ii) The ALC may specify the number of units the provider is making available to service ADvantage members. At minimum, the ALC must designate ten (10) residential units for ADvantage members. Residential units designated for ADvantage may be used for other residents at the ALC when there are no pending ADvantage members for those units. Exceptions may be requested in writing subject to the approval of AA.

(iii) Mild or moderate cognitive impairment of the applicant is not a justifiable reason to deny ALC admission. Centers are required to specify whether they are able to accommodate members who have behavior problems or wander. Denial of admission due to a determination of incompatibility must be approved by the case manager and the AA. Appropriateness of placement is not a unilateral determination by the ALC. The ADvantage case manager, the member, or member's designated representative, and the ALC in consultation determine the appropriateness of placement.

(iv) The ALC is responsible for meeting the member's needs for privacy, dignity, respect, and freedom from coercion and restraint. The ALC must optimize the member's initiative, autonomy, and independence in making life choices. The ALC must facilitate member choices regarding services and supports, and who provides them. Inability to meet those needs is not recognized as a reason for determining an ADvantage member's placement is inappropriate. The ALC agrees to provide or arrange and coordinate all of the services listed in the Oklahoma State Department of Health (OSDH) regulations, per OAC 310:663-3-3, except for specialized services.

(v) In addition, the ADvantage participating ALC agrees to provide or coordinate the services listed in (I) through (III).

(I) Provide an emergency call system for each participating ADvantage member.

(II) Provide up to three (3) meals per day plus snacks sufficient to meet nutritional requirements, including modified special diets, appropriate to the member's needs and choices; and provide members with twenty-four (24) hour access to food by giving members control in the selection of the foods they eat, by allowing the member to store personal food in his or her room, by allowing the member to prepare and eat food in his or her room, and allowing him or her to decide when to eat.

(III) Arrange or coordinate transportation to and from medical appointments. The ALC must assist the member with accessing transportation for integration into the community, including opportunities to seek employment and work in competitive integrated settings, engage in community life, and control his or her personal resources and receive services in the community to the same degree of access as residents not receiving ADvantage services.

(vi) The provider may offer any specialized service or rental unit for members with Alzheimer's disease and related dementias, physical disabilities, or other special needs the facility intends to market. Heightened scrutiny, through additional monitoring of the ALC by AA, is utilized for those ALC's that also provide inpatient treatment; settings on the grounds of or adjacent to a public institution and/or other

settings that tend to isolate individuals from the community. The ALC must include evidence that the ALC portion of the facility has clear administrative, financial, programmatic and environmental distinctions from the institution.

(vii) When the provider arranges and coordinates services for members, the provider is obligated to ensure the provision of those services.

(viii) Per OAC 310:663-1-2, "personal care" is defined as "assistance with meals, dressing, movement, bathing or other personal needs or maintenance, or general supervision of the physical and mental well-being of a person [Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes (O.S.), Section (§) 1-1902.17] and includes assistance with toileting." For ADvantage ALS, assistance with "other personal needs" in this definition includes assistance with grooming and transferring. The term "assistance" is clarified to mean hands-on help, in addition to supervision.

(ix) The specific ALS assistance provided along with amount and duration of each type of assistance is based upon the member's assessed need for service assistance and is specified in the ALC's service plan that is incorporated as supplemental detail into the ADvantage comprehensive person-centered service plan. The ADvantage case manager in cooperation with ALC professional staff, develops the person-centered service plan to meet member needs. As member needs change, the person-centered service plan is amended consistent with the assessed, documented need for change in services.

(x) Placement, or continued placement of an ADvantage member in an ALC, is inappropriate when any one (1) or more of the conditions in I through IV exist.

(I) The member's needs exceed the level of services the center provides. Documentation must support ALC efforts to provide or arrange for the required services to accommodate participant needs.

(II) The member exhibits behaviors or actions that repeatedly and substantially interfere with the rights or well-being of other residents, and the ALC documented efforts to resolve behavior problems including medical, behavioral, and increased staffing interventions. Documentation must support the ALC's attempted interventions to resolve behavior problems.

(III) The member has a complex, unstable, or unpredictable medical condition and treatment cannot be developed and implemented appropriately in the assisted living environment. Documentation must support the ALC's attempts to obtain appropriate member care.

(IV) The member fails to pay room and board charges ~~and/or~~ OKDHS determined vendor payment obligation.

(xi) Termination of residence ensues when inappropriately placed. Once a determination is made that a member is inappropriately placed, the ALC must inform the member, the member's representative, if applicable, the AA, and the member's ADvantage case manager. The ALC must develop a discharge plan in consultation with the member, the member's representative, the ADvantage case manager, and the AA. The ALC and case manager must ensure the discharge plan includes strategies for providing increased services, when appropriate, to minimize risk and meet the higher care needs of members transitioning out of the ALC, when the reason for discharge is inability to meet member needs. When voluntary termination of residency is not arranged, the ALC must provide written notice to the member and

to the member's representative, with a copy to the member's ADvantage case manager and the AA. The written notice provides intent to terminate the residency agreement and move the member to an appropriate care provider. The thirty (30) calendar-day requirement must not apply when emergency termination of the residency agreement is mandated by the member's immediate health needs or when the termination of the residency agreement is necessary for the physical safety of the member or other ALC residents. The written involuntary termination of residency notice for reasons of inappropriate placement must include:

- (I) A full explanation of the reasons for the termination of residency;
 - (II) The notice date;
 - (III) The date notice was given to the member and the member's representative, the ADvantage case manager, and the AA;
 - (IV) The date the member must leave ALC; and
 - (V) Notification of appeal rights and the process for submitting appeal of termination of Medicaid ALS to OHCA.
- (D) ADvantage ALS provider standards in addition to licensure standards.
- (i) **Physical environment.**
 - (I) The ALC must provide lockable doors on the entry door of each rental unit and an attached, lockable compartment within each member unit for valuables. Members must have exclusive rights to his or her unit with lockable doors at the entrance of the individual or shared rental unit. Keys to rooms may be held by only appropriate ALC staff as designated by the member's choice. Rental units may be shared only when a request to do so is initiated by the member. Members must be given the right to choose his or her roommate.
 - (II) The member has a legally enforceable agreement, or lease, with the ALC. The member must have the same responsibilities and protections from eviction as all tenants under the landlord-tenant law of the state, county, city, or other designated entity.
 - (III) The ALC must provide each rental unit with a means for each member to control the temperature in the residential unit through the use of a damper, register, thermostat, or other reasonable means under the control of the member and that preserves privacy, independence, and safety, provided that the OSDH may approve an alternate means based on documentation that the design of the temperature control is appropriate to the special needs of each member who has an alternate temperature control.
 - (IV) For ALCs built prior to January 1, 2008, each ALC individual residential unit must have a minimum total living space, including closets and storage areas, of two-hundred and fifty (250) square feet; for ALCs built after December 31, 2007, each ALC individual residential unit must have a minimum total living space, including closets and storage areas, of three-hundred and sixty (360) square feet.
 - (V) The ALC must provide a private bathroom for each living unit that must be equipped with one (1) lavatory, one (1) toilet, and one (1) bathtub or shower stall.

(VI) The ALC must provide at a minimum; a kitchenette, defined as a space containing a refrigerator, adequate storage space for utensils, and a cooking appliance. A microwave is an acceptable cooking appliance.

(VII) The member is responsible for furnishing the rental unit. When a member is unable to supply basic furnishings defined as a bed, dresser, nightstand, chairs, table, trash can, and lamp, or if furnishings pose a health or safety risk, the member's ADvantage case manager in coordination with the ALC, must assist the member in obtaining basic furnishings for the rental unit. The member must have the freedom to furnish and decorate the rental unit within the scope of the lease or residency agreement.

(VIII) The ALC must meet the requirements of all applicable federal and state laws and regulations including, but not limited to, state and local sanitary codes, state building and fire safety codes, and laws and regulations governing use and access by persons with disabilities.

(IX) The ALC must ensure the design of common areas accommodates the special needs of the resident population and that the rental unit accommodates the special needs of the member in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act accessibility guidelines per Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability By Public Accommodations and in in Commercial Facilities, 28 Code of Federal Regulations, Appendix A, at no additional cost to the member.

(X) The ALC must provide adequate and appropriate social and recreational space for residents and the common space must be proportionate to the number of residents and appropriate for the resident population.

(XI) The ALC must provide appropriately monitored outdoor space for resident use.

(XII) The ALC must provide the member with the right to have visitors of his or her choosing at any time. Overnight visitation is allowed as permissible by the Landlord/Tenant Agreement.

(XIII) The ALC must be physically accessible to members.

(ii) Sanitation.

(I) The ALC must maintain the facility, including its individual rental units in a clean, safe, and sanitary manner, ensuring that they are insect and rodent free, odorless, and in good repair at all times.

(II) The ALC must maintain buildings and grounds in a good state of repair, in a safe and sanitary condition, and in compliance with the requirements of applicable regulations, bylaws, and codes.

(III) The ALC stores clean laundry in a manner that prevents contamination and changes linens at time intervals necessary to avoid health issues.

(IV) The ALC must provide housekeeping in member rental units to maintain a safe, clean, and sanitary environment.

(V) The ALC must have policies and procedures for members' pets.

(iii) Health and safety.

(I) The ALC must provide building security that protects members from intruders with security measures appropriate to building design, environmental risk factors, and the resident population.

(II) The ALC must respond immediately and appropriately to missing members,

accidents, medical emergencies, or deaths.

(III) The ALC must have a plan in place to prevent, contain, and report any diseases considered to be infectious or are listed as diseases that must be reported to the OSDH.

(IV) The ALC must adopt policies for the prevention of abuse, neglect, and exploitation that include screening, training, prevention, investigation, protection during investigation, and reporting.

(V) The ALC must provide services and facilities that accommodate the needs of members to safely evacuate in the event of fires or other emergencies.

(VI) The ALC must ensure staff is trained to respond appropriately to emergencies.

(VII) The ALC must ensure that fire safety requirements are met.

(VIII) The ALC must offer meals that provide balanced and adequate nutrition for members.

(IX) The ALC must adopt safe practices for the meal preparation and delivery of meals.

(X) The ALC must provide a twenty-four (24) hour response to personal emergencies appropriate to the needs of the resident population.

(XI) The ALC must provide safe transportation to and from ALC sponsored social or recreational outings.

(iv) **Staff to resident ratios.**

(I) The ALC must ensure a sufficient number of trained staff are on duty, awake, and present at all times, twenty-four (24) hours a day, and seven (7) days a week, to meet ~~the residents'~~ residents' needs of residents and to carry out all of ~~the~~ processes listed in the ALC's written emergency and disaster preparedness plan for fires and other disasters.

(II) The ALC must ensure staffing is sufficient to meet ADvantage program members' needs in accordance with each member's ADvantage person-centered service plan.

(III) The ALC must have plans in place to address situations where there is a disruption to the ALC's regular work force.

(v) **Staff training and qualifications.**

(I) The ALC must ensure staff has qualifications consistent with their job responsibilities.

(II) All staff assisting in, or responsible for, food service must have attended a food service training program offered or approved by OSDH.

(III) The ALC must provide staff orientation and ongoing training to develop and maintain staff knowledge and skills. All direct care and activity staff receive at least eight (8) hours of orientation and initial training within the first month of employment and at least four (4) hours annually thereafter. Staff providing direct care on a dementia unit must receive four (4) additional hours of dementia specific training. Annual first aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) certification do not count toward the four (4) hours of annual training.

(vi) **Staff supervision.**

(I) The ALC must ensure delegation of tasks to non-licensed staff is consistent and in compliance with all applicable state regulations including, but not limited to, the state's Nurse Practice Act and OSDH Nurse Aide Certification rules.

(II) The ALC must ensure that, where the monitoring of food intake or therapeutic diets is provided at the prescribed services level, a registered dietitian monitors member health and nutritional status.

(vii) Resident rights.

(I) The ALC must provide to each member and each member's representative, at the time of admission, a copy of the resident statutory rights listed in 63 O.S. § 1-1918 amended to include additional rights and the clarification of rights as listed in the ADvantage member assurances. A copy of resident rights must be posted in an easily accessible, conspicuous place in the facility. The facility must ensure that staff is familiar with and observes, the resident rights.

(II) The ALC must conspicuously post for display in an area accessible to residents, employees, and visitors, the ALC's complaint procedures and the name, address, and phone number of a person authorized to receive complaints. A copy of the complaint procedure must also be given to each member, the member's representative, or the legal guardian. The ALC must ensure all employees comply with the ALC's complaint procedure.

(III) The ALC must provide to each member and member's representative, at the time of admission, information about Medicaid grievance and appeal rights, including a description of the process for submitting a grievance or appeal of any decision that decreases Medicaid services to the member.

(viii) Incident reporting.

(I) The ALC must maintain a record of incidents that occur and report incidents to the member's ADvantage case manager and to the AA, utilizing the AA Critical Incident Reporting form. Incident reports are also made to Adult Protective Services (APS) and to the OSDH, as appropriate, per ALC licensure rules, utilizing the specific reporting forms required.

(II) Incidents requiring report by licensed ALC's are those defined by OSDH, per OAC 310:663-19-1 and listed on the AA Critical Incident Reporting form.

(III) Reports of incidents must be made to the member's ADvantage case manager and to the AA via electronic submission within one (1) business day of the reportable incident's discovery utilizing the AA Critical Incident Reporting form. When required, a follow-up report of the incident must be submitted via electronic submission to the member's ADvantage case manager and to the AA. The follow-up report must be submitted within five (5) business days of the incident. The final report must be filed with the member's ADvantage case manager and the AA when the investigation is complete, not to exceed ten (10) business days after the incident.

(IV) Each ALC having reasonable cause to believe that a member is suffering from abuse, neglect, exploitation, or misappropriation of member property must make a report to APS as soon as the person is aware of the situation per 43A O.S. § 10-104.A. Reports are also made to OSDH, as appropriate, per ALC licensure rules.

(V) The preliminary incident report must at the minimum, include who, what,

when, where, and the measures taken to protect the member and resident(s) during the investigation. The follow-up report must, at the minimum, include preliminary information, the extent of the injury or damage, if any, and preliminary investigation findings. The final report, at a minimum, includes preliminary and follow-up information, a summary of investigative actions representing a thorough investigation, investigative findings and conclusions, and corrective measures to prevent future occurrences. When it is necessary to omit items, the final report must include why such items were omitted and when they will be provided.

- (ix) Provision of, or arrangement for, necessary health services. The ALC must:
 - (I) Arrange or coordinate transportation for members to and from medical appointments; and
 - (II) Provide or coordinate with the member and the member's ADvantage case manager for delivery of necessary health services. The ADvantage case manager is responsible for monitoring that all health-related services required by the member as identified through assessment and documented on the person-centered service plan, are provided in an appropriate and timely manner. The member has the freedom to choose any available provider qualified by licensure or certification to provide necessary health services in the ALC.

(E) ALCs are billed per diem of service for days covered by the ADvantage member's person-centered service plan and during which the ALS provider is responsible for providing ALS for the member. The per diem rate for ADvantage ALS for a member is one (1) of three (3) per diem rate levels based on a member's need for type of, intensity of, and frequency of service to address member ADLs, instrumental activities of the daily living (IADLs), and health care needs. The rate level is based on the Uniform Comprehensive Assessment Tool (UCAT) assessment by the member's ADvantage case manager employed by a case management agency independent of the ALS provider. The determination of the appropriate per diem rate is made by the AA clinical review staff.

(F) The ALC must notify AA ninety (90) calendar days before terminating or not renewing the ALC's ADvantage contract.

- (i) The ALC must give notice in writing to the member, the member's representative(s), the AA, and the member's ADvantage case manager ninety (90) calendar days before:
 - (I) Voluntary cessation of the ALC's ADvantage contract; or
 - (II) Closure of all or part of the ALC.
- (ii) The notice of closure must include:
 - (I) The proposed ADvantage contract termination date;
 - (II) The termination reason;
 - (III) An offer to assist the member secure an alternative placement; and
 - (IV) Available housing alternatives.
- (iii) The facility must comply with all applicable laws and regulations until the closing date, including those related to resident transfer or discharge.
- (iv) Following the last move to the last ADvantage member, the ALC must provide in writing to the AA:
 - (I) The effective date of closure based on the discharge date of the last resident;

(II) A list of members transferred or discharged and where they are relocated; and

(III) The plan for storage of resident records per OAC 310:663-19-3(g), relating to preservation of resident records and the name, address, and phone numbers of the person responsible for the records.

(19) Remote Support (RS) services.

(A) Purpose and scope. RS services are intended to promote a member's independence and self-direction. RS services are provided in the member's home to reduce reliance on in person support while ensuring the member's health and safety. RS services are included in the member's person-centered service plan and coordination of these services are made through the case manager.

(i) RS services are:

(I) Based on the member's needs as documented and supported by the member's person-centered service plan and person-centered assessments;

(II) Only authorized when submitted on the member's person-centered service plan with the consent of the member, involved household members, and guardian, as applicable;

(III) The least restrictive option and the member's preferred method to meet an assessed need; and

(IV) Provided when the member and the member's Interdisciplinary Team (IDT) agree to the provision of RS services.

(ii) RS services are not a system of surveillance or for provider convenience.

(B) Service description. RS services monitor a member by allowing for live, two-way communication between the member and monitoring staff using one (1) or more of the following systems:

(i) Live video feed;

(ii) Live audio feed;

(iii) Motion-sensor monitoring;

(iv) Radio frequency identification;

(v) Web-based monitoring; or

(vi) Global positioning system (GPS) monitoring devices.

(C) General provider requirements. RS service providers must have a valid OHCA SoonerCare (Medicaid) provider agreement to provide provider-based RS services to ADvantage HCBS waiver members and be certified by the AA. Requests for applications to provide RS services are made to AA.

(D) Risk assessment. Teams will complete a risk assessment to ensure remote supports can help meet the member's needs in a way that protects the right to privacy, dignity, respect, and freedom from coercion. The risk assessment is reviewed, and any issues are addressed prior to the implementation of remote supports general provider requirements.

(i) Remote support providers ensure the member's health and safety by contacting a member's informal support or activating the member's back-up plan when a health or safety issue becomes evident during monitoring.

(ii) The risk assessment and service plan require the team to develop a specific back-up plan to address health, safety and behavioral needs while remote supports are utilized so appropriate assistance can be provided. The RS back-up plan includes

how assistance is provided to the member when equipment or technology fails.

(E) **RS guidelines.** Devices or monitors are placed at locations based on the member's individual needs as documented on the member's person-centered service plan and approved by the member and involved family members and guardian, as applicable.

(i) The use of camera or video equipment in the member's bedroom, bathroom, or other private area is prohibited.

(ii) When RS involves the use of audio or video equipment that permits RS staff to view activities or listen to conversations in the residence, the member who receives the service and each person who lives with the member is fully informed of what RS entails. The member's case manager documents consent in the member's person-centered service plan.

(iii) Waiver members have the ability to turn off the remote monitoring device or equipment if they choose to do so. The RS provider educates the member regarding how to turn RS devices off and on at the start of services and as desired thereafter.

(F) **Emergency response staff.**

(i) Emergency response staff are employed by a certified ADvantage Provider with a valid OHCA SoonerCare (Medicaid) contract to provide HCBS to OKDHS HCBS waiver members.

(ii) Informal emergency response persons are unpaid family members or other interested parties who agree to become, and are approved as, an emergency response person by the member and the member's IDT.

(G) **Service limitations.** RS services are limited to twenty-four (24) hours per day. RS services are not provided simultaneously with any other in-home direct care services. However, services may be provided through a combination of remote and in-home services dependent on the member's needs.

(H) **RS service discontinuation.** The member and the member's IDT determine when it is appropriate to discontinue RS services. When RS services are terminated, the RS provider coordinates service termination with the member's case manager to ensure a safe transition.

(20) **Assistive Technology (AT) services.**

(A) AT services include devices, controls, and appliances, specified in the member's person-centered service plan, which enable members to increase their abilities to perform activities of daily living or to perceive, control, or communicate with the environment in which they live.

(B) Devices may include communication technology, such as smart phones and tablets, that allow members to communicate with their providers using video chat to ensure ongoing maintenance of health and welfare.

(C) Only devices that are not covered under the SoonerCare (Medicaid) or Specialized Medical Equipment services are included in this service definition.

(D) Service codes and rates vary based on the nature of the AT device;

(E) AT services may include:

(i) Assessment for the need of AT or auxiliary aids;

(ii) Training the member or provider regarding use and maintenance of equipment or auxiliary aids; and

(ii) Repair of adaptive devices; and

(v) Equipment provided may include:

(I) Video communication technology that allows members to communicate with providers through video communication. Video communication allows providers to assess and evaluate their members' health and welfare or other needs by enabling visualization of members and their environments. Examples include smart phones, tablets, audiovisual or virtual assistant technology, or sensors; and

(II) The cost of internet services may be augmented through the Emergency Broadband Benefit which is available to waiver members.

DRAFT

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 35. MEDICAL ASSISTANCE FOR ADULTS AND CHILDREN-
ELIGIBILITY**

SUBCHAPTER 17. ADVANTAGE WAIVER SERVICES

317:35-17-3. ADvantage program services

(a) The ADvantage program is a Medicaid Home and Community-Based waiver used to finance non-institutional, long-term care services for the elderly and a targeted group of physically disabled adults when there is a reasonable expectation that within a thirty (30) calendar day period, the person's health, due to disease process or disability, would without appropriate services, deteriorate and require long-term care (LTC) facility care to arrest the deterioration. Individuals may not be enrolled in ADvantage for the sole purpose of enabling them to obtain Medicaid eligibility. Eligibility for ADvantage program services is contingent on an individual requiring one (1) or more of the services offered in the waiver, at least monthly, to avoid institutionalization.

(b) The number of individuals who may receive ADvantage services is limited.

(1) To receive ADvantage program services, individuals must meet one of ~~the categories~~ the categories in (A) ~~through~~ (D) of this paragraph. He or she must:

(A) Be sixty-five (65) years of age ~~and~~ or older; or

(B) Be twenty-one (21) to sixty-four (64) years of age, physically disabled and not developmentally disabled; or

(C) When developmentally disabled, and twenty-one (21) to sixty-four (64) years of age; and does not have an intellectual disability or a cognitive impairment related to the developmental disability; or

(D) Be twenty-one (21) to sixty-four (64) years of age, not physically disabled but has clinically documented, progressive, degenerative disease process that responds to treatment and previously required hospital or LTC facility level of care services to maintain the treatment regimen to prevent health deterioration.

(2) In addition, the individual must meet criteria in (A) through (C) of this paragraph. He or she must:

(A) ~~Require long-term~~ Require long-term care facility level of care, per Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:35-17-2;

(B) Meet service eligibility criteria, per OAC 317:35-17-3(f); and

(C) Meet program eligibility criteria, per OAC 317:35-17-3(g).

(c) ADvantage members are eligible for limited types of living arrangements. The specific living arrangements are set forth in (1) ~~through~~ (5) of this subsection.

(1) ADvantage program members are not eligible to receive services while residing in an unlicensed institutional living arrangement, such as a room and board home ~~and/or~~ or facility; an institutional setting including, but not limited to, licensed facilities, such as a hospital, a LTC facility, licensed residential care facility, or licensed assisted living facility, unless the facility is an ADvantage assisted living center.

(2) Additional living arrangements in which members may receive ADvantage services are the member's own home, apartment, or independent-living apartment, or a family or friend's home or apartment. A ~~home/apartment~~ home or apartment unit is defined as a self-contained living space having a lockable entrance to the unit and including a bathroom, ~~and~~ and food storage ~~and/or~~ and preparation amenities in addition to the bedroom ~~and/or~~ or living space.

(3) ADvantage program members may receive services in a shelter or similar temporary-housing arrangement that may or may not meet the definition of home ~~and/or~~ apartment in emergency situations, for a period not to exceed sixty (60) calendar days during which location and transition to permanent housing is sought.

(4) For ADvantage members who are full-time students, a dormitory room qualifies as an allowable living arrangement in which to receive ADvantage services while the member is a student.

(5) Members may receive ADvantage respite services in an LTC facility for a continuous period not to exceed thirty (30) calendar days.

(d) Home and Community-Based waiver services are outside of the scope of Medicaid State Plan services. The Medicaid waiver allows the Oklahoma Health Care Authority (~~OHCA~~) to offer certain Home and Community-Based services to an annually capped number of persons, who are categorically needy, per Oklahoma ~~Department of~~ Human Services (OKDHS) Appendix C-1, Schedule VIII. B. 1., and without such services would be institutionalized. The estimated cost of providing an individual's care outside of the LTC facility cannot exceed the annual cost of caring for that individual in an LTC facility. When determining the ADvantage service plan cost cap for an individual, the comparable ~~SoonerCare~~ Medicaid cost to serve that individual in an LTC facility is estimated.

(e) Services provided through the ADvantage waiver are:

- (1) Case management;
- (2) Respite;
- (3) Adult day health care;
- (4) Environmental modifications;
- (5) Specialized medical equipment and supplies;
- (6) Physical, occupational, or speech therapy or consultation;
- (7) Advanced supportive and/or restorative assistance;
- (8) Nursing;
- (9) Skilled nursing;
- (10) Home-delivered meals;
- (11) Hospice care;
- (12) Medically necessary prescription drugs, within the limits of the ADvantage waiver;
- (13) Personal care, State Plan, or ADvantage personal care;
- (14) A Personal Emergency Response System (PERS);
- (15) ~~Consumer Directed~~ Consumer Directed Personal Assistance Services and Supports (CD-PASS);
- (16) Institution Transition Services (Transitional Case Management);
- (17) Assisted living; ~~and~~
- (18) Remote Supports;
- (19) Assistive technology; and
- (18)(20) SoonerCare medical services for individuals, twenty-one (21) years of age and over, within the State Plan scope.

(f) The OKDHS area nurse or nurse designee ~~makes a determination of~~ determines service eligibility prior to evaluating the Uniform Comprehensive Assessment Tool (UCAT) assessment for long-term care facility level of care. The criteria in (1) through (5) of this subsection are used to make the service eligibility determination, which includes:

- (1) An open ADvantage program waiver slot, as authorized by the Centers for Medicare and

Medicaid Services (CMS), ~~which~~ is available to ensure federal participation in payment for services to the individual. When ~~the Oklahoma Department of Human Services/Aging Services (OKDHS/AS)~~ Services Community Living, Aging and Protective Services (CAP) determines all slots are filled, the individual cannot be certified ~~by OKDHS~~ as eligible for ADvantage services, and his or her name is placed on a waiting list for entry when an open slot becomes available;

(2) The ADvantage waiver-targeted service ~~group. The target group is~~ groups are individuals, who:

(A) Are frail and sixty-five (65) years of age and older; or

(B) ~~are~~ Are Twenty-one (21) to sixty-four (64) years of age and physically disabled; or

(C) When developmentally disabled; and ~~are~~ twenty-one (21) to sixty-four (64) years of age and do not have an intellectual disability or cognitive impairment related to the developmental disability; or

(D) Are twenty-one (21) to sixty-four (64) years of age, and not physically disabled but have a clinically documented, progressive, degenerative disease process that responds to treatment and previously required hospital or long-term care facility level of care services to maintain the treatment regimen to prevent health deterioration. The individual must meet criteria, per OAC ~~317:35-174-3(b)(2)(A through C)~~ 317:35-17-3(b)(2)(A) through (C).

(3) An ~~ineligible~~ individual ~~because he or she poses~~ is ineligible when posing a physical threat to ~~himself or herself~~ self or others, as supported by professional documentation.

(4) ~~Members~~ An individual is ~~ineligible when members~~ of the household or persons who routinely visit the household, ~~as supported by professional documentation that do not pose a threat of harm or injury to the individual or other household visitors, as supported by professional documentation.~~

(5) An ~~ineligible~~ individual is ineligible when his or her living environment poses a physical threat to ~~himself or herself~~ self or others, as supported by professional documentation where applicable, and measures to correct hazardous conditions or assist the individual to move are unsuccessful or not feasible.

(g) The State, as part of the ADvantage waiver program approval ~~authorization~~ process, ensures CMS that each member's health, safety, or welfare can be maintained in his or her home. When a member's identified needs cannot be met through provision of the ADvantage program or Medicaid State Plan services and other formal or informal services are not in place or immediately available to meet those needs, the individual's health, safety, or welfare in his or her home cannot be ensured. The ADvantage Administration (AA) determines ADvantage program eligibility through the service plan approval process. An individual is deemed ineligible for the ADvantage program based on criteria (1) through (8) of this subsection.

(1) The individual's needs, as identified by the UCAT and other professional assessments, cannot be met through ADvantage program services, Medicaid State Plan services, or other formal or informal services.

(2) One (1) or more members of the individual's household pose a physical threat to themselves, or others as supported by professional documentation.

(3) The individual or other household members use threatening, intimidating, degrading, or use sexually inappropriate language ~~and/or~~ or innuendo or behavior towards service providers, ~~either~~ in the home or through other contact or communications, and significant efforts were attempted to correct such behavior, as supported by professional documentation or other

credible documentation.

(4) The individual, or the individual's authorized agent, is uncooperative or refuses to participate in service development or service delivery and these actions result in unacceptable increases of risk to the individual's health, safety, or welfare in his or her home, as determined by the individual, the interdisciplinary team, or the AA.

(5) The individual's living environment poses a physical threat to self or others, as supported by professional documentation, and measures to correct hazardous conditions or assist the person to move are unsuccessful or are not feasible.

(6) The individual provides false or materially inaccurate information necessary to determine program eligibility or withholds information necessary to determine program eligibility.

(7) The individual does not require at least one ADvantage service monthly.

(8) The individual, his or her family member(s), associate(s), or any other person(s) or circumstances as relates to care and coordination in his or her the living environment produces evidence of illegal drug activity or substances used illegally as intoxicants. This includes:

(A) The use, possession, or distribution of illegal drugs;

(B) The abusive use of other drugs, such as medication prescribed by a doctor;

(C) The use of substances, such as inhalants including, but not limited to:

(i) Typewriter correction fluid;

(ii) Air conditioning coolant;

(iii) Gasoline;

(iv) Propane;

(v) Felt-tip markers;

(vi) Spray paint;

(vii) Air freshener;

(viii) Butane;

(ix) Cooking spray;

(x) Paint; and

(xi) Glue;

(D) The observed intoxication, consumption, or sensory indicators, such as smell of the use of any drug or intoxicant by the individual, family members, associates, or any other person(s) present at the time care is provided may be construed as evidence indicative of illegal drug activity or intoxication. This includes drug use or intoxicated activity that is menacing to the member or staff providing services;

(E) The observance of drug paraphernalia or any instrument used in the manufacturing, production, distribution, sale, or consumption of drugs or substances including, but not limited to:

(i) Smoking pipes used to consume substances other than tobacco;

(ii) Roach clips containing marijuana cigarettes;

(iii) Needles and other implements used for injecting drugs into the body;

(iv) Plastic bags or other containers used to package drugs;

(v) Miniature spoons used to prepare drugs; or

(vi) Kits used in the production of synthetic controlled substances including descriptive materials that accompany the item, describing or depicting its use.

(F) Instructions, verbal or written, concerning the item or device including, but not limited to, the manner in which the object is labeled and displayed for sale;

(G) The typical use of such items in the community; ~~and/or~~

(H) Testimony of an expert witness regarding use of the item.

(h) The case manager provides the AA with professional documentation or other credible documentation to support the recommendation for redetermination of program eligibility. The service providers continue providing services according to the person-centered service plan as provider safety permits until the individual is removed from the ADvantage program. As a part of the procedures requesting redetermination of program eligibility, ~~OKDHS~~ ASCAP provides technical assistance to the provider for transitioning the individual to other services.

(i) Individuals determined ineligible for ADvantage program services are notified in writing by ~~OKDHS~~ ASCAP of the determination and of the right to appeal the decision.

DRAFT

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 30. MEDICAL PROVIDERS-FEE FOR SERVICE**

SUBCHAPTER 5. INDIVIDUAL PROVIDERS AND SPECIALTIES

PART 41. FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES

317:30-5-412. Description of services

Family support services include services identified in (1) through (6) of this section. Providers of any family support service must have an applicable SoonerCare Provider Agreement for Home and ~~Community-Based~~Community-Based Services (HCBS) Waiver Providers for persons with developmental disabilities.

- (1) **Transportation services.** Transportation services are provided per Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:40-5-103.
- (2) **Assistive technology (AT) devices and services.** AT devices and services are provided per OAC 317:40-5-100.
- (3) **Architectural modification.** Architectural modification services are provided per OAC 317:40-5-101.
- (4) **Family training.**

(A) **Minimum qualifications.**

(i) Individual providers must have a Developmental Disabilities Services (DDS) Family Training application and training curriculum approved by DDS staff. Individual providers must hold a current licensure, certification, or a Bachelor's Degree ~~a current licensure, certification, or a Bachelor's Degree~~ bachelor's degree in a human service field related to the approved training curriculum, or other ~~Bachelor's Degree~~bachelor's degree combined with a minimum of five 5 years' experience in the intellectual disabilities field. Only individuals named on the SoonerCare Provider Agreement to provide Family Training services may provide service to members.

(ii) Agency or business providers must have a (DDS) Family Training application and training curriculum approved by DDS staff. Agency or business provider training staff must hold a current licensure, certification, or a Bachelor's Degree ~~a current licensure, certification, or a Bachelor's Degree~~ bachelor's degree in a human service field related to the approved training curriculum or other ~~Bachelor's Degree~~bachelor's degree combined with a minimum of five (5) years experience in the intellectual disabilities field. The credentials of new training staff hired by an approved DDS HCBS Family Training agency or business provider must be submitted to and approved by the DDS programs manager for Family Training prior to new staff training members or members' families.

(B) **Description of services.** Family Training services include instruction in skills and knowledge pertaining to the support and assistance of members. Services are:

- (i) ~~intended~~Intended to allow families to become more proficient in meeting the needs of members who are eligible;
- (ii) ~~provided~~Provided in any community setting;
- (iii) ~~provided~~Provided in either group, consisting of two (2) to ~~15~~fifteen (15) persons, or individual formats; ~~and~~

- (iv) ~~for~~For members served through DDS HCBS Waivers and their families. For the purpose of this service, family is defined as any person who lives with, or provides care to a member served on the Waiver;
- (v) ~~included~~Included in the member's Individual Plan (Plan) and arranged through the member's case manager; and
- (vi) ~~intended~~Intended to yield outcomes as defined in the member's Plan.

(C) Coverage limitations. Coverage limitations for family training ~~are~~include (i) through (iv) of this subparagraph.

- (i) ~~The limitation for individual family training; Limitation: \$5,500~~is \$6,500 per Plan of Care (POC) year;
- (ii) ~~The limitation for group family training; Limitation: \$5,500~~is \$6,500 per Plan of Care POC year;
- (iii) ~~session~~Session rates for individual and group sessions do not exceed a range comparable to rates charged by persons with similar credentials providing similar services; ~~and.~~
- (iv) ~~rates~~Rates must be justified based on costs incurred to deliver the service and are evaluated to determine if costs are reasonable.

(D) Documentation requirements. Providers must maintain documentation fully disclosing the extent of services furnished that ~~specifies: (i) through (ix) of this subparagraph. Progress reports for each member served must be submitted to the DDS case manager per OAC 340:100-5-52.~~

- (i) ~~the~~The service date;
- (ii) ~~the~~The start and stop time for each session;
- (iii) ~~the~~The signature of the trainer;
- (iv) ~~the~~The credentials of the trainer;
- (v) ~~the~~The specific issues addressed;
- (vi) ~~the~~The methods used to address issues;
- (vii) ~~the~~The progress made toward outcomes;
- (viii) ~~the~~The member's response to the session or intervention; ~~and.~~
- (ix) ~~any~~Any new issues identified during the session.
- ~~(x) progress reports for each member served must be submitted to the DDS case manager per OAC 340:100-5-52; and~~
- ~~(xi) an annual report of the provider's overall Family Training program, including statistical information about members served, their satisfaction with services, trends observed, changes made in the program and program, recommendations must be submitted to the DDS programs manager for Family Training on an annual basis.~~

(5) Family counseling.

(A) Minimum qualifications. Counseling providers must hold current licensure as clinical social workers, psychologists, licensed professional counselors ~~(LPC)~~, or licensed marriage and family therapists ~~(LMFT)~~.

(B) Description of services. Family counseling offered to members and his or her natural, adoptive, or foster family members, helps to develop and maintain healthy, stable relationships among all family members.

- (i) Emphasis is placed on the acquisition of coping skills by building upon family strengths.

- (ii) Knowledge and skills gained through family counseling services increase the likelihood the member remains in or returns to his or her own home.
- (iii) All family counseling needs are documented in the member's Plan.
- (iv) Services are rendered in any confidential setting where the ~~member/family~~ member or family resides or the provider conducts business.

(C) **Coverage limitations.** Coverage limitations for family counseling are: outlined in (i) and (ii) of this subparagraph.

~~(i) individual family counseling; unit: 15 minutes; limitation: 400 units per Plan of Care year; and~~

~~(ii) group, six person maximum, family counseling; unit: 30 minutes; limitation: 225 units per Plan of Care year.~~

(i) Individual counseling is accounted for in units of 15 minutes with a limitation of 400 units per POC year.

(ii) Group counseling, with a six (6) person maximum, is accounted for in units of 30 minutes with a limitation of 225 units per POC year.

(D) **Documentation requirements.** Providers must maintain documentation fully disclosing the extent of services furnished that specifies:

- (i) ~~the~~The service date;
- (ii) ~~the~~The start and stop time for each session;
- (iii) ~~the~~The signature of the therapist;
- (iv) ~~the~~The credentials of the therapist;
- (v) ~~the~~The specific issues addressed;
- (vi) ~~the~~The methods used to address issues;
- (vii) ~~the~~The progress made toward resolving issues and meeting outcomes;
- (viii) ~~the~~The member's response to the session or intervention; and
- (ix) ~~any~~Any new issue identified during the session.

(E) **Reporting requirements.** Progress reports for each member served must be submitted to the DDS case manager per OAC 340:100-5-52.

(6) **Specialized medical supplies.** Specialized medical supplies are provided per OAC 317:40-5-104.

Part 43. Agency Companion, Specialized Foster Care, Daily Living Supports, Group Homes, and Community Transition Services

317:30-5-422. Description of services

Residential supports include:

- (1) ~~agency~~Agency companion services (ACS) per Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:40-5;
- (2) ~~specialized~~Specialized foster care (~~SFC~~) per OAC 317:40-5;
- (3) ~~daily~~Daily living supports (DLS):
 - (A) Community Waiver per OAC 317:40-5-150; and
 - (B) Homeward Bound Waiver per OAC 317:40-5-153;
- (4) ~~group~~Group home services provided per OAC 317:40-5-152; ~~and~~
- (5) Extensive residential supports per OAC 317:40-5-154; and
- ~~(5) community~~(6) Community transition services (CTS).

(A) ~~Minimum qualifications.~~ **Minimum qualifications.** The provider must enter into contractual agreements with the Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) to provide ACS, habilitation training specialist (~~HTS~~)-services, or DLS, in addition to a contract to provide CTS.

(B) ~~Description of services.~~ **Description of services.** CTS is a one-time setup expense for members transitioning from an intermediate care facility for individuals with intellectual disabilities (~~ICF/IID~~) or provider-operated residential setting to the member's own home or apartment. The cost per member of CTS cannot exceed limitations set forth by OHCA. The member's name must be on the lease, deed or rental agreement. CTS:

- (i) ~~are~~ **Are** furnished only when the member is unable to meet such expense and must be documented in the member's Individual Plan (~~IP~~);
- (ii) ~~include~~ **Include** security deposits, essential furnishings, such as major appliances, dining ~~table/chair~~ **table and chairs**, bedroom set, sofa, chair, window coverings, kitchen ~~pots/pans~~ **pots and pans**, dishes, eating utensils, ~~bed/bath~~ **bed and bath** linens, kitchen ~~dish towel/potholder~~ **towel and potholders**, a one month supply of ~~laundry/cleaning~~ **laundry and cleaning** products, and setup fees or deposits for initiating utility service, including phone, electricity, gas, and water. CTS also includes moving expenses, ~~services/items~~ **services and items** necessary for the member's health and safety, such as pest eradication, allergen control, a one-time cleaning prior to occupancy, flashlight, smoke detector, carbon monoxide detector, first aid kit, fire extinguisher, and a tempering valve or other anti-scald device when determined by the Personal Support Team necessary to ensure the member's safety; and
- (iii) ~~does~~ **Do** not include:
 - (I) ~~recreational~~ **Recreational** items, such as television, cable, satellite, internet, video cassette recorder (VCR), digital video disc (DVD) player, compact disc (CD) player, MP3 player, gaming system, cell phone or computer used primarily as a diversion or recreation;
 - (II) ~~monthly~~ **Monthly** rental or mortgage expenses;
 - (III) ~~food~~ **Food**;
 - (IV) ~~personal~~ **Personal** hygiene items;
 - (V) ~~disposable~~ **Disposable** items, such as paper ~~plates/napkins~~ **plates and napkins**, plastic utensils, disposable food storage bags, aluminum foil, and plastic wrap;
 - (VI) ~~items~~ **Items** that are considered decorative, such as rugs, pictures, bread box, canisters, or a clock;
 - (VII) ~~any~~ **Any** item not considered an essential, one-time expense; or
 - (VIII) ~~regular~~ **Regular** ongoing utility charges;
- (iv) ~~prior~~ **Prior** approval for exceptions ~~and/or~~ **and** questions regarding eligible items ~~and/or~~ **and** expenditures are directed to the programs manager for community transition services at Oklahoma Human Services Developmental Disabilities Services ~~DHS-DDS state office~~ **State Office**;
- (v) ~~authorizations are issued for the date a member transitions;~~
- (vi) ~~may~~ **May** only be authorized for members approved for the Community Waiver; and

~~(vii) may~~(vii) May not be authorized for items purchased more than 30Thursday (30) calendar days after the date of transition.

PART 55. RESPITE CARE

317:30-5-515. Respite in Home and Community-Based Services (HCBS) Waivers for persons with an intellectual disability or certain persons with related conditions

(a) The Oklahoma Health Care Authority(OHCA) administers Home and Community Based Services (HCBS)HCBS Waivers for persons with an intellectual disability or certain persons with related conditions that are operated by the Oklahoma Department of Human Services (OKDHS) Developmental Disabilities Services Division(DDS). Each waiver allows payment for respite care as defined in the waiver approved by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services.

(b) Respite providers enter into contractual agreements with the OHCA to provide HCBS services for persons with an intellectual disability or related conditions.

(c) Respite care is included in the member's Individual Plan (Plan). Arrangements for this service are made through the member's DDS case manager.

(d) Respite care is:

(1) Available to eligible members not receiving daily living supports or group home services and who are unable to care for themselves; and

(2) Furnished on a short-term basis due to the absence or need for relief of those persons normally providing the care, and includes:

(A) Daily respite provided in a group home.

(i) Group homes providing respite must be licensed per Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 340:100-6.

(ii) Respite care provided in a group home is authorized as respite at the applicable group home rate as identified in the member's Plan; and

(B) Daily respite provided in an agency companion services (ACS) home.

(i) Respite must be approved in accordance with the home profile process, per OAC 317:40-5-40, and required training, per OAC 340:100-3-38.

(ii) Respite provided in an ACS home is authorized as respite at the applicable level of support per OAC 317:40-5-3.

(iii) Respite providers are limited to providing 52-calendar days of respite per year when they concurrently provide ACS. Exceptions may be made by the DDS director or designee; and

(C) Daily respite provided in a specialized foster care (SFC) home, member's home, or any other approved community site.

(i) Respite must be approved in accordance with the home profile process, per OAC 317:40-5-40, and required training, per OAC 340-100-3-38.

(ii) Respite provided in a SFC or any other approved home other than ACS or a group home is authorized as respite at the applicable rate as identified in the member's Plan.

(iii) The respite provider is at least eighteen (18) years of age.

(3) Not available to members in OKDHS custody and in an out-of-home placement funded by OKDHS Child Welfare Services; and

- (4) Limited to thirty (30) calendar days or 720 hours annually per member, exceptions may be made by the DDS director or designee;
- (e) Payment is not made for daily respite care and SFC or ACS for the same member on the same date of service.

317:30-5-516. Coverage [REVOKED]

~~All respite care must be included in the member's Individual Plan (IP). Arrangements for this service must be made through the member's case manager.~~

317:30-5-517. Description of services [REVOKED]

~~Respite care is:~~

- ~~(1) available to eligible members not receiving daily living supports or group home services and who are unable to care for themselves; and~~
- ~~(2) furnished on a short term basis due to the absence or need for relief of those persons normally providing the care, and includes:~~
 - ~~(A) homemaker respite per OAC 317:30-5-535 through 317:30-5-538;~~
 - ~~(B) daily respite provided in a group home:

 - ~~(i) Group homes providing respite must be licensed per OAC 340:100-6.~~
 - ~~(ii) Respite care provided in a group home is authorized as respite at the applicable group home rate as identified in the member's Plan of Care;~~~~
 - ~~(C) daily respite provided in an agency companion services (ACS) home:

 - ~~(i) Respite must be approved in accordance with the home profile process, per OAC 317:40-5-40, and required training, per OAC 340:100-3-38.~~
 - ~~(ii) Respite provided in an ACS home is authorized as respite at the applicable level of support per OAC 317:40-5-3.~~
 - ~~(iii) Respite providers are limited to providing 52 days of respite per year when they concurrently provide ACS; and~~~~
 - ~~(D) daily respite provided in any other approved home. Respite:

 - ~~(i) must be approved in accordance with the home profile process, per OAC 317:40-5-40, and required training, per OAC 340-100-3-38;~~
 - ~~(ii) is based on the member's needs and includes:

 - ~~(I) maximum supervision for members with extensive needs;~~
 - ~~(II) close supervision for members with moderate needs; and~~
 - ~~(III) intermittent supervision for members with minimum needs; and~~~~
 - ~~(iii) providers must:

 - ~~(I) pass a background investigation per OAC 317:40-5-40 and OAC 340:100-3-39; and~~
 - ~~(II) be at least 18 years of age.~~~~~~

317:30-5-518. Coverage limitations [REVOKED]

- ~~(a) Payment is not made for daily respite care and specialized foster care or agency companion services (ACS) for the same member on the same date of service.~~
- ~~(b) Respite care:

 - ~~(1) is not available to members in Oklahoma Department of Human Services (DHS) custody or in out of home placement funded by DHS Child Welfare Services; and~~~~

- (2) for members not receiving ACS, is limited to 30 days or 720 hours annually per member, except as approved by the DHS Developmental Disabilities Services director and authorized in the member's Plan of Care; or
- (3) for members receiving ACS, is limited per Oklahoma Administrative Code 317:40-5-3.

PART 59. HOMEMAKER SERVICES

317:30-5-535. Homemaker Service in Home and Community-Based Services (HCBS) Waiver for persons with an intellectual disability or certain persons with related conditions

(a) **Introduction to waiver services.** The Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) administers ~~Home and Community-Based Services (HCBS) Waivers~~ for persons with an intellectual disability or certain persons with related conditions that are operated by the Oklahoma Department of Human Services (OKDHS) Developmental Disabilities Services (DDS) Division. Each waiver allows payment for ~~homemaker or homemaker respite services service~~ as defined in the waiver approved by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services.

(b) **Eligible providers.** ~~All homemaker~~ Homemaker services providers ~~must enter into contractual agreements with the OHCA to provide HCBS for persons with an intellectual disability or related conditions.~~

- (1) Providers must complete the OKDHS DDS sanctioned training per Oklahoma Administrative Code 340:100-3-38.
- (2) Homemaker service is included in the member's Individual Plan (Plan). Arrangements for this service must be made through the member's DDS case manager.
- (3) Homemaker service includes general household activities, such as meal preparation and routine household care when the regular caregiver responsible for these activities is temporarily absent or unable to manage the home and care for others in the home.
- (4) Limits are specified in the member's Plan.

317:30-5-536. Coverage [REVOKED]

~~All homemaker or homemaker respite services must be included in the member's Individual Plan (IP). Arrangements for care under this program must be made with the member's case manager.~~

317:30-5-537. Description of services [REVOKED]

~~Homemaker services include:~~

- (1) ~~**Minimum qualifications.** Providers must complete the Oklahoma Department of Human Services (OKDHS) Developmental Disabilities Services Division (DDSD) sanctioned training curriculum in accordance with the schedule authorized by DDSD per OAC 340:100-3-38.~~
- (2) ~~**Description of services.**~~
 - (A) ~~Homemaker services include general household activities, such as meal preparation and routine household care provided by a homemaker who is trained, when the regular caregiver responsible for these activities is temporarily absent or unable to manage the home and care for others in the home. Homemakers can help members with activities of daily living when needed.~~

~~(B) Homemaker respite services may include respite services provided to members on a short-term basis due to the need for relief of the caregiver. Services may be provided in any community setting as specified per the member's Individual Plan (IP).~~

~~(3) **Coverage limitations.** Limits are specified in member's IP. Members who are in the custody of OKDHS and in out-of-home placement funded by OKDHS Children and Family Services Division are not eligible for respite care.~~

DRAFT

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 40. DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES SERVICES**

SUBCHAPTER 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

317:40-1-4. Remote support (RS)

(a) **General Information.** RS services are intended to promote a member's independence. RS services are provided in the member's home, family home, or employment site to reduce reliance on in person support while ensuring the member's health and safety. RS services are included in the member's Individual Plan (Plan) and arrangements for this service are made through the case manager. Authorization to provide RS must be obtained from the Developmental Disabilities Services (DDS) division director or designee.

(1) RS services are:

- (A) Based on the member's needs as documented and supported by the Plan and Person-Centered Assessment;
- (B) The least-restrictive option and the member's preferred method to meet an assessed need;
- (C) Provided when all adult members of the household; his or her guardians, when applicable; and Personal Support Team (Team) agree to the provision of RS services as documented in the Plan; and
- (D) Reviewed by the Team after sixty (60) calendar days of initial installation to determine continued appropriateness and approval of services.

(2) RS services are not a system to provide surveillance or for staff convenience.

(b) **Service description.** RS is monitoring of an adult member; allowing for live, two-way communication with him or her in his or her residence or employment site, by monitoring staff using one or more of the systems in one (1) through eight (8) ~~that are:~~ of this subsection.

- (1) Live-video feed~~;~~
- (2) Live-audio feed~~;~~
- (3) Motion-sensing monitoring~~;~~
- (4) Radio-frequency identification~~;~~
- (5) Web-based monitoring~~;~~
- (6) Personal Emergency Response System (~~PERS~~)~~;~~
- (7) Global positioning system (~~GPS~~) monitoring devices~~;~~ ~~or~~
- (8) Any other device approved by the ~~Developmental Disabilities Services (DDS)~~ DDS director or designee.

(c) **General provider requirements.** RS service providers must have a valid Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) SoonerCare (Medicaid) provider agreement to provide agency-based RS services to Oklahoma Human Services (OKDHS) ~~DDS Home and Community Based~~ Home and Community-Based Services (HCBS) Waiver members. Requests for applications to provide RS are made to and approved by OKDHS ~~DDS state office~~ State Office.

(1) An assessment for RS Assessment services is completed:

- (A) Annually;
- (B) Prior to RS implementation; and
- (C) As required by ongoing progress and needs assessments.

(2) Each member is required to identify at least two (2) emergency response staff. The member's emergency response staff are documented in his or her Plan.

- (3) RS observation sites are not located in a member's residence.
- (4) The use of camera or video equipment in the member's bedroom or other private area is prohibited.
- (5) RS services are provided in real time by awake staff at a monitoring base using the appropriate connection, not by a recording. While RS is provided the RS staff does not have duties other than ~~remote supports~~RS.
- (6) RS equipment used in the member's residence includes a visual indicator to the member that the system is on and operating.
- (7) RS provider agencies must immediately notify in writing, the member's residential provider agency, vocational provider agency, assigned DDS case manager, or guardian of activity in the household, ~~who~~ that could potentially compromise the member's health or safety.
- (8) Emergency response provider agency staff records are maintained, per Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 340:100-3-40.
- (9) RS provider records are maintained for seven (7) calendar years or until any pending litigation involving the service recipient is completed, ~~whichever occurs last~~ and include at a minimum:
 - (A) The member's name;
 - (B) The staff's name who delivered the service;
 - (C) Service dates;
 - (D) Service begin and end times;
 - (E) Provider's location;
 - (F) Description of services provided or observation note;
 - (G) Method of contact with member; and
 - (H) The member's current photograph.
- (10) RS providers must have:
 - (A) Safeguards in place including, but not limited to:
 - (i) A battery or generator to insure continued coverage during an electrical outage at the member's home and monitoring facility;
 - (ii) Back-up procedures at the member's home and monitoring site for:
 - (I) Prolonged power outage;
 - (II) Fire;
 - (III) Severe weather; ~~and~~
 - (IV) The member's personal emergency; and
 - (iii) The ability to receive alarm notifications, such as home security, smoke, or carbon monoxide at each residence monitored, as assessed by the ~~team~~Team as necessary for health and safety; and
 - (B) Two-way audio communication allowing staff monitors to effectively interact with, and address the member's needs in each residence;
 - (C) A secure Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA)-compliant network system requiring data authentication, authorization, and encryption to ensure access to computer vision, audio, sensor, or written information is limited to authorized staff or ~~team~~Team members per the Plan;
 - (D) A current file for each member receiving RS services including:
 - (i) The member's photograph;
 - (ii) The member's Plan;

- (iii) The member's demographics; and
- (iv) Any other pertinent data to ensure the member's safety; and
- (E) Capability to maintain all video and make it available to OKDHS staff upon request for a minimum of twelve (12) calendar months. OKDHS may require an extended timeframe when necessary.

(d) **RS staff requirements.** RS staff:

- (1) May not have any assigned duties other than oversight and member support at the time they are monitoring;
- (2) Receive member specific training per the member's Plan prior to providing support to a member;
- (3) Assess urgent situations at a member's home or employment site and call 911 first when deemed necessary; then contact the member's residential provider agency or employment provider agency designated emergency response staff; or the member's natural support designated emergency response person while maintaining contact with the member until persons contacted or emergency response personnel arrive on site;
- (4) Implement the member's Plan as written by the Team and document the member's status at least hourly;
- (5) ~~Complete~~Completes and ~~submit~~submits incident reports, per OAC 340:100-3-34, unless emergency backup staff is engaged;
- (6) ~~Provide~~Provides simultaneous support to no more than ~~sixteen (16)~~thirty (30) members;
- (7) ~~Are~~Is eighteen (18) years of age and older; and
- (8) ~~Are~~Is employed by an approved RS agency.

(e) **Emergency response requirement.**

(1) Emergency response staff ~~are~~is employed by a provider agency with a valid OHCA SoonerCare (Medicaid) provider agreement to provide residential services, vocational services or habilitation training specialist (HTS) services to ~~OKDHS/DDS~~OKDHS DDS HCBS Waiver members and:

- (A) May not have any assigned duties other than oversight and support of members at the time they are assigned as response staff;
- (B) ~~Receive~~Receives all trainings required, per OAC 340:100-3-38.1, for members in residential settings; OAC 340:100-3-38.2 for members in employment settings; or OAC 340:100-3-38.3, for members in non-residential settings per the Plan prior to providing support;
- (C) ~~Provide~~Provides a response on site at the member's residence or employment site within twenty (20) minutes when contacted by RS staff unless a shorter timeframe is indicated in the member's Plan;
- (D) ~~Have~~Has an on-call back-up person who responds when the primary response staff engaged at another home or employment site is unable to respond within the specified time frame;
- (E) ~~Provide~~Provides written or verbal acknowledgement of a request for assistance from the RS staff;
- (F) ~~Complete~~Completes and document emergency drills with the member quarterly when services are provided in the member's home;
- (G) ~~Implement~~Implements the Plan as written and document each time they are contacted to respond, including the nature of the intervention and the duration;
- (H) ~~Complete~~Completes incident reports, per OAC 340:100-3-34; and

- (I) ~~Are~~ Is eighteen (18) years of age and older.
- (2) Natural emergency response persons:
 - (A) Are unpaid family members or other interested parties who agree to become, and are approved as, an emergency response person by the member's Team;
 - (B) Are available to respond in the case of an emergency within twenty (20) minutes from the time they are contacted by RS staff, unless a shorter response time is indicated in the Plan;
 - (C) Have an on-call back-up person who responds when the primary response staff is unable to respond within the specified time frame;
 - (D) Provide written or verbal acknowledgement of a request for assistance from ~~the remote supports~~ RS staff; and
 - (E) Are eighteen (18) years of age and older.
- (f) **Service limitations.** RS is limited to twenty-four (24) hours per day. RS is not provided simultaneously with HTS ~~services, homemaker services, agency companion services, group home services, specialized foster care,~~ respite, intensive personal supports ~~services, daily living supports,~~ per OAC 340:100-5-22.1, or employment services, per OAC 340:100-17 ~~group job coaching, or where foster care is provided to children.~~ RS can be provided in conjunction with daily living supports, individual job coaching, employment stabilization services, and center and community based services may not be provided to members receiving specialized foster care or agency companion services, per OAC 340:100-5.22.1, or group home services, per OAC 340:100-6.
 - (1) Services not covered include, but are not limited to:
 - (A) Direct care staff monitoring;
 - (B) Services to persons under the age of eighteen (18); or
 - (C) Services provided in any setting other than the member's primary residence or employment site.
 - (2) RS services are shared among ~~OKDHS/DDS~~ OKDHS DDS Waiver members of the same household in a residential setting. RS provider agencies may only bill for one (1) member of a household at a time. Only one (1) ~~remote supports~~ RS provider per household;
 - (3) Assistive technology purchases are authorized, per OAC 317:40-5-100.
- (g) **RS Discontinuation.** ~~The member and his or her Team determine when it is appropriate to discontinue RS services. When RS services are terminated, the RS provider agency coordinates termination of service with the member's residential provider agency or vocational provider agency and Team to ensure a safe transition. When a member requests the termination of RS services while RS is being provided, the RS staff~~ RS services can be discontinued:
 - (1) ~~Notifies the provider to request an emergency response staff;~~
 - (2) ~~Leaves the system operating until the emergency response staff arrives; and~~
 - (3) ~~Turns off the system once relieved by the emergency response staff.~~
 - (1) When the member and member's Team determine it is appropriate to discontinue RS services. When RS services are terminated, the RS provider agency coordinates termination of service with the member's residential or vocational provider agency and Team to ensure a safe transition. When a member requests the termination of RS services while RS is being provided, the RS staff:
 - (A) Notifies the provider to request an emergency response staff;
 - (B) Leaves the system operating until the emergency response staff arrives; and
 - (C) Turns off the system once relieved by the emergency response staff; or

(2) At the discretion of the RS provider when services do not meet the health or behavioral needs of the individual.

(A) A thirty (30) calendar day termination notice must be provided to the member and the Team prior to discontinuing services so alternative services can be arranged.

(B) Services must continue to be provided to the service recipient until the Team confirms all essential services are in place.

SUBCHAPTER 5. MEMBER SERVICES

PART 1. AGENCY COMPANION SERVICES

317:40-5-3. Agency companion services (ACS)

(a) ACS are:

(1) Provided by agencies that have a provider agreement with the Oklahoma Health Care Authority ~~(OHCA)~~;

(2) Provider Agency independent contractors and provide a shared living arrangement developed to meet the member's specific needs that include supervision, supportive assistance, and training in daily living skills, and integrates the member into the shared experiences of a family in a home owned or rented by the companion;

(3) Available to members eighteen (18) years of age or older who are eligible for services through Community or Homeward Bound Waivers. Persons under eighteen (18) years of age may be served with approval from the Oklahoma Department of Human Services ~~(OKDHS)~~ Developmental Disabilities Services (DDS) director or designee; and

(4) Based on the member's need for residential services, per Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 340:100-5-22, and support as described in the member's Individual Plan (Plan), per OAC 340:100-5-50 through 340:100-5-58.

~~(b) An agency companion: Households are limited to one (1) individual companion provider. Exceptions for two individual companion providers are allowed in a household when each provides companion services to different members. Exceptions may be approved by the DDS director or designee. Agency companions may not simultaneously serve more than four (4) members through any combination of companion or respite services. An agency companion:~~

~~(1) Must have~~Has an approved home profile, per OAC 317:40-5-3, and contract with a DDS-approved provider agency;

~~(2) May provide companion services for one (1) member. Exceptions to serve as companion for two (2) members may be approved by the DDS director or designee. Exceptions for up to two (2) members may be approved when members have an existing relationship and to separate them would be detrimental to their well-being~~well-being and the companion demonstrates the skill and ability required to serve as companion for two (2) members. Exceptions for additional members may be granted when the DDS director or designee determines an emergency situation exists and there is no other resolution, and the companion demonstrates the skill and ability required to serve as a companion;

~~(3) Household is limited to one (1) individual companion provider. Exceptions for two (2) individual companion providers in a household who each provide companion services to different members may be approved by the DDS director or designee;~~

~~(4)-(3) May not provide companion services to more than two (2) household members at any time; and~~

~~(5) Household may not simultaneously serve more than four (4) members through any combination of companion or respite services.~~

~~(6)~~(4) May not have employment, volunteer activities, or personal commitments that prevent the companion from fulfilling his or her responsibilities to the member, per OAC 317:40-5.

(A) The companion may have employment when:

(i) Employment is approved in advance by the DDS area residential services ~~program~~ programs manager;

(ii) ~~Companion's~~The companion's employment does not require on-call duties and occurs during time the member is engaged in outside activities such as school, employment or other routine scheduled meaningful activities; and

(iii) ~~Companion provides assurance~~The companion ensures the employment is such that the member's needs ~~will be~~are met by the companion ~~should~~if the member's outside activities ~~be~~are disrupted.

(B) If, after receiving approval for employment, authorized DDS staff determines the employment interferes with the care, training, or supervision needed by the member, the companion must terminate, within thirty (30) calendar days:

(i) His or her employment; or

(ii) His or her contract as an agency companion.

(C) Homemaker, habilitation training specialist, and respite services are not provided for the companion to maintain employment.

(c) Each member may receive up to sixty (60) calendar days per year of therapeutic leave without reduction in the agency companion's payment.

(1) Therapeutic leave:

(A) Is a SoonerCare (Medicaid) payment made to the contract provider to enable the member to retain services; and

(B) Is claimed when the:

(i) Member does not receive ACS for twenty-four (24) consecutive hours due to:

(I) A visit with family or friends without the companion;

(II) Vacation without the companion; or

(III) Hospitalization regardless of whether the companion is present; or

(ii) Companion uses authorized respite time; and

(C) Is limited to no more than fourteen (14) consecutive, calendar days per event, not to exceed sixty (60) calendar days per Plan of Care (POC) year; and

(D) Cannot be carried over from one (1) POC year to the next.

(2) The therapeutic leave daily rate is the same amount as the ACS per diem rate.

(3) The provider agency pays the agency companion the payment he or she would earn if the member were not on therapeutic leave.

(d) The companion may receive a combination of hourly or daily respite per POC year equal to seven-hundred and twenty (720) hours.

(1) The daily respite rate is used when respite is provided for a full twenty-four (24) hour day. A day is defined as the period between 12:00 am and 11:59 pm.

(2) The hourly respite rate is used when respite is provided for a partial day.

(3) The provider may serve more than one (1) member through shared staffing, but may not bill HTS or the hourly respite rate for multiple members at the same time.

(e) ~~Habilitation Training Specialist~~training specialist (HTS) services:

- (1) May be approved by the DDS director or designee when providing ACS with additional support represents the most cost-effective placement for the member when there is an ongoing pattern of the member not:
 - (A) Sleeping at night; or
 - (B) Working or attending employment, educational, or day services; and
 - (2) May be approved when a time-limited situation exists in which the companion provider is unable to provide ACS, and the provision of HTS ~~will maintain~~ maintains the placement or ~~provide~~ provides needed stability for the member, and must be reduced when the situation changes;
 - (3) Must be reviewed annually or more frequently as needed, which includes a change in agencies or individual companion providers; and
 - (4) Must be documented by the Personal Support Team (Team) and the Team must continue efforts to resolve the need for HTS.
- (f) The contractor model does not include funding for the provider agency for the provision of benefits to the companion.
- (g) The agency receives a daily rate based on the member's level of support. Levels of support for the member and corresponding payment are:
- (1) Determined by authorized DDS staff per levels described in ~~(A) through (D); and~~ OAC 317:40-5-3(g)(2)(A) through (C); and
 - (2) Re-evaluated when the member has a change in agency/individual companion providers ~~that includes a change in individual companion providers.~~
- ~~(A) Intermittent level of support.~~ Intermittent level of support is authorized when the member:
- ~~(i) Requires minimal physical assistance with basic daily living skills, such as bathing, dressing, and eating;~~
 - ~~(ii) May be able to spend short periods of time unsupervised inside and outside the home; and~~
 - ~~(iii) Requires assistance with medication administration, money management, shopping, housekeeping, meal preparation, scheduling appointments, arranging transportation or other activities.~~
- ~~(B)(A) Close level of support.~~ Close level of support is authorized when the member requires the level of assistance outlined in ~~(g)(2)(A) and~~ assistance in at least two (2) of the following: services in (i) through (iii) of this subparagraph.
- ~~(i) Regular frequent, and sometimes constant physical assistance and support to complete~~ Minimal to extensive assistance to complete daily living skills, such as bathing, dressing, eating, and toileting; ~~;~~
 - ~~(ii) Extensive assistance with medication administration, money management, shopping, housekeeping, meal preparation, scheduling appointments, arranging transportation or other activities; or~~
 - ~~(iii) Assistance with health, medication, or behavior interventions that may include the need for specialized training, equipment, and diet.~~
- ~~(C)(B) Enhanced level of support.~~ Enhanced level of support is authorized when the member requires the level of assistance outlined in ~~(g)(2)(B)(A) and~~ meets at least one (1) of the following criteria in (i) through (iii) of this subparagraph. The member:
- ~~(i) Is totally dependent on others for:~~

(I) Completion of daily living skills, such as bathing, dressing, eating, and toileting; and

(II) Medication administration, money management, shopping, housekeeping, meal preparation, scheduling appointments, and arranging transportation or other activities; or

(ii) Demonstrates ongoing complex medical issues requiring specialized training courses, per OAC 340:100-5-26; or

(iii) Has behavioral issues that ~~requires~~require a protective intervention protocol (PIP) with a restrictive or intrusive procedure, per OAC 340:100-1-2. The PIP must:

(I) Be approved by the Statewide Human Rights Behavior Review Committee (~~SHRBRC~~), per OAC 340:100-3-14; or

(II) Have received ~~expedited~~temporary approval, per OAC 340:100-5-57₂;

~~(iv) Meets the requirements of (g)(2)(C)(i) through (ivii); and does not have an available personal support system. The need for this service level:~~

~~(I) Must be identified by the grand staffing committee, per OAC 340:75-8-40; and~~

~~(II) Requires the provider to market, recruit, screen, and train potential companions for the member identified.~~

~~(D)~~(C) **Pervasive level of support.** Pervasive level of support requires the level of assistance outlined in (g)(2)(C), and is authorized when the member is in OKDHS Child Welfare Services custody and efforts to place in traditional foster care have failed due to the extensive level of support required by the member. It is reevaluated only when the member is eighteen (18) years of age or older and his or her individual companion provider changes.

(i) This level of support may continue to be authorized when the member requires:

(I) The level of assistance outlined in (g)(2)(B); and

(II) Additional professional level support to remain in an agency companion setting due to pervasive behavioral or emotional challenges.

~~(i)(ii) Requires additional professional level support to remain in an agency companion setting due to pervasive behavioral or emotional challenges. The support must be provided~~Providers of this level of support:

(I) By Deliver direct support to the companion by a licensed or certified behavioral health professional counselor (LPC) or professional with a minimum of Masters of Social Work (MSW) degree a master's degree; and

(II) As ongoing Provide ongoing support and training to the companion, offering best practice approaches in dealing with specific members; and

(III) As Provide professional level and ongoing support as part of the ACS and not billed as a separate service. Waiver services may be authorized for the development of a PIP, per OAC 340:100-5-57; and

(IV) Market, recruit, screen, and train potential companions for the identified member.

~~(ii) Does not have an available personal support system. The need for this service level:~~

~~(I) Must be identified by the grand staffing committee, per OAC 340:75-8-40; and~~

~~(H) Requires the provider to market, recruit, screen, and train potential companions for the member identified.~~

- (h) Authorization for payment of ACS is contingent upon receipt of:
- (1) The applicant's approval letter authorizing ACS for the identified member;
 - (2) An approved relief and emergency back-up plan addressing a back-up location and provider;
 - (3) The Plan;
 - (4) The POC; and
 - (5) The date the member is scheduled to move to the ~~companion's~~ companion's home. When a member transitions from a DDS placement funded by a pier diem the incoming provider may request eight (8) hours of HTS for the first day of service.
- (i) The Plan reflects the amount of room and board the member pays to the companion. The provider must use the room and board reimbursement payment to meet the member's needs. Items purchased with the room and board reimbursement payment include housing and food.
- (j) The room and board payment may include all but one-hundred and fifty dollars (\$150) per month of the ~~service recipient's~~ member's income, up to a maximum of ninety (90) percent of the current minimum Supplemental Security Income (SSI) payment for a single individual.

PART 5. SPECIALIZED FOSTER CARE STANDARDS

317:40-5-50. Purpose of Specialized Foster Care Scope(SFC)

- (a) ~~Specialized Foster Care (SFC)~~ SFC provides up to ~~24~~twenty-four (24) hours per day of in-home residential habilitation services funded through the Community Waiver or the Homeward Bound Waiver. SFC serves individuals ~~ages three (3) years of age~~ and older. SFC provides an individualized living arrangement in a family setting including up to ~~24~~twenty-four (24) hours per day of supervision, supportive assistance, and training in daily living skills.
- (b) SFC is provided in a setting that best meets the member's specialized needs ~~of the service recipient~~.
- (c) Members in SFC have a written plan that addresses visitation, reunification, or permanency planning, and which may also address guardianship as the member approaches eighteen (18) years of age.
- (d) As per the requirements in (1) through (4) of this subsection, SFC providers:
- (1) Are approved through the home profile process described in Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:40-5-40;
 - (2) Have a current Home and Community-Based Services (HCBS) Waiver contract with the Oklahoma Health Care Authority; and
 - (3) Have a current Fixed Rate Foster Home Contract for room and board reimbursement with Developmental Disabilities Services (DDS) when:
 - (A) The SFC member is a child; or
 - (B) Required by the adult ~~member's~~ SFC recipient's Personal Support Team (Team).
- (e) A child in Oklahoma Human Services (OKDHS) or tribal custody who is determined eligible for HCBS Waiver services, per OAC 317:40-1-1, is eligible to receive SFC services if the child's special needs cannot be met in a Child Welfare Services (CWS) foster home.
- (1) SFC provides a temporary, stable, nurturing, and safe home environment for the child while OKDHS plans for reunification with the child's family.

- (2) In the event reunification is not achievable, SFC may be provided on a long-term basis while other more permanent living arrangements are sought.
- (3) When the court has established a specific visitation plan, the CWS specialist informs the SFC provider, the member, the DDS case manager, and the natural family of the visitation plan.
- (A) The SFC provider cooperates with the visitation plan between the child and family as prescribed by the court or the member's Team.
- (B) The reunification effort is the joint responsibility of the:
- (i) CWS worker;
 - (ii) DDS case manager;
 - (iii) Natural family; and
 - (iv) SFC family.
- (C) For children in OKDHS custody, CWS and DDS work together to determine the need for guardianship. When it has been established that a legal guardian is in the child's best interest, both programs work together to locate a guardian.
- (f) SFC is a temporary service provided to children who are not in OKDHS custody when SFC services are needed to prevent institutionalization.
- (1) ~~SFC intent is to allow the member's family relief that cannot be satisfied by respite services provisions or other in-home supports.~~ SFC is intended to allow relief for the member's family that cannot be satisfied by respite services provisions or other in-home supports.
- (2) SFC provides a nurturing, substitute home environment for the member while plans are made to reunify the family.
- (3) Visitation with the family is a part of the reunification efforts for non-custody children. Visitation must not be intrusive to the SFC home.
- (4) Parents of a child receiving SFC services must comply with the requirements listed in (A) through (D) of this paragraph.
- (A) Natural or adoptive parents retain the responsibility for their child's ongoing involvement and support while the child is in SFC.
- (i) The parents are required to sign a written agreement allowing OKDHS to serve as the representative payee for the child's Social Security Administration (SSA) benefits, other government benefits, and court-authorized child support.
 - (ii) SSA and other government benefits, and child support are used to pay for room and board. HCBS services do not pay for room and board-maintenance.
- (B) Parental responsibilities of a child receiving voluntary SFC are to:
- (i) Provide respite to the SFC provider;
 - (ii) Provide transportation to and from parental visitation;
 - (iii) Provide a financial contribution toward their child's support;
 - (iv) Provide in kind supports, such as disposable undergarments, if needed, clothing, recreation, birthday and holiday presents, school supplies, and allowances or personal spending money;
 - (v) Follow the visitation plan as outlined by the member's Team, per OAC 317:40-5-52;
 - (vi) Maintain ongoing communication with the member and SFC provider by letters, telephone calls, video conferencing, or email;
 - (vii) Be available in an emergency;
 - (viii) Work toward reunification when appropriate;

- (ix) Provide written consent for medical treatments as appropriate;
- (x) Attend medical appointments, when possible, and keep informed of the member's health status;
- (xi) Participate in the member's education plan per Oklahoma State Department of Education regulations; and
- (xii) Be present for all Team meetings.

(C) When moving out of Oklahoma, parents of a child receiving voluntary SFC are responsible for taking their minor child with them, since the child is no longer eligible for services because he or she is no longer an Oklahoma resident.

(D) For children eighteen (18) years of age and younger, the case manager reports to CWS if the family moves out of Oklahoma without taking their child with them or if the family cannot be located.

(g) SFC is an appropriate living arrangement for many adults. The decision to use SFC for an adult is based on the member's need for residential support as described in the member's Individual Plan (Plan).

(1) In general, SFC is appropriate for members who have not experienced family life. A child served in SFC may continue to receive services in the home indefinitely after turning ~~18~~eighteen (18) years of age.

(2) The member who receives SFC services lives in the provider's home.

(3) Visitation with the adult member's family is encouraged and arranged according to the member's preference. Visitation is not intrusive to the SFC home.

(h) When natural or other unpaid supports are not available, the SFC provider may request respite support.

(1) Respite units do not replace the responsibilities of the SFC provider on a regular basis.

(2) All respite units must be justified in the member's Plan process.

(3) No more than seven-hundred and twenty (720) hours annually may be authorized unless approved by the DDS director or designee.

(A) The daily respite rate is used when respite is provided for a full twenty-four (24) hour day. A day is defined as the period between 12:00 a.m. and 11:59 p.m..

(B) The hourly respite rate is used when respite is provided for a partial day.

(C) The provider may serve more than one (1) member through shared staffing, but may not bill habilitation training specialist (HTS) services or the hourly respite rate for multiple members at the same time.

(4) No spouse or other adult living in the provider household may serve as paid respite staff.

(5) Consideration is given to authorizing additional respite hours when providing additional relief represents the most cost-effective placement for the member and:

(A) There are multiple members living in the home;

(B) The member has an on-going pattern of not sleeping at night; or

(C) The member has an on-going pattern of not working or attending employment services, in spite of continuing efforts by the Team.

(i) HTS services may be approved by the DDS director or designee when providing SFC with additional staffing support represents the most cost-effective placement for the member when:

(1) There is an ongoing pattern of not sleeping at night; or

(2) There is an ongoing pattern of not working or attending employment, educational, or day services;

(3) There are multiple members living in the home;

- (4) A time-limited situation exists in which the foster parent is unable to provide SFC, and the provision of HTS maintains the placement or provides needed stability for the member, and must be reduced when the situation changes;
- (5) Must be reviewed annually or more frequently as needed; and
- (6) Must be documented by the Team and the Team must continue efforts to resolve the need for HTS.

(j) A member may receive therapeutic leave for no more than fourteen (14) consecutive days per event, not to exceed sixty (60) calendar days per Plan of Care year.

- (1) The payment for a day of therapeutic leave is the same amount as the per diem rate for SFC services.
- (2) Therapeutic leave is claimed when the member does not receive SFC services for twenty-four (24) consecutive hours from 12:00 am to 11:59 pm because of:
 - (A) A visit with family or friends without the SFC provider;
 - (B) Vacation without the SFC provider; or
 - (C) Hospitalization.

317:40-5-60. Relief support for providers of Specialized Foster Care [REVOKED]

~~When natural or other unpaid supports are not available, the Specialized Foster Care (SFC) provider may request relief support.~~

- ~~(1) Relief units do not replace the responsibilities of the SFC provider on a regular basis.~~
- ~~(2) All relief units must be justified in the service recipient's Plan process.~~
- ~~(3) No more than 720 hours annually may be authorized unless approved by the Developmental Disabilities Services Division director or designee.~~
- ~~(4) No spouse or other adult living in the provider household may serve as paid relief staff.~~
- ~~(5) Consideration is given to authorizing additional relief hours when providing additional relief represents the most cost effective placement for the service recipient and:~~
 - ~~(A) there are multiple service recipients living in the home;~~
 - ~~(B) the service recipient has an on-going pattern of not sleeping at night; or~~
 - ~~(C) the service recipient has an on-going pattern of not working or attending employment services, in spite of continuing efforts by the Team.~~

PART 9. SERVICE PROVISIONS

317:40-5-100. Assistive technology (AT) devices and services

(a) **Applicability.** This Section applies to AT services and devices authorized by Oklahoma Department of Human Services ~~OKDHS~~(OKDHS) Developmental Disabilities Services (DDS) through Home and ~~Community Based~~Community-Based Services (HCBS) Waivers.

(b) **General information.**

- (1) AT devices include the purchase, rental, customization, maintenance, and repair of devices, controls, and appliances. AT devices include:
 - (A) Visual alarms;
 - (B) Telecommunication devices (~~TDDS~~);
 - (C) Telephone amplifying devices;
 - (D) Devices for the protection of health and safety of members who are deaf or hard of hearing;
 - (E) Tape recorders;

- (F) Talking calculators;
- (G) Specialized lamps;
- (H) Magnifiers;
- (I) Braille writers;
- (J) Braille paper;
- (K) Talking computerized devices;
- (L) Devices for the protection of health and safety of members who are blind or visually impaired;
- (M) Augmentative and alternative communication devices including language board and electronic communication devices;
- (N) Competence-based cause and effect systems, such as switches;
- (O) Mobility and positioning devices including:
 - (i) Wheelchairs;
 - (ii) Travel chairs;
 - (iii) Walkers;
 - (iv) Positioning systems;
 - (v) Ramps;
 - (vi) Seating systems;
 - (vii) Standers;
 - (viii) Lifts;
 - (ix) Bathing equipment;
 - (x) Specialized beds; ~~and~~
 - (xi) Specialized chairs; and
- (P) Orthotic and prosthetic devices, including:
 - (i) Braces;
 - (ii) Prescribed modified shoes; ~~and~~
 - (iii) Splints; and
- (Q) Environmental controls or devices;
- (R) Items necessary for life support, and devices necessary for the proper functioning of such items, including durable and non-durable medical equipment not available through SoonerCare (Medicaid); ~~and~~
- (S) Devices enabling technology devices to protect the member's health and safety or support increased independence in the home, employment site or community can include, but are not limited to:
 - (i) Motion sensors;
 - (ii) Smoke and carbon monoxide alarms;
 - (iii) Bed ~~and/or~~ or chair sensors;
 - (iv) Door and window sensors;
 - (v) Pressure sensors in mats on the floor;
 - (vi) Stove guards or oven shut off systems;
 - (vii) Live web-based remote supports;
 - (viii) Cameras;
 - (ix) ~~Automated medication~~ Medication dispenser systems;
 - (x) Software to operate accessories included for environmental control;
 - (xi) Software applications;
 - (xii) Personal Emergency Response Systems (~~PERS~~) or ~~Mobile~~; mobile;

- (xiii) Emergency Response Systems (~~MER~~);
- (xiv) Global positioning system (~~GPS~~) monitoring devices;
- (xv) Radio frequency identification;
- (xvi) Computers, smart watches and tablets; and
- (xvii) Any other device approved by the ~~Developmental~~; and DDS director or designee;
- ~~(xviii) Disabilities Services (DDS) director or designee.~~

(T) Eye glasses lenses, frames or visual aids.

(2) AT services include:

- (A) Sign language interpreter services for members who are deaf;
- (B) Reader services;
- (C) ~~Auxillary~~Auxiliary aids;
- (D) Training the member and provider in the use and maintenance of equipment and auxiliary aids;
- (E) Repair of AT devices; ~~and~~
- (F) Evaluation of the member's AT needs; and
- (G) Eye examinations.

(3) AT devices and services must be included in the member's Individual Plan (~~IP~~)(Plan), prescribed by a physician, or appropriate medical professional with a SoonerCare (Medicaid) contract, and arrangements for this HCBS service must be made through the member's case manager.

(4) AT devices are provided by vendors with a ~~Durable Medical Equipment (DME)~~durable medical equipment or other appropriate contract with the Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA).

(5) AT devices and services are authorized ~~in accordance with~~per requirements of ~~The~~the Oklahoma Central Purchasing Act, other applicable statutory provisions, Oklahoma Administrative Code ~~OAC~~(OAC) 580:15 and OKDHS-approved purchasing procedures.

(6) AT services are provided by an appropriate professional services provider with a current HCBS contract with OHCA and current, unrestricted licensure and certification with their professional board, when applicable.

(7) AT devices or services may be authorized when the device or service:

- (A) Has no utility apart from the needs of the person receiving services;
- (B) Is not otherwise available through SoonerCare (Medicaid) an AT retrieval program, the Oklahoma ~~Department of Rehabilitative~~Rehabilitation Services, or any other third party or known community resource;
- (C) Has no less expensive equivalent that meets the member's needs;
- (D) Is not solely for family or staff convenience or preference;
- (E) Is based on the assessment and Personal Support Team (Team) consideration of the member's unique needs;
- (F) Is of direct medical or remedial benefit to the member;
- (G) Enables the member to maintain, increase, or improve functional capabilities;
- (H) Is supported by objective documentation included in a professional assessment, except as specified, per OAC 317:40-5-100;
- (I) Is within the scope of ~~assistive technology~~ AT, per OAC 317:40-5-100;
- (J) Is the most appropriate and cost effective bid, when applicable; ~~and~~ or

(K) Exceeds a cost of seventy-five dollars (\$75) AT devices or services with a cost of seventy-five dollars (\$75) or less, are not authorized through DDS HCBS Waivers.

(8) The homeowner must sign a written agreement for any AT equipment that attaches to the home or property.

(c) **Assessments.** Recommendations for enabling technology devices are completed by the DDS programs manager for remote supports or their designee. Assessments for AT devices or services are performed by a licensed, professional service provider and reviewed by other providers whose services may be affected by the device selected. A licensed, professional service provider must:

(1) Determine if the member's identified outcome can be accomplished through the creative use of other resources, such as:

- (A) Household items or toys;
- (B) Equipment loan programs;
- (C) Low-technology devices or other less intrusive options; or
- (D) A similar, more cost-effective device; and

(2) Recommend the most appropriate AT based on the member's:

- (A) Present and future needs, especially for members with degenerative conditions;
- (B) History of use of similar AT, and his or her current ability to use the device ~~and for the next five (5) years;~~ and
- (C) Outcomes; and

(3) Complete an assessment, including a decision making review and device trial that provides supporting documentation for purchase, rental, customization, or fabrication of an AT device. Supporting documentation must include:

- (A) A device review;
- (B) Availability of the device rental with discussion of advantages and disadvantages;
- (C) How frequently and in what situations the device ~~will be~~ is used in daily activities and routines;
- (D) How the member and caregiver(s) ~~will be~~ are trained to safely use the AT device; and
- (E) The features and specifications of the device necessary for the member, including rationale for why other alternatives are not available to meet the member's needs; and

(4) Upon DDS staff's request, provide a current, unedited video or photographs of the member using the device, including recorded trial time frames.

(d) **Repairs and placement part authorization.** AT device repairs or parts replacements, do not require a professional assessment or recommendation. DDS resource development staff with ~~assistive technology~~ AT experience may authorize repairs and replacement of parts for previously recommended AT.

(e) **AT device retrieval.** When a member no longer needs an AT device, OKDHS DDS staff may retrieve the device.

(f) **Team decision-making process.** The member's Team reviews the licensed professional's assessment and decision-making review. The Team ensures the recommended AT:

(1) Is needed by the member to achieve a specific, identified functional outcome.

(A) A functional outcome, in this Section, means the activity is meaningful to the member, occurs on a frequent basis, and would require assistance from others, if the member could not perform the activity independently, such as self-care, assistance with eating, or transfers.

(B) Functional outcomes must be reasonable and necessary given a member's age, diagnosis, and abilities; and

- (2) Allows the member receiving services to:
 - (A) Improve or maintain health and safety;
 - (B) Participate in community life;
 - (C) Express choices; or
 - (D) Participate in vocational training or employment; and
- (3) ~~Will be~~Is used frequently or in a variety of situations;
- (4) ~~Will~~Is easily fit into the member's lifestyle and work place;
- (5) Is specific to the member's unique needs; and
- (6) Is not authorized solely for family or staff convenience.
- (g) **Requirements and standards for AT devices and service providers.**
 - (1) Providers guarantee devices, work, and materials for one (1) calendar year, and supply necessary follow-up evaluation to ensure optimum usability.
 - (2) Providers ensure a licensed occupational therapist, physical therapist, speech therapist, or rehabilitation engineer evaluates the need for AT, and individually customizes AT devices.
- (h) **Services not covered through AT devices and services.** AT devices and services do not include:
 - (1) Trampolines;
 - (2) Hot tubs;
 - (3) Bean bag chairs;
 - (4) Recliners with lift capabilities;
 - (5) Computers, except as adapted for individual needs as a primary means of oral communication, and approved, per OAC 317:40-5-100;
 - (6) Massage tables;
 - (7) Educational games and toys; or
 - (8) Generators.
- (i) **AT approval or denial.** DDS approval, conditional approval for pre-determined trial use, or denial of the purchase, rental, or lease or purchase of the AT is determined, per OAC 317:40-5-100.
 - (1) The DDS case manager sends the AT request to designated DDS AT-experienced resource development staff. The request must include:
 - (A) The licensed professional's assessment and decision making review;
 - (B) A copy of the Plan of Care (~~POC~~);
 - (C) ~~Documentation~~Documentation of the current Team consensus, including consideration of issues, per OAC 317:40-5-100; and
 - (D) All additional documentation to support the AT device or service need.
 - (2) The designated AT-experienced resource development staff approves or denies the AT request when the device costs less than \$5000.
 - (3) The State Office programs manager for AT approves or denies the AT request when the device has a cost of \$5000 or more. When authorization of an AT device of \$5000 or more is requested:
 - (A) The AT-experienced resource development staff:
 - (i) Solicits three (3) AT bids; and
 - (ii) Submits the AT request, bids, and other relevant information identified in (1) of this subsection to the State Office DDS AT programs manager or designee within five (5) business days of receipt of the required bids; and

(B) The State Office DDS AT programs manager or designee issues a letter of authorization, a written denial, or a request for additional information within five (5) business days of receipt of all required AT documentation.

(4) Authorization for purchase or a written denial is provided within ten (10) business days of receipt of a complete request:

(A) If the AT is approved, a letter of authorization is issued;

(B) If additional documentation is required by the AT-experienced resource development staff, to authorize the recommended AT, the request packet is returned to the case manager for completion;

(C) When necessary, the case manager contacts the licensed professional to request the additional documentation; and

~~(D) The authorization of an AT device of \$5000 or more is completed per (2) of this subsection, and the AT-experienced resource development staff with:~~

~~(i) Solicits three (3) AT bids;~~

~~(ii) Submits the AT request, bids, and other relevant information to the State Office DDS AT programs manager or designee within five (5) business days of receipt of the required bids; and~~

~~(iii) The State Office DDS AT programs manager or designee issues a letter of authorization, a written denial, or a request for additional information within five~~

~~(5) business days of receipt of all required AT documentation.~~

(j) **Vehicle approval adaptations.** Vehicle adaptations are assessed and approved, per OAC 317:40-5-100. In addition, the requirements in (1) through (3) of this subsection must be met.

(1) The vehicle must be owned or in the process of being purchased by the member receiving services or his or her family in order to be adapted.

(2) The AT request must include a certified mechanic's statement that the vehicle and adaptations are mechanically sound.

(3) Vehicle adaptations are limited to one vehicle in a ten (10) year period per member. Authorization for more than one vehicle adaptation in a ten (10) year period must be approved by the DDS director or designee.

(k) **Eye glasses and eye exams.** Routine eye examination or the purchase of corrective lenses for members twenty-one (21) years of age and older, not covered by SoonerCare (Medicaid), may be authorized for the purpose of prescribing glasses or visual aids, determination of refractive state, treatment of refractive errors, or purchase of lenses, frames, or visual aids. Payment can be made to a licensed optometrist who has a current contract on file with OHCA for services within the scope of Optometric practice as defined by the appropriate State law; provided, however, that services performed by out-of-state providers are only compensable to the extent that they are covered services.

~~(l)~~ (1) **AT denial.** Procedures for denial of an AT device or service are described in (1) through (3) of this subsection.

(1) The person denying the AT request provides a written denial to the case manager citing the reason for denial, per OAC 317:40-5-100.

(2) The case manager sends OKDHS Form 06MP004E, Notice of Action, to the member and his or her family or guardian.

(3) AT service denials may be appealed through the OKDHS hearing process, per OAC 340:2-5.

~~(h)~~(m) **AT device returns.** When, during a trial use period or rental of a device, the therapist or Team including the licensed professional who recommended the AT and, when available, determines the device is not appropriate, the licensed professional sends a brief report describing the change of device recommendation to the DDS case manager. The DDS case manager forwards the report to the designated resource development staff, who arranges for the equipment return to the vendor or manufacturer.

~~(m)~~(n) **AT device rental.** AT devices are rented when the licensed professional or AT-experienced resource development ~~staff determines~~ staff determines rental of the device is more cost effective than purchasing the device or the licensed professional recommends a trial period to determine if the device meets the member's needs.

- (1) The rental period begins on the date the manufacturer or vendor delivers the equipment to the member, unless otherwise stated in advance by the manufacturer or vendor.
- (2) AT-experienced resource development staff monitor use of equipment during the rental agreement for:
 - (A) Rental time frame cost effectiveness;
 - (B) Renewal conditions; and
 - (C) The Team's, including the licensed professional's re-evaluation of the member's need for the device, per OAC 317:40-5-100.
- (3) Rental costs are applied toward the purchase price of the device when the option is available from the manufacturer or vendor.
- (4) When a device is rented for a trial-use period, the Team including the licensed professional, decides within ninety (90) calendar days whether the device:
 - (A) Meets the member's needs; and
 - (B) ~~Should~~ Needs to be purchased or returned.

~~(n)~~(o) **AT committee.** The AT committee reviews equipment requests when deemed necessary by the OKDHS DDS State Office AT programs manager.

- (1) The AT committee is comprised of:
 - (A) DDS professional staff members of the appropriate therapy;
 - (B) DDS State Office AT programs manager;
 - (C) The DDS area field administrator or designee; and
 - (D) An AT expert, not employed by OKDHS.
- (2) The AT committee performs a paper review, providing technical guidance, oversight, and consultation.
- (3) The AT committee may endorse or recommend denial of a device or service, based on criteria provided in this Section. Any endorsement or denial includes a written rationale for the decision and, when necessary, an alternative solution, directed to the case manager within twenty (20) business days of the receipt of the request. Requests reviewed by the AT committee result in suspension of time frames specified, per OAC 317:40-5-100.

317:40-5-102. Nutrition Services~~services~~

(a) **Applicability.** The rules in this Section apply to nutrition services authorized for members who receive services through Home and Community-Based Services (HCBS) Waivers operated by the Oklahoma ~~Department of Human Services (OKDHS) Developmental Disabilities Services Division (DDSD)~~(DDS).

(b) **General information.** Nutrition services include nutritional evaluation and consultation to members and their caregivers, are intended to maximize the member's health and are provided in

any community setting as specified in the member's Individual Plan (~~IP~~)(Plan). Nutrition services must be prior authorized, included in the member's ~~Individual Plan (IP)~~ and arrangements for this service must be made through the member's case manager. Nutrition service contract providers must be licensed in the state where they practice and registered as a dietitian with the Commission of Dietetic Registration. Each dietitian must have a current provider agreement with the Oklahoma Health Care Authority (~~OHCA~~)-to provide ~~Home and Community Based Services~~HCBS, and a SoonerCare (Medicaid) provider agreement for nutrition services. Nutrition ~~Services~~services are provided per Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 340:100-3-33.1. In order for the member to receive Waiver-funded nutrition services, the requirements in this Section must be fulfilled.

- (1) The member must be assessed by the case manager to have a possible eating problem or nutritional risk.
 - (2) The member must have ~~a physician's order for nutrition services current within one year.~~ an order for nutrition services current within one (1) year signed by a medical or osteopathic physician, physician assistant, or other licensed health care professional with prescriptive authority.
 - (3) Per OAC 340:100-5-50 through 58, the ~~team~~Personal Support Team (Team) identifies and addresses member needs.
 - (4) Nutrition services may include evaluation, planning, consultation, training and monitoring.
 - (5) A legally competent adult or legal guardian who has been informed of the risks and benefits of the service has the right to refuse nutrition services per OAC 340:100-3-11. Refusal of nutrition services must be documented in the ~~Individual Plan~~.
 - (6) A minimum of ~~15~~fifteen (15) minutes for encounter and record documentation is required.
 - (7) A unit is ~~15~~fifteen (15) minutes.
 - (8) Nutrition services are limited to ~~192~~one hundred ninety-two (192) units per Plan of Care year.
- (c) **Evaluation.** When arranged by the case manager, the nutrition services contract provider evaluates the member's nutritional status and completes the Level of Nutritional Risk Assessment.
- (1) The evaluation must include, but is not limited to:
 - (A) ~~health~~Health, diet, and behavioral history impacting on nutrition;
 - (B) ~~clinical~~Clinical measures including body composition and physical assessment;
 - (C) ~~dietary~~Dietary assessment, including:
 - (i) ~~nutrient~~Nutrient needs;
 - (ii) ~~eating~~Eating skills;
 - (iii) ~~nutritional~~Nutritional intake; and
 - (iv) ~~drug-nutrient~~Drug-nutrient interactions; and
 - (D) ~~recommendations~~Recommendations to address nutritional risk needs, including:
 - (i) ~~outcomes~~Outcomes;
 - (ii) ~~strategies~~Strategies;
 - (iii) ~~staff~~Staff training; and
 - (iv) ~~program~~Program monitoring and evaluation.
 - (2) The nutrition services contract provider and other involved professionals make recommendations for achieving positive nutritional outcomes based on the risks identified on ~~the~~ OKDHS Form 06HM040E, Level of Nutritional Risk Assessment.
 - (3) The nutrition services contract provider sends a copy of the Level of Nutritional Risk Assessment to the case manager within ten ~~(10)~~ working days of receipt of the authorization.

- (4) If the evaluation shows the member rated as High Nutritional Risk, the nutrition services contract provider sends a copy of the Level of Nutritional Risk Assessment to the ~~DDS~~DDS area nutrition therapist or ~~DDS~~DDS area professional support services designee as well as the case manager within ~~10 working~~ten (10) business days of receipt of the authorization.
- (d) **Planning.** The ~~DDS~~DDS case manager, in conjunction with the Team, reviews the identified nutritional risks that impact the member's life.
- (1) Desired nutritional outcomes are developed and integrated into the ~~Individual~~Individual Plan using the least restrictive, least intrusive, most normalizing measures that can be carried out across environments.
 - (2) The Team member(s) identified responsible in the ~~Individual~~Individual Plan develops methods to support the nutritional outcomes, which may include:
 - (A) ~~Strategies~~Strategies;
 - (B) Staff training; or
 - (C) Program monitoring.
 - (3) When the member has been receiving nutrition services and nutritional status is currently stable and the Team specifies that nutrition services are no longer needed, the Team ~~will identify~~identifies individual risk factors for the member that would indicate consideration of the resumption of nutrition services and assigns responsibility to a named Team Member(s) for monitoring and reporting the members status regarding these factors.
 - (4) Any member who receives paid ~~24~~twenty-four (24) hour per day supports and requires constant physical assistance and mealtime intervention to eat safely, or is identified for risk of choking or aspiration must have an individualized mealtime assistance plan developed and reviewed at least annually by the Team member(s) identified responsible in the ~~Individual~~Individual Plan. Team members may include a nutrition services contract provider and a speech therapy contract provider or occupational therapy contract provider with swallowing expertise (~~mealtime therapists~~). Documentation ~~should delineate~~delineates responsibilities to insure there is no duplication of services. The mealtime assistance plan includes but is not limited to:
 - (A) ~~a~~A physician ordered diet;
 - (B) ~~diet~~Diet instructions;
 - (C) ~~positioning~~Positioning needs;
 - (D) ~~assistive~~Assistive technology needs;
 - (E) ~~communication~~Communication needs;
 - (F) ~~eating~~Eating assistance techniques;
 - (G) ~~supervision~~Supervision requirements;
 - (H) ~~documentation~~Documentation requirements;
 - (I) ~~monitoring~~Monitoring requirements; and
 - (J) ~~training~~Training and assistance.
 - (5) For those members receiving paid ~~24~~twenty-four (24) hour per day supports and nutrition through a feeding tube, the Team develops and implements strategies for tube feeding administration that enables members to receive nutrition in the safest manner and for oral care that enables optimal oral hygiene and oral-motor integrity as deemed possible per OAC 340:100-5-26. The Team reviews the member's ability to return to oral intake following feeding tube placement and annually thereafter in accordance with the member's needs.
- (e) **Implementation, Consultation and Training.** Strategies are implemented by the assigned person within a designated time frame established by the Team based on individual need(s).

- (1) Direct support staff members are trained per the ~~Individual~~ Plan and OAC 340:100-3-38.
- (2) All special diets, nutritional supplements, and aids to digestion and elimination must be prescribed and reviewed at least annually by a physician.
- (3) Consultation to members and their caregivers is provided as specified in the ~~IP~~Plan.
- (4) Program documentation is maintained in the member's home record for the purpose of evaluation and monitoring.
- (5) The contract professional provider(s) sends documentation regarding the member's program concerns, recommendations for remediation of any problem area and progress notes to the case manager per OAC 340:100-5-52.
 - (A) The designated professional(s) reviews the program data submitted for:
 - (i) ~~completeness~~; completeness;
 - (ii) ~~consistency~~ Consistency of implementation; and
 - (iii) ~~positive~~ Positive outcomes.
 - (B) When a member is identified by the Level of Nutritional Risk Assessment to be at high nutritional risk, he or she receives increased monitoring by the nutrition services contract provider and health care coordinator, as determined necessary by the Team.
 - (C) Significant changes in nutritional status must be reported to the case manager by the health care coordinator.
 - (D) The Level of Nutritional Risk Assessment:
 - (i) ~~is~~ Is used by the nutrition services contract provider to reassess members at high risk on a quarterly basis; and
 - (ii) ~~must~~ Must be submitted by the nutrition services contract provider to the ~~DDS~~ DDS area nutrition therapist or ~~DDS~~ DDS area professional support services designee within ~~15~~ fifteen (15) calendar days following the end of each quarter.

317:40-5-103. Transportation

- (a) **Applicability.** The rules in this Section apply to transportation services provided through ~~the~~ Oklahoma Department of Human Services (~~DHS~~), Developmental Disabilities Services (DDS); Home and ~~Community-Based~~ Community-Based Services (HCBS) Waivers.
- (b) **General Information.** Transportation services include adapted, non-adapted, and public transportation.
 - (1) Transportation services are provided to promote inclusion in the community, access to programs and services, and participation in activities to enhance community living skills. Members are encouraged to utilize natural supports or community agencies that can provide transportation without charge before accessing transportation services.
 - (2) Services include, but are not limited to, transportation to and from medical appointments, work or employment services, recreational activities, and other community activities within the number of miles authorized in the Plan of Care (POC).
 - (A) Adapted or non-adapted transportation may be provided for each eligible person.
 - (B) Public transportation may be provided up to a maximum of ~~\$5,000~~ \$15,000 per ~~Plan~~ of Care POC year. The DDS director or designee may approve requests for public transportation totaling more than ~~\$5,000~~ \$15,000 per year when public transportation promotes the member's independence, is the most cost-effective option or only service option available for necessary transportation. For the purposes of this Section, public transportation is defined as:

- (i) ~~services~~Services, such as an ambulance when medically necessary, a bus, or a taxi; or
 - (ii) ~~a~~A transportation program operated by the member's employment services or day services provider.
- (3) Transportation services must be included in the member's Individual Plan (Plan) and arrangements for this service must be made through the member's case manager.
- (4) Authorization of Transportation Services is based on:
- (A) Personal Support Team (Team) consideration, per Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 340:100-5-52, of the unique needs of the person and the most cost effective type of transportation services that meets the member's need, per (d) of this Section; and
 - (B) ~~the~~The scope of transportation services as explained in this Section.
- (c) **Standards for transportation providers.** All drivers employed by contracted transportation providers must have a valid and current Oklahoma driver license, and the vehicle(s) must meet applicable local and state requirements for vehicle licensure, inspection, insurance, and capacity.
- (1) The provider must ensure that any vehicle used to transport members:
 - (A) ~~meets~~Meets the member's needs;
 - (B) ~~is~~Is maintained in a safe condition;
 - (C) ~~has~~Has a current vehicle tag; and
 - (D) ~~is~~Is operated ~~in accordance with~~per local, state, and federal law, regulation, and ordinance.
 - (2) The provider maintains liability insurance in an amount sufficient to pay for injuries or loss to persons or property occasioned by negligence or malfeasance by the agency, its agents, or employees.
 - (3) The provider ensures all members wear safety belts during transport.
 - (4) Regular vehicle maintenance and repairs are the responsibility of the transportation provider. Providers of adapted transportation services are also responsible for maintenance and repairs of modifications made to vehicles. Providers of non-adapted transportation with a vehicle modification funded through HCBS assistive technology services may have repairs authorized per OAC 317:40-5-100.
 - (5) Providers must maintain documentation, fully disclosing the extent of services furnished that specifies the:
 - (A) ~~service~~Service date;
 - (B) ~~location~~Location and odometer mileage reading at the starting point and destination; or trip mileage calculation from ~~Global Positioning System (GPS)~~global positioning system software;
 - (C) ~~name~~Name of the member transported; and
 - (D) ~~purpose~~Purpose of the trip.
 - (6) A family member, including a family member living in the same household of an adult member may establish a contract to provide transportation services to:
 - (A) ~~work~~Work or employment services;
 - (B) ~~medical~~Medical appointments; and
 - (C) ~~other~~Other activities identified in the Plan as necessary to meet the needs of the member, per OAC 340:100-3-33.1.
 - (7) Individual transportation providers must provide verification of vehicle licensure, insurance and capacity to the DDS area office before a contract may be established and updated verification of each upon expiration. Failure to provide updated verification of a

current and valid Oklahoma driver license ~~and/or~~ or vehicle licensure may result in cancellation of the contract.

(d) **Services not covered.** Services that cannot be claimed as transportation services include:

- (1) ~~services~~Services not approved by the Team;
- (2) ~~services~~Services not authorized by the ~~Plan of Care~~POC;
- (3) ~~trips~~Trips that have no specified purpose or destination;
- (4) ~~trips~~Trips for family, provider, or staff convenience;
- (5) ~~transportation~~Transportation provided by the member;
- (6) ~~transportation~~Transportation provided by the member's spouse;
- (7) ~~transportation~~Transportation provided by the biological, step or adoptive parents of the member or legal guardian, when the member is a minor;
- (8) ~~trips~~Trips when the member is not in the vehicle;
- (9) ~~transportation~~Transportation claimed for more than one (1) member per vehicle at the same time or for the same miles, except public transportation;
- (10) ~~transportation~~Transportation outside Oklahoma unless:
 - (A) ~~the~~The transportation is provided to access the nearest available medical or therapeutic service; or
 - (B) ~~advance~~Advance written approval is given by the DDS area manager or designee;
- (11) ~~services~~Services that are mandated to be provided by the public schools pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act;
- (12) ~~transportation~~Transportation that occurs during the performance of the member's paid employment, even when the employer is a contract provider; or
- (13) ~~transportation~~Transportation when a closer appropriate location was not selected.

(e) **Assessment and Team process.** At least annually, the Team addresses the member's transportation needs. The Team determines the most appropriate means of transportation based on the:

- (1) ~~present~~Present needs of the member. When addressing the possible need for adapted transportation, the Team only considers the member's needs. The needs of other individuals living in the same household are considered separately;
- (2) ~~member's~~Member's ability to access public transportation services; and
- (3) ~~availability~~Availability of other transportation resources including natural supports, and community agencies.

(f) **Adapted transportation.** Adapted transportation may be transportation provided in modified vehicles with wheelchair or stretcher-safe travel systems or lifts that meet the member's medical needs that cannot be met with the use of a standard passenger vehicle, including a van when the modification to the vehicle was not funded through HCBS assistive technology service and is owned or leased by the DDS HCBS provider agency, family of an adult member, agency companion provider or specialized foster care provider.

- (1) Adapted transportation is not authorized when a provider agency leases an adapted vehicle from a member or a member's family.
- (2) Exceptions to receive adapted transportation services for modified vehicles other than those with ~~wheelchair/stretcher~~wheelchair or stretcher safe travel systems and lifts may be authorized by the DDS programs manager for transportation services when documentation supports the need, and there is evidence the modification costs exceeded \$10,000. All other applicable requirements of OAC 317:40-5-103 must be met.

- (3) Adapted transportation services do not include vehicles with modifications including, but not limited to:
- (A) ~~restraint~~Restraint systems;
 - (B) ~~plexi-glass~~Plexi-glass windows;
 - (C) ~~barriers~~Barriers between the driver and the passengers;
 - (D) ~~turney~~Turney seats; and
 - (E) ~~seat~~Seat belt extenders.
- (4) The Team determines if the member needs adapted transportation according to:
- (A) ~~the~~The member's need for physical support when sitting;
 - (B) ~~the~~The member's need for physical assistance during transfers from one surface to another;
 - (C) ~~the~~The portability of the member's wheelchair;
 - (D) ~~associated~~Associated health problems the member may have; and
 - (E) ~~less~~Less costly alternatives to meet the need.
- (5) The transportation provider and the equipment vendor ensure that the Americans with Disabilities Act requirements are met.
- (6) The transportation provider ensures all staff assisting with transportation is trained according to the requirements specified by the Team and the equipment manufacturer.
- (g) **Authorization of transportation services.** The limitations in this subsection include the total of all transportation units on the ~~Plan of Care~~POC, not only the units authorized for the identified residential setting.
- (1) Up to 12,000 units of transportation services may be authorized in a member's ~~Plan of Care~~POC per OAC 340:100-3-33 and OAC 340:100-3-33.1.
 - (2) When there is a combination of non-adapted transportation and public transportation on a ~~Plan of Care~~POC, the total cost for transportation cannot exceed the cost for non-adapted transportation services at the current non-adapted transportation reimbursement rate multiplied by 12,000 miles for the ~~Plan of Care~~POC year.
 - (3) The DDS area manager or designee may approve:
 - (A) ~~up~~Up to 14,400 miles per ~~Plan of Care~~POC year for people who have extensive needs for transportation services; and
 - (B) ~~a~~A combination of non-adapted transportation and public transportation ~~on a Plan of Care~~, when the total cost for transportation does not exceed the cost for non-adapted transportation services at the current, non-adapted transportation reimbursement rate multiplied by 14,400 miles for the ~~Plan of Care~~POC year.
 - (4) The DDS division director or designee may approve:
 - (A) ~~transportation~~Transportation services in excess of 14,400 miles per ~~Plan of Care~~POC year in extenuating situations when person-centered planning identified specific needs that require additional transportation for a limited period; or
 - (B) ~~any~~Any combination of public transportation services with adapted or non-adapted transportation when the total cost for transportation exceeds the cost for non-adapted transportation services at the current, non-adapted transportation reimbursement rate multiplied by 14,400 miles for the POC year; or
 - (C) ~~public~~Public transportation services in excess of ~~\$5,000~~\$25,000, when it promotes the member's independence, is the most cost effective or only service option available for necessary transportation.

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 30. MEDICAL PROVIDERS-FEE FOR SERVICE**

SUBCHAPTER 5. INDIVIDUAL PROVIDERS AND SPECIALTIES

PART 6. INPATIENT PSYCHIATRIC AND SUBSTANCE USE DISORDER SERVICES

317:30-5-95.4. Individual plan of care for adults aged twenty-one (21) to sixty-four (64)

(a) ~~Before admission to a psychiatric unit of a general hospital or immediately after admission~~ Before or immediately after admission to a psychiatric unit of a general hospital or psychiatric hospital, the attending physician or staff physician must establish a written plan of care for each member aged twenty-one (21) to sixty-four (64). The plan of care must include:

- (1) Diagnoses, symptoms, complaints, and complications indicating the need for admission;
- (2) A description of the functional level of the individual;
- (3) Objectives;
- (4) Any order for medication, treatments, restorative and rehabilitative services, activities, therapies, social services, diet, and special procedures recommended for the health and safety of the member;
- (5) Plans for continuing care, including review and modification to the plan of care; and
- (6) Plans for discharge.

(b) The attending or staff physician and other treatment team personnel involved in the member's care must review each plan of care at least every seven (7) days.

(c) All plans of care and plan of care reviews must be clearly identified as such in the member's medical records. All must be signed and dated by the physician, RN, LBHP or licensure candidate, member, and other treatment team members that provide individual, family, and group therapy in the required review interval. Licensure candidate signatures must be co-signed. All plans of care and plan of care reviews must be signed by the member upon completion, except when a member is too physically ill or his or her acuity level precludes him or her from signing. If the member has designated an advocate, the advocate's signature is also required on all plans of care and plan of care reviews. If the member was too physically ill or his or her acuity level precluded him or her from signing the plan of care and/or the plan of care review at the time of completion, the member must sign the plan when his or her condition improves, but before discharge.

(d) The plan of care must document appropriate member participation in the development and implementation of the treatment plan.

317:30-5-95.41.1 Documentation of records for adults receiving inpatient services

(a) All documentation for services provided under active treatment must be documented in an individual note and reflect the content of each session provided. Services documentation must include, at a minimum, the following:

- (1) Date;
- (2) Start and stop time for each session;
- (3) Dated signature of the therapist and/or staff that provided the service;
- (4) Credentials of the therapist;
- (5) Specific problem(s) addressed (problems must be identified on the plan of care);
- (6) Method(s) used to address problems;
- (7) Progress made towards goals;
- (8) Member's response to the session or intervention; and

- (9) Any new problem(s) identified during the session.
- (b) Signatures of the member, legal guardian (if applicable), physician, LBHP, and registered nurse (RN) are required on the individual plan of care (IPC) and all plan of care reviews. The IPC and plan of care review are not valid until signed and separately dated by the member, legal guardian (if applicable), physician, RN, LBHP, and all other requirements are met. All treatment team staff providing therapy services must sign the IPC and all plan of care reviews. All plans of care and plan of care reviews must be signed by the member upon completion, except when a member is too physically ill, or the member's acuity level precludes him/her from signing. If the member is too physically ill or the member's acuity level precludes him/her from signing the plan of care and/or the plan of care review at the time of completion, the member must sign the plan when his/her condition improves but before discharge. Documentation should indicate the reason the member was unable to sign and when the next review will occur to obtain the signature.
- (c) Candidates for licensure for licensed professional counselor, social work (clinical specialty only), licensed marital and family therapist, licensed behavioral practitioner, licensed alcohol and drug counselor, and psychology (mental health specialty only) can provide assessments, psychosocial evaluations, individual therapy, family therapy, and process group therapy as long as they are involved in supervision that complies with their respective, approved licensing regulations and licensing boards. Additionally, their work must be co-signed and dated by a fully-licensed LBHP in good standing, who is a member on the treatment team. Individuals who have met their supervision requirements and are waiting to be licensed in one (1) of the areas of practice in OAC 317:30-5-240.3(a)(2) must have their work co-signed by a fully-licensed LBHP in good standing, who is a member on the treatment team. All co-signatures by fully-licensed LBHPs in good standing, must be accompanied by the date that the co-signature was made. Documentation of the service is not considered complete until it is signed and dated by a fully-licensed LBHP in good standing.

317:30-5-95.42. Service quality review (SQR) of psychiatric facilities and residential substance use disorder (SUD) facilities

- (a) The SQR conducted by the OHCA or its designated agent meets the utilization control requirements as set forth in 42 C.F.R. Part 456.
- (b) There will be an SQR of each in-state psychiatric facility and residential SUD facility that provides services to SoonerCare members which will be performed by the OHCA or its designated agent. Out-of-state facilities that provide services to SoonerCare members will be reviewed according to the procedures outlined in the Medical Necessity Manual. Ad hoc reviews may be conducted at the discretion of the agency.
- (c) The OHCA will designate the members of the SQR team. The SQR team will consist of one (1) to three (3) team members and will be comprised of LBHPs or registered nurses (RNs).
- (d) The SQR will include, but not be limited to, review of facility and clinical record documentation and may include observation and contact with members. The clinical record review will consist of records of members currently at the facility as well as records of members for which claims have been filed with OHCA for acute, PRTF, or residential SUD levels of care. The SQR includes validation of compliance with policy, which must be met for the services to be compensable.
- (e) Following the SQR, the SQR team will report its findings in writing to the facility. A copy of the final report will be sent to the facility's accrediting agency, as well as the State Survey Agency, if applicable, and any licensing agencies.

(f) Deficiencies identified during the SQR may result in full or partial recoupment of paid claims. The determination of whether to assess full or partial recoupment shall be at the discretion of the OHCA based on the severity of the deficiencies.

(g) Any days during which the facility is determined to be out of compliance with Federal Conditions of Participation, excluding residential SUD facilities, or in which a member does not meet medical necessity criteria may result in full recoupment. Full recoupment may also result from a facility's failure to provide requested documentation within the timeframes indicated on requests for such documents or if the SQR team is denied timely admittance to a facility and/or access to facility records during any on-site portion of the SQR.

(h) Items which may result in full or partial recoupment of paid claims shall include, but not be limited to:

(1) **Assessments and evaluations.** Assessments and evaluations must be completed, with dated signature(s), by qualified staff within the timeframes outlined in Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:30-5-95.6, 317:30-5-95.37, and 317:30-5-95.47(1).

(2) **Plan of care.** Plans of care must be completed, with all required dated signatures within the timeframes described in OAC 317:30-5-95.4, 317:30-5-96.33, and 317:30-5-95.47(2).

(3) **Certification of need (CON).** CONs for psychiatric facilities must be completed by the appropriate team and in the chart within the timeframes outlined in 42 C.F.R. §§ 441.152, 456.160, and 456.481.

(4) **Active treatment.** Treatment must be documented in the chart at the required frequency by appropriately qualified staff as described in OAC 317:30-5-95.5, 317:30-5-95.7, 317:30-5-95.8, 317:30-5-95.9, 317:30-5-95.10, 317:30-5-95.34, and 317:30-5-95.46(b).

(5) **Documentation of services.** Services must be documented in accordance with OAC 317:30-5-95.4, 317:30-5-95.5, 317:30-5-95.8, 317:30-5-95.10, 317:30-5-95.41, 317:30-5-95.41.1 and 317:30-5-95.47 and 42 C.F.R. §§ 412.27(c)(4) and 482.61. Documentation with missing elements or documentation that does not clearly demonstrate the therapeutic appropriateness and benefit of the service may result in recoupment.

(6) **Staffing.** Staffing must meet the ratios described in OAC 317:30-5-95.24(b)-(d) & (h) and OAC 317:30-5-95.38 per unit/per shift; and credentialing requirements as outlined in OAC 317:30-5-95.8, 317:30-5-95.9, 317:30-5-95.35, 317:30-5-95.36, 317:30-5-95.46 (b) and 42 C.F.R. §§ 412.27(d), 441.153, 441.156, and 482.62.

(7) **Restraint/seclusion.** Orders for restraint and seclusion must be completely and thoroughly documented with all required elements as described in OAC 317:30-5-95.39 and 42 C.F.R. § 482.13(e) & (f) and 42 C.F.R. Part 483. Documentation must support the appropriateness and necessity for the use of restraint/seclusion. For PRTFs, documentation must include evidence that staff and resident debriefings occurred as required by OAC 317:30-5-95.39 and 42 C.F.R. Part 483. For residential SUD facilities, restraint may only be used when less restrictive interventions, according to facility policy, have been attempted or when an immediate intervention is required to protect the resident, a staff member, or others. A written incident report must be completed within twenty-four (24) hours following each use of physical restraint.

(i) If the review findings have resulted in a recoupment, the days and/or services involved will be reported in the notification.

(j) In the event that CMS recoups from OHCA an amount that exceeds the provider's liability for findings described in this Section, the provider will not be held harmless and will be required to reimburse OHCA the total federal amount identified by CMS and/or its designated audit contractor, limited to the amount of the original paid claim less any previously recouped amounts.

(k) Penalties of non-compensable days which are the result of the facility's failure to appropriately provide and document the services described herein, or adhere to applicable accreditation, certification, and/or state licensing standards, are not compensable or billable to the member or the member's family.

(l) Facilities that are determined to owe recoupment of paid claims will have the ability to request a reconsideration of the findings. Details and instructions on how to request a reconsideration will be part of the report documentation sent to the facility.

(m) Facilities that are determined by the SQR process to be out of compliance in significant areas will be required to submit a Corrective Action Plan (CAP) detailing steps being taken to bring performance in line with requirements. Facilities that are required to submit a CAP may be further assessed through a formal, targeted post-CAP review process.

317:30-5-95.45. Residential substance use disorder (SUD) - Coverage by category

(a) **Adults.** Members age twenty-one (21) to sixty-four (64) who meet eligibility and clinical criteria may receive medically necessary residential treatment for SUD.

(1) The member must meet residential level of care as determined through completion of the designated ASAM ~~level of care placement tool~~ no more than seven (7) days prior to a SUD admission and/or extension request and as required in the Oklahoma Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services (ODMHSAS) Prior Authorization Manual.

(2) Each presenting member for SUD treatment shall be assessed, according to ASAM criteria, which includes a list of symptoms for all six (6) dimensions and each level of care to determine a clinically appropriate placement in the least restrictive level of care.

(b) **Children.** ~~Coverage for children is the same as adults.~~ Children are covered according to their age group as described in OAC 317:30-5-95.46 and 317:30-5-95.47 and as specified by ODMHSAS.

(c) **Individuals with dependent children.** Coverage for individuals with dependent children is the same as adults and/or children.

317:30-5-95.46. Residential substance use disorder (SUD) - Covered services and medical necessity criteria

(a) In order for the services described in this Section to be covered, individuals shall:

(1) Be diagnosed with an SUD as described in the most recent edition of the DSM; and

(2) Meet residential level of care ~~in accordance with the American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria,~~ as determined by the ASAM level of care determination through completion of the designated ASAM placement tool as designated required by the Oklahoma Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services (ODMHSAS).

(3) For additional medical necessity criteria, refer to the ODMHSAS Prior Authorization Manual available at <http://www.odmhsas.org/arc.htm>.

(b) Coverage includes the following services:

(1) **Clinically managed low intensity residential services (ASAM Level 3.1).**

(A) **Halfway house services B Individuals age thirteen (13) to seventeen (17).**

(i) **Service description.** This service places a major emphasis on continuing SUD care and community ancillary services in an environment supporting continued abstinence. The facility shall have scheduled services to assess and address the individual needs of each member. Services include individual, family, and/or group therapy, individual and/or group rehabilitation services, care management, crisis intervention, and for members age sixteen (16) and older, community recovery

support services. Group therapy is limited to a total of six (6) individuals. Rehabilitation services shall not exceed a staffing ratio of eight (8) individuals to one (1) qualified provider.

(ii) **Staffing requirements.** A licensed physician must be available by telephone twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. A minimum of two (2) direct care and/or clinical staff must be on-site and awake twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. Staffing ratios shall not exceed those specified in OAC 340:110-3-153.2. All staff who provide treatment services shall meet qualifications in accordance with the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan and OAC 450:18.

(iii) **Treatment hours.** A minimum of six (6) treatment hours per week shall be provided. A week begins on Sunday and ends on Saturday.

(B) Halfway house services B Individuals age eighteen (18) to sixty-four (64).

(i) **Service description.** This service places a major emphasis on continuing SUD care and community ancillary services in an environment supporting continued abstinence. The facility shall have scheduled services to assess and address the individual needs of each member. Services include individual, family, and/or group therapy, individual and/or group rehabilitation services, care management, crisis intervention, and community recovery support services. Group therapy is limited to a total of eight (8) individuals. Rehabilitation services shall not exceed a staffing ratio of fourteen (14) individuals to one (1) qualified provider.

(ii) **Staffing requirements.** A licensed physician must be available by telephone twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. Additional clinical and/or direct care staff must be on-site and awake twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. All staff who provide treatment services shall meet qualifications in accordance with the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan and OAC 450:18.

(iii) **Treatment hours.** A minimum of six (6) treatment hours per week shall be provided. A week begins on Sunday and ends on Saturday.

(C) Halfway house services B Individuals with minor dependent children or women who are pregnant.

(i) **Service description.** This service provides a planned regimen of twenty-four (24) hours, seven (7) days a week, supervised living arrangements, to include professionally directed evaluation, care, and treatment. The facility shall have scheduled services to assess and address the individual needs of each member. Services include individual, family, and/or group therapy, individual and/or group rehabilitation services, care management, crisis intervention, and community recovery support services. Group therapy is limited to a total of eight (8) individuals for adults a total of six (6) individuals for children. Rehabilitation services shall not exceed a staffing ratio of fourteen (14) individuals to one (1) qualified provider for adults and eight (8) individuals to one (1) qualified provider for children.

(ii) **Staffing requirements.** A licensed physician must be available by telephone twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. Additional clinical and/or direct care staff must be on-site twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. All staff who provide treatment services shall meet qualifications in accordance with the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan and OAC 450:18.

(iii) **Treatment services for dependent children.** Services are available to the child when provided to address the impacts related to the parent's addiction, including, but not limited to, individual and family therapy. Compliance with separate provider

qualifications, in accordance with OAC 317:30-5-240.2, is required for other treatment services provided to dependent children by the residential SUD provider. Provision of such treatment services shall be provided in accordance with OAC 317:30-5, Part 21.

(iv) **Treatment hours.** A minimum of six (6) treatment hours per week shall be provided to the individual with minor dependent children and women who are pregnant. A week begins on Sunday and ends on Saturday. Dependent children shall be provided treatment services in accordance with the child's service plan if services are provided by the residential SUD provider.

(2) Clinically managed, population specific, high intensity residential services (ASAM Level 3.3). This service includes residential treatment for adults with co-occurring disorders.

(A) **Service description.** This service provides a planned regimen of twenty-four (24) hours, seven / (7) days a week, structured evaluation, care, and treatment. Daily treatment service shall be provided to assess and address individual needs of the member. Services include individual, family, and group therapy, individual and/or group rehabilitation services, crisis intervention, care management, and community recovery support services. Psychiatric and/or psychological and/or mental health evaluations shall be completed on all members. In addition to the requirements in OAC 317:30-5-95.47, the service plan shall address the member's mental health needs and medications. The member's medications shall be re-assessed a minimum of once every thirty (30) days and monitoring of medications shall be provided. Group therapy is limited to a total of eight (8) individuals. Rehabilitation services shall not exceed a staffing ratio of fourteen (14) individuals to one (1) qualified provider. Treatment services must address both mental health and SUD needs as identified in the service plan.

(B) **Staffing requirements.** A licensed psychiatrist must be available by telephone twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. Additional staff must be on-site twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. All staff who provide treatment services shall meet qualifications in accordance with the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan and OAC 450:18.

(C) **Treatment hours.** A weekly minimum of twenty-four (24) service hours shall be provided, which shall include a minimum of one (1) hour of individual, group, or family therapy and a minimum of seven (7) hours of individual or group rehabilitation services. A week begins on Sunday and ends on Saturday. A maximum of seven (7) hours per week of community (peer) recovery support services may count toward the weekly required treatment hours.

(3) Clinically managed medium and high intensity (ASAM Level 3.5).

(A) Residential treatment, medium intensity - individuals age thirteen (13) to seventeen (17).

(i) **Service description.** This service provides a planned regimen of twenty-four (24) hours / seven (7) day a week, professionally directed evaluation, care, and treatment. A multidisciplinary team approach shall be utilized in providing daily treatment services to assess and address the individual needs of each member, including individual, family, and/or group therapy, individual and/or group rehabilitation services, care management, crisis intervention, and, for members age sixteen (16) or older, community recovery support services. Group therapy is limited to a total of six (6) individuals. Rehabilitation services shall not exceed a staffing ratio of eight (8) individuals to one (1) qualified provider.

(ii) **Staffing requirements.** A licensed physician must be available by telephone twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. A minimum of two (2) direct care and/or clinical staff must be on-site and awake twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. Staffing ratios shall not exceed those specified in OAC 340:110-3-153.2. All staff who provide treatment services shall meet qualifications in accordance with the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan and OAC 450:18.

(iii) **Treatment hours.** A weekly minimum of fifteen (15) treatment hours for members attending academic training and twenty-four (24) treatment hours for members not attending academic training shall be provided. Weekly treatment hours shall include a minimum of one (1) hour of individual, family and/or group therapy and a minimum of seven (7) hours of individual or group rehabilitation services. A maximum of seven (7) hours per week of community (peer) recovery support services may count toward the weekly required treatment hours. A week begins on Sunday and ends on Saturday.

(B) Residential treatment, high intensity B adults.

(i) **Service description.** This service provides a planned regimen of twenty-four (24) hours / seven (7) day a week, professionally directed evaluation, care, and treatment. Daily treatment service shall be provided to assess and address individual needs of each member. Services include individual, family, and/or group therapy, individual and/or group rehabilitation services, crisis intervention, care management, and community recovery support services. Group therapy is limited to a total of eight (8) individuals. Rehabilitation services shall not exceed a staffing ratio of fourteen (14) individuals to one (1) qualified provider.

(ii) **Staffing requirements.** A licensed physician must be available by telephone twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. Additional clinical and/or direct care staff must be on-site twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. All staff who provide treatment services shall meet qualifications in accordance with the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan and OAC 450:18.

(iii) **Treatment hours.** A weekly minimum of twenty-four (24) service hours shall be provided, which shall include a minimum of one (1) hour of individual, family, and/or group therapy and a minimum of seven (7) hours of individual or group rehabilitation services. A maximum of seven (7) hours per week of community (peer) recovery support services may count toward the weekly required treatment hours. A week begins on Sunday and ends on Saturday.

(C) Intensive residential treatment, high intensity B adults.

(i) **Service description.** This service provides a planned regimen of twenty-four (24) hours / seven (7) day a week, professionally directed evaluation, care, and treatment. Daily treatment service shall be provided to assess and address individual needs of each member. Services include individual, family, and/or group therapy, individual and/or group rehabilitation services, crisis intervention, care management, and community recovery support services. Group therapy is limited to a total of eight (8) individuals. Rehabilitation services shall not exceed a staffing ratio of fourteen (14) individuals to one (1) qualified provider.

(ii) **Staffing requirements.** A licensed psychiatrist must be available by telephone twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. Additional clinical and/or direct care staff must be on-site twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. All staff who provide treatment services shall meet qualifications in accordance with the

Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan and OAC 450:18.

(iii) **Treatment hours.** A weekly minimum of thirty-seven (37) service hours shall be provided, which shall include a minimum of four (4) hours of individual, family, and/or group therapy and a minimum of seven (7) hours of individual or group rehabilitation services. A maximum of eleven (11) hours per week of community (peer) recovery support services may count toward the weekly required treatment hours. A week begins on Sunday and ends on Saturday.

(D) Intensive residential treatment, high intensity B individuals age thirteen (13) to seventeen (17).

(i) **Service description.** This service provides a planned regimen of twenty-four (24) hours / seven (7) day a week, professionally directed evaluation, care, and treatment. Daily treatment service shall be provided to assess and address individual needs of each member. Services include individual, family, and/or therapy, individual and/or group rehabilitation services, crisis intervention, care management, and, for members age sixteen (16) or older, community recovery support services. Group therapy is limited to a total of six (6) individuals. Rehabilitation services shall not exceed a staffing ratio of eight (8) individuals to one (1) qualified provider.

(ii) **Staffing requirements.** A licensed psychiatrist must be available by telephone twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. Additional clinical and/or direct care staff must be on-site twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. Staffing ratios shall not exceed those specified in OAC 340:110-3-153.2. All staff who provide treatment services shall meet qualifications in accordance with the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan and OAC 450:18.

(iii) **Treatment hours.** A weekly minimum of thirty-seven (37) service hours shall be provided, which shall include a minimum of four (4) hours of individual, family, or group therapy and a minimum of seven (7) hours of individual or group rehabilitation services. A maximum of eleven (11) hours per week of community (peer) recovery support services may count toward the weekly required treatment hours. A week begins on Sunday and ends on Saturday.

(E) Residential treatment for individuals with minor dependent children and women who are pregnant.

(i) **Service description.** This service provides a planned regimen of twenty-four (24) hours / seven (7) day a week, professionally directed evaluation, care, and treatment. The facility shall provide SUD treatment services to assess and address individual needs of each member. Services include individual, family, and/or group therapy, individual and/or group rehabilitation services, crisis intervention, care management, and community recovery support services. Group therapy is limited to a total of eight (8) individuals for adults a total of six (6) individuals for children. Rehabilitation services shall not exceed a staffing ratio of fourteen (14) individuals to one (1) qualified provider for adults and eight (8) individuals to one (1) qualified provider for children.

(ii) **Staffing requirements.** A licensed physician must be available by telephone twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. Additional staff must be on-site twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. All staff who provide treatment services shall meet qualifications in accordance with the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan and OAC 450:18.

(iii) **Treatment services for dependent children.** Services are available to the child

when provided to address the impacts related to the parent's addiction, including but not limited to individual and family therapy. Compliance with separate provider qualifications, in accordance with OAC 317:30-5-240.2, is required for other treatment services provided to dependent children by the residential SUD provider. Provision of such treatment services shall be provided in accordance with OAC 317:30-5, Part 21.

(iv) **Treatment hours.** A minimum of twenty-four (24) service hours shall be provided to the individual with minor dependent children and women who are pregnant. Treatment hours shall include a minimum of one (1) hour of individual, family, and/or group therapy and a minimum of seven (7) hours of individual or group rehabilitation services. A maximum of seven (7) hours per week of community (peer) recovery support services may count toward the weekly required treatment hours. A week begins on Sunday and ends on Saturday. Dependent children shall be provided treatment services in accordance with the child's service plan if services are provided by the residential SUD provider.

(F) Intensive residential treatment for individuals with dependent children and women who are pregnant.

(i) **Service description.** This service provides a planned regimen of twenty-four (24) hours / seven (7) day a week, professionally directed evaluation, care, and treatment. The facility shall provide SUD treatment services to assess and address individual needs of each member. Services include individual, family, and/or group therapy, individual and/or group rehabilitation services, crisis intervention, care management, and community recovery support services. Group therapy is limited to a total of eight (8) individuals for adults a total of six (6) individuals for children. Rehabilitation services shall not exceed a staffing ratio of fourteen (14) individuals to one (1) qualified provider for adults and eight (8) individuals to one (1) qualified provider for children.

(ii) **Staffing requirements.** A licensed psychiatrist must be available by telephone twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. Additional clinical and/or direct care staff must be on-site twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. All staff who provide treatment services shall meet qualifications in accordance with the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan and OAC 450:18.

(iii) **Treatment services for dependent children.** Services are available to the child when provided to address the impacts related to the parent's addiction, including but not limited to individual and family therapy. Compliance with separate provider qualifications, in accordance with OAC 317:30-5-240.2, is required for other treatment services provided to dependent children by the residential SUD provider. Provision of such treatment services shall be provided in accordance with OAC 317:30-5, Part 21.

(iv) **Treatment hours.** A weekly minimum of thirty-five (35) service hours shall be provided to the individual with minor dependent children and women who are pregnant. Treatment hours shall include a minimum of four (4) hours of individual, family, and/or group therapy and a minimum of seven (7) hours of individual and/or group rehabilitation services. A maximum of eleven (11) hours per week of community (peer) recovery support services may count toward the weekly required treatment hours. A week begins on Sunday and ends on Saturday. Dependent children shall be provided treatment services in accordance with the child's service

plan if services are provided by the residential SUD provider.

(4) Medically monitored high intensity withdrawal management (ASAM Level 3.7).

(A) Medically supervised withdrawal management B individuals age thirteen (13) to seventeen (17).

(i) **Service description and requirements.** This service is provided under the direction of a licensed physician and a licensed registered nurse supervisor, for members who are withdrawing or are intoxicated from alcohol or other drugs. Members shall be assessed as currently experiencing no apparent medical or neurological symptoms that would require hospitalization. Daily SUD withdrawal management treatment services shall be provided, which include, but are not limited to, taking of vital signs (temperature, pulse, respiration rate, blood pressure), documentation of fluid and food intake a minimum of one (1) time every six (6) hours or more often as indicated by the member's condition. Medications shall be prescribed if needed during withdrawal management. The medications are to include those needed for physical health issues and mental impairment if acquired during the withdrawal process.

(ii) **Staffing requirements.** A licensed physician providing supervision of withdrawal management must be available on site or on call twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. A licensed nurse must provide twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week monitoring and statutorily approved personnel administer medication. A minimum of two (2) medical and/or clinical/direct care staff must be on-site and awake twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. Staffing ratios shall not exceed those specified in OAC 340:110-3-153.2.

(B) Medically supervised withdrawal management B adults.

(i) **Service description and requirements.** This service is provided under the direction of a licensed physician and a licensed registered nurse supervisor, for members who are withdrawing or are intoxicated from alcohol or other drugs. Members shall be assessed as currently experiencing no apparent medical or neurological symptoms that would require hospitalization. Daily SUD withdrawal management treatment services shall be provided, which include, but are not limited to, taking of vital signs (temperature, pulse, respiration rate, blood pressure), documentation of fluid and food intake a minimum of one (1) time every six (6) hours or more often as indicated by the member's condition. Medications prescribed if needed during withdrawal management. The medications are to include those needed for physical health issues and mental impairment if acquired during the withdrawal process.

(ii) **Staffing requirements.** A licensed physician providing supervision of withdrawal management must be available on site or on call twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. A licensed nurse must provide twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week monitoring and statutorily approved personnel administer medication.

317:30-5-95.47. Residential substance use disorder (SUD) - Individualized service plan requirements

All SUD services provided in residential treatment facilities are rendered as a result of an individual assessment of the member's needs and documented in the service plan.

(1) **Assessment.** A biopsychosocial assessment shall be completed for members receiving

ASAM Level 3.1, 3.3, or 3.5 services, including dependent children receiving services from the residential SUD provider, to gather sufficient information to assist the member in developing an individualized service plan. The assessment must also list a diagnosis that corresponds to current Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders (DSM) standards and the member's past and current psychiatric medications. The assessment must be completed by an LBHP or licensure candidate. Licensure candidate signatures must be co-signed by a fully-licensed LBHP in good standing. Assessments for ASAM Level 3.7 services shall be completed in accordance with (E) below.

(A) **Assessments for adolescents.** A biopsychosocial assessment using the Teen Addiction Severity Index (T-ASI) shall be completed. A physical examination shall be conducted by a licensed physician to include, at a minimum, a physical assessment, health history, immunization status, and evaluation of motor development and function, speech, hearing, visual, and language functioning.

(B) **Assessments for adults.** A biopsychosocial assessment using the Addiction Severity Index (ASI) shall be completed.

(C) **Assessments for dependent children.** ~~In accordance with OAC 450:18-7-25, assessments~~ Assessment of children (including infants) accompanying their parent into treatment and receiving services from the residential SUD provider shall include the following items:

- (i) Parent-child relationship;
- (ii) Physical and psychological development;
- (iii) Educational needs;
- (iv) Parent related issues; and
- (v) Family issues related to the child.

(D) **Assessments for parents/pregnant women.** ~~In accordance with OAC 450:18-7-25, assessments~~ Assessment of the parent and/or pregnant women bringing their children into treatment shall include the following items:

- (i) Parenting skills;
- (ii) Knowledge of age appropriate behaviors;
- (iii) Parental coping skills;
- (iv) Personal issues related to parenting; and
- (v) Family issues as related to the child.

(E) **Assessments for medically supervised withdrawal management.** In accordance with OAC 450:18-13-61, a medical assessment for the appropriateness of placement shall be completed and documented by a licensed physician during the admission process. The assessment shall provide a diagnosis that corresponds to current DSM standards.

(F) **Assessment timeframes.** Biopsychosocial assessments shall be completed within two (2) days of admission or during the admission process for medically supervised withdrawal management.

(2) **Service plan.** Pursuant to OAC 450:18-7-81, a service plan shall be completed for each member receiving ASAM Level 3.1, 3.3, or 3.5 services, including dependent children receiving services from the residential SUD provider. The service plan is performed with the active participation of the member and a support person or advocate, if requested by the member. In the case of children under the age of sixteen (16), it is performed with the participation of the parent or guardian, if allowed by law, and the child as age and developmentally appropriate. Service plans for ASAM Level 3.7 services shall be developed in accordance with (D) below.

(A) **Service plan development.** The service plan shall:

- (i) Be completed by an LBHP or licensure candidate. Licensure candidate signatures must be co-signed by a fully-licensed LBHP in good standing.
- (ii) Provide the formation of measurable service objectives and reflect ongoing changes in goals and objectives based upon member's progress or preference or the identification of new needs, challenges, and problems.
- (iii) Be developed after and based on information obtained in the assessment and includes the evaluation of the assessment information by the clinician and the member.
- (iv) Have an overall general focus on recovery which, for adults, may include goals like employment, independent living, volunteer work, or training, and for children, may include areas like school and educational concerns and assisting the family in caring for the child in the least restrictive level of care.

(B) **Service plan content.** Service plans must include dated signatures for the member ~~[if over fourteen (14)], the parent/guardian [if under sixteen (16) and allowed by law], and the primary service practitioner.[if age fourteen (14) or older], the parent/guardian (if required by law), and the LBHP or licensure candidate. Licensure candidate signatures must be co-signed by a fully-licensed LBHP in good standing. If the member is eligible to self-consent to treatment pursuant to state law, a parent/guardian signature is not required.~~ Signatures must be obtained after the service plan is completed. The contents of a service plan shall address the following:

- (i) Member strengths, needs, abilities, and preferences;
- (ii) Identified presenting challenges, needs, and diagnosis;
- (iii) Goals for treatment with specific, measurable, attainable, realistic, and time-limited objectives;
- (iv) Type and frequency of services to be provided;
- (v) Description of member's involvement in, and response to, the service plan;
- (vi) The service provider who will be rendering the services identified in the service plan; and
- (vii) Discharge criteria that are individualized for each member and beyond that which may be stated in the ASAM criteria.

(C) **Service plan updates.** Service plan updates shall occur a minimum of once every thirty (30) days while services are provided. Service plan updates must include dated signatures for the member ~~[if over fourteen (14)], the parent/guardian [if under sixteen (16) and allowed by law], and the LBHP and licensure candidate. Licensure candidate signatures must be co-signed by a fully-licensed LBHP in good standing.[if age fourteen (14) or older], the parent/guardian (if required by law), and the LBHP or licensure candidate. Licensure candidate signatures must be co-signed by a fully-licensed LBHP in good standing. If the member is eligible to self-consent to treatment pursuant to state law, a parent/guardian signature is not required.~~ Signatures must be obtained after the service plan is completed. Service plan updates shall address the following:

- (i) Progress on previous service plan goals and/or objectives;
- (ii) A statement documenting a review of the current service plan and an explanation if no changes are to be made to the service plan;
- (iii) Change in goals and/or objectives based upon member's progress or identification of new needs and challenges;
- (iv) Change in frequency and/or type of services provided;

- (v) Change in staff who will be responsible for providing services on the plan; and
- (vi) Change in discharge criteria.

(D) **Service plans for medically supervised withdrawal management.** Pursuant to OAC 450:18-7-84, a service plan shall be completed for each member receiving ASAM Level 3.7 services that addresses the medical stabilization treatment and services needs of the member. Service plans shall be completed by a licensed physician or licensed registered nursing staff and must include a dated signature of the member [if age fourteen (14) or older], the parent/guardian (if required by law), and the primary service practitioner. The service plan shall provide a diagnosis that corresponds to current DSM standards.

(E) **Service plan timeframes.** Service plans shall be completed within four (4) days of admission, except for service plans for individuals receiving medically supervised withdrawal management services, which must be completed within three (3) hours of admission.

(3) **Progress notes.** Progress notes shall chronologically describe the services provided, the member's response to the services provided, and the member's progress in treatment.

(A) **Content.** Progress notes shall address the following:

- (i) Date;
- (ii) Member's name;
- (iii) Start and stop time for each timed treatment session or service;
- (iv) ~~Signature~~ Dated signature of the service provider;
- (v) Credentials of the service provider;
- (vi) Specific service plan needs, goals and/or objectives addressed;
- (vii) Services provided to address needs, goals, and/or objectives;
- (vii) Progress or barriers to progress made in treatment as it relates to the goals and/or objectives;
- (ix) Member (and family, when applicable) response to the session or service provided; and
- (x) Any new needs, goals and/or objectives identified during the session or service.

(B) **Frequency.** Progress notes shall be completed in accordance with the following timeframes:

- (i) Progress notes for therapy, crisis intervention and care management must be documented in an individual note and reflect the content of each session provided.
- (ii) Documentation for rehabilitation and community recovery support services must include daily member sign-in/sign-out record of member attendance (including date, time, type of service and service focus), and a daily progress note or a summary progress note weekly.

(4) **Transition/discharge planning.** All facilities shall assess each member for appropriateness of discharge from a treatment program. Each member shall be assessed using the ASAM criteria placement tool to determine a clinically appropriate ~~placement~~ setting in the least restrictive level of care.

(A) **Transition/discharge plans.** Transition/discharge plans shall be developed with the knowledge and cooperation of the member. The transition/discharge plan shall be included in the discharge summary. The discharge plan is to include, at a minimum, recommendations for continued treatment services and other appropriate community resources. Appointments for outpatient therapy and other services, as applicable, should be scheduled prior to discharge from residential care. Development of the transition/discharge plan shall begin no later than two (2) weeks after admission.

(B) **Discharge summary.** The discharge summary shall document the member's progress made in treatment and response to services rendered. A completed discharge summary shall be entered in each member's record within fifteen (15) days of the member completing, transferring, or discontinuing services. The summary must be signed and dated by the staff member completing the summary.

317:30-5-95.51. Residential substance use disorder (SUD) – Reporting of suspected child abuse/neglect

Instances of child abuse and/or neglect are to be reported in accordance with state law, including, but not limited to, Section (§) 1-2-101 of Title 10A of the Oklahoma Statutes and 43A O.S. § 10-104. Any person suspecting child abuse or neglect shall immediately report it to the Oklahoma Department of Human Services (OKDHS) hotline, at 1-800-522-3511; any person suspecting abuse, neglect, or exploitation of a vulnerable adult shall immediately report it to the local DHS County Office, municipal or county law enforcement authorities, or, if the report occurs after normal business hours, the OKDHS hotline. Health care professionals who are requested to report incidents of domestic abuse by adult victims with legal capacity shall promptly make a report to the nearest law enforcement agency, per 22 O.S. § 58.

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 30. MEDICAL PROVIDERS-FEE FOR SERVICE**

SUBCHAPTER 5. INDIVIDUAL PROVIDERS AND SPECIALTIES

PART 21. OUTPATIENT BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AGENCY SERVICES

317:30-5-241.4 Crisis Intervention

(a) Onsite and Mobile Crisis Intervention Services (CIS).

(1) **Definition.** ~~Crisis Intervention Services~~ CIS are face-to-face services for the purpose of responding to acute behavioral or emotional dysfunction as evidenced by psychotic, suicidal, homicidal severe psychiatric distress, and/or danger of AOD relapse. The crisis situation including the symptoms exhibited and the resulting intervention or recommendations must be clearly documented.

(A) Onsite CIS is the provision of CIS to the member at the treatment facility, either in-person or via telehealth.

(B) Mobile CIS is the provision of CIS by at least one (1) professional at the location of a member who is not at the treatment facility (e.g., services provided at the member's home).

(2) **Limitations.** ~~Crisis Intervention Services~~ CIS are not compensable for SoonerCare members who reside in ICF/IID facilities, or who receive RBMS in a group home or ~~Therapeutic Foster Home~~ therapeutic foster home. CIS is also not compensable for members who experience acute behavioral or emotional dysfunction while in attendance for other behavioral health services, unless there is a documented attempt of placement in a higher level of care. The maximum is eight (8) units per month; established mobile crisis response teams can bill a maximum of four (4) hours per month, and ten (10) hours each ~~42~~ twelve (12) months per member.

(3) **Qualified professionals.** Services must be provided by an LBHP or ~~Licensure Candidate~~ licensure candidate.

(b) Facility Based Crisis Stabilization (FBCS). FBCS services are emergency psychiatric and substance abuse services aimed at resolving crisis situations. The services provided are emergency stabilization, which includes a protected environment, chemotherapy, detoxification, individual and group treatment, and medical assessment.

(1) **Qualified practitioners.** FBCS services are provided under the supervision of a physician aided by a licensed nurse, and also include LBHPs and ~~Licensure Candidates~~ licensure candidates for the provision of group and individual treatments. A physician must be available. This service is limited to providers who contract with or are operated by the ODMHSAS to provide this service within the overall behavioral health service delivery system.

(2) **Limitations.** The unit of service is per hour. Providers of this service must meet the requirements delineated in the OAC 450:23. Documentation of records must comply with OAC 317:30-5-248.

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 30. MEDICAL PROVIDERS-FEE FOR SERVICE**

SUBCHAPTER 5. INDIVIDUAL PROVIDERS AND SPECIALTIES

PART 2. PHYSICIAN ASSISTANTS

317:30-5-30. Eligible providers

~~The Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) recognizes medical services rendered by a Physician Assistant in accordance with the rules and regulations covering the Authority's medical care program.~~

~~(1) The application for a Medicaid Provider agreement must be accompanied by copies of the physician assistant's current written authorization to practice from the Oklahoma State Board of Medical Licensure and Supervision. The Application to Practice must be jointly filed by the supervising physician and physician assistant and include a description of the physician's practice, methods of supervision and utilization of the physician assistant, and the name of alternate supervising physician(s) who will supervise the physician assistant in the absence of the primary supervising physician. At any time that the supervising physician(s) change, an updated copy of the certification must be submitted to OHCA, Provider Enrollment.~~

~~(2) All services provided by a Physician Assistant must be within the current practice guidelines for the State of Oklahoma.~~

~~Eligible providers shall:~~

~~(1) Have and maintain current license by the Oklahoma State Board of Medical Licensure and Supervision as specified in Section 519.6 of Title 59 of the Oklahoma Statutes;~~

~~(2) Have a current contract with the Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA); and~~

~~(3) Have a practice agreement with a SoonerCare contracted delegating physician(s) (who is licensed and in good standing with the State Board of Medical Licensure and Supervision or the State Board of Osteopathic Examiners) concerning the scope of practice of the physician assistant (PA). If at any time the delegating physician(s) change, an updated copy of the practice agreement must be submitted within ten (10) business days to OHCA, Provider Enrollment.~~

317:30-5-31. ~~General coverage by category~~ Coverage

~~Physician Assistant services are subject to all rules and guidelines which apply to Physician services as specified at OAC 317:30-5, Part 1, Physicians.~~

~~The OHCA covers medical services (as described in OAC 317:30-5, Part 1, Physicians) by a physician assistant (PA) when rendered within the licensure and scope of practice of the PA. Services must be in compliance with the state-specific statutes including Title 59 O.S. § 519.2, rules and regulations of the applicable practice act.~~

317:30-5-32. Utilization Reimbursement

~~Physician Assistant services are included in the Medicaid program in the same way as Physician services and are included in all utilization parameters (refer to OAC 317:30-5, Part 1). An office, nursing home, or hospital visit is considered as one of the allowed visits for a given period. Payment is not made to the Physician Assistant and supervising physician for the same service on the same day.~~

~~(a) Payment for services within the physician assistant's scope of practice shall be made when~~

ordered or performed by the eligible physician assistant if the same service would have been covered if ordered or performed by a physician.

(b) Payment is not made to physician assistant when a service(s) is (are) performed simultaneously with the delegating physician and billed by the physician on the same day.

(c) Payment is made per the methodology established in the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan.

317:30-5-33. Post payment utilization review [Revoked]

~~All inpatient services are subject to post payment utilization review by the OHCA or its designated agent. Post payment utilization reviews are subject to all rules and guidelines which apply to Physician services as specified at OAC 317:30-5, Part 1, Physicians.~~

DRAFT

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 30. MEDICAL PROVIDERS-FEE FOR SERVICE**

SUBCHAPTER 5. INDIVIDUAL PROVIDERS AND SPECIALTIES

PART 21. OUTPATIENT BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AGENCY SERVICES

317:30-5-241.7. Medication-assisted treatment (MAT) services for eligible individuals with opioid use disorder (OUD)

(a) **Definitions.** The following words and terms, when used in this section, shall have the following meaning, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

- (1) **"Medication-assisted treatment (MAT)"** means an evidence-based practice approved by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) to treat opioid use disorder, including methadone and all biological products licensed under federal law for such purpose. MAT also includes the provision of counseling and behavioral therapy.
- (2) **"Office-based opioid treatment (OBOT)"** means a fully contracted SoonerCare provider that renders MAT services in OBOT settings. OBOT providers must have capacity to provide all drugs approved by the FDA for the treatment of opioid use disorder, directly or by referral, including for maintenance, detoxification, overdose reversal, and relapse prevention, and appropriate counseling and other appropriate ancillary services.
- (3) **"Opioid treatment program (OTP)"** means a program or provider:
 - (A) Registered under federal law;
 - (B) Certified by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA);
 - (C) Certified by ODMHSAS, unless deemed an exempted entity as defined by federal law;
 - (D) Registered by the Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA);
 - (E) Registered by the Oklahoma Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs (OBNDD); and
 - (F) Engaged in opioid treatment of individuals by use of an opioid agonist treatment medication, including methadone.
- (4) **"Opioid use disorder (OUD)"** means a cluster of cognitive, behavioral, and physiological symptoms in which the individual continues use of opioids despite significant opioid-induced problems.
- (5) **"Phase I"** means ~~a minimum ninety (90) day period in which the member attends the opioid treatment program for observation of medication-assisted treatment daily or at least six (6) days a week~~the first ninety (90) days of treatment.
- (6) **"Phase II"** means the ~~phase of treatment for members who have been admitted for more than ninety (90) days and who have successfully completed Phase I~~second ninety (90) days of treatment.
- (7) **"Phase III"** means the ~~phase of treatment for members who have been admitted for more than six (6) months and who have successfully completed Phase II~~third ninety (90) days of treatment.
- (8) **"Phase IV"** means the ~~phase of treatment for members who have been admitted for more than nine (9) months and who have successfully completed Phase III~~last ninety (90) days of the first year of treatment.

(9) "**Phase V**" means the phase of treatment for members who have been ~~admitted~~ receiving continuous treatment for more than one (1) year.

(10) "**Phase VI**" means the phase of treatment for members who ~~voluntarily seek medically supervised withdrawal and abstinence from all drugs, including methadone as prescribed. A member may enter this phase at any time in the treatment and rehabilitation process~~ have been receiving continuous treatment for more than two (2) years.

(b) **Coverage.** The SoonerCare program provides coverage of medically necessary MAT services in OTPs, including but not limited to, methadone treatment, to eligible individuals with OUD. An OTP must have the capacity to provide the full range of services included in the definition of MAT and must document both medication dosing and supporting behavioral health services, including but not limited to, individual, family and group therapy and rehabilitation services. MAT services and/or medications may also be provided in OBOT settings per OAC 317:30-5-9(b)~~(17)~~(16).

(c) **OTP requirements.** Every OTP provider shall:

- (1) Have a current contract with the OHCA as an OTP provider;
- (2) Hold a certification as an OTP from ODMHSAS, unless deemed an exempted entity as defined by federal law;
- (3) Hold a certification from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA);
- (4) Be appropriately accredited by a SAMHSA-approved accreditation organization;
- (5) Be registered with the DEA and the OBNDD; and
- (6) Meet all state and federal opioid treatment standards, including all requirements within OAC 450:70.

(d) **Individual OTP providers.** OTP providers include a:

- (1) MAT provider who is a physician, physician's assistant (PA), or advanced practice registered nurse (APRN) who may prescribe, dispense, and administer medications in accordance with state and federal law and the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan.
- (2) OTP behavioral health services practitioner who is a practitioner that meets the qualifications in OAC 317:30-5-240.3, except for family support and training providers, qualified behavioral therapy aide providers, multi-systemic therapy providers, and case manager I providers, for the provision of outpatient behavioral health services.

(e) **Intake and assessment.** OTPs shall conduct intake and assessment procedures in accordance with OAC 450:70-3-5 through OAC 450:70-3-7.

(f) **Service phases.** In accordance with OAC 450:70-6-17.2 through OAC 450:70-6-17.8, the OTP shall have structured phases of treatment and rehabilitation to support member progress and to establish requirements regarding member attendance and service participation. The OTP shall utilize ASAM criteria to determine the appropriate level of care during each phase of treatment. Treatment requirements for each phase shall include, but not limited to, the following:

- (1) During phase I, the member shall participate in a minimum of four (4) treatment sessions per month, ~~including, but not exclusive to,~~ Available services shall include, but not be limited to, therapy, rehabilitation, case management, and peer recovery support services.
- (2) During phase II, the member shall participate in at least two (2) treatment sessions per month ~~during the first ninety (90) days, including, but not exclusive to,~~ Available services shall include, but not be limited to, therapy, rehabilitation, case management, and peer recovery support services. ~~After the initial ninety (90) days in Phase II, the member shall participate in at least one (1) treatment session per month.~~

(3) During phase III, phase IV and phase V, the member shall participate in at least one (1) treatment session per month, ~~including, but not exclusive to,~~ Available services shall include, but not be limited to, therapy, rehabilitation, case management, and peer recovery support services.

(4) During phase VI, the LBHP, licensure candidate or certified alcohol and drug counselor (CADC) determines the frequency of therapy or rehabilitation service sessions with input from the member.

(5) If an OTP is providing MAT medications to members receiving residential substance use disorder services, the required minimum services for the OTP may be delivered by the residential substance use disorder provider. The OTP provider shall document the provision of these services and the provider delivering such services in the member's service plan.

(g) **Service plans.** In accordance with OAC 450:70-3-8, a service plan shall be completed for each member upon completion of the admission evaluation. The service plan shall be based on the patient's presenting problems or diagnosis, intake assessment, biopsychosocial assessment, and expectations of their recovery.

(1) **Service plan development.** Service plans shall be completed by an LBHP or licensure candidate. ~~Service plans completed by a licensure candidate must be co-signed and dated by a fully-licensed LBHP. Service plans, including updates, must include dated signatures of the person served [if age fourteen (14) or older], the parent/guardian (if required by law), and the LBHP or licensure candidate. If a minor is eligible to self-consent to treatment pursuant to state law, a parent/guardian signature is not required. Service plans completed by a licensure candidate must be co-signed and dated by a fully-licensed LBHP. Signatures must be obtained after the service plan is completed.~~

(2) **Service plan content.** Service plans shall address, but not limited to, the following:

- (A) Presenting problems or diagnosis;
- (B) Strengths, needs, abilities, and preferences of the member;
- (C) Goals for treatment with specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and time-limited;
- (D) Type and frequency of services to be provided;
- (E) Dated signature of primary service provider;
- (F) Description of member's involvement in, and responses to, the service plan and his or her signature and date;
- (G) Individualized discharge criteria or maintenance;
- (H) Projected length of treatment;
- (I) Measurable long and short term treatment goals;
- (J) Primary and supportive services to be utilized with the patient;
- (K) Type and frequency of therapeutic activities in which patient will participate;
- (L) Documentation of the member's participation in the development of the plan; and
- (M) Staff who will be responsible for the member's treatment.

(3) **Service plan updates.** Service plan updates shall be completed by an LBHP or licensure candidate. Service updates completed by a licensure candidate must be co-signed and dated by a fully-licensed LBHP. Service plan review and updates shall occur no less than every six (6) months and shall occur more frequently if required based upon the service phase or certain circumstances:

- (A) Change in goals and objectives based upon member's documented progress, or identification of any new problem(s);

- (B) Change in primary therapist or rehabilitation service provider assignment;
- (C) Change in frequency and types of services provided;
- (D) Critical incident reports; and/or
- (E) Sentinel events.

(4) **Service plan timeframes.** Service plans shall be completed by the fourth visit after admission.

(h) **Progress notes.** Progress notes shall be completed in accordance with OAC 317:30-5-248(3).

(i) **Discharge planning.** All members shall be assessed for biopsychosocial appropriateness of discharge from each level of care using ASAM criteria that includes a list of symptoms for all six (6) dimensions and each of the levels of care, to determine a clinically appropriate placement in the least restrictive level of care. This organized process involves a professional determination by an LBHP or licensure candidate for appropriate placement to a specific level of care based on the following symptoms and situations:

- (1) Acute intoxication and/or withdrawal potential;
- (2) Biomedical conditions and complications;
- (3) Emotional, behavioral or cognitive conditions and complications;
- (4) Readiness to change;
- (5) Relapse, continued use or continued problem potential; and
- (6) Recovery/living environment.

(j) **Service exclusions.** The following services are excluded from coverage:

- (1) Components that are not provided to or exclusively for the treatment of the eligible individual;
- (2) Services or components of services of which the basic nature is to supplant housekeeping or basic services for the convenience of a person receiving covered services;
- (3) Telephone calls or other electronic contacts (not inclusive of telehealth);
- (4) Field trips, social, or physical exercise activity groups;

(k) **Reimbursement.** To be eligible for payment, OTPs shall:

- (1) Have an approved provider agreement on file with the OHCA. Through this agreement, the OTP assures that they are in compliance with all applicable federal and State Medicaid law and regulations, including, but not limited to, OHCA administrative rules, ODMHSAS administrative rules, and the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan.
- (2) Obtain prior authorization for applicable drugs and services by the OHCA or its designated agent before the service is rendered by an eligible provider. Without prior authorization for applicable drugs and services, payment is not authorized.
- (3) Record the National Drug Code (NDC) number for each drug used in every encounter at the time of billing.
- (4) Be reimbursed pursuant to the methodology described in the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan.

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 30. MEDICAL PROVIDERS-FEE FOR SERVICE**

SUBCHAPTER 5. INDIVIDUAL PROVIDERS AND SPECIALTIES

PART 1. PHYSICIANS

317:30-5-20. Laboratory services

~~This Section covers the guidelines for payment of laboratory services by a provider in his/her office, a certified laboratory and for a pathologist's interpretation of laboratory procedures.~~

~~(1) **Compensable services.** Providers may be reimbursed for compensable clinical diagnostic laboratory services only when they personally perform or supervise the performance of the test. If a provider refers specimen to a certified laboratory or a hospital laboratory serving outpatients, the certified laboratory or the hospital must bill for performing the test.~~

~~(A) Reimbursement for lab services is made in accordance with the Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendment of 1988 (CLIA). These regulations provide that payment may be made only for services furnished by a laboratory that meets CLIA conditions, including those furnished in physicians' offices. Eligible providers must be certified under the CLIA program and have obtained a CLIA ID number from Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services and have a current contract on file with the Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA). Providers performing laboratory services must have the appropriate CLIA certification specific to the level of testing performed.~~

~~(B) Only medically necessary laboratory services are compensable.~~

~~(i) Testing must be medically indicated as evidenced by patient specific indications in the medical record.~~

~~(ii) Testing is only compensable if the results will affect patient care and are performed to diagnose conditions and illnesses with specific symptoms.~~

~~(iii) Testing is only compensable if the services are performed in furtherance of the diagnosis and/or treatment of conditions that are covered under SoonerCare.~~

~~(C) Laboratory testing must be ordered by the physician or non-physician provider, and must be individualized to the patient and the patient's medical history or assessment indicators as evidenced in the medical documentation.~~

~~(D) Laboratory testing for routine diagnostic or screening tests following clinical guidelines such as those found in the American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) Bright Futures' periodicity schedule, the United States Preventive Services Task Force (USPSTF) A and B recommendations, the American Academy of Family Practitioners (AAFP), or other nationally recognized medical professional academy or society standards of care, is compensable. Additionally, such sources as named in this subdivision should meet medical necessity criteria as outlined in Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:30-3-1(f).~~

~~(2) **Non-compensable laboratory services.**~~

~~(A) Laboratory testing for routine diagnostic or screening tests not supported by the clinical guidelines of a nationally recognized medical professional academy or society standard of care, and/or testing that is performed without apparent relationship to treatment or diagnosis of a specific illness, symptom, complaint or injury is not covered.~~

~~(B) Non-specific, blanket panel or standing orders for laboratory testing, or lab panels which have no impact on the patient's plan of care are not covered.~~

~~(C) Split billing, or dividing the billed services for the same patient for the same date of service by the same rendering laboratory into two (2) or more claims is not allowed.~~

~~(D) Separate payment is not made for blood specimens obtained by, arterial puncture, or urine specimens collected by a provider who is also performing the laboratory testing as these services are considered part of the laboratory analysis. These services are considered part of the laboratory analysis.~~

~~(E) Claims for inpatient full service laboratory procedures are not covered since this is considered a part of the hospital rate.~~

~~(F) Billing multiple units of nucleic acid detection for individual infectious organisms when testing for more than one (1) infectious organism in a specimen is not permissible. Instead, OHCA considers it appropriate to bill a single unit of a procedure code indicated for multiple organism testing.~~

~~(G) Billing multiple Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) codes or units for molecular pathology tests that examine multiple genes or incorporate multiple types of genetic analysis in a single run or report is not permissible. Instead, OHCA considers it appropriate to bill a single CPT code for such test. If an appropriate code does not exist, then one (1) unit for an unlisted molecular pathology procedure may be billed.~~

~~(3) **Covered services by a pathologist.**~~

~~(A) A pathologist may be paid for the interpretation of inpatient surgical pathology specimen when the appropriate CPT procedure code and modifier is used.~~

~~(B) Full service or interpretation of surgical pathology for outpatient surgery performed in an outpatient hospital or ambulatory surgery center setting.~~

~~(4) **Non-compensable services by a pathologist.** The following are non compensable pathologist services:~~

~~(A) Experimental or investigational procedures. For more information regarding experimental or investigational including clinical trials, see OAC 317:30-3-57.1.~~

~~(B) Interpretation of clinical laboratory procedures.~~

For laboratory policies please refer to Part 7, Laboratories (Independent, Physician, And Hospital), of this Chapter.

317:30-5-20.1. Drug screening and testing

~~(a) **Purpose.** Drug Testing is performed for undisclosed drug use and/or abuse, and to verify compliance with treatment. Testing for drugs of abuse to monitor treatment compliance should be included in the treatment plan for pain management when chronic opioid therapy is involved.~~

~~(1) Qualitative (presumptive) drug testing may be used to determine the presence or absence of a drug or drug metabolite in the sample and is expressed as a positive or negative result. Qualitative testing can be performed by a CLIA waived or moderate complexity test, or by a high complexity testing method.~~

~~(2) Quantitative (definitive) drug testing is specific to the drug or metabolite being tested and is expressed as a numeric result or numeric level which verifies concentration.~~

~~(3) Specimen validity testing is used to determine if a specimen has been diluted, adulterated or substituted. Specimen validity tests include, but are not limited to, creatinine, oxidants, specific gravity, urine pH, nitrates and alkaloids.~~

~~(b) **Eligible providers.** Providers performing drug testing should have CLIA certification specific to the level of testing performed as described in 317:30-5-20(1)(A).~~

~~(c) **Compensable services.** Drug testing must be ordered by the physician or non-physician provider and must be individualized to the patient and the patient's medical history or assessment indicators as evidenced in the medical documentation.~~

~~(1) Compensable testing must be medically indicated as evidenced by patient specific indications in the medical record.~~

~~(A) Testing is only compensable if the results will affect patient care.~~

~~(B) Drugs or drug classes being tested should reflect only those likely to be present.~~

~~(2) The frequency of drug screening and/or testing is determined by the patient's history, patient's physical assessment, behavioral assessment, risk assessment, treatment plan and medication history.~~

~~(3) Quantitative (definitive) drug testing may be indicated for the following:~~

~~(A) To identify a specific substance or metabolite that is inadequately detected or undetectable by a qualitative (presumptive) test; or~~

~~(B) To definitively identify specific drugs in a large family of drugs; or~~

~~(C) To identify drugs when a definitive concentration of a drug is needed to guide management; or~~

~~(D) To identify a negative, or confirm a positive, qualitative (presumptive) result that is inconsistent with a patient's self report, presentation, medical history or current prescribed medication plan; or~~

~~(E) To identify a non-prescribed medication or illicit use for ongoing safe prescribing of controlled substances.~~

~~(d) **Non-compensable services.** The following tests are not medically necessary and therefore not covered by the OHCA:~~

~~(1) Specimen validity testing is considered a quality control measure and is not separately compensable;~~

~~(2) Drug testing for patient sample sources of saliva, oral fluids, or hair;~~

~~(3) Testing of two different specimen types (urine and blood) from the same patient on the same date of service;~~

~~(4) Drug testing for medico-legal purposes (court ordered drug screening) or for employment purposes;~~

~~(5) Non-specific, blanket panel or standing orders for drug testing, routine testing of therapeutic drug levels, or drug panels which have no impact to the member's plan of care;~~

~~(6) Scheduled and routine drug testing (i.e. testing should be random);~~

~~(7) Reflex testing for any drug is not medically indicated without specific documented indications;~~

~~(8) Confirmatory testing exceeding three specific drug classes at an interval of greater than every thirty (30) days will require specific documentation in the medical record to justify the medical necessity of testing; and~~

~~(9) Quantitative (definitive) testing of multiple drug levels that are not specific to the patient's medical history and presentation are not allowed. Justification for testing for each individual drug or drug class level must be medically indicated as reflected in the medical record documentation.~~

~~(e) **Documentation requirements.** The medical record must contain documents to support the medical necessity of drug screening and/or testing. Medical records must be furnished on request and may include, but are not limited to, the following:~~

- ~~(1) A current treatment plan;~~
- ~~(2) Patient history and physical;~~
- ~~(3) Review of previous medical records if treated by a different physician for pain management;~~
- ~~(4) Review of all radiographs and/or laboratory studies pertinent to the patient's condition;~~
- ~~(5) Opioid agreement and informed consent of drug testing, as applicable;~~
- ~~(6) List of prescribed medications;~~
- ~~(7) Risk assessment, as identified by use of a validated risk assessment tool/questionnaire, with appropriate risk stratification noted and utilized;~~
- ~~(8) Office/provider monitoring protocols, such as random pill counts; and~~
- ~~(9) Review of prescription drug monitoring data or pharmacy profile as warranted.~~

~~For policy regarding drug screening and testing, please refer to Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:30-5-101.~~

317:30-5-20.2. Molecular diagnostic testing utilizing polymerase chain reaction for infectious diseases

~~(a) **Definitions.** The following words and terms, when used in this Section, shall have the following meaning, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.~~

- ~~(1) "**Polymerase Chain Reaction (PCR)**" means a biochemical laboratory technique used to make thousands or even millions of copies of a segment of DNA. It is commonly used to amplify a small amount of specifically targeted DNA from among a mixture of DNA samples. It is also known as Nucleic Acid Amplification Test (NAAT).~~
- ~~(2) "**Direct Probe Technique**" means detection methods where nucleic acids are detected without initial amplification processing.~~
- ~~(3) "**Amplified Probe Technique**" means technique without quantification, a detection method in which the sensitivity of the assay is improved over direct probe techniques.~~
- ~~(4) "**Probe with Quantification Technique**" means methods used to report absolute or relative amounts of nucleic acid sequences in the original sample.~~

~~(b) **Medical necessity.**~~

- ~~(1) PCR testing for infectious diseases, following clinical guidelines such as those set forth by the Infectious Disease Society of America's (IDSA) or other nationally recognized medical professional academy or society standards of care, may be compensable.~~
- ~~(2) For the full PCR guideline which includes medically necessity and prior authorization criteria, and a list of codes that require authorization, please refer to www.okhea.org.~~

~~(c) **Documentation.**~~

- ~~(1) The medical record must contain documentation that the testing is expected to influence treatment of the condition towards which the testing is directed.~~
- ~~(2) The laboratory or billing provider must have on file the physician requisition which sets forth the diagnosis or condition that warrants the test(s).~~
- ~~(3) Examples of documentation requirements for the ordering provider include, but are not limited to, history and physical exam findings that support the decision making, problems/diagnoses, relevant data (e.g., lab testing results).~~

~~(4) Documentation requirements for the performing laboratory include, but are not limited to, lab accreditation, test requisition, test records, preliminary and final report, and quality control record.~~

~~(5) Documentation requirements for lab developed tests/protocols include diagnostic test/assay, lab manufacturer, names of comparable assays/services (if relevant), descriptions of assay, analytical validity evidence, clinical validity evidence, and clinical utility.~~

~~(6) Billing providers are required to code specificity; however, if an unlisted or not otherwise specified Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) code is used, the documentation must clearly identify the unique procedure performed. When multiple procedure codes are submitted (unique, unlisted, and/or not otherwise specified), the documentation supporting each code should be easily identifiable. If on review the billed code cannot be linked to the documentation, this service may be denied.~~

~~(7) When the documentation does not meet the criteria for the service rendered/requested or the documentation does not establish the medical necessity for the service, the service may be denied as not reasonable and necessary.~~

For policy regarding molecular diagnostic testing utilizing polymerase chain reaction for infectious diseases, please refer to Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:30-5-102.

PART 3. HOSPITALS

317:30-5-42.10. Laboratory

To be eligible for payment as a laboratory/pathology service, the service must be:

- (1) Ordered and provided by or under the direction of a physician or other licensed practitioner within the scope of practice as defined by state law;
- (2) Provided in a hospital or independent laboratory;
- (3) Directly related to the diagnosis and treatment of a medical condition;
- (4) Authorized under the laboratory's CLIA certification; and
- (5) Considered medically necessary as defined in OAC 317:30-3-1(f) and 317:30-5-20.

For laboratory policies please refer to Part 7, Laboratories (Independent, Physician, And Hospital), of this Chapter.

PART 7. CERTIFIED LABORATORIES LABORATORIES (INDEPENDENT, PHYSICIAN, AND HOSPITAL)

317:30-5-100. Eligible providers Laboratory services

~~Reimbursement for lab services is made in accordance with the Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendment of 1988 (CLIA). These regulations provide that payment may be made only for services furnished by a laboratory that meets CLIA conditions, including those furnished in physicians' offices. Regulations specify that any and every facility which tests human specimens for the purpose of providing information for the diagnosis, prevention, or treatment of any disease, or impairment of, or the assessment of the health of human beings is subject to CLIA. All facilities which perform these tasks must make application for certification by CMS. Eligible SoonerCare providers must be certified under the CLIA program and have obtained a CLIA ID number from CMS and have a current contract on file with the OHCA.~~

This Part covers the guidelines for payment of laboratory services by a provider in his/her office, a certified hospital or independent laboratory, and for a pathologist's interpretation of laboratory procedures.

(1) **Physician and clinic provider laboratories.** Physician and clinic providers may be reimbursed for compensable clinical diagnostic laboratory services only when they personally perform or supervise the performance of the test. If a physician or clinic provider refers specimen to a certified laboratory or a hospital laboratory serving outpatients, the certified laboratory or the hospital must bill for performing the test.

(2) **Independent and hospital laboratories.** Independent and hospital laboratories will be required to submit a letter to OHCA Provider Enrollment along with their other required contracting documents. The reference laboratory must be identified on the claim as well as the following information for any and all reference laboratories:

(A) Name;

(B) Address; and

(C) Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendment of 1988 (CLIA) ID.

(3) **Compensable services for independent, physician and hospital laboratories.**

(A) Reimbursement for lab services is made in accordance with CLIA. These regulations provide that payment may be made only for services furnished by a laboratory that meets CLIA conditions, including those furnished in physicians' offices. Regulations specify that any and every facility which tests human specimens for the purpose of providing information for the diagnosis, prevention, or treatment of any disease, or impairment of, or the assessment of the health of human beings is subject to CLIA. All facilities which perform these tasks must make application for certification by CMS. Eligible SoonerCare providers must be certified under the CLIA program and have obtained a CLIA ID number from CMS and have a current contract on file with the OHCA. Providers performing laboratory services must have the appropriate CLIA certification specific to the level of testing performed.

(B) Only medically necessary laboratory services are compensable.

(i) Testing must be medically indicated as evidenced by member-specific indications in the medical record.

(ii) Testing is only compensable if the results will affect member care and are performed to diagnose conditions and illnesses with specific symptoms.

(iii) Testing is only compensable if the services are performed in furtherance of the diagnosis and/or treatment of conditions that are covered under SoonerCare.

(C) Laboratory testing must be ordered by the physician or non-physician provider and must be individualized to the member and the member's medical history, or assessment indicators as evidenced in the medical documentation.

(D) Laboratory testing for routine diagnostic or screening tests following clinical guidelines such as those found in the American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) Bright Futures' periodicity schedule, the United States Preventive Services Task Force (USPSTF) A and B recommendations, the American Academy of Family Practitioners (AAFP), or other nationally recognized medical professional academy or society standards of care, is compensable. Additionally, such sources as named in this subdivision should meet medical necessity criteria as outlined in Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:30-3-1(f).

(2) **Non-compensable laboratory services.**

(A) Laboratory testing for routine diagnostic or screening tests not supported by the clinical guidelines of a nationally recognized medical professional academy or society standard of care, and/or testing that is performed without apparent relationship to treatment or diagnosis of a specific illness, symptom, complaint or injury is not covered.

(B) Non-specific, blanket panel or standing orders for laboratory testing or lab panels which have no impact on the member's plan of care are not covered.

(C) Split billing or dividing the billed services for the same member for the same date of service by the same rendering laboratory into two (2) or more claims is not allowed.

(D) Separate payment is not made for blood specimens obtained by venipuncture or urine specimens collected by a provider who is also performing the laboratory testing as these services are considered part of the laboratory analysis.

(E) Claims for inpatient full-service laboratory procedures are not covered since this is considered a part of the hospital rate.

(F) Billing multiple units of nucleic acid detection for individual infectious organisms when testing for more than one (1) infectious organism in a specimen is not permissible. Instead, OHCA considers it appropriate to bill a single unit of a procedure code indicated for multiple organism testing.

(G) Billing multiple Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) codes or units for molecular pathology tests that examine multiple genes or incorporate multiple types of genetic analysis in a single run or report is not permissible. Instead, OHCA considers it appropriate to bill a single CPT code for such test. If an appropriate code does not exist, then one (1) unit for an unlisted molecular pathology procedure may be billed.

(3) Covered services by a pathologist.

(A) A pathologist may be paid for the interpretation of inpatient surgical pathology specimen when the appropriate CPT procedure code and modifier is used.

(B) Full service or interpretation of surgical pathology for outpatient surgery performed in an outpatient hospital or ambulatory surgery center setting.

(4) Non-compensable services by a pathologist. The following are non-compensable pathologist services:

(A) Experimental or investigational procedures. For more information regarding experimental or investigational including clinical trials, see OAC 317:30-3-57.1.

(B) Interpretation of clinical laboratory procedures.

317:30-5-101. Coverage for adults Drug screening and testing

Payment is made to certified laboratories for medically necessary services to adults as set forth in this Section.

(1) Inpatient services.

~~(A) Claims for inpatient anatomical pathology must be billed by the individual pathologist performing the examination.~~

~~(B) Inpatient consultations by Pathologists are compensable. Claim form must include referring physician, diagnosis, and test(s) for which the consultation was requested.~~

(2) Outpatient services. Payment is made for medically necessary outpatient services.

(a) Purpose. Drug testing is performed for undisclosed drug use and/or abuse, and to verify compliance with treatment. Testing for drugs of abuse to monitor treatment compliance should be included in the treatment plan for pain management when chronic opioid therapy is involved.

(1) Qualitative (presumptive) drug testing may be used to determine the presence or absence of a drug or drug metabolite in the sample and is expressed as a positive or negative result. Qualitative testing can be performed by a Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendment of 1988 (CLIA) waived or moderate complexity test, or by a high complexity testing method.

(2) Quantitative (definitive) drug testing is specific to the drug or metabolite being tested and is expressed as a numeric result or numeric level which verifies concentration.

(3) Specimen validity testing is used to determine if a specimen has been diluted, adulterated, or substituted. Specimen validity tests include, but are not limited to, creatinine, oxidants, specific gravity, urine pH, nitrates, and alkaloids.

(b) Eligible providers. Providers performing drug testing should have CLIA certification specific to the level of testing performed as described in Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:30-5-100(1)(A).

(c) Compensable services. Drug testing must be ordered by the physician or non-physician provider and must be individualized to the member and the member's medical history and/or assessment indicators as evidenced in the medical documentation.

(1) Compensable testing must be medically indicated as evidenced by member specific indications in the medical record.

(A) Testing is only compensable if the results will affect member care.

(B) Drugs or drug classes being tested should reflect only those likely to be present.

(2) The frequency of drug screening and/or testing is determined by the member's history, member's physical assessment, behavioral assessment, risk assessment, treatment plan and medication history.

(3) Quantitative (definitive) drug testing may be indicated for the following:

(A) To identify a specific substance or metabolite that is inadequately detected or undetectable by a qualitative (presumptive) test; or

(B) To definitively identify specific drugs in a large family of drugs; or

(C) To identify drugs when a definitive concentration of a drug is needed to guide management; or

(D) To identify a negative, or confirm a positive, qualitative (presumptive) result that is inconsistent with a member's self-report, presentation, medical history or current prescribed medication plan; or

(E) To identify a non-prescribed medication or illicit use for ongoing safe prescribing of controlled substances.

(d) Non-compensable services. The following tests are not medically necessary and therefore not covered by the OHCA:

(1) Specimen validity testing is considered a quality control measure and is not separately compensable;

(2) Drug testing for member sample sources of saliva, oral fluids, or hair;

(3) Testing of two (2) different specimen types (urine and blood) from the same member on the same date of service;

(4) Drug testing for medico-legal purposes (court-ordered drug screening) or for employment purposes;

(5) Non-specific, blanket panel or standing orders for drug testing, routine testing of therapeutic drug levels, or drug panels which have no impact to the member's plan of care;

(6) Scheduled and routine drug testing (i.e., testing should be random);

- (7) Reflex testing for any drug is not medically indicated without specific documented indications;
- (8) Confirmatory testing exceeding three specific drug classes at an interval of greater than every thirty (30) days will require specific documentation in the medical record to justify the medical necessity of testing; and
- (9) Quantitative (definitive) testing of multiple drug levels that are not specific to the member's medical history and presentation are not allowed. Justification for testing for each individual drug or drug class level must be medically indicated as reflected in the medical record documentation.

(e) **Documentation requirements.** The medical record must contain documents to support the medical necessity of drug screening and/or testing. Medical records must be furnished on request and may include, but are not limited to, the following:

- (1) A current treatment plan;
- (2) Member history and physical;
- (3) Review of previous medical records if treated by a different physician for pain management;
- (4) Review of all radiographs and/or laboratory studies pertinent to the member's condition;
- (5) Opioid agreement and informed consent of drug testing, as applicable;
- (6) List of prescribed medications;
- (7) Risk assessment, as identified by use of a validated risk assessment tool/questionnaire, with appropriate risk stratification noted and utilized;
- (8) Office/provider monitoring protocols, such as random pill counts; and
- (9) Review of prescription drug monitoring data or pharmacy profile as warranted.

317:30-5-102. Coverage for children Molecular diagnostic testing utilizing polymerase chain reaction for infectious diseases

Coverage of laboratory services for children is as follows:

(1) Inpatient services.

- (A) Claims for inpatient anatomical pathology must be billed by the individual pathologist performing the examination.
- (B) Inpatient pathology consultations are compensable. Claim form must include referring physician, diagnosis and test(s) for which the consultation was requested.

(2) Outpatient services.

- (A) Outpatient clinical laboratory services are covered when performed in conjunction with an Early and Periodic Screening Diagnosis and Treatment (EPSDT) examination. The claim must be documented with name of attending physician.
- (B) Medically necessary outpatient clinical laboratory services provided in conjunction with physician office visits are compensable under EPSDT.

(a) **Definitions.** The following words and terms, when used in this Section, shall have the following meaning, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

- (1) "**Amplified probe technique**" means technique without quantification, a detection method in which the sensitivity of the assay is improved over direct probe techniques.
- (2) "**Direct probe technique**" means detection methods where nucleic acids are detected without initial amplification processing.
- (3) "**Polymerase chain reaction (PCR)**" means a biochemical laboratory technique used to make thousands or even millions of copies of a segment of DNA. It is commonly used to

amplify a small amount of specifically targeted DNA from among a mixture of DNA samples. It is also known as Nucleic Acid Amplification Test (NAAT).

(4) "Probe with quantification technique" means methods used to report absolute or relative amounts of nucleic acid sequences in the original sample.

(b) Medical necessity.

(1) PCR testing for infectious diseases, following clinical guidelines such as those set forth by the Infectious Disease Society of America's (IDSA) or other nationally recognized medical professional academy or society standards of care, may be compensable.

(2) For the full PCR guideline which includes medical necessity and prior authorization criteria, and a list of codes that require authorization, please refer to <https://oklahoma.gov/ohca/mau>.

(c) Documentation.

(1) The medical record must contain documentation that the testing is expected to influence treatment of the condition towards which the testing is directed.

(2) The laboratory or billing provider must have on file the physician requisition which sets forth the diagnosis or condition that warrants the test(s).

(3) Examples of documentation requirements for the ordering provider include, but are not limited to, history and physical exam findings that support the decision making, problems/diagnoses, relevant data (e.g., lab testing results).

(4) Documentation requirements for the performing laboratory include, but are not limited to, lab accreditation, test requisition, test records, preliminary and final report, and quality control record.

(5) Documentation requirements for lab developed tests/protocols include diagnostic test/assay, lab manufacturer, names of comparable assays/services (if relevant), descriptions of assay, analytical validity evidence, clinical validity evidence, and clinical utility.

(6) Billing providers are required to code specificity; however, if an unlisted or not otherwise specified Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) code is used, the documentation must clearly identify the unique procedure performed. When multiple procedure codes are submitted (unique, unlisted, and/or not otherwise specified), the documentation supporting each code should be easily identifiable. If the billed code cannot be linked to the documentation during review, the service may be denied.

(7) When the documentation does not meet the criteria for the service rendered/requested or the documentation does not establish the medical necessity for the service, the service may be denied as not reasonable and necessary.

317:30-5-103. Vocational rehabilitation Coverage and payment

Payment is made for those vocational rehabilitation services which are preauthorized by the patient's counselor.

(a) Payment eligibility. To be eligible for payment as a laboratory/pathology service, the service must be:

(1) Ordered and provided by or under the direction of a physician or other licensed practitioner within the scope of practice as defined by state law;

(2) Provided in a hospital, physician, or independent laboratory;

(3) Directly related to the diagnosis and treatment of a medical condition;

(4) Authorized under the laboratory's Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendment of 1988 (CLIA) certification; and

(5) Considered medically necessary as defined in Oklahoma Administrative Code 317:30-3-1(f) and 317:30-5-100.

(b) **Payment for inpatient/outpatient services.** Payment is made to laboratories for medically necessary services to children and adults as follows:

(1) **Inpatient services.**

(A) Claims for inpatient anatomical pathology must be billed by the individual pathologist performing the examination.

(B) Inpatient consultations by pathologists are compensable. Claim form must include referring physician, diagnosis, and test(s) for which the consultation was requested.

(2) **Outpatient services.**

(A) For children, payment is made for medically necessary outpatient clinical laboratory services which are provided in conjunction with physician office visits that are compensable under EPSDT.

(B) For adults, payment is made for medically necessary outpatient services.

(c) **Payment rates.** Payment will be made for covered laboratory services in accordance with methodology approved under the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan.

(d) **Vocational rehabilitation.** Payment for laboratory services is made for those vocational rehabilitation services which are preauthorized by the member's counselor.

(e) **Individuals eligible for Part B of Medicare.** Payment is made utilizing the Medicaid allowable for comparable services.

317:30-5-104. Individuals eligible for Part B of Medicare ~~Non-covered procedures~~

~~Payment is made utilizing the Medicaid allowable for comparable services. The following procedures by laboratories are not covered:~~

~~(1) Tissue examinations of teeth and foreign objects.~~

~~(2) Tissue examination of lens after cataract surgery except when the member is under twenty-one (21) years of age.~~

~~(3) Charges for autopsy.~~

~~(4) Hair analysis for trace metal analysis.~~

~~(5) Procedures deemed experimental or investigational. For more information regarding experimental or investigational including clinical trials, see Oklahoma Administrative Code 317:30-3-57.1.~~

~~(6) Professional component charges for inpatient clinical laboratory services.~~

~~(7) Inpatient clinical laboratory services.~~

317:30-5-105. Non-covered procedures [REVOKED]

~~The following procedures by certified laboratories are not covered:~~

~~(1) Tissue examinations of teeth and foreign objects.~~

~~(2) Tissue examination of lens after cataract surgery except when the patient is under 21 years of age.~~

~~(3) Charges for autopsy.~~

~~(4) Hair analysis for trace metal analysis.~~

~~(5) Procedures deemed experimental or investigational. For more information regarding experimental or investigational including clinical trials, see Oklahoma Administrative Code 317:30-3-57.1.~~

~~(6) Professional component charges for inpatient clinical laboratory services.~~

~~(7) Inpatient clinical laboratory services.~~

317:30-5-106. Payment rates [REVOKED]

~~Payment will be made for covered clinical laboratory services in accordance with methodology approved under the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan.~~

DRAFT

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 30. MEDICAL PROVIDERS-FEE FOR SERVICE**

SUBCHAPTER 3. GENERAL PROVIDER POLICIES

PART 1. GENERAL SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION

317:30-3-3.1. Medicaid Income Deferral Program [REVOKED]

~~(a) The Medicaid Income Deferral Program is a program that enables physician corporations, as defined in Title 59 of the Oklahoma Statutes, to voluntarily defer income that is paid to the corporation by the Single State Medicaid Agency.~~

~~(b) The voluntary income deferral by physician corporations (medical doctors, osteopathic physicians, dentists, surgeons, podiatrists, chiropractors, optometrists, and ophthalmologists) shall be subject to any federal provisions imposed by the Internal Revenue Code, Title 26 of the United States Code. The Health Care Authority may adopt a Plan which provides for the investment of deferral amounts in life insurance or annuity contracts which offer a choice of underlying investment options. The Plan shall provide that each physician corporation exercise those options independently from among choices offered by such contracts. Contract issuing companies shall be limited to companies which are licensed to do business in the state of Oklahoma.~~

~~(c) To be eligible for this program a physician corporation must have an existing contract with the Oklahoma Health Care Authority and the corporation must perform that contract for the term of the agreement. If a physician corporation fails to fulfill its service obligations under the contract, all deferral amount assets held for the benefit of that corporation shall be forfeited.~~

~~(d) No physician corporation shall be permitted to participate in the Plan without having prior independent tax and legal advice to do so.~~

SUBCHAPTER 5. INDIVIDUAL PROVIDERS AND SPECIALTIES

PART 5. PHARMACIES

317:30-5-70.4. Federal/State cost share-optional program [REVOKED]

~~The Medicaid prescription drug program is an optional program under Title XIX of the Social Security Act. The program is administered through a partnership between federal and state agencies. Program costs are shared between the federal and state government at variable rates depending on the economic status of the State.~~

317:30-5-80. National drug code [REVOKED]

~~All products billed must have a valid National Drug Code. Products which do not have an NDC code are not compensable.~~

317:30-5-86.2. Case management [REVOKED]

~~OHCA contracts with a designated agent to evaluate and manage the medication therapies of the individuals who comprise the top percentage of drug utilization. Clinical pharmacists will do case management based on the clinical needs of each patient.~~

PART 6. INPATIENT PSYCHIATRIC AND SUBSTANCE USE DISORDER SERVICES

317:30-5-95.43. Residential substance use disorder treatment

(a) **Purpose.** The purpose of sections OAC 317:30-5-95.43 - 317:30-5-95.49 is to establish the procedures and requirements for residential treatment facilities providing SUD treatment services.

(b) **Definitions.** The following words and terms, when used in the aforementioned sections, shall have the following meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

- (1) "**ASAM**" means the American Society of Addiction Medicine.
- (2) "**ASAM criteria**" means the most recent edition of the American Society of Addiction Medicine's published criteria for admission to treatment, continued services, and discharge.
- (3) "**ASAM levels of care**" means the different options for treatment as described below and in the current edition of the ASAM criteria that vary according to the intensity of the services offered. Each treatment option is a level of care.
 - (A) "**ASAM level 3**" means residential and inpatient services and encompasses ASAM levels 3.1, 3.3, 3.5 and 3.7.
 - (B) "**ASAM level 3.1**" means clinically managed low-intensity residential services for adolescents and adults. This level of care typically provides at least five (5) hours of clinical services a week and provides a twenty-four (24) hour living support and structure with trained personnel. The corresponding service description for this level of care is halfway house services.
 - (C) "**ASAM level 3.3**" means clinically managed population-specific high-intensity residential services. This level of care is for adults only and typically offers twenty-four (24) hour care with trained personnel and is designed to accommodate individuals with cognitive or other impairments. The corresponding service description for this level of care is residential treatment for adults with co-occurring disorders.
 - (D) "**ASAM level 3.5**" means clinically managed medium-intensity residential services for adolescents and clinically managed high-intensity residential services for adults. This level of care provides twenty-four (24) hour care and offers a wide range of therapeutic services. The corresponding service descriptions for this level of care are residential treatment and intensive residential treatment.
 - (E) "**ASAM level 3.7**" means medically monitored high-intensity inpatient services for adolescents and medically monitored intensive inpatient withdrawal management for adults. This level of care provides twenty-four (24) hour nursing care with physician supervision and medication availability. This level of care is appropriate for individuals withdrawing from alcohol or other drugs with subacute biomedical and emotional, behavioral, or cognitive problems severe enough to require inpatient treatment but for whom hospitalization is not necessary. The corresponding service description for this level of care is medically supervised withdrawal management.
- (4) "**Care management services**" means an assessment of a member, development of a care plan, and referral and linkage to SUD community supports and community-based or lower level of care services to promote continued recovery after the individual discharges from the treatment facility.
- (5) "**Co-occurring disorder (COD)**" means any combination of mental health symptoms and SUD symptoms or diagnoses that affect a member and are typically determined by the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders (DSM).
- (6) "**DSM**" means the most recent edition of the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders (DSM) published by the American Psychiatric Association.
- (7) "**ODMHSAS**" means the Oklahoma Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse

Services (ODMHSAS).

(8) **"Per diem"** means an all-inclusive rate for covered SUD treatment services provided each day during a facility stay.

~~(8)~~(9) **"Rehabilitation services"** means face-to-face individual or group services provided by qualified staff to develop skills necessary to perform activities of daily living and successful integration into community life. Rehabilitation services for substance use disorders are also referred to as skill development services.

~~(9)~~(10) **"Service plan"** means the document used during the process by which an LBHP or a licensure candidate and the member together and jointly identify and rank problems, establish agreed-upon immediate short-term and long-term goals, and decide on the treatment process and resources to be utilized.

~~(10)~~(11) **"Substance use disorder (SUD)"** means alcohol or drug dependence, or psychoactive SUD as defined by the most recent DSM criteria.

~~(11)~~(12) **"Therapeutic services"** means professional services during which members engage in identifying, addressing and/or resolving issues identified in the member's service plan.

~~(12)~~(13) **"Treatment hours B residential"** means the structured hours in which a member is involved in receiving professional services to assist in achieving recovery.

317:30-5-95.50. Residential substance use disorder (SUD) – Reimbursement

(a) In order to be eligible for payment, residential treatment providers of SUD treatment services must have an approved provider agreement on file with the OHCA. Through this agreement, the residential provider assures that they are in compliance with all applicable federal and State Medicaid law and regulations, including, but not limited to, OHCA administrative rules, ODMHSAS administrative rules, and the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan.

(b) Covered SUD treatment services for adolescents and adults in SUD residential treatment shall be reimbursed utilizing the per diem rates for each level of care. All SUD residential treatment services must be prior authorized by the OHCA or its designated agent before the service is rendered by an eligible provider. Without prior authorization, payment is not authorized.

~~(c) Covered SUD treatment services for adolescents and adults in SUD residential treatment shall be reimbursed utilizing the per diem rates for each level of care.~~ Separate payment may be made for medications, physician services, and treatment services provided to dependent children in accordance with the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan. Separate payment for such services will follow existing prior authorization requirements, if applicable.

(d) Treatment services for dependent children accompanying a parent to treatment shall be reimbursed on a fee-for-service basis in accordance with the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan. Outpatient services rendered to dependent children may be provided by the residential facility if appropriately certified or a separate outpatient provider. Such services shall not duplicate any services provided by the residential provider that are reimbursed through the residential per diem rate.

(e) The following services are excluded from coverage/reimbursement:

- (1) Room and board;
- (2) Services or components that are not provided to or exclusively for the treatment of the member;
- (3) Services or components of services of which the basic nature is to supplant housekeeping or basic services for the convenience of a member receiving covered services;
- (4) Physician directed services and medications (these services are reimbursed outside of the

- residential SUD per diem);
- (5) Telephone calls or other electronic contacts (not inclusive of telehealth); and
- (6) Field trips, social, or physical exercise activity groups.

PART 33. TRANSPORTATION BY AMBULANCE

317:30-5-336.3. Destination and transport outside of locality

- (a) Transportation is covered from the point of origin to the Hospital, Critical Access Hospital or Nursing Facility that is capable of providing the required level and type of care for the member.
- (b) Ambulance transportation from a hospital with a higher level of care to a hospital with a lower level of care in the locality is covered, provided all other criteria are met and approved by the OHCA.
- (c) Non-emergency transportation to the outpatient facilities of a Hospital, free-standing Ambulatory Surgery Center (ASC), Independent Diagnostic Testing Facility (IDTF), Physician's office or other outpatient facility is compensable if the member's condition necessitates ambulance or stretcher transportation and all other conditions are met.
- (d) Ambulance Transportation to a Veteran's Administration (VA) Hospital is covered when the trip has not been authorized by the VA.
- (e) If ambulance transportation is provided out of the transport locality, the claim must be documented with the reason for the transport outside of the service area.
- (f) If it is determined the member was transported out of locality and the closest facility could have cared for the member, payment will be made only for the distance to the nearest medical institution with the appropriate facilities.
- (g) Any transportation which begins or ends outside of the Oklahoma geographic border requires prior authorization. The exception to this rule is if transportation begins or ends within one hundred (100) miles of Oklahoma's geographic border, no prior authorization is required.

317:30-5-336.4. Transport outside of locality [REVOKED]

- ~~(a) If ambulance transportation is provided out of the transport locality, the claim must be documented with the reason for the transport outside of the service area.~~
- ~~(b) If it is determined the member was transported out of locality and the closest facility could have cared for the member, payment will be made only for the distance to the nearest medical institution with the appropriate facilities.~~
- ~~(c) Any transportation which begins or ends outside of the Oklahoma geographic border requires prior authorization. The exception to this rule is if transportation begins or ends within 100 miles of Oklahoma's geographic border, no prior authorization is required.~~

PART 61. HOME HEALTH AGENCIES

317:30-5-547. Reimbursement and procedure codes

- (a) Nursing services and home health aide services are covered services on a per visit basis. Thirty-six (36) visits per calendar year of nursing and/or home health aide services for any member do not require prior authorization; however, any visit surpassing the thirty-sixth (36) visit will require prior authorization and medical review.
- (b) Reimbursement for durable medical equipment and supplies will be made using the amount derived from the lesser of the Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) fee schedule or the

provider's usual and customary charge. When a procedure code is not assigned a maximum allowable fee for a unit of service, a fee will be established. Once the service has been provided, the supplier is required to include a copy of the invoice documenting the supplier's cost of the item with the claim.

(c) Reimbursement for oxygen and oxygen supplies is as follows:

(1) Payment for oxygen systems (stationary, liquid and oxygen concentrators) is based on continuous rental, i.e., a continuous monthly payment is made as long as it is medically necessary. The rental payment includes all contents and supplies, i.e., regulators, tubing, masks, etc. Portable oxygen systems are also considered continuous rental. Ownership of the equipment remains with the supplier.

(2) Separate payment will not be made for maintenance, servicing, delivery, or for the supplier to pick up the equipment when it is no longer medically necessary.

(3) Payment for oxygen and oxygen equipment and supplies will not exceed the Medicare fee for the same procedure code. The fee schedule will be reviewed annually and adjustments to the fee schedule may be made at any time based on efficiency, budget considerations, and quality of care as determined by the OHCA.

(4) Physical therapy, occupational therapy, and/or speech pathology and audiology services, are not covered when provided by a home health agency.

(d) All home health services are billed using Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System (HCPCS) codes.

317:30-5-548. Procedure codes [REVOKED]

~~All home health services are billed using Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System (HCPCS) codes.~~

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 30. MEDICAL PROVIDERS-FEE FOR SERVICE**

SUBCHAPTER 5. INDIVIDUAL PROVIDERS AND SPECIALTIES

PART 17. MEDICAL SUPPLIERS

317:30-5-211.10. Medical supplies, equipment, and appliances

(a) **Medical supplies, equipment, and appliances.** See the definition for medical supplies, equipment, and appliances at Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:30-5-211.1.

(b) **Certificate of medical necessity (CMN).** Certain items of medical supplies, equipment, and appliances require a CMN/OHCA CMN which should be submitted with the request for prior authorization. These items include, but are not limited to:

- (1) ~~External infusion pumps; Enteral and parenteral nutrition; and~~
- (2) ~~Hospital beds; Support surfaces.~~
- (3) ~~Oxygen and oxygen related products;~~
- (4) ~~Pneumatic compression devices;~~
- (5) ~~Support surfaces;~~
- (6) ~~Enteral and parenteral nutrition; and~~
- (7) ~~Osteogenesis stimulator.~~

(c) **Rental.** Several medical supplies, equipment, and appliance products are classified as either a capped rental or a continuous rental. Payment for a capped rental is capped at thirteen (13) months and a continuous rental is paid monthly for as long as it is medically necessary. Both require documentation showing that the product is medically necessary.

(d) **Purchase.** Medical supplies, equipment, and appliances may be purchased when a member requires the product for an extended period of time. During the prior authorization review, the Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) may change the authorization from a rental to a purchase or a purchase to a rental based on the documentation submitted.

(e) **Backup equipment.** Backup equipment is considered part of the rental cost and is not a covered service without prior authorization.

(f) **Home modification.** Home modifications that require permanent installation are not covered services as they are not removable and therefore do not meet the definition of medical supplies, equipment, and appliances per 42 Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) § 440.70. Refer to Title 317, Chapters 40 and 50 for home modifications covered under Home and Community Based Services Waivers, including the ADvantage Waiver.

317:30-5-211.11. Oxygen and oxygen equipment

(a) **Medical necessity.** Oxygen and oxygen supplies are covered when medically necessary. Medical necessity is determined from results of arterial blood gas analysis (ABG) or pulse oximetry (SaO2) tests. ABG data are not required for children, but may be used if otherwise available. The test results to document Medical Necessity must be within ~~30~~thirty (30) days of the date of the qualified medical practitioner's ~~Certificate of Medical Necessity~~order. Prior authorization is required after the initial three (3) months of billing whether qualifying tests were done at rest, during sleep, or during exercise. Appropriate documentation of ABG or SaO2 data from the member's chart should be attached to the prior authorization request (PAR).

- (1) The ABG or oximetry test used to determine medical necessity must be performed by a

medical professional qualified to conduct such testing. The test may not be performed or paid for by a DMEPOS supplier, or a related corporation. A referring qualified medical practitioner may perform the test in his/her office as part of routine member care.

(2) In addition to ABG data, the following three (3) tests are acceptable for determining medical necessity for oxygen prescription:

(A) At rest and awake "spot oximetry."

(B) During sleep:

(i) Overnight Sleep Oximetry done inpatient or at home.

(ii) Polysomnogram, which may be used only if medically necessary for concurrent evaluation of another condition while in a chronic stable state.

(C) During exercise with all three (3) of the following performed in the same testing session.

(i) At rest, off oxygen showing a non-qualifying result.

(ii) During exercise, off oxygen showing a qualifying event.

(iii) During exercise, on oxygen showing improvement over test (C) ii above.

(3) Certification criteria:

(A) All qualifying testing must meet the following criteria:

(B) **Adults.** Initial requests for oxygen must include ABG or resting oximetry results. At rest and on room air, the arterial blood saturation (SaO₂) cannot exceed ~~89%~~eighty-nine percent (89%) or the pO₂ cannot exceed 59mm Hg.

(C) **Children.** Members ~~20~~twenty (20) years of age or less must meet the following requirements:

(i) birth through three (3) years, SaO₂ equal to or less than ~~94%~~ninety-four percent (94%); or

(ii) ages four (4) and above, SaO₂ level equal to or less than ~~90%~~ninety percent (90%).

(iii) Requests from the qualified medical practitioner for oxygen for children who do not meet these requirements should include documentation of the medical necessity based on the child's clinical condition. These requests are considered on a case-by-case basis.

~~(b) Certificate of medical necessity.~~

~~(1) The DMEPOS supplier must have a fully completed current CMN (CMS 484 or HCA 32 must be used for members 20 years of age and younger) on file to support the claims for oxygen or oxygen supplies, and to establish whether coverage criteria are met and to ensure that the oxygen services provided are consistent with the physician's prescription (refer to instructions from Palmetto Government Benefits Administration, the Oklahoma Medicare Carrier, for further requirements for completion of the CMN).~~

~~(2) The CMN must be signed by the qualified medical practitioner prior to submitting the initial claim. If a verbal order containing qualifying data is received by the DME provider, oxygen and supplies may be dispensed using the verbal order date as the billing date. The CMN initial date, the verbal order date, and the date of delivery should be the same date. It is acceptable to have a cover letter containing the same information as the CMN, stating the qualified medical practitioner's orders. The CMN signed by the qualified medical practitioner must be attached to the PAR.~~

~~(3) The medical and prescription information on the CMN may be completed by a non-physician clinician, or an employee, for the qualified medical practitioner's review and~~

signature.

~~(4) When a Certificate of Medical Necessity for oxygen is recertified, a prior authorization request will be required.~~

~~(5) Re-certification and related retesting will be required every 12 months.~~

~~(6) CMN for oxygen services must be updated at least annually and at any time a change in prescription occurs during the year. All DMEPOS suppliers are responsible for maintaining the prescription(s) for oxygen services and CMN in each member's file.~~

~~(7) The OHCA or its designated agent will conduct ongoing monitoring of prescriptions for oxygen services to ensure guidelines are followed. Payment adjustments will be made on claims not meeting these requirements.~~

(b) Guidelines. For full guidelines, please refer to www.okhca.org/mau.

317:30-5-211.22. Pulse oximeter

(a) Pulse oximeter. Pulse oximeter is a device used for measuring blood oxygen levels in a non-invasive manner.

(b) Medical necessity. Pulse oximeters must be determined by a provider to be medically necessary and documented in the member's plan of care as medically necessary and used for medical purposes. A request by a qualified provider for pulse oximeters in and of itself shall not constitute medical necessity. The Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) shall serve as the final authority pertaining to all determinations of medical necessity. Refer to Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:30-5-211.2 and OAC 317:30-3-1(f) for policy on medical necessity.

(c) Documentation. All documentation submitted to request services must demonstrate, through adequate objective medical records, evidence sufficient to justify the member's need for the service, in accordance with OAC 317:30-3-1(f)(2). Documentation must include:

(1) A current oxygen order signed and dated by an OHCA-contracted provider, ~~along with a certificate of medical necessity (CMN);~~

(2) Pertinent information relating to the member's underlying diagnosis and condition which results in the need for the oximeter and supplies, including documentation of unstable airway events and documentation of current monitor readings if available; and

(3) Documentation of an available trained caregiver in the home who is able to intervene and address changes in the member's oxygen saturation levels in a medically safe and appropriate manner.

(4) For full guidelines, please refer to www.okhca.org/mau.

(d) Reimbursement.

(1) Temporary probe covers are not reimbursed separately for rented oximeters as they are included in the price of the rental.

(2) Pulse oximeters are not reimbursed in conjunction with apnea monitors.

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 35. MEDICAL ASSISTANCE FOR ADULTS AND CHILDREN-
ELIGIBILITY**

**SUBCHAPTER 16. STATE PLAN PERSONAL CARE SERVICES FOR EXPANSION
ADULTS, TEFRA ELIGIBLE CHILDREN AND CERTAIN MAGI POPULATIONS**

317:35-16-1. State Plan Personal Care Services (SPPC)

(a) The State Plan Personal Care services described in this subchapter are available to the following:

- (1) Expansion adults;
- (2) TEFRA children; and
- (3) Certain MAGI populations (children) who qualify under the EPSDT program.

(b) SPPC services assist a member in carrying out Activities of Daily Living (ADLs) or Instrumental Activities of Daily Living (IADLs) directly related to the member's personal care needs. SPPC services prevent or minimize physical health regression or deterioration. SPPC services require a skilled nursing assessment to:

- (1) Assess a member's needs;
- (2) Develop a care plan to meet the member's identified personal care needs;
- (3) Manage care plan oversight; and
- (4) Periodically reassess and update the care plan when necessary.

(c) SPPC services do not include technical services, such as:

- (1) Suctioning;
- (2) Tracheal care;
- (3) Gastrostomy-tube feeding or care;
- (4) Specialized feeding due to choking risk;
- (5) Applying compression stockings;
- (6) Bladder catheterization;
- (7) Colostomy irrigation;
- (8) Wound care;
- (9) Applying prescription lotions or topical ointments;
- (10) Range of motion exercises; or
- (11) Operating equipment of technical nature, such as a patient lift or oxygen equipment.

(d) SPPC members may receive services in limited types of living arrangements as per (1) through (5) of this subsection.

(1) SPPC members are not eligible to receive services while residing in an institutional setting including, but not limited to:

(A) Licensed facilities, such as a:

- (i) Hospital;
- (ii) Nursing facility;
- (iii) Licensed residential care facility; or
- (iv) Licensed assisted living facility; or

(B) In an unlicensed institutional living arrangement, such as a room and board home or facility.

(2) SPPC is not approved when the member lives in the personal care assistant's (PCA) home, except with approval of the OHCA supervisor overseeing SPPC. For approval, a clinical evaluation of the household composition must be conducted and reviewed. The clinical evaluation shall include, but is not limited to, the following:

- (A) Informal supports available;
- (B) All legal obligations of the household member, including the individual who is a legally responsible family member such as a spouse, legal guardian, or parent of a minor child as defined per OAC 317:35-16-7(3);
- (C) Urgency of the services; and
- (D) Any other factors that may arise warranting approval as determined by the OHCA Supervisor.

(3) Members may receive SPPC services in the member's own home, apartment, or a family member's or friend's home or apartment. A home or apartment unit is defined as a self-contained living space having a lockable entrance to the unit including a bathroom and food storage and preparation amenities in addition to bedroom and living space.

(4) For SPPC members who are full-time students, a dormitory room qualifies as an allowable living arrangement to receive SPPC services.

(5) With prior approval from an OHCA supervisor overseeing SPPC, services may be provided in an educational or employment setting to assist the member to achieve vocational goals identified in the care plan.

(e) SPPC services eligibility is contingent on a member requiring one (1) or more of the services offered at least monthly including personal care, meal preparation, housekeeping, laundry, shopping or errands, or specified special tasks to meet ADL or IADL assessed needs.

317:35-16-2. Determination of medical eligibility for State Plan Personal Care (SPPC) services for Expansion Adults, TEFRA, and certain MAGI populations

(a) Eligibility. The OHCA Clinical Review team (OHCA nurse) determines medical eligibility for SPPC services based on the Uniform Comprehensive Assessment Tool (UCAT) Part III and the determination that the member has unmet care needs that require personal care assistance. SPPC services are initiated to support the regular care provided in the member's home. SPPC services are not intended to take the place of regular care, general maintenance tasks, or meal preparation provided by natural supports, such as spouses or other adults who live in the same household. Additionally, SPPC services are not furnished when they principally benefit the family unit. To be eligible for SPPC services, the applicant:

(1) Has adequate informal supports. This means there is adult supervision that is present or available to contribute to care, or decision-making ability, as documented on the UCAT Part III. To remain in his or her home without risk to his or her health, safety, and well-being, the applicant:

- (A) Must have the decision-making ability to respond appropriately to situations that jeopardize his or her health and safety, or has available supports that compensate for his or her lack of ability as documented on the UCAT Part III; or
- (B) His or her decision-making ability, lacks the physical capacity to respond appropriately to situations that jeopardize health and safety, and an OHCA nurse has informed his/her of potential risks and consequences of remaining in the home.

(2) Requires a care plan for planning and administering services delivered under a professional personnel's supervision;

(3) Has a physical impairment or combination of physical and mental impairments as documented on the UCAT Part III. An applicant who poses a threat to himself or herself or others, as supported by professional or credible documentation, may not be approved for SPPC services. An individual who is actively psychotic or believed to be in danger of potential harm to himself or herself or others may not be approved;

(4) Does not have household members or persons who routinely visit the household who, as supported by professional or credible documentation, pose a threat of harm or injury to the applicant or other household visitors;

(5) Lacks the ability to meet personal care needs without additional supervision or assistance, or to communicate needs to others; and

(6) Requires assistance, not of a technical nature, to prevent or minimize physical health regression and deterioration.

(b) **Definitions.** The following words and terms, when used in this subsection, shall have the following meaning, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

(1) "**Activities of Daily Living**" (ADL) means activities that reflect the applicant's or member's ability to perform self-care tasks essential for sustaining health and safety, such as:

(A) Bathing;

(B) Eating;

(C) Dressing;

(D) Grooming;

(E) Transferring, including activities such as getting in and out of a tub or moving from bed to chair;

(F) Mobility;

(G) Toileting; and

(H) Bowel or bladder control.

(2) "**ADLs score of three (3) or greater**" means the applicant or member cannot do at least one (1) ADL at all or needs some help with two (2) or more ADLs.

(3) "**Applicant or Member support very low**" means the applicant's or member's UCAT Part III Support score is zero (0), this indicates, in the UCAT Part III assessor's clinical judgment, the formal and informal sources are sufficient for the applicant's or member's present need level in most functional areas.

(4) "**Applicant or Member support low**" means the member's UCAT Part III Support score is five (5), this indicates, in the UCAT Part III assessor's clinical judgment, the support from formal and informal sources are nearly sufficient for the applicant's or member's present need level in most functional areas. The applicant or member, family, or informal supports are meeting most needs typically expected of family or household members to share or do for one another, such as general household maintenance. There is little risk of institutional placement with loss of current supports.

(5) "**Applicant or Member support moderate**" means the UCAT Part III applicant or member score is fifteen (15), this indicates, in the UCAT Part III assessor's clinical judgment, the formal and informal support is available, but overall, it is inadequate, changing, fragile, or otherwise problematic. The applicant or member requires additional assistance that usually includes personal care assistance with one (1) or more ADLs not available through Medicare, the Veterans Administration, or other federal entitlement programs. Informal caregiver support is considered questionable or unreliable due to one (1) or more criteria in (A) through (D) of this paragraph:

- (A) Care or support is required continuously with no relief or backup available;
- (B) Informal support lacks continuity due to conflicting responsibilities such as work or child care;
- (C) Persons with advanced age or disability provide care; or
- (D) Institutional placement can reasonably be expected with any loss of existing support.

(6) "**Applicant or Member support high**" means the applicant or member score is twenty-five (25) this indicates, in the UCAT Part III assessor's clinical judgment, the formal and informal supports are not sufficient as there is very little or no support available to meet the applicant's or member's high degree of need.

(7) "**Community Services Worker**" means any non-licensed health professional employed by or under contract with a community services provider who provides, for compensation or as a volunteer, health-related services, training, or supportive assistance to frail elderly, disabled person(s), or person(s) with developmental disabilities.

(8) "**Community Services Worker Registry**" means a registry established by the OKDHS per Section (§) 1025.1 of Title 56 of the Oklahoma Statutes (O.S.) to list community services workers who have a final investigative finding of abuse, neglect, or exploitation, per 43A O.S. § 10-103, involving a frail elderly, disabled person(s), or person(s) with developmental disabilities was made by OKDHS or an administrative law judge; and amended in 2002, to include the listing of SoonerCare (Medicaid) personal care assistants (PCAs) providing personal care services.

(9) "**Instrumental Activities of Daily Living (IADL)**" means those daily activities that reflect the applicant or member's ability to perform household chores and tasks within the community essential for sustaining health and safety, such as:

- (A) Shopping;
- (B) Cooking;
- (C) Cleaning;
- (D) Managing money;
- (E) Using a phone;
- (F) Doing laundry;
- (G) Taking medication; and
- (H) Accessing transportation.

(10) "**IADLs score is at least six (6)**" means the applicant or member needs some help with at least three (3) IADLs or cannot do two (2) IADLs at all.

(11) "**IADLs score of eight (8) or greater**" means the applicant or member needs some help with at least four (4) IADLs or the member cannot do two (2) IADLs at all and needs some help with one (1) or more other IADLs.

(12) "**MSQ**" means the Mental Status Questionnaire.

(13) "**MSQ moderate risk range**" means a total weighted-score of seven (7) to eleven (11) that indicates an orientation-memory-concentration impairment or memory impairment.

(14) "**Nutrition moderate risk**" means a total weighted UCAT Part III Nutrition score is eight (8) or greater that indicates poor appetite or weight loss combined with special diet requirements, medications, or difficulties in eating.

(15) "**Social Resource score is eight (8) or more**" means the applicant or member lives alone, has no informal support when he or she is sick or needs assistance, or has little or no contact with others.

(c) **Medical eligibility minimum criteria for SPPC.** The medical eligibility minimum criteria

for SPPC services are the minimum UCAT score criteria that an applicant or member meets for medical eligibility and are:

(1) ADLs score is five (5) or greater; or has an IADLs score of eight (8) or greater; or Nutrition score is (8) or greater; or the MSQ score is seven (7) or greater; or the ADLs score is three (3) and IADLs score is at least six (6); and

(2) Applicant or Member Support score is fifteen (15) or more; or Applicant or Member Support score is five (5) and the Social Resources score is eight (8) or greater.

(d) **Medical eligibility determination.** Medical eligibility for personal care is determined by the OHCA. The medical decision for personal care is made by the OHCA supervisor, overseeing SPPC services, utilizing the UCAT Part III. The member will be notified prior to UCAT III assessment that the result could indicate a need for disability review.

(1) Referrals will be made to the OKDHS if the applicant requires a disability review based on information obtained in referral and/or UCAT Part III.

(2) Upon receipt of the referral the OHCA nurse is responsible for completing the UCAT Part III assessment visit within ten (10) business days of the personal care application for the applicant who is SoonerCare eligible at the time of the request. The OHCA nurse completes the assessment visit within twenty (20) business days of the referral for the applicant not determined SoonerCare eligible at the time of the request. When the application indicates the request is from an individual who resides at home and an immediate response is required to ensure the applicant's health and safety, to prevent an emergency situation, or to avoid institutional placement, the UCAT Part III assessment visit has top-scheduling priority.

(3) During the assessment visit, the OHCA nurse completes the UCAT III and reviews rights to privacy, fair hearing, provider choice, and the pre-service acknowledgement agreement with the member. The OHCA nurse informs the applicant of medical eligibility criteria and provides information about OHCA long-term care service options. The OHCA nurse documents if the member wants to be considered for nursing facility level of care services or if the member is applying for a specific service program on the UCAT Part III. When, based on the information obtained during the assessment, the OHCA nurse determines if the member may be at risk for health and safety, an immediate referral is made to Adult Protective Services or Child Protective Services, as applicable. The referral is documented on the UCAT Part III.

(A) When the applicant's needs cannot be met by personal care services alone, the OHCA nurse provides information about other community long-term care service options. The OHCA nurse assists in accessing service options the applicant or member selects in addition to, or in place of, SPPC services.

(B) When multiple household members are applying for SoonerCare SPPC services, the UCAT Part III assessment is done for all the household members at the same time.

(C) The OHCA nurse provides the applicant or member with information about the qualified agencies in his or her local area that provide services and obtains the applicant's or member's primary and secondary agency choice. When the applicant or family declines to choose a primary personal care service agency, the round-robin rotation system is used for agency selection. The OHCA nurse documents the selected personal care provider agency's name.

(4) The OHCA nurse completes the UCAT Part III and sends it to an alternate OHCA nurse for medical eligibility determination. SPPC services eligibility is established on the date medical eligibility is approved and financial eligibility is established. This date serves as the certification date for services to be initiated.

(A) When the time length from the initial assessment to the date of service eligibility determination exceeds ninety (90) calendar days, a new UCAT Part III assessment is required.

(B) The OHCA nurse assigns a medical certification period of not more than thirty-six (36) months for persons eighteen (18) years of age and older or not more than twelve (12) months for persons younger than eighteen (18) years of age. The service plan period is for twelve (12) months and is provided by the OHCA nurse.

(5) Upon establishing SPPC certification, the OHCA nurse notifies the applicant's or member's preferred provider agency, or when necessary, the secondary provider agency or the provider agency selected by the round robin rotation system. Within one (1) business day of provider agency acceptance, the OHCA nurse submits the information via electronic system to the provider agency for plan development. Refer to OAC 317:35-15-8(a).

(6) Following the provider agency's SPPC plan development, and within three (3) business days of receipt from the provider agency, the OHCA nurse reviews the documentation to ensure agreement with the plan. Once agreement is established, the plan is submitted to OHCA Personal Care Supervisor for review and then the plan is authorized.

(7) Within one (1) business day of knowledge of the authorization, the OHCA nurse submits the plan authorization to the provider agency via electronic system.

317:35-16-3. General financial eligibility requirements for State Plan Personal Care

Financial eligibility for SPPC is determined using the rules on income and resources according to the eligibility group the member is related to

317:35-16-4. Determining financial eligibility of categorically needy individuals

Financial eligibility for State Plan Personal Care (SPPC) services for categorically needy individuals is determined as follows:

(1) **Financial eligibility for Modified Adjusted Gross Income (MAGI) eligibility groups.** See MAGI eligibility rules in Subchapter 6 of this Chapter to determine financial eligibility.

(2) **Determining financial eligibility for State Plan Personal Care (SPPC).** For individuals determined categorically needy for SPPC, the member will not pay a vendor payment for SPPC services.

317:35-16-5. Certification for State Plan Personal Care

(a) **State Plan Personal Care (SPPC) certification period.** The first month of the SPPC certification period is the first month the member is determined financially and medically eligible for SPPC. When eligibility or ineligibility for SPPC is established, OHCA updates the computer-generated notice and the appropriate notice is mailed to the member.

(b) **Financial certification period.** The financial certification period for SPPC services is twelve (12) months. Eligibility redetermination is completed according to the categorical relationship.

(c) **Medical certification period.** A medical certification period of not more than thirty-six (36) months is assigned for a member who is approved for SPPC. The certification period for SPPC services is based on the Uniform Comprehensive Assessment Tool evaluation and clinical judgment of the OHCA nurse.

317:35-16-6. Agency State Plan Personal Care (SPPC) service authorization and monitoring

(a) Within ten (10) business days of referral receipt for SPPC services, the personal care provider

agency nurse completes an assessment of the member's personal care service needs and completes and submits a person-centered plan based on the member's needs to the OHCA nurse. The plan includes the:

- (1) Adv/SPPC-Nurse Evaluation;
- (2) SPPC-Service Planning; and
- (3) SPPC Member Service Agreement.

(b) When more than one (1) person in the household is referred to receive SPPC or ADvantage services, all household members' plans are discussed and developed with the eligible members so service delivery is coordinated to achieve the most efficient use of resources. The number of SPPC service units authorized for each individual is distributed between all eligible family members. This ensures one (1) family member's absence does not adversely affect the family member(s) remaining in the home. When one (1) or more persons in the same household with a SPPC member is referred to or receives other formal services, such as ADvantage or Developmental Disability Services, then those services are coordinated as well.

(c) The personal care provider agency receives documentation from the OHCA nurse for authorization to begin services. The agency provides a copy of the plan to the member upon initiating services.

(d) Prior to the provider agency placing a Personal Care Assistant (PCA) in the member's home or other service-delivery setting, an Oklahoma State Bureau of Investigation background check, an Oklahoma State Department of Health Registry check, and an OKDHS Community Services Worker Registry check is completed per Sections 1-1944 through 1-1948 of Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes. Payment is made for PCAs who provide SPPC services and meet criteria Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:35-15-2(c) (1) through (8).

(e) The provider agency nurse monitors the member's care plan.

(1) The personal care provider agency nurse or staff contacts the member within five (5) business days of authorized document receipt in order to ensure services are implemented according to the authorized care plan.

(2) The provider agency nurse makes a monitoring visit using the Adv/SPPC Nurse Evaluation at least every six (6) months to assess the member's satisfaction with his or her care and to evaluate the care plan for adequacy of goals and authorized units. Whenever a monitoring visit is made, the provider agency nurse documents findings in the electronic system. The provider agency submits monitoring documentation to OHCA nurse for review within five (5) business days of the visit. A registered nurse (RN) conducts the monitoring visit when the PCA is performing hands-on personal care. A licensed practical nurse may only conduct the monitoring visit when the PCA is not performing hands-on personal care. An RN also co-signs the progress notes.

(3) The provider agency nurse's requests to change the number of authorized units in the SPPC plan are submitted via the electronic system to the OHCA nurse to approve or deny prior to changed number of authorized units implementation.

(4) Annually, or more frequently when the member's needs change, the provider agency nurse re-assesses the member's needs and develops a new plan to meet the member's needs. The provider agency nurse completes and submits the annual reassessment documents to the OHCA nurse no sooner than sixty (60) calendar days before the existing service plan end-date, and no later than fourteen (14) calendar days prior to service.

(5) When the member is unstaffed, the provider agency nurse or staff communicates with the member and makes efforts to re-staff. When consecutively unstaffed for seven (7) calendar

days, or fewer depending on the member's needs, the provider agency nurse or staff contacts the unstaffed member weekly by phone to actively monitor the member's health and safety and documents ongoing efforts to provide staff using the electronic system. When the member is unstaffed for thirty (30) days, the provider agency notifies the OHCA nurse. The OHCA nurse contacts the member and when the member chooses, initiates a member transfer to another provider agency that can provide staff.

317:35-16-7. Agency State Plan Personal Care services; billing, and problem resolution

The ADvantage Administration (AA) certifies qualified personal care provider agencies and facilitates the execution of the agencies' SoonerCare (Medicaid) contracts on the Oklahoma Health Care Authority's (OHCA) behalf. OHCA checks the list of providers barred from Medicare/SoonerCare (Medicaid) participation to ensure that the personal care services agency is not listed.

(1) Payment for State Plan Personal Care (SPPC). Payment for SPPC services is made for care provided in the member's own home or in other limited living arrangement types, per Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:35-15-2(b) (1 through 4).

(A) Provider agency use. To provide SPPC services, an agency must be licensed by the Oklahoma State Department of Health, meets certification standards identified by Oklahoma Human Services (OKDHS), and possesses a current SoonerCare (Medicaid) contract.

(B) Reimbursement. SPPC services payment on a member's behalf is made according to the service type and number of authorized service units.

(i) The amount paid to provider agencies for each service unit is determined according to established SoonerCare (Medicaid) rates for the personal care services. Only authorized units contained in each eligible member's individual plan are eligible for reimbursement. Provider agencies serving more than one member residing in the same residence ensure the members' plans combine units in the most efficient manner to meet the needs of all eligible persons in the residence.

(ii) SPPC services payment is for tasks performed in accordance with the authorized care plan per OAC 317:30-5-951. Payment for personal care skilled nursing service is made on the member's behalf for assessment, evaluation, and associated service planning per nursing visit.

(iii) SPPC service time is documented through Electronic Visit Verification System (EVV), previously known as Interactive Voice Response Authentication (IVRA) system, when services are provided in the home.

(2) Issue resolution.

(A) The provider agency provides a written copy of their grievance process to each member at service commencement. The written grievance process includes the name and phone number of a provider agency contact person who is responsible for responding to such complaints and grievances. When the member is dissatisfied with the SPPC provider agency or the assigned PCA and has exhausted attempts to work with the agency's grievance process without resolution, the member is referred to the OHCA team to attempt to resolve the issue(s). The member has the right to appeal to OHCA per OAC 317:2-1-2.

(B) When a PCA performance issue is identified, provider agency staff conducts a counseling conference with the member or the PCA as appropriate. Provider agency staff

counsels the PCA regarding problems with his or her performance.

(3) **Persons ineligible to serve as a PCA.** Payment from SoonerCare funds for SPPC services may not be made to an individual who is a legally responsible family member of the member, such as a spouse, legal guardian, or parent of a minor child, when he or she is providing SPPC services.

317:35-16-8. Financial eligibility redetermination for State Plan Personal Care

The OHCA nurse reviews the electronic system to confirm member eligibility before the end of the certification period. A notice is generated only if there is a change affecting the member's financial eligibility.

317:35-16-9. Medical eligibility redetermination for State Plan Personal Care (SPPC) services

(a) **Medical eligibility redetermination.** The OHCA nurse completes a medical redetermination before the end of the SPPC certification period.

(b) **Recertification.** The OHCA nurse re-assesses the SPPC service members eighteen (18) years of age and older, for medical re-certification based on the member's needs and level of caregiver support required, using the Uniform Comprehensive Assessment Tool (UCAT) at least every thirty-six (36) months. Members younger than eighteen (18) years of age, are re-evaluated by the OHCA nurse using the UCAT on a twelve (12) month basis or sooner when needed. During this re-certification assessment, the OHCA nurse informs the member of the state's other SoonerCare (Medicaid) long-term care options. The OHCA nurse submits the re-assessment to the OHCA nurse for recertification. Documentation is sent to the OHCA nurse no later than the tenth (10th) calendar day of the month certification expires. When the OHCA nurse determines medical eligibility for SPPC services, a recertification review date is entered on the system.

(c) **Change in amount of units or tasks.** When the SPPC provider agency determines a need for a change in the amount of units or tasks in the service, a care plan is completed and submitted to the OHCA nurse within five (5) business days of identifying the assessed need. The OHCA nurse approves or denies the change prior to implementation.

(d) **SPPC services voluntary closure.** When a SPPC member decides personal care services are no longer needed to meet his or her needs, a medical decision is not needed. The member is sent a Voluntary Withdrawal Request for confirmation and signature, and the request is entered into the electronic system upon receipt. A closure notification is submitted to the provider agency.

(e) **Resuming personal care services.** When a SPPC member approved for SPPC services is without services for less than ninety (90) calendar days, but the member has current medical and SoonerCare (Medicaid) financial eligibility approval, SPPC services may be resumed using the member's previously approved care plan. The personal care provider agency nurse contacts the member to determine when changes in health or service needs occurred. When changes are identified, the provider agency nurse completes an assessment visit and submits a SPPC services skilled nursing need re-assessment within ten (10) business days of the resumed plan start date. When the member's needs dictate, the personal care provider agency may submit a request for a change in authorized SPPC service units. When no changes occur, the OHCA agency nurse documents the contact in the electronic system for the OHCA ten (10) business days of the resumed plan start date.

(f) Financial ineligibility. When the OHCA nurse determines the member has lost SoonerCare eligibility, they notify the member of the determination and his or her right to appeal the decision in writing. A closure notification is also submitted to the provider agency.

(g) Closure due to medical ineligibility. When the OHCA determines a member to be medically ineligible for SPPC services, they notify the member of the determination, and his or her right to appeal the decision, in writing. When medical eligibility redetermination is not made prior to current medical eligibility expiration, the existing medical eligibility certification is automatically extended until care level redetermination is established. For members:

(1) Who are not hospitalized or in an extended medical care facility, the existing medical eligibility certification is extended for a maximum sixty (60) calendar days from the date of the previous medical eligibility expiration date;

(2) Who are hospitalized or in an extended medical care facility, the existing medical eligibility certification is extended for thirty (30) calendar days from the date of discharge from the facility or for sixty (60) calendar days from the date of previous medical eligibility expiration date, whichever is longer;

(3) Whose medical eligibility redetermination is not made by applicable extended deadline, the member is determined to be medically ineligible; or

(4) Who no longer meet medical eligibility or cannot be located to complete the redetermination assessment, the OHCA nurse notifies the OHCA personal care supervisor. The OHCA personal care supervisor updates the system's medical eligibility end date and notifies the OHCA nurse of effective end date. A closure notification is submitted to the provider agency.

(h) State Plan Personal Care services termination.

(1) State Plan Personal Care (SPPC) services may be discontinued when:

(A) Professional documentation supports the member poses a threat to self or others;

(B) Other household members or persons who routinely visit the household who, as professional or credible documentation supports, pose a threat to the member or other household visitors;

(C) The member or the other household members use threatening, intimidating, degrading, or sexually inappropriate language or innuendo or behavior towards service providers, either in the home or through other contact or communications. Efforts to correct such behavior are unsuccessful as professional or credible documentation supports;

(D) The member or family member fails to cooperate with SPPC service delivery or to comply with Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) or OKDHS rules as professional or credible documentation supports;

(E) The member's health or safety is at risk as professional or credible documentation supports;

(F) Additional services, either "formal" such as, paid by Sooner Care (Medicaid) or some other funding source or "informal" such as, unpaid are provided in the home. This eliminates the need for SoonerCare SPPC services;

(G) The member's living environment poses a physical threat to self or others as professional or credible documentation supports, and measures to correct hazardous conditions or assist the person to move are unsuccessful or are not feasible; or

(H) The member refuses to select or accept a provider agency or Personal Care Assistant (PCA) service for ninety (90) consecutive days as professional or credible documentation

supports.

(2) For members receiving SPPC services, the provider agency submits documentation with the recommendation to discontinue services to the OHCA. The OHCA nurse reviews the documentation and submits it to the OHCA personal care supervisor for determination. The personal care provider agency or PCA is notified of the decision to terminate services via the electronic system. The member is sent an official closure notice informing him or her of appropriate member rights to appeal the decision to discontinue services.

317:35-16-10. Case changes

(a) Any time there are changes affecting the State Plan Personal Care case eligibility, computer generated notices are issued.

(b) A member has the right to withdraw their request for SPPC services at any time during the process, but if the member is determined to meet eligibility under another aid category based on information available to the agency during this time (as referenced under 317:35-6-60.1), we are required to take action on this regardless of the withdrawal of the request for SPPC services.

317:35-16-11. Billing procedures for State Plan personal care

Billing procedures for State Plan Personal Care (SPPC) services are contained in the Oklahoma Medicaid Management Information Systems (OKMMIS) Billing and Procedure Manual. Questions regarding billing procedures that cannot be resolved through studying the manual are referred to the Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA). SPPC contractors bill on CMS-1500 claim form. The contracted provider submits a claim for each member. The contracted provider prepares claims for services provided and submits the claims to the fiscal agent responsible for ensuring claims are properly completed. All personal care contractors must have a unique provider number. New contracted providers are mailed the provider number after being placed on the claims processing contractor's provider file. All services provided in the member's home, including Personal Care and Nursing, and all work completed in the provider's office, are documented through the Electronic Visit Verification (EVV) system. The EVV system provides alternate backup solutions if the automated system is unavailable; however, in the event of an EVV system failure, the provider documents time in accordance with internal provider agency policy and procedures backup plan. This documentation is sufficient to account for both in-home and in-office services. The provider agency's backup procedures are only permitted when the EVV system is unavailable.

317:35-16-12. Social services referral

In many situations, members receiving medical services through SoonerCare (Medicaid) need social services. If a member, who is eligible for State Plan Personal Care Services through this Subchapter, has a need for social services, the OHCA will process those necessary referrals.

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 35. MEDICAL ASSISTANCE FOR ADULTS AND CHILDREN-
ELIGIBILITY**

**SUBCHAPTER 6. SOONERCARE FOR PREGNANT WOMEN AND FAMILIES WITH
CHILDREN**

PART 3. APPLICATION PROCEDURES

317:35-6-15. SoonerCare application for pregnant women, families with children, and expansion adults; forms

(a) **Application.** An application for pregnant women, families with children, and expansion adults consists of the SoonerCare application. The application form is signed by the individual, parent, spouse, guardian, or someone else acting on the individual's behalf. An individual does not have to have received a medical service nor expect to receive one to be certified for SoonerCare. Individuals who wish to use a paper application form to apply for coverage under a MAGI Modified Adjusted Gross Income (MAGI) eligibility group must submit the federal Single Streamlined Application to apply for SoonerCare.

(1) An application may be made in a variety of locations, for example, a physician's office, a hospital or other medical facility, Oklahoma Department of Health, in the individual's county Oklahoma Department of Human Services (OKDHS) office, or online. A face-to-face interview is not required. Applications are mailed to the OHCA Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) Eligibility Unit. When an individual indicates a need for SoonerCare, the physician or facility may forward an application to the OHCA Eligibility Unit for processing. If the applicant is unable to sign the application, someone acting on his/her behalf may sign the application. An application for SoonerCare may also be submitted through the Health Insurance Exchange.

(2) OKDHS form 08MA005E, Notification of Needed Medical Services, is required only for preauthorization of medical services. Although not required, the form may be submitted by the physician or facility as notification of a need for medical services. The form also may be accepted as medical verification of pregnancy.

(3) Receipt of the SoonerCare application form or OKDHS form 08MA005E constitutes an application for SoonerCare.

(4) If OKDHS form 08MA005E is received and a SoonerCare application cannot be completed, receipt of OKDHS form 08MA005E constitutes an application which must be registered and subsequently denied. The applicant and provider are notified by computer-generated notice.

(5) A hospital providing services may file an electronic Notification of Date of Service (NODOS) form with OHCA up to five (5) days from the date services are rendered. The hospital, applicant, or someone acting on the applicant's behalf has ~~fifteen (15)~~ forty (40) days from the date the NODOS form was received by OHCA to submit a completed SoonerCare application. Filing a NODOS does not guarantee coverage and if a completed application is not submitted within ~~fifteen (15)~~ forty (40) days, the NODOS is void.

(b) **Date of application.** When an application is made online, the date of application is the date the application is submitted online. The date of application for a paper application is the date a signed application is received and stamped in by contracted agency partners or OHCA. When a

request for SoonerCare is made orally, and that request is followed within twenty (20) days by a signed application, the documented date of the oral request is the date of application. When OKDHS form 08MA005E is received by OKDHS, or received by OHCA and forwarded to OKDHS, the earliest of the date stamps is considered the date of request and should be honored when followed within twenty (20) days by a signed application for SoonerCare.

(c) **Other application and signature requirements.** For additional rules regarding other application and eligibility determination procedures, see Part 7 of Subchapter 5 of this Chapter.

DRAFT

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 2. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES AND PROCESS**

SUBCHAPTER 1. ADMINISTRATIVE APPEALS

317:2-1-2. Appeals

(a) Request for appeals.

(1) For the purpose of calculating the timeframe for requesting an administrative appeal of an ~~agency~~Agency action, the date on the written notice shall not be included. The last day of the timeframe shall be included, unless it is a legal holiday as defined by Title 25 of the Oklahoma Statutes (O.S.) Section (§) 82.1, or any other day the Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) is closed or closes early, in which case, the timeframe runs until the close of the next full business day.

(2) An appeals request that an aggrieved member or provider sends via mail is deemed filed on the date that the ~~agency~~Agency receives it.

(b) Member process overview.

(1) The appeals process allows a member to appeal a decision relating to program benefits. Examples are decisions involving medical services, prior authorizations for medical services, or discrimination complaints.

(2) In order to initiate an appeal, the member must file a LD-1 (Member Complaint/Grievance Form) within thirty (30) calendar days of the date the OHCA sends written notice of its action, in accordance with Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:2-1-2(a), above, or, in matters in which a formal notice is not sent by the ~~agency~~Agency, within thirty (30) days of the date on which the member knew or should have known the facts or circumstances serving as the basis for appeal.

(3) If the LD-1 form is not received timely, the OHCA administrative law judge (ALJ) will cause to be issued a letter stating the appeal will not be heard. In the case of tax warrant intercept appeals, if the LD-1 form is not received by OHCA within the timeframe pursuant to 68 O.S. § 205.2, OHCA similarly will cause to be issued a letter stating the appeal will not be heard because it is untimely.

(4) If the LD-1 form is not completely filled out or if necessary, documentation is not included, then the appeal will not be heard.

(5) OHCA will advise members that if assistance is needed in reading or completing the grievance form, arrangements will be made to provide such assistance.

(6) Upon receipt of the member's appeal, a fair hearing before the OHCA ALJ will be scheduled. The member will be notified in writing of the date and time of the hearing. The member, and/or his/her designated authorized ~~representative~~representative, must appear at the hearing, either in person or telephonically. The preferred method for a hearing is telephonically, requests for an in-person hearing must be received in writing on OHCA's Form LD-4 (Request for In-Person Hearing) no later than ten (10) calendar days prior to the scheduled hearing date.

(7) The hearing shall be conducted according to OAC 317:2-1-5. The OHCA ALJ's decision may in certain instances be appealed to the CEO of the OHCA, or his or her designated independent ALJ, which is a record review at which the parties do not appear (OAC 317:2-1-13).

(8) Member appeals are ordinarily decided within ninety (90) days from the date on which the member's timely request for a fair hearing is received, unless:

(A) The appellant was granted an expedited appeal pursuant to OAC 317:2-1-2.5;

(B) The OHCA cannot reach a decision because the appellant requests a delay or fails to take a required action, as reflected in the record;

(C) There is an administrative or other emergency beyond OHCA's control, as reflected in the record; or

(D) The appellant filed a request for an appeal of a denied step therapy exception request, pursuant to OAC 317:2-1-18.

(9) Tax warrant intercept appeals will be heard directly by the OHCA ALJ. A decision is normally rendered by the OHCA ALJ within twenty (20) days of the hearing.

(c) Provider process overview.

(1) The proceedings as described in this subsection contain the hearing process for those appeals filed by providers. These appeals encompass all subject matter cases contained in OAC 317:2-1-2(d)(2).

(2) All provider appeals are initially heard by the OHCA ALJ under OAC 317:2-1-2(d)(2).

(A) In order to initiate an appeal, a provider must file the appropriate LD form within thirty (30) calendar days of the date the OHCA sends written notice of its action, in accordance with OAC 317:2-1-2(a), above. LD-2 forms should be used for Program Integrity audit appeals; LD-3 forms are to be used for all other provider appeals.

(B) Except for OHCA Program Integrity audit appeals, if the appropriate LD form is not received timely, the OHCA ALJ will cause a letter to be issued stating that the appeal will not be heard.

(C) A decision ordinarily will be issued by the OHCA ALJ within forty-five (45) days of the close of all evidence in the appeal.

(D) Unless otherwise limited by OAC 317:2-1-7 or 317:2-1-13, the OHCA ALJ's decision is appealable to OHCA's CEO, or his or her designated independent ALJ.

(d) OHCA ALJ jurisdiction. The OHCA ALJ has jurisdiction of the following matters:

(1) Member appeals.

(A) Discrimination complaints regarding the SoonerCare program;

(B) Appeals which relate to the scope of services, covered services, complaints regarding service or care, enrollment, disenrollment, and reenrollment in the SoonerCare Program program;

(C) Fee-for-service appeals regarding the furnishing of services, including prior authorizations;

(D) Appeals which relate to the tax warrant intercept system through the OHCA. Tax warrant intercept appeals will be heard directly by the OHCA ALJ. A decision will be rendered by the OHCA ALJ within twenty (20) days of the hearing;

(E) Proposed administrative sanction appeals pursuant to OAC 317:35-13-7. Proposed administrative sanction appeals will be heard directly by the OHCA ALJ. A decision by the OHCA ALJ will ordinarily be rendered within twenty (20) days of the hearing. This is the final and only appeals process for proposed administrative sanctions;

(F) Appeals which relate to eligibility determinations made by OHCA;

(G) Appeals of insureds participating in Insure Oklahoma which are authorized by OAC 317:45-9-8;

(H) Appeals which relate to a requested step therapy protocol exception as provided by 63 O.S. § 7310; and

(I) Requests for Statestate fair hearing arising from a member's appeal of a managed careCE or DBM adverse benefit determination.

(2) Provider appeals.

- (A) Whether Pre-admission Screening and Resident Review (PASRR) was completed as required by law;
- (B) Denial of request to disenroll member from provider's SoonerCare Choice panel;
- (C) Appeals by long-term care facilities for administrative penalty determinations as a result of findings made under OAC 317:30-5-131.2(b)(5)(B) and (d)(8);
- (D) Appeals of Professional Service Contract awards and other matters related to the Central Purchasing Act pursuant to Title 74 O.S. § 85.1 et seq.;
- (E) Drug rebate appeals;
- (F) Provider appeals of OHCA Program Integrity audit findings pursuant to OAC 317:2-1-7. This is the final and only appeals process for appeals of OHCA Program Integrity audit findings;
- (G) Oklahoma Electronic Health Records Incentive program appeals related only to incentive payments, incentive payment amounts, provider eligibility determinations, and demonstration of adopting, implementing, upgrading, and meaningful use eligibility for incentives;
- (H) Supplemental Hospital Offset Payment Program (SHOPP) annual assessment, supplemental payment, fees, or penalties as specifically provided in OAC 317:2-1-15; and
- (I) Appeals from any adjustment made to a long-term care facility's cost report pursuant to OAC 317:30-5-132, including any appeal following a request for reconsideration made pursuant to OAC 317:30-5-132.1.
- ~~(J) Request for a State fair hearing arising from provider's appeal of managed care audit findings, for cause or immediate termination of the provider's managed care contract, or managed care claims denial.~~

317:2-1-2.6. Continuation of benefits or services pending appeal

- (a) In accordance with Section 431.230 of Title 42 of the Code of Federal Regulations, if an ~~Appellant~~appellant submits a written request for a hearing within ~~ten (10)~~sixty (60) days of the notice of the adverse ~~agency~~Agency action, the ~~Appellant~~appellant may also request that existing benefits or services (hereinafter, collectively referred to as "services") be continued or reinstated until the earlier of dismissal of the appeal, ~~Appellant's~~appellant's withdrawal of the appeal, or an initial hearing decision adverse to the ~~Appellant~~appellant.
- (b) If the ~~Appellant~~appellant fails to indicate a preference as to continuation or reinstatement of services in a written request for hearing made within ~~ten (10)~~sixty (60) days of the notice of the adverse ~~agency~~Agency action, services shall be continued or reinstated. Provided, however, that a SoonerCare member shall not be entitled to continuation or reinstatement of services pending an appeal related to the following:
 - (1) When a service is denied because the member has exceeded the limit applicable to that service;
 - (2) When a request for a prior authorization is denied for a prescription drug. However:
 - (A) The Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) may authorize a single seventy-two (72) hour emergency supply of the drug, in accordance with Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:30-5-77.2;
 - (B) A SoonerCare provider may initiate a step therapy exception request on behalf of a member, in accordance with OAC 317:30-5-77.4;
 - (3) When coverage of a prescription drug or service is denied because the requested drug or service is not a category or class of drugs or services covered by OHCA;
 - (4) When coverage for a prescription drug is denied because the ~~enrollee~~Enrollee has been

- locked into one (1) pharmacy and the member seeks to fill a prescription at another pharmacy;
or
(5) When a physician or other licensed health care practitioner has failed to prescribe or order the service or level of service for which continuation or reinstatement is requested.
(c) If services are continued or reinstated during the appeals process and the hearing is not decided in the ~~Appellant's~~appellant's favor, OHCA may seek to recover reimbursement of all services received pending the hearing decision.

SUBCHAPTER 3. MEMBER GRIEVANCES AND APPEALS, PROVIDER COMPLAINTS, AND STATE FAIR HEARINGS IN ~~MANAGED-CARE~~SOONERSELECT

317:2-3-1. Definitions

The following words or terms used in the Subchapter shall have the following meaning, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

"Adverse benefit determination" means a determination by a health carrier or its designee utilization review organization that an admission, availability of care, continued stay, or other health care service that is a covered benefit has been reviewed and, based upon the information provided, does not meet the health carrier's requirements for medical necessity, appropriateness, health care setting, level of care or effectiveness, and the requested service or payment for the service is therefore denied, reduced or terminated and in accordance with Title 36 of Oklahoma Statute (O.S.) § 6475.3.

"Appeal" means a review of an adverse benefit determination performed by a ~~managed care entity~~CE or DBM or according to managed care law, regulations, and contracts.

"C.F.R." means the Code of Federal Regulations.

"Contracted entity" or "CE" means an organization or entity that enters into or will enter into a capitated contract with the Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) for the delivery of services that will assume financial risk, operational accountability, and state-wide or regional functionality in this act in managing comprehensive health outcomes of Medicaid members. This includes an accountable care organization, a provider-led entity, a commercial plan, a dental benefit manager, or any other entity as determined by the OHCA.

"Dental benefits manager" or "DBM" means an entity that meets the definition of a Prepaid Ambulatory Health Plan (PAHP) as per 42 C.F.R. § 438.2 and is under contract with the OHCA to manage and deliver all services described in this SoonerSelect Dental Contract and who handles claims payment and prior authorizations and coordinates dental care with participating providers and Enrollees. Also referred to as a "Contractor".

"Exigent circumstances" means a situation in which a reasonable person applying the appropriate standard would consider a member's health condition to be urgent with identifiable harm that could reasonably be expected to occur if the requested health care service is not provided promptly. The appropriate standard requires the assessment of a member's health condition through application, at minimum, of established, accepted standards of medical practice. Evidence of the member's condition may be demonstrated by indications from the treating provider or from the member's medical record, including but not limited to such information as the member's diagnosis, symptoms, or test results.

"Grievance" means a member's expression of dissatisfaction about any ~~managed care program~~ matter other than an adverse benefit determination and may include, but is not limited to, the quality of care or services provided, aspects of interpersonal relationships such as rudeness of a ~~managed~~

~~care~~contracted entity employee or contracted provider, or failure to respect the ~~member's~~Enrollee's rights regardless of whether remedial action is requested. A grievance includes a ~~member's~~Enrollee's right to dispute an extension of time to make an authorization decision when proposed by the ~~managed care entity~~Contractor.

"Health plan" means any person or entity that is licensed as a health maintenance organization (HMO) by the State of Oklahoma to provide or arrange for the delivery of basic health care services to ~~enrollees~~Enrollees on a prepaid basis, except for copayments or deductibles for which ~~enrollee~~Enrollee is responsible, or both, that meets the definition of an HMO as delineated in the Oklahoma State Medicaid Plan and that contracts with the ~~State~~state to provide services to ~~enrollees~~Enrollees. "Health plan" is synonymous with "health carrier".

~~"Managed care entity" or "MCE" means any entity permitted under 42 C.F.R. Part 438 to contract with a state for services provided under a risk contract or a nonrisk contract within the state's Medicaid managed care program, including but not limited to managed care organization (MCO), primary care case management (PCCM), primary care case management entity (PCCM entity), prepaid ambulatory health plan (PAHP), and prepaid inpatient health plan (PIHP).~~

~~"Managed care organization" or "MCO" means the same in these rules as defined at 42 Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) § 438.2.~~

~~"Managed care program" or "managed care" or "MCP" means a health care delivery system organized to manage cost, utilization, and quality that is operated by a state as authorized under sections 1915(a), 1915(b), 1932(a), or 1115(a) of the Social Security Act and relevant state law.~~

"Member" means an individual eligible for Medicaid in the State of Oklahoma, eligible for a managed care program, and enrolled in a ~~managed care entity~~CE or DBM. "Member" is synonymous with ~~"health plan enrollee~~Enrollee".

"OAC" means the Oklahoma Administrative Code.

"OHCA" means the Oklahoma Health Care Authority.

"O.S." means the Oklahoma Statutes.

"Prepaid ambulatory health plan" or "PAHP" means the same in these rules as defined at 42 C.F.R. § 438.2.

"Prepaid inpatient health plan" or "PIHP" means the same in these rules as defined at 42 C.F.R. § 438.2.

"Primary care case management" or "PCCM" means the same in these rules as defined at 42 C.F.R. § 438.2.

"Primary care case management entity" or "PCCM entity" means the same in these rules as defined at 42 C.F.R. § 438.2.

~~"Prior authorization (PA)" or "PA"~~ means a requirement that a member, through a provider, obtain the ~~managed care entity's~~CE or DBM approval before a requested medical service is provided or before services by a non-participating provider are received. Prior authorization is not a guarantee of claims payment; however, failure to obtain prior authorization may result in denial of the claim or reduction in payment of the claim. For purposes of these rules, "prior authorization" is included as a determination of health care services within the term "adverse benefit determination".

"Provider" means a health care or dental provider licensed or certified in this state.

317:2-3-2. Timeframes

(a) For the purpose of calculating a timeframe in this Subchapter, the date on the written notice is not included. The last day of the timeframe is included, unless the last day is a legal holiday, as defined by 25 ~~Oklahoma Statutes (O.S.)~~O.S. § 82.1, or any other day OHCA is closed or closes early, in which case, the timeframe runs until the close of the next full business day.

- (b) A grievance or appeal a member sends via mail is deemed filed on the date the MCE receives request.
- (c) A request for reconsideration or appeal a provider sends via mail is deemed filed on the date the MCE receives the request.
- (d) A request for ~~State~~ fair hearing by a member or provider is deemed filed on the date the OHCA receives the request.

317:2-3-3. Grievance and appeals system

In accordance with state and federal law, including but not limited to 63 ~~Oklahoma Statutes (O.S.)~~O.S. § 7310 and 42 ~~Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.)~~C.F.R. §§ 438.210, 431.213-14, 438.402, 438.404, 438.408, and 438.410, each MCE and DBM will have an established grievance and appeals system by which to receive, process, and resolve grievances and appeals, including requests for extensions of relevant timeframes, and by which to afford parties proper notice.

317:2-3-4. Member grievances

- (a) **Filing.**
 - (1) **Filing with ~~managed care entity~~ a CE or DBM.** Except as described in this ~~section~~Section, when the member is enrolled in a managed care program, the member initially files a grievance with the ~~managed care entity~~CE or DBM in which the member is enrolled.
 - (2) **Exception: Filing with OHCA.** When the member is enrolled in a ~~managed care~~SoonerSelect program and the grievance deals with direct interaction with OHCA or its employees or officers, the member first files the grievance with OHCA as an administrative appeal pursuant to applicable rules set forth at ~~Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC)~~OAC 317:2-1-2 et seq.
- (b) **Timing.** A member may file a grievance, orally or in writing, at any time.
- (c) **Provider's and authorized representative's right to file a grievance.** A provider or an authorized representative may file a grievance on behalf of a member, provided that the provider or authorized representative has obtained the member's written consent to do so. The authorized representative of a deceased member's estate may also be a party to the ~~litigation~~resolution of a grievance, as applicable.
- (d) **Clinical expertise in a grievance decision.** When a grievance involves clinical issues or is related to a denial of an expedited resolution of an appeal, the decision maker(s) of such a grievance will have clinical expertise as discussed at OAC 317:2-3-6.
- (e) **Consideration of information in an appeal decision.** The decision maker(s) for any appeal will take into account all comments, documents, records, and other information submitted without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial determination.
- (f) **OHCA-established timeframes for grievance decisions.** A grievance related in any way to the member's health condition will be resolved, with notice provided, as expeditiously as the member's health condition requires.
 - (1) Per 42 ~~Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.)~~C.F.R. § 438.408, the standard resolution of a grievance will occur within ninety (90) calendar days after the ~~managed care entity~~CE or DBM receives the grievance. The OHCA may choose to adopt a shorter timeframe for the grievance resolution. The CE and DBM must adhere to such timeframes that are described within the Contract.
 - ~~(2) OHCA sets the standard resolution of a grievance to occur within sixty (60) calendar days, inclusive of any extensions, after the MCE receives the grievance.~~
 - ~~(3)~~(2) The MCE and DBM may extend the timeframe in ~~(f)(2)~~ up to fourteen (14) days if:

- (A) The member requests the extension; or
 - (B) The ~~MCE and DBM~~ shows (to the OHCA's satisfaction upon OHCA's request) that there is need for additional information and how the delay is in the member's interest.
- ~~(4)~~(3) If the ~~MCE and DBM~~ extends the timeframes not at the request of the member, it must complete all of the following:
- (A) Make reasonable efforts to give the member prompt oral notice of the delay; and
 - (B) Within two (2) calendar days give the member written notice of the reason for the decision to extend the timeframe and inform ~~the enrollee~~Enrollee of the right to file a grievance if he or she disagrees with that decision; and
- ~~(5)~~(4) The ~~MCE and DBM~~ will adhere to all OHCA rules related to grievances, including but not limited to:
- (A) Observing the timeframe for standard resolution of a grievance;
 - (B) Sending acknowledgement of receiving the grievance in writing to the member or the member's authorized representative within ten (10) calendar days of receipt; and
 - (C) Sending written notice conforming with this ~~subchapter~~Subchapter to the affected parties within three (3) calendar days following resolution of the grievance.

317:2-3-5. Member appeals

(a) Filing.

- (1) **Filing with managed care entity a CE or DBM.** Except as described in this Section, when the member is enrolled in a managed care program, the member initially files an appeal with the ~~managed care entity~~CE or DBM in which the member is enrolled.
 - (2) **Exception: Filing with OHCA.** When the member is enrolled in a ~~managed care~~SoonerSelect program, the member initially files administrative appeals with OHCA and follows the appeals rules set forth at ~~Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC)~~OAC 317:2-1-2 et seq. whenever the appeal concerns a decision the ~~Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA)~~OHCA made regarding:
 - (A) Eligibility for Oklahoma Medicaid;
 - (B) Eligibility for a ~~managed care~~SoonerSelect program;
 - (C) Enrollment into Oklahoma Medicaid;
 - (D) Enrollment, including use of an auto-assignment algorithm, into a ~~managed care entity~~CE or DBM;
 - (E) Disenrollment from a ~~managed care entity~~CE or DBM; or
 - (F) Any other matter, so long as OHCA made the decision in the matter.
- (b) **Timing.** A member may file an appeal, orally or in writing, at any time. An administrative appeal or State fair hearing request made to OHCA shall conform with the requirements of ~~OAC 317:2-1-2 et seq.~~ in terms of the manner and timing of any such filing.
- (1) Per OAC 317:2-3-4(b), a member may file a grievance at any time. If the grievance decision is adverse to the member, the member may file an appeal. The member has sixty (60) days from the adverse decision notice to file an appeal.
 - (2) An administrative appeal or state-fair hearing request made to OHCA shall conform with the requirements of OAC 317:2-1-2 et seq. in terms of the manner and timing of any such filing.
- (c) **Levels of appeals.** The ~~managed care entity~~CE or DBM will use only one (1) level of ~~appeals~~appeal, in accordance with ~~42 Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.)~~C.F.R. § 438.402.
- (d) **Provider's and authorized representative's right to file an appeal.** A provider or an authorized representative may file an appeal on behalf of a member, provided that the provider or authorized representative has obtained the member's written consent to do so. The authorized

representative of a deceased member's estate may also be a party to the litigation of an appeal, as applicable.

(e) **Clinical expertise in an appeal decision.** When an appeal involves clinical issues or is related to a denial based on lack of medical necessity, the decision maker(s) of such an appeal will have clinical expertise as discussed at OAC 317:2-3-6.

(f) **Consideration of information in an appeal decision.** The decision maker(s) for any appeal will take into account all comments, documents, records, and other information submitted without regard to whether such information was submitted or considered in the initial determination.

(g) **OHCA-established timeframes for appeals decisions.** An appeal related in any way to the member's health condition will be resolved, with notice provided, as expeditiously as the member's health condition requires.

~~(1) Per 42 C.F.R. § 438.408, the standard resolution of an appeal will occur within thirty (30) calendar days after the managed care entity receives the appeal.~~

~~(2)-(1) Per 42 C.F.R. § 438.408, the OHCA establishes the following timeframes for appeals:~~

~~(A) Standard resolution of an appeal will occur within thirty (30) calendar days, excluding any extensions, after the managed care entity CE or DBM receives the appeal;~~

~~(B) Expedited resolution of an appeal will occur within seventy two (72) clock hours after the MCE receives the appeal; The CE and DBM will be responsible for expedited resolutions.~~

~~(i) An expedited appeal resolution should occur if the standard resolution timeframe could jeopardize the Enrollee's life or health or ability to attain, maintain, or regain maximum function.~~

~~(ii) Per 42 C.F.R. § 438.408(b)(2), if the CE or DBM denies a request for expedited appeal resolution, the CE or DBM must transfer the appeal to the standard appeal resolution timeframe.~~

~~(C) In exigent circumstances, resolution of a step therapy request appeal will occur within twenty-four (24) clock-hours after the MCE receives the appeal; and~~

~~(D) In all other circumstances, resolution of a step therapy request appeal will occur within seventy-two (72) clock-hours after the MCE receives the appeal.~~

~~(3) The MCE and DBM may extend the timeframes in (g)(2)(1)(A) or (B) up to fourteen (14) days if:~~

~~(A) The member requests the extension; or~~

~~(B) The MCE and DBM shows (to the OHCA's satisfaction upon OHCA's request) that there is need for additional information and how the delay is in the member's interest.~~

~~(4) If the MCE and DBM extends the timeframes not at the request of the member, it must complete all of the following:~~

~~(A) Make reasonable efforts to give the member prompt oral notice of the delay;~~

~~(B) Within two (2) calendar days give the member written notice of the reason for the decision to extend the timeframe and inform the enrollee Enrollee of the right to file a grievance if he or she disagrees with that decision; and~~

~~(C) Resolve the appeal as expeditiously as the member's health condition requires and no later than the date the extension expires.~~

~~(5) The MCE and DBM will adhere to all OHCA policies related to appeals, including but not limited to:~~

~~(A) Observing the timeframes for resolving appeals, including standard resolution, expedited resolution, and resolution of step therapy appeals (in both exigent and other circumstances);~~

- (B) Sending acknowledgement of receiving the appeal in writing to the member or the member's authorized representative within five (5) calendar days of receipt;
- (C) Sending written notice conforming with this ~~subchapter~~Subchapter to the affected parties within three (3) calendar days following resolution of the appeal; and
- (D) Sending documentation, in conformance with OAC 317:2-3-12(d) and any established OHCA forms or processes, to OHCA within fifteen (15) calendar days after a request for ~~State~~state fair hearing.

317:2-3-5.1. Continuation of benefits pending appeal and state fair hearing

(a) Per OAC 317:2-1-2.6 and 42 C.F.R. § 438.420, the CE or DBM shall continue a member's benefits under the plan when all of the following occur:

- (1) The member files the request for an appeal within sixty (60) calendar days following the date on the adverse benefit determination notice in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.402(c)(1)(ii) and (c)(2)(ii):
- (2) The appeal involves the termination, suspension, or reduction of previously authorized services;
- (3) The services were ordered by an authorized provider;
- (4) The period covered by the original authorization has not expired; and
- (5) The member timely files for continuation of benefits, meaning on or before the later of the following:
 - (A) Within ten (10) calendar days of the CE or DBM sending the notice of adverse benefit determination; or
 - (B) The intended effective date of the CE or DBM's proposed adverse benefit determination.

(b) If the member fails to indicate a preference as to continuation or reinstatement of services in a written request for hearing made within sixty (60) calendar days of the adverse benefit determination, services shall be continued or reinstated. Notwithstanding the foregoing, continuation or reinstatement of benefits shall not occur under the following circumstances:

- (1) The member has exceeded the limit applicable to the services; or
- (2) When a provider has failed to prescribe or order the service or level of service for which continuation or reinstatement is requested.

(c) The CE or DBM shall continue or reinstate benefits if the member:

- (1) Files a request for a state fair hearing within one hundred twenty (120) days of the adverse resolution notice; and
- (2) Files a request for continuation of benefits within thirty (30) calendar days of the adverse resolution notice.

(d) If the CE or DBM continues or reinstates the member's benefits at the member's request while the appeal or state fair hearing is pending, the benefits must be continued until one (1) of the following occurs:

- (1) The member withdraws the appeal or request for state fair hearing;
- (2) The member fails to request a state fair hearing and continuation of benefits within ten (10) calendar days after the CE or DBM sends the notice of an adverse resolution to the member's appeal under 42 C.F.R. §§ 438.420 (c)(2) and 438.408 (d)(2); or
- (3) A state fair hearing officer issues a hearing decision adverse to the member.

317:2-3-6. External medical review and clinical expertise

(a) ~~No external~~External medical review. The ~~Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA)~~OHCA

will not offer an external medical review for the purposes of grievances or appeals.

(b) **Clinical expertise standards.** Individuals making the decision for a grievance or appeal regarding an adverse benefit determination will be unbiased with appropriate clinical expertise in treating the member's condition or disease.

- (1) Medical review staff of the MCE and DBM will be licensed or credentialed health care clinicians with relevant clinical training and/or experience.
- (2) All MCE and DBM will use medical review staff for such appeals and shall not use any automated claim review software or other automated functionality for such appeals.
- (3) Bias is deemed to exist if an individual making a decision on a grievance or appeal was involved in, or a subordinate of any individual involved in, any previous level of review or decision regarding the subject matter of the grievance or appeal.
- (4) Clinical expertise is deemed necessary for decisions makers whenever:
 - (A) The denial is based on a lack of medical necessity;
 - (B) The grievance is regarding a denial of an expedited resolution an appeal; and
 - (C) The grievance or appeal involves clinical issues.

317:2-3-7. Obligation to pay costs of services

(a) In accordance with 42 ~~Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.)~~ C.F.R. § 438.420(d), the MCE and DBM may recover from the member the costs of services provided to the member while an appeal or ~~State~~ state fair hearing is pending:

- (1) To the extent the services were continued solely due to the requirements set forth in 42 C.F.R. §§ 438.420 or 431.230(b); and
- (2) The final resolution of the appeal or ~~State~~ state fair hearing upholds the MCE or DBM's adverse benefit determination.

(b) If OHCA or the MCE or DBM reverses a decision to deny, limit, or delay services and these services were not furnished while the appeal or ~~State~~ state fair hearing was pending, the MCE or DBM will authorize or provide the disputed services promptly and as expeditiously as the member's health condition requires.

(c) If OHCA or the MCE or DBM reverses a decision to deny, limit, or delay services and the member received the disputed services while the appeal or ~~State~~ state fair hearing was pending, the MCE or DBM will pay for these services.

317:2-3-8. Grievances and appeals notice

(a) The MCE or DBM will provide timely written notices per OAC 317:2-3-4 and 317:2-3-5.

(b) Each notice will conform to the provisions of 42 ~~Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.)~~ C.F.R. § 438.10 related to information provided from an MCE or DBM to a member.

(c) At minimum, each notice will:

- (1) Be written in a manner and format, as outlined in the Contract, that may be easily understood and is readily accessible by members;
- (2) Use OHCA-developed definitions for terms as those terms are defined in the ~~Model Member~~ Enrollee Handbook related to the ~~contract~~ Contract;
- (3) Use a font size no smaller than twelve-point (12-point);
- (4) Be made available in alternative formats and through the provision of auxiliary aids and services in an appropriate manner that takes into consideration the special needs of members with disabilities or limited English proficiency; and
- (5) Include a large-print tagline, in minimum eighteen-point (18-point) font, and information on how to request auxiliary aids and services, including the provision of materials in alternative

formats.

(d) Per the delegation choice of 42 C.F.R. § 438.228, OHCA does not delegate responsibility to the MCE or DBM for timely notices of action under 42 C.F.R. Part 431, Subpart E.

(1) OHCA retains all responsibility for timely notices of action under 42 C.F.R. Part 431, Subpart E, including:

(A) A termination, suspension of, or reduction in covered benefits or services, when termination, suspension, or reduction is determined by OHCA;

(B) A termination, suspension of, or reduction in Medicaid eligibility, when termination, suspension, or reduction is determined by OHCA; and

(C) An increase in beneficiary liability, including determination that a beneficiary will incur a greater amount of medical expenses in order to establish income eligibility or is subject to an increase in premiums or cost sharing charges, when such increase is determined by OHCA.

(2) The foregoing (d)(1) does not apply to:

(A) Any grievance notice required to be sent by the MCE or DBM by ~~contract~~Contract or 42 C.F.R. § 438.408;

(B) Any adverse benefit determination notice based on the termination, suspension, or reduction of authorized covered services, payment denial, or standard, expedited, or untimely service authorization denial or limitation as required to be sent by the MCE or DBM by ~~contract~~ or 42 C.F.R. § 438.404;

(C) Any appeal resolution notice required to be sent by the MCE or DBM by ~~contract~~ or 42 C.F.R. § 438.404 or 438.408; or

(D) Any other notice required to be sent by the MCE or DBM by ~~contract~~Contract or any state or federal law or regulation.

(3) OHCA's decision not to delegate the notices of action required by 42 C.F.R. Part 431 Subpart E applies to any ~~managed care entity~~CE or DBM under ~~any managed care contract~~Contract for professional services unless and until this ~~section~~Section is revoked.

(4) The random review system required of a state by 42 C.F.R. § 438.228 does not apply to OHCA, because OHCA has not delegated responsibility for the relevant notices of action.

(5) For any notices of action for which OHCA retains responsibility under this ~~section~~Section, OHCA will ensure the notice conforms to federal regulations at 42 C.F.R. Part 431, Subpart E, and any applicable requirements under 42 C.F.R. § 438.228. OHCA will send such notices of action by electronic or postal means at least ten (10) days before the date of action, except as permitted when:

(A) OHCA has factual information confirming the death of a beneficiary;

(B) OHCA receives a clear written statement signed by a member that they no longer wish to receive services or that gives information that requires termination or reduction of services and indicates that the member understands that supplying the information will result in termination or reduction of services;

(C) The member has been admitted to an institution where they are ineligible for further services;

(D) The member's whereabouts are unknown and the post office returns, indicating no forwarding address, OHCA mail sent directly to the member; ~~and/or~~

(E) The MCE or DBM establishes the fact that the member has been accepted for Medicaid services by another local jurisdiction, state, territory, or commonwealth.

(6) For any notices of action for which OHCA retains responsibility under this Section, OHCA will ensure the notice contains:

- (A) A statement of the action OHCA intends to take and the effective date of such action;
- (B) A clear statement of the specific reasons supporting the intended action, the specific regulations that support or require the action, and an explanation of the member's rights to request a hearing; and
- (C) An explanation of the circumstances under which benefits continue if a hearing is requested.

(7) For any notices of action for which OHCA retains responsibility under this ~~section~~ Section, OHCA will allow the member a reasonable time, not to exceed ninety (90) days from the date the notice is mailed, to request a ~~State~~ state fair hearing.

317:2-3-9. Exhaustion of ~~managed care entity~~ CE or DBM appeals

- (a) **Deemed exhaustion of MCE or DBM appeals.** If the MCE or DBM fails to adhere to any timing or notice requirements as detailed in 42 C.F.R. § 438.408, the member is deemed to have exhausted the MCE's or DBM's appeal process, and the member or the member's authorized representative may request a ~~State~~ state fair hearing.
- (b) **Actual exhaustion of MCE or DBM appeals.** Except as allowed in (a), a member or the member's authorized representative may request a ~~State~~ state fair hearing only after receiving notice from the MCE or DBM upholding an adverse benefit determination and only within one hundred twenty (120) days after the date of the notice of appeal resolution.
- (c) **Exhaustion of MCE or DBM appeals, determination.** OHCA has sole authority to decide whether MCE or DBM appeals have been exhausted for any member. Documentation, as submitted to OHCA by the MCE or DBM within fifteen (15) calendar days of the request for ~~State~~ state fair hearing, will serve as evidence to deemed exhaustion, actual exhaustion, or no exhaustion of the MCE or DBM appeals process.

317:2-3-10. Provider complaint system and appeal requests

- (a) A participating provider or nonparticipating provider may file a complaint whenever:
 - (1) The provider is not satisfied with the MCE or DBM's policies and procedures; or
 - (2) The provider is not satisfied with a decision made by the MCE or DBM that does not impact the provision of services to members.
- (b) The MCE or DBM will establish and operate a provider complaint system. Such system will:
 - (1) Use written policies and procedures for receiving, tracking, dating, storing, responding to, reviewing, reporting, and resolving provider complaints;
 - (2) Track receipt and resolution of provider complaints, including requests for reconsideration or appeals;
 - (3) Demonstrate sufficient ability to receive provider complaints by telephone, in writing, or in person;
 - (4) Designate staff to receive, process, and resolve provider complaints;
 - (5) Thoroughly investigate each provider complaint;
 - (6) Ensure an escalation process for provider complaints;
 - (7) Furnish the provider timely written notification of resolution or results; and
 - (8) Maintain a tracking system capable of generating reports to OHCA on provider complaint volume and resolution.
- (c) The MCE or DBM will operate a reconsideration process whereby providers may request the MCE or DBM reconsider a decision the MCE or DBM has made or intends to make that is adverse to the provider, including, at minimum, reconsiderations of provider audit findings, reconsiderations of provider agreement termination, and reconsiderations of denied claims.

- (1) **Request for reconsideration, denied claims.** The MCE or DBM will ask that the provider submits a request for reconsideration of a denied claim within six (6) months after the provider receives notice of the denied claim.
- (2) **Request for reconsideration, all other reasons.** The MCE or DBM will ask that the provider submits a request for reconsideration within fifteen (15) days after the date the provider receives notice of audit findings, termination of provider agreement, or other actions the MCE or DBM permits for reconsideration requests.
- (3) **Desk review.** The MCE or DBM will conduct the reconsideration through a desk review of the request and all related and available documents.
- (4) **Reconsideration resolution.** The MCE or DBM will resolve all requests for reconsideration within ~~twenty (20) calendar days of the date the MCE receives the request for reconsideration~~ the timeframes established by the OHCA. The MCE or DBM will send a reconsideration resolution notice to the provider within ~~three (3) days of the MCE finalizing the resolution~~ five (5) calendar days of resolution of the consideration.
- (5) **Notice of ~~Reconsideration Resolution~~ reconsideration resolution.** The MCE or DBM will send a reconsideration resolution notice that contains, at a minimum:
- (A) The date of the notice;
 - (B) The action the MCE has made or intends to make;
 - (C) The reasons for the action;
 - (D) The date the action was made or will be made;
 - (E) The citation to statute, regulation, policy, or procedure, if any, upon which the action was based;
 - (F) An explanation of the provider's ability to submit an appeal request to the MCE or DBM within thirty (30) calendar days of the date recorded on the notice;
 - (G) The address and contact information for submitting an appeal;
 - (H) The procedures by which the provider may request an appeal regarding the MCE's CE's or DBM's action;
 - (I) The specific change in federal or state law, if any, that requires the action;
 - (J) The provider's ability to submit a ~~State~~ state fair hearing request following completion of the provider appeal process, or, in cases of an action based on a change in law, the circumstances under which a ~~State~~ state fair hearing will be granted; and
 - (K) Any other information required by state or federal statute or regulation, by contract, or by contract-related manual.
- (d) The MCE or DBM will operate an appeals process whereby a provider may request an appeal of a reconsideration resolution when the underlying matter is based on the MCE's CE or DBM's provider audit findings; ~~or for-cause or immediate termination of the provider agreement, or a denied claim.~~
- (1) **Request for appeal.** The MCE or DBM will require the provider to submit a request for appeal in writing within thirty (30) calendar days after the provider receives notice reconsideration resolution.
- (2) **Panel review.** The MCE or DBM will conduct the appeal through a panel review including a hearing and review of the request, all related and available documents, and all documents created for or used in connection with the request for reconsideration.
- (A) The panel will consist of three (3) or five (5) reviewers, who are employees or officers of the MCE or DBM.
 - (B) Panel members will not have been directly involved with the reconsideration desk review and will not be a subordinate of someone involved directly with the reconsideration

desk review.

(C) The panel review hearing will provide the provider or an authorized representative of the provider with a reasonable opportunity to be heard in person or by telecommunications.

(D) The review panel will accept and document any exhibit offered prior to the hearing or during the hearing, so long as the exhibit directly relates to the matter of the appeal.

(E) When the appeal is based on a claim denied on the basis of medical necessity, the following requirements apply:

(i) Medical or dental review staff of the MCE or DBM will be licensed or credentialed health care clinicians with relevant clinical training or experience; and

(ii) All MCEs or DBMs will use medical or dental review staff for such appeals and will not use any automated claim review software or other automated functionality for such appeals.

(3) **Appeal resolution.** The MCE or DBM will resolve all appeals within ~~forty five (45)~~ calendar days of the date the MCE receives the request for appeal the timeframes established by the OHCA. The MCE or DBM will send an appeal resolution notice to the provider within ~~three (3) business~~ five (5) calendar days of the MCE or DBM finalizing the resolution.

(4) **Notice of ~~Appeal Resolution~~ appeal resolution.** The MCE or DBM will send an appeal resolution notice that contains, at a minimum:

(A) The date of the notice;

(B) The date of the appeal resolution; and

(C) For decisions not wholly in the provider's favor:

~~(i) An explanation of the provider's ability to request a State fair hearing within thirty (30) calendar days of the date recorded on the notice;~~

~~(ii) How to request a State fair hearing, including the OHCA address and contact information for submitting a request;~~

~~(iii) Details on the right to be represented by counsel at the State fair hearing; and~~

~~(iv) Any other information required by state or federal statute or regulation, by contract, or by contract related manual.~~

(i) An explanation of the provider's ability to request and OHCA administrative appeal within thirty (30) calendar days of the date recorded on the notice;

(ii) How to request an OHCA administrative appeal, including the OHCA address and contact information for submitting a request;

(iii) Details on the right to be represented by counsel at the OHCA administrative appeal.

(D) Any other information required by state or federal statute or regulation, by Contract, or by Contract-related manual.

(5) **Documentation.** The MCE or DBM will furnish to OHCA documentation including all information specified at ~~OAC 317:2-3-13(e)(2)~~ within the Contract within fifteen (15) calendar days of a provider's request for a ~~State fair hearing~~ OHCA administrative appeal.

(6) **State fair hearing for providers.** There are no state fair hearings provided for providers under a CE or DBM, per OAC 317:2-3-13.

317:2-3-11. Recordkeeping

In compliance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.3(h) and (u), the MCE or DBM will maintain records of each grievance and appeal for ten (10) years after the later of the final date of the contract period or the date of completion of any MCE or DBM audit by the State, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), the Office of the Inspector General, or the Comptroller General. Such records will

be part of OHCA's ongoing monitoring and will be used to update and revise OHCA's ~~managed care~~ ~~SoonerSelect~~ quality strategy. The record will conform with the content requirements at 42 C.F.R. § 438.416.

317:2-3-12. State fair hearing for members

(a) **Right to Statestate fair hearing.** With regard to grievances or appeals first filed with the MCE or DBM, a member may request a Statestate fair hearing under 42 C.F.R. 431 Subpart E only after receiving notice from the MCE or DBM upholding an adverse benefit determination. The member will have one-hundred twenty (120) days from the date of the adverse benefit determination notice to request a Statestate fair hearing. Refer to 42 C.F.R. §§ 438.402(c)(1)(i) and 438.408(f)(1).

(b) **MCE or DBM policies and procedures.** The MCE or DBM will implement established policies and procedures that allow a member described in (a) to initiate a Statestate fair hearing process after having exhausted the MCE's CE or DBM's appeals process or after the member is deemed to have exhausted the process due to the MCE's CE or DBM's failure to adhere to notice and timing requirements.

(c) **Member's request for a Statestate fair hearing.** The MCE or DBM will allow the member to request a Statestate fair hearing either through an established MCE or DBM process or through an established OHCA process. Any MCE or DBM process will ensure that notice of the request for Statestate fair hearing is communicated in writing to the OHCA contracting officer within twenty-four (24) clock-hours of receiving the request.

(d) **MCE or DBM documentation obligation.** The MCE or DBM will provide documentation to the member, the member's authorized representative, OHCA, and the Office of Administrative Hearings.

(1) **Timing.** The MCE or DBM will provide the ~~documentation~~ support documentation (summary) described in this subsection: within fifteen (15) calendar days after notification of the request for state fair hearing.

- ~~(A) Within twenty four (24) clock hours after receiving notification of the request for State fair hearing relating to a step therapy request; or~~
- ~~(B) Within fifteen (15) calendar days after notification of the request for State fair hearing in all other circumstances.~~

(2) **Information.** ~~Documentation~~ Support documentation (summary) will include, at minimum, the following information:

- (A) The name and address of the member and, if applicable, the member's authorized representative;
- (B) A summary statement concerning why the member has filed a request for Statestate fair hearing;
- (C) A brief chronological summary of the MCE's CE or DBM's action in relationship to the matter underlying the member's request for Statestate fair hearing;
- (D) The member's appeal request, along with any supporting documentation, if received by the MCE or DBM;
- (E) Any applicable correspondence between the MCE or DBM and the member, including system notes entered by one (1) or more MCE or DBM employees based on one (1) or more telephone conversations with the member;
- (F) All exhibits offered at any hearing held with the MCE or DBM;
- (G) All documents the MCE or DBM used to reach its decision;
- (H) A statement of the legal basis for the MCE's CE or DBM's decision;

(I) A citation of the applicable policies and/or legal authorities relied upon by the MCE or DBM in making its decision;

(J) A copy of the notice which notified the member of the decision in question;

(K) The names and titles of any MCE or DBM employees who will serve as witnesses at the Statestate fair hearing; and

(L) Any other information requested by the member, the member's authorized representative, OHCA, or the Office of Administrative Hearings when the information relates to the Statestate fair hearing or any matter giving rise to the Statestate fair hearing.

(e) **MCE or DBM staffing.** The MCE or DBM will maintain a sufficient level of staffing to competently perform the functions, requirements, roles, and duties involved in Statestate fair hearing support, including but not limited to documentation, summarization of the arguments presented, and ensuring timely notice and delivery of documents to all parties.

(f) **Performance targets.** OHCA may set performance targets related to Statestate fair hearing requests that are resolved upholding the MCE's CE or DBM's original determination when and as OHCA deems necessary or appropriate.

(g) **Post-transition obligations.** After termination or expiration of the managed-care contract/Contract, the MCE or DBM will remain responsible for Statestate fair hearings related to dates of service prior to the contract/Contract termination or expiration, including but not limited to the provision of records and representation at Statestate fair hearings.

(h) **Cost of services.** If the Statestate fair hearing officer reverses the MCE's CE or DBM's decision to deny authorization of services and the member received the disputed services while the Statestate fair hearing was pending, the MCE or DBM will pay for those disputed services.

317:2-3-13. State fair hearing for providers

~~(a) **Right to State fair hearing.** With regard to provider audit findings, for cause and immediate termination of the provider's agreement, and claims denial, a provider may request a State fair hearing within thirty (30) calendar days of the MCE's notice of appeal resolution when that resolution does not favor the provider.~~

~~(b) **Information for providers.** As a part of the MCE's provider complaint system, the MCE will provide information to providers on how to request a State fair hearing via filing the appropriate form with the OHCA Docket Clerk.~~

~~(c) **MCE documentation obligation.** The MCE will provide documentation to the provider, OHCA, and the Office of Administrative Hearings.~~

~~(1) **Timing.** The MCE will provide the documentation described in this subsection within fifteen (15) calendar days after notification of the request for State fair hearing.~~

~~(2) **Information.** Documentation will include, at minimum, the following information:~~

~~(A) The name and address of the provider;~~

~~(B) A summary statement concerning why the provider has filed a request for State fair hearing;~~

~~(C) A brief chronological summary of the MCE's action in relationship to the matter underlying the provider's request for State fair hearing;~~

~~(D) The provider's appeal request, along with any supporting documentation, if received by the MCE;~~

~~(E) Any applicable correspondence between the MCE and the provider, including system notes entered by one or more MCE employees based on one or more telephone conversations with the provider;~~

- ~~(F) All exhibits offered at any hearing held with the MCE;~~
- ~~(G) All documents the MCE used to reach its decision;~~
- ~~(H) A statement of the legal basis for the MCE's decision;~~
- ~~(I) A citation of the applicable policies and/or legal authorities relied upon by the MCE in making its decision;~~
- ~~(J) A copy of the notice which notified the provider of the decision in question;~~
- ~~(K) The names and titles of any MCE employees who will serve as witnesses at the State fair hearing; and~~
- ~~(L) Any other information requested by the provider, OHCA, or the Office of Administrative Hearings when the information relates to the State fair hearing or any matter giving rise to the State fair hearing.~~

(a) There are no state fair hearings provided for providers under a CE or DBM. The CE or DBM shall provide the following:

- (1) A provider complaint system;
- (2) A provider reconsideration system whereby providers may request the CE or DBM to reconsider the decision the CE or DBM has made or intends to make that is adverse to the provider. This shall include, at minimum, reconsiderations for Program Integrity provider audit findings and provider agreement termination.
- (3) Provider appeal to the CE or DBM:
 - (A) The CE or DBM shall implement and operate a system for provider appeals of the CE or DBM's audit findings related to Program Integrity efforts and for cause and immediate provider agreement termination.
 - (B) The CE or DBM shall operate a process whereby providers may appeal a decision the CE or DBM has made or intends to make that is adverse to the provider.

(b) For decisions not wholly in the provider's favor an OHCA administrative appeal will be provided, per OAC 317:2-3-10 (d)(4)(C).

317:2-3-14. Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) jurisdiction

The ALJ has jurisdiction of the following matters:

- (1) Member ~~State~~ fair hearing.** The ALJ has jurisdiction to hear any ~~State~~ fair hearing arising from a member's ~~MCE~~ or ~~DBM~~ appeal of an adverse benefit determination.
- (2) ~~Provider State~~ fair hearing.** The ALJ has jurisdiction to hear any ~~State~~ fair hearing arising from a provider's appeal of audit findings, for cause or immediate termination of the provider's contract with the MCE, or claims denial. **Provider OHCA administrative appeal.** The ALJ has jurisdiction to hear any OHCA administrative appeal arising from a decision that was not wholly in the provider's favor.

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 55. MANAGED CARE**

SUBCHAPTER 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

317:55-1-1. Purpose; use of manuals

The purpose of this Chapter is to provide detailed rules which govern the delivery of health care services provided by ~~managed care organizations~~contracted entities or dental benefits managers as required by the "Ensuring Access to Medicaid Act", 2021 Okla. Sess. Law Serv. Ch. 542 (S.B. 131), Title 56 of the Oklahoma Statutes, Sections 4002-4004 and 42 Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.), Part 438. The Oklahoma Health Care Authority may also develop manuals and medical guidelines that formalize terms, conditions, and applicable policy of awarded contracts.

317:55-1-2. Monitoring system for all managed care programs [REVOKE]

In accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.66, the Oklahoma Health Care Authority will monitor each ~~managed care organization or dental benefits manager to assess its ability and capacity to comply with program and contract-specific requirements and to assess its ability to perform satisfactorily in all major operational areas.~~

317:55-1-3. Definitions

The following words and terms, when used in this Chapter, will have the following meaning, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

~~"1115 waiver" means the demonstration waiver, as amended and including all active special terms and conditions (STCs) at a specific point in time, that authorizes Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) to operate a program in which one or more requirements of Title XIX of the Social Security Act (Act) are waived based on the waiver authority of section 1115 of the Act.~~

~~"1915(e) waiver" means any waiver, authorized by section 1915(e) of the Act, that allows specific coverage of home and community-based services to a limited group of Medicaid-eligible individuals as an alternative to institutional care.~~

~~"Accountable care organization" or "ACO" means a group of clinicians, hospitals, or other health care providers who come together voluntarily to give coordinated high-quality care to a designated group of patients.~~

~~"Act" means the Social Security Act.~~

~~"Adult" means an individual twenty-one (21) years of age or older, unless otherwise specified by statute, regulation, and/or policy adopted by the OHCA. For eligibility criteria policy for children and adults, please refer to Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:35-5-2.~~

~~"Adverse determination" means a determination by a health carrier, including an managed care organization (MCO) or dental benefits manager (DBM), or its designee that an admission, availability of care, continued stay or other health care service that is a covered benefit has been reviewed and, based upon the information provided, does not meet the health carrier's requirements for medical necessity, appropriateness, health care setting, level of care or effectiveness, and the requested service or payment for services is therefore denied, reduced or terminated.~~

~~"Alternative benefit plan" means the benefit package delivered to expansion adults which is developed by OHCA and approved by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) in accordance with the requirements of Subpart C of 42 C.F.R. Part 440.~~

~~"American Indian/Alaska Native" or "AI/AN" means any individual as defined in 25 U.S.C. §§ 1603(13), 1603(28) or 1679(a) or who has been determined eligible as an Indian under 42 C.F.R.~~

~~§ 136.12-~~

~~"Appeal" means a review by an MCO or DBM of an adverse benefit determination.~~

~~"Authorized representative" means a competent adult who has the managed care enrollee's signed, written authorization to act on the managed care enrollee's behalf during the grievance, appeal, and State fair hearing process. The written authority to act will specify any limits of the representation.~~

~~"Capitation payment" means a payment, based on an actuarially sound capitation rate for the provision of Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan services under a managed care contract, that OHCA makes periodically to the MCO or DBM behalf of each enrollee enrolled in that MCO or DBM, regardless of whether the enrollee actually receives services during the period covered by the payment.~~

~~"Capitation rate" means the actuarially sound per enrollee, per month amount, including any adjustments, that OHCA agrees to pay an MCO or DBM for the provision of State Plan services.~~

~~"Child" means an individual under twenty one (21) years of age, unless otherwise specified by statute, regulation, and/or policy adopted by the OHCA. For eligibility criteria policy for children and adults, please refer to OAC 317:35-5-2.~~

~~"Children's Health Insurance Program" or "CHIP" means a federal Medicaid program authorized under Title XXI of the Social Security Act.~~

~~"Choice counseling" means the provision of information and services designed to assist eligibles in making enrollment decisions related to the managed care program. Choice counseling includes answering questions and identifying factors to consider when choosing among MCOs or DBMs, as well as when choosing a patient-centered medical home provider or dental home provider. Choice counseling does not include making recommendations for or against enrollment into a specific MCO or DBM.~~

~~"Chronic condition" means a condition that is expected to last one (1) year or more and requires ongoing medical attention and/or limits activities of daily living (ADL).~~

~~"Civil monetary damage" means a damage imposed by OHCA which the MCO must pay for acting or failing to act in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.700 et seq. Amounts may not exceed those specified in 42 C.F.R. § 438.704.~~

~~"Claims denial error rate" means the rate of claims denials that are overturned on appeal.~~

~~"Clean claim" means a properly completed billing form with coding based on Current Procedural Terminology (CPT), 4th Edition or a more recent edition, the Tenth Revision of the International Classification of Diseases or a more recent revision, or Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System (HCPCS), where applicable, to provide information specifically required in the OHCA Provider Billing and Procedure Manual.~~

~~"C.F.R." means the Code of Federal Regulations.~~

~~"Contract" means the risk contract or the written and executed agreement between OHCA and a health plan or managed care organization or dental benefit manager for health plan or managed care services and includes the solicitation, the bid, the contract addenda, appendices, attachments, and amendments, and any documents incorporated into the contract by reference or otherwise, as well as any document or information subject to the rules on legally binding procurement in Chapter 10 of these rules.~~

~~"Copayment" means a fixed amount that an enrollee pays for a covered health care service when the enrollee receives the service.~~

~~"Cost sharing" means the State's requirement that an enrollee bear some of the cost of their care through mechanisms such as copayments, deductibles, and other similar charges.~~

~~"Deemed newborn" means children born to SoonerCare enrolled mothers and determined~~

eligible under 42 C.F.R. § 435.117.

"Dental benefits manager" or **"DBM"** means a health plan under contract with the OHCA to manage and deliver dental benefits and services to enrollees and designated as a pre-paid ambulatory health plan (PAHP) under 42 C.F.R. Part 438.

"Dental home" or **"DH"** means the care coordinated delivery system as defined within the contract between OHCA and a DBM.

"Disenrollment" means OHCA's removal of an enrollee from participation in a specific MCO or DBM or from participation in the managed care program.

"Dual eligible individuals" means individuals eligible for both Medicaid and Medicare.

"Eligible" means an individual who has been deemed eligible for Medicaid in the State of Oklahoma and is eligible for participation in the managed care program but who is not yet enrolled in an MCO or DBM.

"Emergency services" means medical services provided for a medical condition, including injury, manifesting itself by acute symptoms of sufficient severity, including severe pain, that a prudent layperson who possesses an average knowledge of health and medicine could reasonably expect the absence of immediate medical attention to result in placing the individual's health, or the health of an unborn child, in serious jeopardy, serious impairment to bodily functions or serious dysfunction of any bodily organs or parts.

"Enrollee" means an individual who has been deemed eligible for Medicaid in the State of Oklahoma, who has been deemed eligible for enrollment in a managed care program, and who is currently enrolled in a managed care program.

"Enrollee handbook" means a guidebook prepared as a model by OHCA and modified and distributed by the MCO or DBM to its enrollees. The enrollee handbook is designed to help the enrollee understand the MCO or DBM, the managed care program, and the rights and responsibilities that come with enrollment in the program.

"Enrollment" means the OHCA process by which an eligible becomes an enrollee with an MCO or DBM.

"Enrollment activities" means activities that OHCA performs or conducts related to distributing, collecting, or processing enrollment materials, taking enrollments by technological device or in person, or enrolling or disenrolling eligibles into any MCO or DBM.

"Essential community provider" means a provider defined by 45 C.F.R. § 156.235.

"Essential hospital services" means tertiary care hospital services to which the MCO must provide access, including but not limited to neonatal, perinatal, pediatric, trauma and burn services.

"Expansion adult" means an individual nineteen (19) or older and under age sixty five (65), with income at or below one hundred thirty eight percent (138%) of the federal poverty level (FPL) determined eligible in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 435.119), and who are not categorically related to the aged, blind, and disabled.

"Former foster children" or **"FFC"** means individuals under age twenty six (26) determined eligible in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 435.150 who were in foster care under the responsibility of the State or an Indian Tribe within Oklahoma and enrolled in SoonerCare on the date of attaining age eighteen (18) or aging out of foster care.

"Foster children (FC)" means children in foster care under the responsibility of the State, including children and youth who are in State custody due to abuse or neglect.

"Fraud" means intentional deception or misrepresentation made by a person with the knowledge that the deception could result in some unauthorized benefit to himself or some other person. It includes any act that constitutes fraud under applicable federal or State law.

"Grievance" means an enrollee's expression of dissatisfaction about any matter other than an

adverse benefit determination. Grievances may include, but are not limited to, the quality of care or services provided, aspects of interpersonal relationships such as rudeness of a provider or employee or failure to respect the enrollee's rights regardless of whether remedial action is requested. A grievance includes an enrollee's right to dispute an extension of time to make an authorization decision when proposed by the MCO or DBM.

"Grievance and appeal system" means the processes the MCO or DBM must implement in accordance with 42 C.F.R. Part 438, Subpart F, to handle enrollee grievances and appeals, as well as the processes to collect and track information about them.

"Health care services" means all Medicaid State Plan services provided, according to contract, by the MCO or DBM in any setting. Health care services may include but are not limited to medical care, behavioral health care, dental care, and pharmacy services.

"Health plan" means the same in these rules as at 36 O.S. § 4405.1.

"Implementation" means the process by which OHCA and the MCO or DBM performs actions and responsibilities to actively implement a managed care program or contract for the first time. Implementation also means, depending on its use, the moment in time that such actions and responsibilities are fully completed.

"Implementation period" means the period of time, as defined in contract, during which implementation occurs.

"Indian health care provider" or "IHCP" means a health care program operated by the Indian Health Service (IHS) or by an Indian Tribe, Tribal Organization, or Urban Indian Organization (otherwise known as an I/T/U) as those terms are defined in section 4 of the Indian Health Care Improvement Act (25 U.S.C. § 1603).

"Initial enrollment" means an eligible's enrollment in an MCO or DBM during the initial enrollment period.

"Initial enrollment period" means the first period of time, as defined in contract, prior to or immediately following managed care program or contract implementation, when eligibles can first enroll in an MCO or DBM for the managed care program.

"Managed care organization" or "MCO" means a health plan designated as a managed care organization pursuant to 42 C.F.R. 438.2 and under contract with OHCA to participate in the managed care program and to deliver health care services to enrollees.

"Managed care program" or "managed care" or "MCP" means a health care delivery system organized to manage cost, utilization, and quality that is operated by a state as authorized under sections 1915(a), 1915(b), 1932(a), or 1115(a) of the Social Security Act and relevant state law.

"Manual" or "guide" means any document, outside of the Medicaid State Plan, any Medicaid waiver, and the rules, that is created by or for OHCA for use in interpreting or implementing contractual terms. "Manual" is synonymous with guide, guidebook, companion guide, manual, reference book, dictionary, handbook, model, instructions, primer, workbook, or any other words denoting a document that is handled as a matter of convenience.

"Material change" means, but not limited to, any change in the overall business operations such as policy, process or protocol which affects, or can reasonably be expected to affect, more than five percent (5%) of enrollees or participating providers of the MCO or DBM.

"Medical necessity" means a standard for evaluating the appropriateness of services as established under OAC 317:30-3-1.

"National Provider Identifier (NPI)" means a unique identification number for covered health care providers. Covered health care providers and all MCOs, DBMs, and health care clearinghouses must use an NPI in the administrative and financial transactions adopted under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). The NPI is a ten-position, intelligence-free numeric

identifier (ten-digit number). This means that the numbers do not carry other information about healthcare providers, such as the state in which they live or their medical specialty. The NPI must be used in lieu of legacy provider identifiers in the HIPAA standards transactions.

"Non-participating provider" means a physician or other provider who has not contracted with or is not employed by the MCO or DBM to deliver services under the managed care program.

"Non-urgent sick visit" means medical care given for an acute onset of symptoms which is not emergent or urgent in nature but which requires face-to-face medical attention within seventy-two (72) hours of enrollee notification of a non-urgent condition, as clinically indicated. Examples of non-urgent sick visits include cold symptoms, sore throat, and nasal congestion.

"Open enrollment" means an eligible's selection of and enrollment in an MCO or DBM during the open enrollment period.

"Open enrollment period" means the annual period of time, as defined by contract, when managed care enrollees and eligibles can enroll in and select an MCO or DBM for the managed care program.

"Parent and caretaker relative" means an individual determined eligible under 42 C.F.R. § 435.110.

"Participating provider" means a physician or other provider who has a contract with or is employed by an MCO or DBM to provide health care services to enrollees under the capitated managed care delivery model of the managed care program.

"Patient-centered medical home" or **"PCMH"** means, in this chapter, the care-coordinated delivery system as defined within the contract between OHCA and an MCO.

"Pregnant women" means women determined eligible for SoonerCare under 42 C.F.R. § 435.116.

"Presumptive eligibility" means limited period of managed care program eligibility for individuals who are categorically related to certain eligibility groups listed in OAC 317:35-6-38(a)(1)(A)(i) through (vi) and are also determined by a qualified hospital, on the basis of preliminary information provided by the applicant on a completed HPE application, to be eligible for managed care program services.

"Primary care dentist" or **"PCD"** means a provider under contract with a DBM to provide primary health care services, as contracted, and case management, including all medically necessary referrals for specialty services and prior authorizations. In these rules, "dental home provider" or "DH provider" bears the same meaning as "primary care dentist" or "PCD".

"Primary care provider" or **"PCP"** means a provider under contract with an MCO to provide primary health care services, as contracted, and case management, including securing all medically necessary referrals for specialty services and prior authorizations. In these rules, "patient-centered medical home provider" or "PCMH provider" bears the same meaning as "primary care provider" or "PCP".

"Prior authorization" or **"PA"** means a requirement that an enrollee, through the enrollee's provider, obtain the MCO's or DBM's approval before a requested medical service is provided or before services by a non-participating provider are received. Prior authorization is not a guarantee of claims payment; however, failure to obtain prior authorization may result in denial of the claim or reduction in payment of the claim.

"Provider" means a health care services provider licensed or certified in this State.

"Provider agreement" means an agreement between the MCO or DBM and a participating provider that describes the conditions under which the participating provider agrees to furnish covered health care services to enrollees.

"Risk contract" means a contract between OHCA and an MCO, prepaid inpatient health plan

(PIHP), or prepaid ambulatory health plan (PAHP), as those terms are defined at 42 C.F.R. § 438.2, under which the contractor assumes risk for the cost of the services covered under the contract and incurs loss if the cost of furnishing the services exceeds the payments under the contract.

~~"SoonerCare" means the Oklahoma Medicaid program.~~

~~"Soon-To-Be-Sooner" means Oklahoma's separate CHIP providing coverage to unborn children of families earning up to and including one hundred eighty-five percent (185%) of the FPL.~~

~~"Specialty Children's Plan" means the single statewide managed care plan, as contracted with a single MCO, that will coordinate and deliver health care services, as defined by contract, in a highly coordinated manner to the specialty population. The specialty population includes Medicaid eligibles who are FFC, select juvenile justice involved Office of Juvenile Affairs (OJA), in foster care (FC), children with an open prevention services case (PSC) through case workers or receiving adoption assistance (AA).~~

~~"State Plan" means an agreement between OHCA and CMS describing how Oklahoma administers its Medicaid and CHIP programs.~~

~~"Steady state enrollment" means the period of time, as defined by contract, when an individual, who first became an eligible during steady state operations or who became eligible again during steady state operations after more than two (2) months lapse of eligibility, can first enroll in and select an MCO or DBM for the managed care program.~~

~~"Steady state operations" or "steady state" means the period of time, as defined by contract, after initial implementation and prior to contract termination, during which all managed care program elements are expected to be operational.~~

~~"Third party liability" or "TPL" means all or part of the expenditures for a managed care enrollee's medical assistance furnished under the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan that may be the liability of a third party individual, entity or program.~~

~~"Value added benefit" means any benefit or service offered by an MCO or DBM when that benefit or service is not a covered benefit per the State Plan. These benefits are subject to change annually as determined by the MCO or DBM and OHCA.~~

~~"Value based payment arrangement" means a payment arrangement between an MCO or DBM and its participating providers when payment is intentionally aligned with quality measures OHCA applies to the MCO or DBM.~~

~~"Value based purchasing" means the provisions of a contract for managed care services when those provisions intentionally align OHCA payments to the MCO or DBM under contract with quality measures or other performance factors OHCA may apply to the MCO or DBM.~~

The following words and terms, when used in this Chapter, shall have the following meaning, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

"1115 waiver" means the demonstration waiver, as amended and including all active special terms and conditions (STCs) at a specific point in time, that authorizes Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) to operate a program in which one (1) or more requirements of Title XIX of the Social Security Act (Act) are waived based on the waiver authority of Section 1115 of the Act.

"1915(c) waiver" means any waiver, authorized by Section 1915(c) of the Act, that allows specific coverage of home and community-based services to a limited group of Medicaid-Eligible individuals as an alternative to institutional care.

"Abuse" means provider practices that are inconsistent with sound fiscal, business, or medical practices, and result in an unnecessary cost to the Medicaid program, or in reimbursement for services that are not medically necessary or that fail to meet professionally recognized standards for health care (as defined at 42 C.F.R. § 455.2). It also includes Eligible and Health Plan Enrollee practices that result in unnecessary cost to the Medicaid program.

"Accountable care organization" or "ACO" means a network of physicians, hospitals, and other health care providers that provide coordinated care to Medicaid members.

"Accrediting entity" means an entity recognized by CMS under 45 C.F.R. § 156.275. Current CMS-recognized accrediting entities include Accreditation Association for Ambulatory Health Care (AAAHC), National Committee for Quality Assurance (NCQA) and Utilization Review Accreditation Commission (URAC). To the extent CMS recognizes additional accrediting entities, OHCA will also permit the CE or DBM to achieve accreditation from such entity to meet the requirements.

"Act" means the Social Security Act.

"Activities of daily living (ADL)" means activities that reflect the Health Plan Enrollee's ability to perform self-care tasks essential for sustaining health and safety such as: bathing; eating; dressing; grooming; transferring (includes getting in and out of the tub, bed to chair, etc.); mobility; toileting and bowel/bladder control. The services help with proper medical care, self-maintenance skills, personal hygiene, adequate food, shelter, and protection.

"Administrative remedies" means an action taken by the OHCA in response to the DBM's failure to comply with a requirement or performance standard. Remedies, include but are not limited to, liquidated damages, capitation payment suspension, auto-assignment suspension, contract termination, and any other remedies outlined in the Contract.

"Adult" means an individual twenty-one (21) years of age or older, unless otherwise specified by statute, regulation, and/or policy adopted by the OHCA. For eligibility criteria policy for children and adults, please refer to Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:35-5-2.

"American Indian/Alaska Native" or "AI/AN" means any individual as defined in 25 U.S.C. §§ 1603(13), 1603(28) or 1679(a) or who has been determined Eligible as an Indian under 42 C.F.R. § 136.12.

"Appeal" means a review by an CE or DBM of an adverse benefit determination.

"Applicant" means an individual who seeks SoonerCare coverage.

"Authorized representative" means a competent adult who has the Enrollee's signed, written authorization to act on the Enrollee's behalf during the grievance, appeal, and state fair hearing process. The written authority to act will specify any limits of the representation.

"Behavioral health services" means a wide range of diagnostic, therapeutic and rehabilitative services used in the treatment of mental illness, substance abuse, and co-occurring disorders.

"Business days" means Monday through Friday and is exclusive of weekends and State of Oklahoma holidays.

"Calendar days" means all seven (7) days of the week, including State of Oklahoma holidays.

"Capitated contract" means a contract between OHCA and a contracted entity for the delivery of services to Medicaid members in which OHCA pays a fixed, per-member per-month rate based on actuarial calculations.

"Capitation payment" means a payment OHCA will make periodically to the CE or DBM on behalf of each Health Plan Enrollee enrolled under the SoonerSelect program and based on the actuarially sound capitation rate for the provision of services under the State Plan. OHCA shall make the payment regardless of whether the Health Plan Enrollee receives services during the period covered by the payment.

"Capitation rate" means the per Health Plan Enrollee, per-month amount, including any adjustments, that is paid by OHCA to the CE or DBM for each Health Plan Enrollee enrolled in the SoonerSelect program for the provision of services during the payment period.

"Care coordination/care management" means a process that assesses, plans, implements, coordinates, monitors, and evaluates the options and services required to meet the Health Plan

Enrollee's needs using advocacy, communication, and resource management to promote quality and cost-effective interventions and outcomes. Based on the needs of the Health Plan Enrollee, the care manager arranges services and supports across the continuum of care, while ensuring that the care provided is person-centered.

"**Care manager**" means the CE's staff primarily responsible for delivering services to Health Plan Enrollees in accordance with its OHCA-approved risk stratification level framework, and meets the qualifications specified in the Contract.

"**Care plan**" means a comprehensive set of actions and goals for the Health Plan Enrollee developed by the care manager based on the unique needs of Health Plan Enrollee(s). The CE shall develop and implement care plans for all Health Plan Enrollees with a special health care need determined through the comprehensive assessment to need a course of treatment or regular care monitoring and in accordance with Section 1.8.3: "Care Plans" of the Contract.

"**Case file**" means an electronic record that includes Enrollee information regarding the management of health care services including but not limited to: Enrollee demographics; comprehensive assessment (if applicable); care plan; reassessments; referrals and authorizations and Enrollee case notes.

"**CDT**" means current dental terminology (dental procedure codes).

"**CEO**" means Chief Executive Officer.

"**Certified community behavioral health clinic (CCBHC)**" means entities designed to provide a comprehensive range of mental health and substance use disorder services as defined under the Excellence in Mental Health Act and certified by the Oklahoma Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services.

"**C.F.R.**" means the Code of Federal Regulations.

"**Child**" means an individual under twenty-one (21) years of age, unless otherwise specified by statute, regulation, and/or policy adopted by the OHCA. For eligibility criteria policy for children and adults, please refer to OAC 317:35-5-2.

"**Children's Health Insurance Program**" or "**CHIP**" means a Medicaid program authorized under Title XXI of the Social Security Act.

"**Children's Specialty Plan**" or "**Children's Specialty Program**" means the single statewide health care plan that covers all Medicaid services other than dental services and is designed to provide care to children in foster care children, former foster care children up to twenty-five (25) years of age, juvenile justice involved children, and children receiving adoption assistance.

"**Child welfare services**" means the Oklahoma Human Services (OKDHS) division responsible for administering Oklahoma's child welfare services.

"**Choice counseling**" means the provision of information and services designed to assist Eligibles in making enrollment decisions as described in 42 C.F.R § 438.2.

"**Chronic condition**" means a condition that is expected to last one (1) year or more and requires ongoing medical attention and/or limits activities of daily living (ADL).

"**Civil monetary damage**" means a damage imposed by OHCA which the CE must pay for acting or failing to act in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.700 et seq. Amounts may not exceed those specified in 42 C.F.R. § 438.704.

"**Clean claim**" means a properly completed billing form with coding based on Current Procedural Terminology (CPT), fourth edition or a more recent edition, the tenth revision of the International Classification of Diseases (ICD) or a more recent revision, or Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System (HCPCS), where applicable, to provide information specifically required in the OHCA Provider Billing and Procedure Manual.

"**Clinical practice guidelines**" means systematically developed statements to assist practitioner

and patient decisions about appropriate health care for specific clinical circumstances. The CE or DBM shall adopt clinical practice guidelines in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.236, ensuring they are based on valid and reliable clinical evidence or a consensus of providers in the particular field; consider the needs of Enrollees; are adopted in consultation with participating providers; and are reviewed and updated periodically as appropriate.

"CMS" means Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services.

"Commercial plan" means an organization or entity that undertakes to provide or arrange for the delivery of health care services to Medicaid members on a prepaid basis and is subject to all applicable state and federal laws and regulations.

"Continuity of care period" means the ninety (90) day period immediately following an Enrollee's enrollment with the CE or DBM whereby established Enrollee and provider relationships, current services and existing prior authorizations and care plans shall remain in place.

"Contract" As a result of receiving an award from OHCA and successfully meeting all Readiness Review requirements, the agreement between the Contractor and OHCA where the Contractor will provide Medicaid services to SoonerSelect Enrollees, comprising of the Contract and any Contract addenda, appendices, attachments, or amendments thereto, and be paid by OHCA as described in the terms of the agreement.

"Contract year" means the period during which the Contract is in effect. The initial Contract year shall be from date of award through the end of the state fiscal year. Each subsequent Contract year shall be based on state fiscal year.

"Contracted entity" or "CE" means an organization or entity that enters into or will enter into a capitated contract with the Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) for the delivery of services that will assume financial risk, operational accountability, and statewide or regional functionality in this act in managing comprehensive health outcomes of Medicaid members. This includes an accountable care organization, a provider-led entity, a commercial plan, a dental benefit manager, or any other entity as determined by the OHCA.

"Contractor" means a contracted entity with which OHCA has entered into a binding agreement for the purpose of procuring services to SoonerSelect program Enrollees as specified in the Contract. The term "Contractor" includes all such Contractor's affiliates, agents, subsidiaries, any person with an ownership or control interest, officers, directors, manager, employees, independent contractors, and related parties working for or on behalf of the Contractor and other parties.

"Copayment" means a fixed amount that an Enrollee pays for a covered health care service when the Enrollee receives the service.

"Corrective action plan" or "CAP" means the detailed written plan that may be required by OHCA to correct or resolve a deficiency, event, or breach.

"Cost sharing" means the state's requirement that an Enrollee bear some of the cost of their care through mechanisms such as copayments, deductibles, and other similar charges.

"Credibility adjustment" means an adjustment to the medical loss ratio (MLR) for a partially credible CE or DBM to account for a difference between the actual and target MLRs that may be due to random statistical variation.

"Crisis intervention services" means face-to-face services for the purpose of responding to acute behavioral or emotional dysfunction as evidenced by psychotic, suicidal, homicidal severe psychiatric distress and/or danger of alcohol or drug relapse.

"Critical incident" means any actual or alleged event or situation that creates a significant risk of substantial or serious harm to the physical or mental health, safety, or well-being of a SoonerSelect program Health Plan Enrollee.

"Deemed newborn" means children born to SoonerCare enrolled mothers and determined

Eligible under 42 C.F.R. § 435.117.

"Dental benefits manager" or **"DBM"** means an entity that meets the definition of a Prepaid Ambulatory Health Plan (PAHP) as per 42 C.F.R. § 438.2 and is under contract with the OHCA to manage and deliver all services described in this SoonerSelect Dental Contract and who handles claims payment and prior authorizations and coordinates dental care with participating providers and Enrollees. Also referred to as a "Contractor".

"Dental related emergency services" means services provided to a SoonerSelect Dental Enrollee that are necessary for the treatment of any condition requiring immediate attention for the relief of pain, hemorrhage, acute infections, or traumatic injury to the teeth, supporting structures (periodontal membrane, gingival, alveolar bone), jaws, and tissue of the oral cavity.

"DIR" means direct and indirect remuneration.

"Disclosing entity" means a Medicaid provider (other than an individual practitioner or group of practitioners) or a fiscal agent pursuant to 42 C.F.R. § 455.101.

"Disenrollment" means OHCA's removal of an Enrollee from participation in a specific CE or DBM or from participation in the SoonerSelect program.

"DSH" means disproportionate share hospital.

"Dual eligible individuals" means individuals eligible for both Medicaid and Medicare.

"Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnostic and Treatment (EPSDT)" means screening and diagnostic services to determine physical or mental defects in Eligibles or Health Plan Enrollees under age twenty-one (21) and health care, treatment, and other measures to correct or ameliorate any existing defects and/or chronic conditions discovered.

"Electronic Visit Verification (EVV) system" means an electronic system that documents the time that providers begin and end the delivery of services to Health Plan Enrollees and the location of services. The EVV system shall comply with Section 12006 of the 21st Century Cures Act and associated CMS requirements.

"Eligible" means an individual who has been deemed Eligible for the SoonerSelect program but who is not yet enrolled in a CE or DBM.

"Emergency medical condition" means a medical condition, including injury, manifesting itself by acute symptoms of sufficient severity, including severe pain, that a prudent layperson who possesses an average knowledge of health and medicine could reasonably expect the absence of immediate medical attention to result in placing the individual's health, or the health of an unborn child, in serious jeopardy, serious impairment to bodily functions or serious dysfunction of any bodily organs or parts.

"Emergency services" means medical services provided for a medical condition, including injury, manifesting itself by acute symptoms of sufficient severity, including severe pain, that a prudent layperson who possesses an average knowledge of health and medicine could reasonably expect the absence of immediate medical attention to result in placing the individual's health, or the health of an unborn child, in serious jeopardy, serious impairment to bodily functions or serious dysfunction of any bodily organs or parts.

"Encounter data" means information relating to the receipt of any item(s) or service(s) by an Enrollee under the Contract that is subject to the requirements of 42 C.F.R. §§ 438.242 and 438.818.

"Enrollee" means an individual who has been deemed Eligible for Medicaid in the State of Oklahoma, who has been deemed Eligible for enrollment in the SoonerSelect program, and who is currently enrolled in the SoonerSelect program.

"Enrollee handbook" means a guidebook that explains the SoonerSelect program that the Contactor shall distribute to every Enrollee. It shall be designed to help the Enrollee understand the CE or DBM, the SoonerSelect program and the rights and responsibilities that come with

membership in the program.

"Enrollment" means the OHCA process by which an Eligible becomes an Enrollee with an CE or DBM.

"EOB" means explanation of benefits.

"Essential community provider" means a provider defined by 45 C.F.R. § 156.235.

"Essential hospital services" means tertiary care hospital services to which the CE must provide access, including but not limited to neonatal, perinatal, pediatric, trauma and burn services.

"Excluded benefits" means Medicaid-covered services that are not the responsibility of the CE.

"Expansion adult" means an individual nineteen (19) or older and under age sixty-five (65), with income at or below one hundred thirty-eight percent (138%) of the federal poverty level (FPL) determined Eligible in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 435.119), and who are not categorically related to the aged, blind, and disabled.

"Excluded populations" means populations that are excluded from participation in the SoonerSelect program as specified in the Contract.

"Exploitation" means an unjust or improper use of the resources of a vulnerable Enrollee for the profit or advantage, pecuniary or otherwise, of a person other than the vulnerable Enrollee through the use of undue influence, coercion, harassment, duress, deception, false representation or false pretense.

"External Quality Review (EOR)" means the analysis and evaluation by an External Quality Review Organization (EQRO), of aggregated information on quality, timeliness and access to the health care services that the CE or DBM furnishes to Enrollees.

"Family planning services and supplies" means services and supplies described in § 1905(a)(4)(C) of the Act, including contraceptives and pharmaceuticals for which OHCA claims or could claim federal match at the enhanced rate under § 1905(a)(5) of the Act.

"Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC)" or "Health Centers" or "Centers" means an organization that qualifies for reimbursement under Section 330 of the Public Health Service Act. FQHCs qualify to receive enhanced reimbursements from Medicare and Medicaid, must serve an underserved population or area, offer a sliding fee scale, provide comprehensive services, have an ongoing quality assurance program, and have a governing board of directors.

"Former foster care children" or "FFC" means individuals under age twenty-six (26) determined Eligible in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 435.150 who were in foster care under the responsibility of the State or an Indian Tribe within Oklahoma and enrolled in SoonerCare on the date of attaining age eighteen (18) or aging out of foster care.

"Foster care" means planned, goal-directed service that provides twenty-four (24) hour a day substitute temporary care and supportive services in a home environment for children birth to eighteen (18) years of age in OKDHS custody.

"Foster children (FC)" means children in foster care under the responsibility of the State, including children and youth who are in State custody due to abuse or neglect.

"FPL" means federal poverty level.

"Fraud" means intentional deception or misrepresentation made by a person with the knowledge that the deception could result in some unauthorized benefit to himself or some other person. It includes any act that constitutes fraud under applicable federal or state law.

"Grievance" means an Enrollee's expression of dissatisfaction about any matter other than an adverse benefit determination. Grievances may include, but are not limited to, the quality of care or services provided, aspects of interpersonal relationships such as rudeness of a provider or employee or failure to respect the Enrollee's rights regardless of whether remedial action is requested. A

grievance includes an Enrollee's right to dispute an extension of time proposed by the CE or DBM to make an authorization decision.

"**Grievance and appeal system**" means the processes the CE or DBM must implement in accordance with 42 C.F.R. Part 438, Subpart F, to handle Enrollee grievances and appeals, as well as the processes to collect and track information about them.

"**Health care services**" means all services outlined in the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan, the Alternative Benefit Plan, and the 1115 IMD Waiver that are provided, according to contract, by the CE or DBM in any setting. Health care services may include but are not limited to medical care, behavioral health care, dental care, and pharmacy services.

"**Health plan**" means the same in these rules as at 36 O.S. § 4405.1.

"**Health risk screening**" means a screening tool developed by the contracted entity, and approved by the OHCA, to obtain basic health and demographic information, identify any immediate needs a Health Plan Enrollee may have and assist the contracted entity to assign a risk level for the Health Plan Enrollee to determine the level of care management needed.

"**Hospitalization**" means care in a hospital that requires admission as an inpatient and usually requires an overnight stay.

"**Implementation**" means the process by which OHCA and the CE or DBM performs actions and responsibilities to actively implement a managed care program or contract for the first time. Implementation also means, depending on its use, the moment in time that such actions and responsibilities are fully completed.

"**Indian health care provider**" or "**IHCP**" means a health care program operated by the Indian Health Service (IHS) or by an Indian Tribe, Tribal Organization, or Urban Indian Organization (otherwise known as an I/T/U) as those terms are defined in Section 4 of the Indian Health Care Improvement Act (25 U.S.C. § 1603).

"**Initial enrollment**" means an Eligible's enrollment in an CE or DBM during the initial enrollment period.

"**Intermediate sanction(s)**" means the sanctions described in 42 C.F.R § 438.702, which the OHCA may impose for the contracted entities non-compliance for any of the conditions in 42 C.F.R. § 438.700.

"**Juvenile justice involved**" means any person in custody or under the supervision of the Oklahoma Office of Juvenile Affairs (OJA) for whom OJA is required to provide services by law or court order.

"**Local Oklahoma provider organization**" means any state provider association, accountable care organization, Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic, Federally Qualified Health Center, Native American tribe or tribal, association, hospital or health system, academic medical institution, currently practicing licensed provider, or other local Oklahoma provider organization as approved by the Authority.

"**Manual**" or "**guide**" means any document, outside of the Medicaid State Plan, any Medicaid waiver, and the rules, that is created by or for OHCA for use in interpreting or implementing contractual terms. "Manual" is synonymous with guide, guidebook, companion guide, manual, reference book, dictionary, handbook, model, instructions, primer, workbook, or any other words denoting a document that is handled as a matter of convenience.

"**Medical necessity**" or "**medically necessary**" means a standard for evaluating the appropriateness of services as established under OAC 317:30-3-1.

"**National provider identifier (NPI)**" means a unique identification number for covered health care providers. Covered health care providers and all CEs, DBMs, and health care clearinghouses must use an NPI in the administrative and financial transactions adopted under the Health Insurance

Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). The NPI is a ten-position, intelligence-free numeric identifier (ten-digit number). This means that the numbers do not carry other information about healthcare providers, such as the state in which they live or their medical specialty. The NPI must be used in lieu of legacy provider identifiers in the HIPAA standards transactions.

"Non-compliance remedy" means an action taken by OHCA in response to the Contractor's failure to comply with a contract requirement or performance standard.

"Non-participating provider" means a physician or other provider who has not contracted with or is not employed by the CE or DBM to deliver services under the SoonerSelect program.

"Non-urgent sick visit" means medical care given for an acute onset of symptoms which is not emergent or urgent, but which requires face-to-face medical attention within seventy-two (72) hours of Enrollee notification of a non-urgent condition, as clinically indicated. Examples of non-urgent sick visits include cold symptoms, sore throat, and nasal congestion.

"OAC" means Oklahoma Administrative Code.

"ODMHSAS" means the Oklahoma Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services.

"OHCA" means the Oklahoma Health Care Authority.

"OJA" means the Office of Juvenile Affairs.

"OKDHS" means the Oklahoma Department of Human Services which is also referenced in rules as Department of Human Services (DHS) and Office of Human Services (OHS).

"Open enrollment period" means the annual period of time, as defined by contract, when Enrollees and Eligibles can enroll in and select an CE or DBM for the SoonerSelect program.

"O.S." means Oklahoma Statutes.

"OSDE" means the Oklahoma State Department of Education.

"Parent and caretaker relative" means an individual determined Eligible under 42 C.F.R. § 435.110.

"Participating provider" means a physician or other provider who has a contract with or is employed by a CE or DBM to provide health care services to Enrollees under the SoonerSelect Medical or Dental program.

"Patient-centered medical home" or "PCMH" means, in this Chapter, the care coordinated delivery system as defined within the contract between OHCA and a CE.

"Pharmacy Benefit Manager" means a third-party responsible for operating and administering the CE's pharmacy program.

"Post-stabilization care services" means covered services related to an emergency medical condition that are provided after a Health Plan Enrollee is stabilized to maintain the stabilized condition or under the circumstances described in 42 C.F.R. § 438.114(e), to improve or resolve the Health Plan Enrollee's condition.

"Pregnant women" means women determined Eligible for SoonerCare under 42 C.F.R. § 435.116.

"Prepaid Ambulatory Health Plan" or "PAHP" means a DBM and/or an entity as per 42 C.F.R. § 438.2 that:

(A) Provides services to Enrollees under contract with the state, and on the basis of capitation payments, or other payment arrangements that do not use State Plan payment rates;

(B) Does not provide or arrange for, and is not otherwise responsible for the provision of any inpatient hospital or institutional services for its Enrollees; and

(C) Does not have a comprehensive risk contract.

"Prepaid dental plan" means a contractual arrangement in accordance with 36 O.S. § 6142,

whereby any prepaid dental plan organization undertakes to provide payment of dental services directly, or to arrange for prepaid dental services, or to pay or make reimbursement for any dental services not provided for by other insurance.

"Prepaid dental plan organization" means any person who undertakes to conduct one (1) or more prepaid dental plans providing only dental services in accordance with 36 O.S. § 6142.

"Presumptive eligibility" means a period of temporary SoonerCare eligibility for individuals who are categorically related to certain eligibility groups listed in OAC 317:35-6-38(a)(1)(A)(i) through (vi) and are also determined by a qualified entity, on the basis of applicant self-attested income information, to meet the eligibility requirements for a Modified Adjusted Gross Income (MAGI) eligibility group.

"Primary care" means the provision of integrated, equitable, and accessible health care services by clinicians who are accountable for addressing a large majority of personal health care needs, developing a sustained partnership with patients, and practicing in the context of family and community.

"Primary care dentist" or "PCD" means a dental care professional providing comprehensive dental care for a Dental Health Plan Enrollee.

"Primary care provider" or "PCP" means the following:

(A) Family medicine physicians in an outpatient setting when practicing general primary care;

(B) General pediatric physicians and adolescent medicine physicians in an outpatient setting when practicing general primary care;

(C) Geriatric medicine physicians in an outpatient setting when practicing general primary care;

(D) Internal medicine physicians in an outpatient setting when practicing general primary care (excludes internists who subspecialize in areas such as cardiology, oncology, and other common internal medicine subspecialties beyond the scope of general primary care);

(E) Obstetrics and gynecology physicians in an outpatient setting when practicing general primary care;

(F) Providers such as nurse practitioners and physicians' assistants in an outpatient setting when practicing general primary care; or

(G) Behavioral health providers, including psychiatrists, providing mental health and substance use disorder services when integrated into a primary care setting.

"Prior authorization" or "PA" means a requirement that an Enrollee, through the Enrollee's provider, obtain the CE's or DBM's approval before a requested medical service is provided or before services by a non-participating provider are received. Prior authorization is not a guarantee of claims payment; however, failure to obtain prior authorization may result in denial of the claim or reduction in payment of the claim.

"Protected health information" or "PHI" means information considered to be individually identifiable health information, per 42 C.F.R. § 160.103.

"Provider" means a health care services provider licensed or certified in this State.

"Provider agreement" means an agreement between the CE or DBM and a participating provider that describes the conditions under which the participating provider agrees to furnish covered health care services to Enrollees.

"Provider-led entity" means an organization or entity that meets the criteria of at least one (1) of the following:

(A) A majority of the entity's ownership is held by Medicaid providers in this state or is held by an entity that directly or indirectly owns or is under common ownership with Medicaid

providers in the state; or

(B) A majority of the entity's governing body is composed of individuals who:

(i) Have experience serving Medicaid members and:

(I) Are licensed in the state as physicians, physician assistants, nurse practitioners, certified nurse-midwives, or certified registered nurse anesthetists;

(II) At least one (1) board member is a licensed behavioral health provider; or

(III) Are employed by a hospital or other medical facility licensed by the state and operating in the state or an inpatient or outpatient mental health or substance abuse treatment facility or program licensed or certified by the state and operating in the state.

(ii) Represent the providers or facilities including, but not limited to, individuals who are employed by a statewide provider association; or

(iii) Are nonclinical administrators of clinical practices serving Medicaid members.

"Quality Assessment and Performance Improvement" or "QAPI" means a process designed to address and continuously improve CE and DBM quality metrics.

"Quality Improvement Committee" or "QIC" means a committee within the CE or DBM's organizational structure that oversees all QAPI functions.

"Risk contract" means a contract between OHCA and a CE, prepaid inpatient health plan (PIHP), or prepaid ambulatory health plan (PAHP), as those terms are defined at 42 C.F.R. § 438.2, under which the Contractor assumes risk for the cost of the services covered under the contract and incurs loss if the cost of furnishing the services exceeds the payments under the Contract.

"Rural area" means a county with a population of less than fifty thousand (50,000) people.

"Rural Health Clinic" or "RHC" means clinics meeting the conditions to qualify for RHC reimbursement as stipulated in Section 330 of the Public Health Services Act.

"SoonerCare" means the Oklahoma Medicaid program.

"SoonerSelect" means the CEs and DBMs with whom the OHCA contracts with to provide SoonerCare covered medical, dental, pharmacy, and behavioral health benefits.

"Soon-To-Be-Sooner" means Oklahoma's separate CHIP providing coverage to unborn children of families earning up to and including one hundred eighty-five percent (185%) of the FPL.

"State Plan" means an agreement between OHCA and CMS describing how Oklahoma administers its Medicaid and CHIP programs.

"Steady state operations" or "steady state" means the time period beginning ninety (90) days after initial program implementation.

"Telehealth" means the practice of health care delivery, diagnosis, consultation, evaluation and treatment, transfer of medical data or exchange of medical education information by means of a two-way, real-time interactive communication, not to exclude store and forward technologies, between a patient and a health care provider with access to and reviewing the patient's relevant clinical information prior to the telemedicine visit. In accordance with Oklahoma law, including OAC 317:30-3-27 and 59 O.S. § 478, telehealth shall not include consultations provided by telephone audio-only communication, electronic mail, text message, instant messaging conversation, website questionnaire, nonsecure videoconference, or facsimile transmission.

"Third party liability" or "TPL" means all or part of the expenditures for an Enrollee's medical or dental assistance furnished under the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan that may be the liability of a third-party individual, entity, or program.

"Urban area" means a county with a population of fifty thousand (50,000) people or more.

"U.S.C." means United States Code.

"Value-added benefit" means any benefit or service offered by a CE or DBM when that

benefit, or service is not a covered benefit per the State Plan. These benefits are subject to change annually as determined by the CE or DBM and OHCA.

"**Value-based payment arrangement**" means a payment arrangement between a CE or DBM and its participating providers when payment is intentionally aligned with quality measures OHCA applies to the CE or DBM.

"**Waste**" means the overutilization of services, or other practices that, directly or indirectly, result in unnecessary costs to the Medicaid program; generally, not considered to be caused by criminally negligent actions but rather the misuse of resources.

317:55-1-4. Eligible entities

(a) **Eligible entities.** The OHCA shall enter into a capitated contract for the delivery of statewide Medicaid services. Eligible entities include an accountable care organization, a provider-led entity, a commercial plan, or any other entity as determined by OHCA. The CE or DBM shall meet the following requirements:

(1) **Licensure and certificate of authority.**

(A) The CE must be licensed as a Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) pursuant to 36 O.S. § 6901 et seq.

(B) The CE must furnish OHCA with a certificate of authority, to operate as an HMO, prior to contract implementation.

(C) The DBM must be licensed and authorized, as prepaid dental health plan, and able to transact dental business in the State of Oklahoma in accordance with 36 O.S. § 6141 et seq.

(D) The DBM must furnish OHCA with a certificate of authority for accident and health insurance or pre-paid dental prior to contract implementation in accordance with 36 O.S. § 703.

(E) Any changes to the certificate of authority, for CE and DBM, must be reported immediately to the OHCA.

(2) **Accreditation.** The CE or DBM shall seek accreditation from a private independent accrediting entity, as well as, earn a National Committee for Quality Assurance (NCQA) Health Equity Accreditation in the State of Oklahoma, within eighteen (18) months of initial enrollment implementation. When undergoing accreditation, the CE or DBM shall submit reports documenting the status of the accreditation process as required in the Contract and reporting manual.

(A) **Accreditation review.** The CE or DBM shall authorize the accrediting entity to provide the OHCA a copy of the CE's or DBM's most recent accreditation review including:

(i) Accreditation status, survey type, and level (as applicable);

(ii) Accreditation results, including recommended actions or improvements, corrective action plans, and summaries of findings; and

(iii) Expiration date of the accreditation.

(B) **Reaccreditation.** The CE and DBM shall undergo reaccreditation in accordance with the timeframes required by the accrediting entity and federal regulations.

(C) **Failure to achieve or maintain accreditation for a CE.** Failure to achieve or maintain accreditation shall be considered a breach of the CE Contract and may result in intermediate sanctions/penalties or termination in accordance with OAC 317:55-5-10(e)

(D) **Failure to achieve or maintain accreditation for a DBM.** Failure to achieve or maintain accreditation shall be considered a breach of the DBM Contract and may result in

administrative remedies, including liquidated damages or termination, in accordance with OAC 317:50-5-11 and 317:55-5-12.

317:55-1-5. Program administration requirements

(a) **Compliance.** The CE or DBM shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, 42 C.F.R. Part 438, and HIPAA privacy and security law, as defined in Section 3009 of the Public Health Service Act.

(b) **Subcontracting.** The CE or DBM shall seek approval from the OHCA prior to the effective date of any subcontract for performance of certain Contract responsibilities.

(1) The CE or DBM shall maintain ultimate responsibility for adhering to and otherwise fully complying with all terms and conditions of its Contract with OHCA, notwithstanding any relationship(s) with any subcontractors. The CE or DBM shall actively monitor subcontractors to ensure their compliance with the Contract and verify the quality of their services.

(2) The CE or DBM is prohibited from entering into any subcontract for the performance of any duty under the Contract in which such services are to be transmitted or performed outside of the United States.

(c) **Staffing.** The CE or DBM shall have sufficient staff to operate efficiently and meet all Contract obligations and standards. Additionally, the CE or DBM shall ensure staff and subcontractor staff receive detailed training on the requirements, policies, and procedures of the SoonerSelect program. All CE or DBM staff, including subcontractor staff, shall receive initial and ongoing training and education necessary to fulfill their job responsibilities under the Contract.

(d) **Policies and procedures.** The CE or DBM and any subcontractor shall:

(1) Develop and maintain written policies and procedures describing in detail how the CE or DBM and any subcontractor will fulfill the responsibilities outlined in the Contract.

(2) Submit all policies and procedures for OHCA's review and approval prior to adoption and implementation.

(3) Submit an annual certification in which the CE or DBM attests to the creation of updated policies and procedure.

(e) **Readiness review.**

(1) In accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.66(d)(1), the CE or DBM is required to participate, submit documentation, and satisfactorily pass the readiness review process in the following situations:

(A) Prior to initial implementation;

(B) When the specific CE or DBM has not previously contracted with the state; or

(C) When the CE or DBM, which is currently contracted with the state, will begin to provide, or arrange for covered benefits to new eligibility groups.

(2) All readiness review activities shall be completed to the satisfaction of OHCA and CMS pursuant to the Contract and/or any other policy guidelines/memorandum before being eligible to receive enrollment of Eligibles.

(3) Additionally, the state will conduct a desk review / optional on-site review of new subcontracts executed during the Contract term, or when the subcontract undertakes new eligibility groups or services. CEs, DBMs, and their subcontractors must adhere to all the contractual obligations found at 42 C.F.R. Part 438.

(f) **Marketing.** The CE or DBM must provide each Enrollee with an Enrollee handbook within ten (10) days and identification card within seven days (7) days after receiving notice of the Enrollee's enrollment or within ten (10) days of the Enrollee's request for the Enrollee handbook. The CE or DBM shall not falsify or misrepresent information that furnishes to an Enrollee, Eligible or provider.

All marketing activities and materials shall comply with applicable laws and regulations regarding marketing by the Contractor and Contract terms. The OHCA shall approve all marketing materials, which must comply with federal funding requirements, including 42 C.F.R. § 438.10 and 42 C.F.R. § 438.104.

(g) **Accessibility.** The CE or DBM shall ensure Enrollees and providers have continuous access to information as determined by OHCA and that complies with the requirements at Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Pub. L. No. 93-112, and the Oklahoma Electronic and Information Technology Accessibility law, 2004 HB 2197. To ensure ongoing accessibility standards are met, the CE or DBM shall:

(1) Provide its URL to the OHCA and any changes to the URL shall be approved by the OHCA.

(2) Assign and maintain a point of contact to assist the OHCA with interfacing/exchanging data in the CE's or DBM's system.

(h) **Disaster preparation and data recovery.** The CE and DBM shall submit to the OHCA and maintain a written disaster plan for information resources that will ensure service continuity as required by the Contract.

(i) **System performance.** The CE and DBM shall meet performance requirements pursuant to the Contract.

(j) **Call center standards.** The CE and DBM shall provide assistance to Enrollees and providers through a toll-free call-in system that meets the performance standards and requirements outlined in the Contract.

(k) **Failure to comply.** If the CE or DBM fails to comply with OAC 317:55-1-5, the OHCA may impose any or all the CE intermediate sanctions, found at OAC 317:55-5-10 and the CE Contract, or DBM administrative remedies, found at OAC 317:55-5-11 and the DBM Contract.

SUBCHAPTER 3. GENERAL PROGRAM INFORMATION

PART 1. ELIGIBILITY, ENROLLMENT AND CONTINUITY OF CARE

317:55-3-1. Mandatory populationsMandatory, voluntary, and excluded populations

(a) **Mandatory MCO enrollment.** Per 56 O.S. § 4002.3, eligibles in the following categories will be mandatorily enrolled in the MCP and with an MCO:

(1) Expansion adults;

(2) Parents and caretaker relatives;

(3) Pregnant women;

(4) Deemed newborns;

(5) Children; and

(6) All other populations requiring mandatory coverage pursuant to in 42 C.F.R. Part 435, Subpart B (§§ 435.100-435.172), unless otherwise covered by SoonerCare.

(b) **Mandatory Specialty Children's Plan enrollment.** Per 56 O.S. § 4002.3, eligibles in the following categories, upon entering custody of the State, will be mandatorily enrolled in the MCP and with the MCO under contract to provide the Specialty Children's Plan:

(1) Foster children (FC); and

(2) Certain children in the custody of OJA.

(c) **Mandatory Specialty Children's Plan enrollment, opt out.** Per 56 O.S. § 4002.3, eligibles in the following categories will be mandatorily enrolled in the MCP and with the MCO under contract to provide the Specialty Children's Plan, if they do not select a different MCO during initial enrollment, open enrollment, or steady state enrollment:

- (1) Former foster care (FFC); and
- (2) Children receiving adoption assistance (AA).

(d) **Mandatory DBM enrollment.** Per 56 O.S. § 4002.3, the following eligibles will be mandatorily enrolled in the MCP and with a DBM:

- (1) Expansion adults;
- (2) Parents and caretaker relatives;
- (3) Pregnant women;
- (4) Deemed newborns;
- (5) Former foster children;
- (6) Certain children in the custody of OJA;
- (7) Foster care children;
- (8) Children receiving adoption assistance; and
- (9) Children.

(a) **Mandatory populations.** The following SoonerCare Eligibles will be mandatorily enrolled with a CE and DBM under the SoonerSelect Dental and Medical program:

- (1) Expansion adults;
- (2) Parents and caretaker relatives;
- (3) Pregnant women;
- (4) Deemed newborns;
- (5) Former foster children;
- (6) Juvenile justice involved children;
- (7) Foster care children;
- (8) Children receiving adoption assistance; and
- (9) Children.

(b) **Voluntary populations.** SoonerCare Eligible individuals may voluntarily choose to enroll in the SoonerSelect Dental and Medical program through an opt-in process if they are American Indians and/or Alaskan Natives. AI/AN populations will have the option to:

- (1) Voluntarily enroll in the DBM and/or CE through an opt-in process;
- (2) Enroll in a DBM and/or CE at each open enrollment period, regardless of initial selection or past disenrollment from the DBM and/or CE;
- (3) When enrolled, AI/AN populations shall:
 - (A) Receive services from an IHCP;
 - (B) Choose the IHCP as the Enrollee's provider, if the provider has the capacity to provide such services;
 - (C) Obtain services covered under the Contract from out-of-network IHCPs when the Enrollee is otherwise Eligible to receive the IHCP's services;
 - (D) Self-refer for services provided by IHCPs to AI/AN Enrollees;
 - (E) Obtain services covered under the Contract from out-of-network IHCPs when the AI/AN Enrollee is otherwise Eligible to receive the IHCP's services; and
 - (F) Disenroll from any DBM and/or CE at any time without cause.

(c) **Excluded populations.** The following individuals are excluded from enrollment in the SoonerSelect program:

- (1) Dual-eligible individuals;
- (2) Individuals enrolled in the Medicare Savings Program, including Qualified Medicare Beneficiaries (QMB), Specified Low Income Medicare Beneficiaries (SLMB), Qualified Disabled Workers (QDW) and Qualified Individuals (QI);
- (3) Persons with a nursing facility or ICF-IID level of care, except for Enrollees with a pending

level of care determination;

(4) Individuals during a period of presumptive eligibility;

(5) Individuals infected with tuberculosis Eligible for tuberculosis-related services under 42 C.F.R. § 435.215;

(6) Individuals determined Eligible for SoonerCare on the basis of needing treatment for breast or cervical cancer under 42 C.F.R. § 435.213;

(7) Individuals enrolled in a § 1915(c) Waiver;

(8) Undocumented persons Eligible for emergency services only in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 435.139;

(9) Insure Oklahoma Employee Sponsored Insurance (ESI) dependent children in accordance with the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan;

(10) Coverage of Pregnancy-Related Services under Title XXI for the benefit of unborn children ('Soon- to-be-Sooners'), as allowed by 42 C.F.R. § 457.10; and

(11) Individuals determined Eligible for Medicaid on the basis of age, blindness, or disability.

(d) **Additional eligibility criteria.** For additional eligibility criteria, refer to Chapter 35 Medical Assistance for Adults and Children Eligibility Manual, Subchapter 5 Eligibility and Countable Income.

317:55-3-2. Excluded populations Enrollment and disenrollment process

(a) Per 56 O.S. § 4002.3, individuals in the following categories will be excluded from enrollment in a MCP contracted with one (1) or more MCOs:

(1) Dual-eligible individuals;

(2) ~~Individuals enrolled in the Medicare Savings Program, including Qualified Medicare Beneficiaries (QMB), Specified Low Income Medicare Beneficiaries (SLMB), Qualified Disabled Workers (QDW) and Qualified Individuals (QI);~~

(3) ~~Persons with a nursing facility or intermediate care facility for individuals with intellectual disabilities (ICF/IID) level of care, except that enrollees who are transitioning into long-term care will remain enrolled in any MCO for up to sixty (60) days while the enrollee's level of care determination is pending. Prior to disenrollment from an MCO, such excepted enrollees will receive a facility's pre-admission screening and resident review (PASRR) process. If OHCA approves the PASRR and designates the nursing facility or ICF/IID level of care, reimbursement will be made to the facility and the enrollee will be disenrolled from their MCO;~~

(4) Individuals during a period of presumptive eligibility;

(5) Individuals infected with tuberculosis eligible for tuberculosis-related services under 42 C.F.R. § 435.215;

(6) Individuals determined eligible for SoonerCare on the basis of needing treatment for breast or cervical cancer under 42 C.F.R. § 435.213;

(7) Individuals enrolled in a 1915(c) waiver;

(8) Undocumented persons eligible for emergency services only in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 435.139;

(9) Insure Oklahoma employee sponsored insurance (ESI) dependent children in accordance with the Oklahoma Title XXI State Plan;

(10) Coverage of pregnancy-related services under Title XXI for the benefit of unborn children (Soon- to-be-Sooners), as allowed by 42 C.F.R. § 457.10; and

(11) Individuals determined eligible for Medicaid on the basis of age, blindness or disability.

(b) Per 56 O.S. § 4002.3, eligibles in the following categories will be excluded from enrollment in a MCP contracted with one (1) or more DBMs:

- (1) Dual eligible individuals;
 - (2) Individuals enrolled in the Medicare Savings Program, including QMB, SLMB, QDW and QL;
 - (3) Persons with a nursing facility or ICF/IID level of care, except that enrollees who are transitioning into long term care will remain enrolled in any DBM for up to sixty (60) days while the enrollee's level of care determination is pending. Prior to disenrollment from a DBM, such excepted enrollees will receive a facility's PASRR process. If OHCA approves the PASRR and designates the nursing facility or ICF/IID level of care, reimbursement will be made to the facility and the enrollee will be disenrolled from the DBM.
 - (4) Individuals during a period of presumptive eligibility;
 - (5) Individuals infected with tuberculosis eligible for tuberculosis related services under 42 C.F.R. § 435.215;
 - (6) Individuals determined eligible for SoonerCare on the basis of needing treatment for breast or cervical cancer under 42 C.F.R. § 435.213;
 - (7) Individuals enrolled in a §1915(c) waiver;
 - (8) Undocumented persons eligible only for emergency services in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 435.139;
 - (9) Insure Oklahoma Employee Sponsored Insurance (ESI) dependent children in accordance with the Oklahoma Title XXI State Plan;
 - (10) Coverage of Pregnancy related services under Title XXI for the benefit of unborn children (Soon to be Sooners), as allowed by 42 C.F.R. § 457.10; and
 - (11) Individuals determined eligible for Medicaid on the basis of age, blindness or disability.
- (a) Enrollment process.** The OHCA beneficiary support system will provide choice counseling to all potential Enrollees at the time of initial enrollment, during the annual open enrollment period and for Enrollees who disenroll from a CE or DBM for good cause as described in the Contract and in this Section. The OHCA, or its designee, will provide information about individual CE or DBM benefit structures, services, and network providers, as well as information about other Medicaid programs as requested by the Eligible to assist the Eligible in making an informed selection.
- (1) **Selection/auto assignment.** During the application process, at OHCA's discretion, an Applicant may have up to sixty (60) days to select a contracted CE and DBM of their choice. Applicants who are Eligible to choose a CE and DBM and fail to make an election on the SoonerCare application, within the allotted timeframe, will be assigned to the CE and DBM that is due next to receive an auto assignment.
 - (2) **Exemptions to auto-assignments**
 - (A) The OHCA will not make auto-assignments to the CE if:
 - (i) The CE's maximum enrollment has been capped and actual enrollment has reached ninety-five percent (95%) of the cap;
 - (ii) The CE has been excluded from receiving new enrollment due to the application of non-compliance remedies; or
 - (iii) The CE has failed to meet readiness review requirements.
 - (B) The OHCA will not make auto-assignments to the DMB if:
 - (i) The DBM's maximum enrollment has been capped and actual enrollment has reached ninety-five percent (95%) of the cap;
 - (ii) The DBM has been excluded from receiving new enrollment due to the imposition of administrative remedies; or
 - (iii) The DBM has failed to meet readiness review requirements.
 - (3) **Enrollment effective date**

(A) Eligibles, with the exception of deemed newborns, who select or are assigned to a CE and/or DBM from the first day of the month through the fifteenth day of the month shall be enrolled effective on the first day of the following month.

(B) Eligibles who select or are assigned to a CE and/or DBM on the sixteenth (16th) day of the month through the last day of the month will be enrolled effective on the first day of the second following month.

(C) Prior to these enrollment dates, most Eligibles will be covered by a fee-for-service payment structure administered by OHCA.

(D) Deemed newborns eligible for the CE and/or DBM shall be enrolled effective as of the date of birth, if the newborn's mother also is enrolled in the SoonerSelect program.

(E) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the effective date of enrollment with the CE or DBM shall be the date recorded on the outbound ANSI ASC X 12 834 electronic transaction sent by OHCA.

(4) Enrollment lock-in period. An Enrollee may, within the first ninety (90) days of initial enrollment, request to change enrollment without cause from the CE and/or DBM, or during the ninety (90) days following the date OHCA sends the Enrollee notice of initial enrollment, whichever is later. Enrollees will also be permitted to change CEs and/or DBMs, without cause, at least once every twelve (12) months during the open enrollment period. After the disenrollment period from the CE or DBM has lapsed, the Enrollee will remain enrolled with the CE or DBM until the next annual open enrollment period, unless:

(A) The SoonerSelect Medical Enrollee:

(i) Is disenrolled due to loss of SoonerCare eligibility;

(ii) Becomes a foster child under custody of the state;

(iii) Becomes juvenile justice involved under the custody of the state;

(iv) Is a former foster care or child receiving adoption assistance and opts to enroll in the SoonerSelect Children's Specialty program;

(v) Demonstrates good cause under the following conditions:

(I) The Enrollee moves out of the service area;

(II) The Enrollee requires specialized care for a chronic condition and the Enrollee or Enrollee's representative, the CE, OHCA and receiving CE agree that assignment to the receiving CE is in the Enrollee's best interest;

(III) The plan does not cover the service the Enrollee seeks, because of moral or religious objections;

(IV) The Enrollee needs related services to be performed at the same time; not all related services are available within the CE's network; and the Enrollee's primary care provider or another provider determines that receiving the services separately would subject the Enrollee to unnecessary risk;

(V) For other reasons, including a filed and prevailed grievance related to poor quality of care, lack of access to services covered under the Contract, or lack of access to providers experienced in dealing with the Enrollee's oral health care needs or other matters deemed sufficient to warrant disenrollment; and

(VI) The Enrollee has been enrolled in error, as determined by the OHCA.

(vi) Experiences a temporary loss of eligibility or enrollment which caused the Enrollee to miss the annual disenrollment period, then the Enrollee may disenroll without cause upon reenrollment; or

(vii) The OHCA has imposed intermediate sanctions on the CE and allows Enrollees to disenroll without cause.

(B) The SoonerSelect Dental Enrollee:

(i) Is disenrolled due to loss of SoonerCare eligibility;

(ii) Demonstrates good cause under the following conditions:

(I) The Enrollee moves out of the service area;

(II) The plan does not cover the service the Enrollee seeks, because of moral or religious objections;

(III) The Enrollee needs related services to be performed at the same time; not all related services are available within the DBM's network; and the Enrollee's primary care dental provider or another provider determines that receiving the services separately would subject the Enrollee to unnecessary risk;

(IV) For other reasons, including a filed and prevailed grievance related to poor quality of care, lack of access to services covered under the Contract, or lack of access to providers experienced in dealing with the Enrollee's oral health care needs or other matters deemed sufficient to warrant disenrollment; and

(V) The Enrollee has been enrolled in error, as determined by the OHCA.

(iii) Experiences a temporary loss of eligibility or enrollment which caused the Enrollee to miss the annual disenrollment period, then the Enrollee may disenroll without cause upon reenrollment; or

(iv) The DBM is terminated.

(5) **Annual and special enrollment periods.** Sixty (60) days prior to the start of the Enrollee's annual open enrollment period, the Enrollee shall be notified of the option to maintain enrollment with the current CE and/or DBM or to enroll with a different CE and/or DBM. OHCA, at its sole discretion, may schedule a special open enrollment period, under the following circumstances:

(A) In the event of the early termination of a CE or DBM under the process described in the Contract; or

(B) The loss of a major participating provider(s) places the CE or DBM at risk of failing to meet service accessibility standards and the CE or DBM does not have an acceptable plan for mitigating the loss or finding of non-compliance.

(6) **Enrollment caps.** OHCA, at its sole discretion, may impose a cap on the CE or DBM's enrollment, in response to a request by the CE or DBM or as part of a corrective action in accordance to the respective Contract.

(b) **Disenrollment.** The OHCA shall have sole authority to grant or deny a disenrollment request from the Enrollee, and/or CE or DBM.

(1) **CE or DBM-requested disenrollment.** Pursuant to 42 C.F.R. § 438.56(b)(2), the CE or DBM cannot request a disenrollment based on adverse change in the member's health status or utilization of medically necessary services, diminished mental capacity, or uncooperative or disruptive behavior resulting from their special needs, except when their continued Enrollment with the Contractor seriously impairs the Contractor's ability to furnish services to either this particular Enrollee or other Enrollees.

(A) The CE may only request disenrollment of the Enrollee only for good cause. The following actions, if found by OHCA, comprise good cause:

(i) The Enrollee requires specialized care for a chronic condition and the Enrollee or Enrollee's representative, the CE, OHCA and receiving CE agree that assignment to the receiving CE is in the Enrollee's best interest;

(ii) The Enrollee has been enrolled in error, as determined by OHCA;

(iii) The Enrollee has exhibited disruptive behaviors to the extent the CE cannot

effectively manage their care, and the CE has made all reasonable efforts to accommodate the Enrollee; or

(iv) The Enrollee has committed fraud, including but not limited to, loaning an identification (ID) card for use by another person.

(B) The DBM may only request disenrollment of the Enrollee only for good cause. The following actions, if found by OHCA, comprise good cause:

(i) The Enrollee has been enrolled in error, as determined by OHCA;

(ii) The Enrollee has exhibited disruptive behaviors to the extent the DBM cannot effectively manage their care, and the DBM has made all reasonable efforts to accommodate the Enrollee; or

(iii) The Enrollee has committed fraud, including but not limited to, loaning an ID card for use by another person.

(2) **Enrollee-requested disenrollment.** Enrollees shall seek redress through the CE's or DBM's grievance process before OHCA will make a determination on an Enrollee's request for disenrollment. The CE or DBM shall accept Enrollee requests for disenrollment orally or in writing. The CE or DBM shall complete a review of the request within ten (10) days of the Enrollee filing the grievance. If the Enrollee remains dissatisfied with the result of the grievance process, the CE or DBM shall refer the disenrollment request to OHCA. The Contractor shall send records gathered during the grievance process to OHCA to facilitate OHCA's decision-making process. Disenrollment requests will be adjudicated by OHCA and, if approved, will become effective on a date established by OHCA.

(A) The Enrollee may request disenrollment from the CE or DBM as allowed by 42 C.F.R. § 438.56(c).

(B) An Enrollee may request disenrollment from the CE or DBM at any time based on any cause listed at 42 C.F.R. § 438.56(d)(2).

(C) An Enrollee may request disenrollment at any time in accordance with (a)(4)(A)(v)(I)-(VI) and (B)(ii)(I)-(V) of this Section and the applicable Contract.

(3) **Disenrollment by OHCA.** The CE or DBM shall report to OHCA, within five (5) business days of learning of any change in an Enrollee's status affecting the Enrollee's eligibility.

(A) The OHCA will initiate disenrollment of SoonerSelect Medical Enrollees under the following circumstances:

(i) Loss of eligibility for Medicaid;

(ii) Transition to a SoonerCare eligibility group excluded from the SoonerSelect Medical program;

(iii) Enrollee becomes enrolled in Medicare;

(iv) Death;

(v) Enrollee becomes a foster child under the custody of the state;

(vi) Enrollee becomes juvenile justice involved under the custody of the state;

(vii) The Enrollee becomes an inmate of a public institution;

(viii) The Enrollee commits fraud or provides fraudulent information; or

(ix) Disenrollment is ordered by a hearing officer or court of law.

(B) The OHCA will initiate disenrollment of SoonerSelect Dental Enrollees under the following circumstances:

(i) Loss of eligibility for Medicaid;

(ii) Transition to a SoonerCare eligibility group excluded from the SoonerSelect Dental program;

(iii) Enrollee becomes enrolled in Medicare;

- (iv) Death;
- (v) The Enrollee becomes an inmate of a public institution;
- (vi) The Enrollee commits fraud or provides fraudulent information; or
- (vii) Disenrollment is ordered by a hearing officer or court of law.

(4) Disenrollment effective date. Consistent with 42 C.F.R. § 438.56(e), except as provided for below, and unless OHCA determines that a delay would have an adverse effect on an Enrollee's health, it is OHCA's intent that a disenrollment shall be effective on the first day of the second following month.

(A) Grievance resolution for poor quality of care, lack of access to services covered under the Contract or lack of access to providers experienced in dealing with the Enrollee's health care needs or other matters deemed sufficient to warrant disenrollment under (b)(2) of this Section must be completed within this timeframe. If the CE fails to complete the grievance process in time to permit disenrollment by OHCA, the disenrollment shall be considered approved for the effective date that would have been established had the CE complied with this timeframe. Disenrollment for any of the following reasons shall be effective as of the date that the Enrollee's SoonerSelect Medical program eligibility status changes:

- (i) Loss of eligibility for Medicaid;
- (ii) Transition to a SoonerCare eligibility group excluded from the SoonerSelect program;
- (iii) Enrollee becomes a foster child under the custody of the state;
- (iv) Enrollee becomes JJ Involved under the custody of the state;
- (v) Enrollee becomes eligible for Medicare;
- (vi) Death;
- (vii) Enrollee becomes an inmate of a public institution;
- (viii) Enrollee commits fraud or provides fraudulent information;
- (ix) Disenrollment is ordered by a hearing officer or court of law; or
- (x) Enrollee requiring long-term care.

(I) Enrollees requiring long-term care in a nursing facility or ICF-IID shall be disenrolled from the CE when the level of care determination is finalized.

(II) For additional information regarding nursing facility and ICF-IID stays, refer to the Contract.

(B) Grievance resolution for poor quality of care, lack of access to services covered under the Contract or lack of access to providers experienced in dealing with the SoonerSelect Dental Enrollee's oral health care needs, or other matters deemed sufficient to warrant disenrollment under (b)(2) of this Section must be completed within this timeframe. If the Contractor fails to complete the grievance process in time to permit disenrollment by OHCA, the disenrollment shall be considered approved for the effective date that would have been established had the Contractor complied with this timeframe. Disenrollment for any of the following reasons shall be effective as of the date that the SoonerSelect Dental Enrollee's SoonerSelect Dental program eligibility status changes:

- (i) Loss of eligibility for Medicaid;
- (ii) Transition to a SoonerCare eligibility group excluded from the SoonerSelect Dental program;
- (iii) SoonerSelect Dental Enrollee becomes eligible for Medicare;
- (iv) Death;
- (v) SoonerSelect Dental Enrollee becomes an inmate of a public institution;
- (vi) SoonerSelect Dental Enrollee commits Fraud or provides fraudulent information;

- (vii) Disenrollment is ordered by a hearing officer or court of law; or
- (viii) SoonerSelect Dental Enrollees requiring long-term care in a nursing facility or ICF-IID shall be disenrolled from the Contractor when the level of care determination being done by the SoonerSelect or SoonerSelect Children's Specialty CEs is complete.

(C) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the effective date of disenrollment from the Contractor shall be the date recorded on the outbound ANSI ASC X 12 834 electronic transaction sent by OHCA.

(c) **Retroactive dual eligibility.** Dual eligibles are excluded from the SoonerSelect program. SoonerSelect Enrollees who become dual eligible individuals will be disenrolled as of their Medicare eligibility effective date.

(1) In the event a SoonerSelect Enrollee becomes retroactively Medicare eligible, the CE or DBM shall recover claims payments made to providers during the months of retroactive Medicare eligibility.

(2) The CE or DBM shall also notify the provider of the requirement to submit the claim to Medicare for reimbursement.

(3) OHCA will recoup the capitation payments paid for months of retroactive Medicare eligibility.

(d) **Re-enrollment following loss of eligibility.** Enrollees who lose and regain eligibility for SoonerSelect Medical or Dental program within a period of sixty (60) days or less will be re-enrolled automatically with their prior CE and/or DBM unless the CE and/or DBM is otherwise suspended or excluded from receiving new Enrollees. Re-enrolled Enrollees will have the right to change CE/DBM in accordance with this Section and the Contract.

(e) **Eligibles voluntarily opting out of SoonerSelect Children's Specialty program.** FFC and children receiving adoption assistance shall be enrolled in the SoonerSelect Children's Specialty program. These Eligibles may opt-out of enrollment in the Children's Specialty program; however, the legal guardian of the Eligible will be required to enroll the Eligible with a CE.

(f) **Non-discrimination.** The CE or DBM may not refuse an assignment or seek to disenroll an Enrollee or otherwise discriminate against Eligible to enroll on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, health status, need for medical services, or disability and may not use any policy or practice that has the effect of discriminating on the basis of race, color or national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or disability. The Contractor also may not discriminate against an Enrollee on the basis of expectations that the Enrollee will require frequent or high-cost care, or on the basis of health status or need for health care services or due to an adverse change in the Enrollee's health in enrollment, disenrollment, or re-enrollment. If the CE or DBM fails to comply with OAC 317:55-3-2, the OHCA may impose any or all the CE intermediate sanctions, found at OAC 317:55-5-10 and the CE Contract, or DBM administrative remedies, found at OAC 317:55-5-11 and the DBM Contract.

317:55-3-3. Voluntary enrollment and disenrollment Enrollee rights

- (a) Per 56 O.S. § 4002.3, AI/AN populations that are eligible for SoonerCare will have the option to:
- (1) Voluntarily enroll in the MCP through an opt-in process;
 - (2) Enroll in an MCO or DBM at each open enrollment period, regardless of initial selection or past disenrollment from the MCP;
 - (3) Receive services from an IHCP;
 - (4) Choose the IHCP as the enrollee's PCMH provider or DH provider, if the provider has the capacity to provide such services;
 - (5) Obtain services covered under the contract from out-of-network IHCPs when the enrollee is

- otherwise eligible to receive the IHCP's services;
- (6) Self-refer for services provided by IHCPs to AI/AN enrollees;
- (7) Obtain services covered under the contract from out-of-network IHCPs when the AI/AN enrollee is otherwise eligible to receive the IHCP's services; and
- (8) Disenroll from any MCO or DBM at any time without cause.
- (b) Children receiving prevention services from child welfare services have the option to enroll in the MCO contract to provide health care services under the Specialty Children's Plan.
- (a) In accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.100, state and federal regulations, and all contractual requirements, the CE and DBM shall allow the Enrollee the right to:
- (1) Receive information on the SoonerSelect program and the CE or DBM;
 - (2) Receive information on all available treatment options and alternatives;
 - (3) Participate in decisions regarding their healthcare;
 - (4) Free from any form of restraint or seclusion used as a means of coercion, discipline, convenience, or retaliation; and
 - (5) Request and receive a copy of their medical records in accordance with all HIPAA rules.
- (b) Each Enrollee is free to exercise their rights without the CE or DBM treating them adversely.
- (c) The CE or DBM may not otherwise discriminate against Enrollees on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, health status, need for medical services, or disability and may not use any policy or practice that has the effect of discriminating on the basis of race, color or national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or disability. If the CE or DBM fails to comply with OAC 317:55-3-3, the OHCA may impose any or all the CE intermediate sanctions, found at OAC 317:55-5-10 and the CE Contract, or DBM administrative remedies, found at OAC 317:55-5-11 and the DBM Contract.

PART 3. SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION ACCESS TO COVERED SERVICES AND PROVIDER NETWORK STANDARDS

317:55-3-10. Grievances and appeals Covered services

- (a) **Filing.** ~~Grievances and appeals are to be initially filed with each enrollee's MCO or DBM. Grievances may be filed with the enrollee's MCO or DBM at any time, either orally or in writing. A provider or an authorized representative may file an appeal, grievance, or request for a State fair hearing on behalf of an enrollee, provided that the provider or authorized representative has obtained the enrollee's written consent.~~
- (b) **Levels of appeal.** Pursuant to 42 C.F.R. § 438.402, MCOs and DBMs will only have one (1) level of appeal. Enrollees and providers may file an appeal to OHCA seeking the review of a final adverse benefit determination rendered by an MCO or DBM.
- (c) **Governing rules.** ~~The provisions at OAC 317:2-1-1 et seq. will govern any enrollee or provider right to file a grievance, complaint, appeal or request for a State fair hearing pursuant to 56 O.S. § 4002-4004, 42 C.F.R. Parts 431 or 438, or the managed care contract.~~
- (a) **Amount, duration, and scope of services.** The CE or DBM must ensure members have timely access to all medically necessary services, as applicable, covered by SoonerCare under the Medicaid State Plan, the Alternative Benefit Plan (ABP), and the 1115 IMD Waiver. The CE or DBM must ensure:
- (1) Services are sufficient in amount, duration, and scope to reasonably be expected to achieve the purpose for which the services are provided;
 - (2) The amount, duration, and scope of a required service is not arbitrarily denied or reduced solely because of the diagnosis, type of illness, or condition;

(3) PA is available for services on which the CE or DBM has placed a pre-identified limitation to ensure the limitation may be exceeded when medically necessary.

(A) The CE or DBM may propose to impose alternative PA requirements, subject to OHCA's review and approval, except for those benefits identified as exempt from PA. The CE or DBM may be less restrictive on the requirements of a PA than OHCA but may not impose greater restrictions.

(B) PA shall be processed in accordance with timeliness requirements specified in the Contract.

(4) Coverage decisions are based on the coverage and medical necessity criteria published in Title 317 of the Oklahoma Administrative Code and practice guidelines/manual; and

(5) If a member is unable to obtain medically necessary services offered by SoonerCare from a CE or DBM network provider, the CE or DBM must adequately and timely cover the services out of network, until the CE or DBM is able to provide the services from a network provider.

(b) **Emergency services.** The CE or DBM shall provide emergency services to Enrollees in accordance with the respective CE or DBM Contract.

(c) **Post-stabilization services.** In accordance with the provisions set forth at 42 C.F.R. § 422.113(c), the CE shall provide post-stabilization care services are:

(1) Obtained within or outside the CE network that are:

(A) Pre-approved by a CE or representative; or

(B) Not pre-approved by a CE or representative but administered to maintain the Enrollee's stabilized condition within one (1) hour of a request to the CE for pre-approval of further post-stabilization care services.

(2) Administered to maintain, improve, or resolve the Enrollee's stabilized condition without preauthorization, and regardless of whether the Enrollee obtains the services within the CE network when the CE:

(A) Did not respond to a request for pre-approval within one (1) hour;

(B) Could not be contacted; or

(C) Representative and the treating physician could not reach agreement concerning the Enrollee's care and a CE physician was not available for consultation.

(3) In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 438.114(e) and 422.113(c)(2)(iv), the CE shall limit charges to Enrollees for post-stabilization care services to an amount no greater than what the CE would charge the Enrollee if they obtained the services through the CE. Additionally, the CE's financial responsibility for post-stabilization care services if not pre-approved ends when:

(A) A CE physician with privileges at the treating hospital assumes responsibility for the Enrollee's care;

(B) A CE physician assumes responsibility for the Enrollee's care through transfer;

(C) A CE representative and the treating physician reach an agreement concerning the Enrollee's care; or

(D) The Enrollee is discharged.

(d) **Continued services to Enrollees.** The CE and DBM shall take all the necessary steps to ensure continuity of care when Enrollees transition to the CE or DBM from another CE/DBM or SoonerCare program. The CE and DBM shall ensure that established Enrollee and provider relationships, current services and existing PAs and care plans will remain in place during the continuity of care period in accordance with the requirements outlined in this Section.

(1) Transition to the CE/DBM shall be as seamless as possible for Enrollees and their providers.

(2) The CE shall take special care to provide continuity of care for newly enrolled Enrollees who have physical health conditions, behavioral health conditions and/or functional needs and

are under the care of existing treatment providers and whose health could be placed in jeopardy, or who could be placed at risk of hospitalization or institutionalization, if covered services are disrupted or interrupted.

(3) The DBM shall take special care to provide continuity of care for newly enrolled SoonerSelect Dental Enrollees who have oral health care needs and are under the care of existing treatment providers and whose health could be placed in jeopardy, or who could be placed at risk of hospitalization, if covered services are disrupted or interrupted.

(4) The DBM shall work with SoonerSelect and SoonerSelect Children's Specialty CEs to transition and coordinate care after a dental related emergency service pursuant to the Contract.

(5) The CE/DBM shall make transition of care policies available to Enrollees and provide instructions to Enrollees on how to access continued services during the continuity of care period.

(6) The CE/DBM shall ensure that all Enrollees are held harmless by providers for payment for any existing covered services, other than required cost sharing, during the continuity of care period.

(e) **Non discrimination.** The CE or DBM shall not discriminate an Enrollee on the basis of the Enrollee's health or need for medical services.

(f) **Failure to comply.** If the CE or DBM fails to comply with OAC 317:55-3-10, the OHCA may impose any or all the CE intermediate sanctions, found at OAC 317:55-5-10 and the CE Contract, or DBM administrative remedies, found at OAC 317:55-5-11 and the DBM Contract.

317:55-3-11. Intermediate sanctions~~Cost sharing~~

~~(a) **Intermediate sanctions obligation.** OHCA will establish intermediate sanctions that it may impose on an MCO if OHCA makes any of the determinations specified in 42 C.F.R. § 438.700(b)-(d).~~

~~(b) **Adoption of intermediate sanctions.** OHCA adopts the intermediate sanctions as provided at 42 C.F.R. § 438.702.~~

~~(c) **Imposition of sanctions.** If OHCA makes a determination per 42 C.F.R. §§ 438.700 or 438.706 and thereby imposes intermediate sanctions as listed at 42 C.F.R. §§ 438.702 or 438.706, OHCA will consider the totality of and follow all relevant regulations at 42 C.F.R. Part 438, Subpart I.~~

~~(d) **Required imposition of temporary management.** In accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.706(b), OHCA will impose the intermediate sanction of temporary management, regardless of any other sanction that may be imposed, if OHCA finds that an MCO has repeatedly failed to meet substantive requirements in sections 1903(m) or 1932 of the Act or 42 C.F.R. Part 438. In this situation, OHCA will also grant enrollees the right to terminate enrollment without cause, as described in 42 C.F.R. § 438.702(a)(3), and must notify the affected enrollees of their right to terminate enrollment. Notwithstanding any other Section of these rules, OHCA will not delay imposition of temporary management to provide a hearing before imposing this sanction. OHCA will continue this sanction until the MCO can ensure that the sanctioned behavior will not recur.~~

~~(e) **Retained authority.** OHCA retains authority to impose additional sanctions under State statutes or State regulations that address areas of noncompliance specified in 42 C.F.R. § 438.700, as well as additional areas of noncompliance. Nothing in 42 C.F.R. Part 438, Subpart I, prevents OHCA from exercising that authority.~~

~~(f) **Notice.** Before imposing an intermediate sanction, OHCA will give the affected MCO timely written notice that explains the basis and nature of the sanction and any other appeal rights that OHCA elects to provide.~~

~~(g) **Right to request fair hearing.** Though not required under federal regulation, OHCA provides~~

each MCO the right, upon notice of a sanction other than optional or required temporary management, to request a fair hearing before an administrative law judge (ALJ) retained by OHCA. The cost of actions necessary to process an MCO's request will be paid by OHCA.

(1) An MCO must file any request for fair hearing within thirty (30) days after receiving the notice.

(2) The ALJ has jurisdiction to hear any request under this section. The ALJ will review the appeal for legal authority and jurisdiction. If legal authority and jurisdictional requirements are met, the ALJ will conduct an administrative hearing according to the hearing practices of OAC 317:2-1-5, provide proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law to the parties, and send written notice to the parties of the final order sustaining or denying imposition of the sanction.

(3) At the ALJ's discretion, the ALJ will:

- (A) Establish a scheduling order;
- (B) Establish reasonable procedures such as authorizing pleadings to be filed by facsimile or electronic mail;
- (C) Rule on all interlocutory motions;
- (D) Require briefing of any or all issues;
- (E) Conduct hearings in a forum and manner as determined by the ALJ;
- (F) Rule on the admissibility of all evidence;
- (G) Question witnesses;
- (H) Impose appropriate sanctions against any person failing to obey an order of the ALJ or authorized under the rules in this section which will include:
 - (i) Refusing to allow the person to assert or oppose designated claims or defenses, or prohibiting that person from introducing designated matters in evidence;
 - (ii) Excluding all testimony of an unresponsive or evasive witness; or
 - (iii) Expelling the person from further participation in the hearing;
- (I) Take official notice of any material fact not appearing as evidence in the record, if the fact is among traditional matters of judicial notice;
- (J) Administer oaths or affirmations;
- (K) Determine the location of the hearing and manner in which it will be conducted;
- (L) Allow either party to request that the hearing be recorded by a court reporter with costs to be borne by the requesting party. The original of such transcription, if ordered, will be given to the ALJ with a copy to be given to the requesting party;
- (M) Recess and reconvene the hearing;
- (N) Set and/or limit the time frame of the hearing;
- (O) Make proposed findings of facts and conclusions of law; and
- (P) Sustain or deny OHCA's imposition of the sanction(s).

The CE or DBM shall ensure that all Enrollees are held harmless by providers for payment for any existing covered services, other than required cost sharing, during the continuity of care period. The CE or DBM shall not impose premiums or charges on Enrollees that are in excess of those permitted in the SoonerCare program in accordance with OAC 317:30-3-5 and the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan. If the CE or DBM fails to comply with OAC 317:55-3-11, the OHCA may impose any or all the CE intermediate sanctions, found at OAC 317:55-5-10 and the CE Contract, or DBM administrative remedies, found at OAC 317:55-5-11 and the DBM Contract.

317:55-3-12. Non-compliance damages and remedies Provider contracting and network requirements

If OHCA finds an MCO or DBM to be in violation of the provisions of 56 O.S. §§ 4002-4004,

~~rules promulgated thereto, or the terms and conditions of the contract, OHCA may enforce any damages or remedies for non-compliance as required by CMS, as provided for in the contract, or as permitted by State or Federal law.~~

(a) **Provider contracts.** A CE or DBM must provide or arrange for the delivery of covered health care services described in OAC 317:55-3-5 through a provider agreement with SoonerCare-contracted providers. All provider agreements must be in writing and in accordance with the Contract and 42 C.F.R. §§ 434.6 and 438.6. The CE's or DBM's execution of a provider agreement does not terminate the CE's or DBM's legal responsibility to the OHCA to ensure all the CE's and DBM's activities and obligations are performed in accordance with Okla. Admin. Code § 317, as applicable, the CE's or DBM's Contract with the OHCA, and all applicable federal, state, and local regulations. The CE or DBM shall maintain, and have available, written policies and procedures on:

(1) Participating provider selection;

(2) Retention and termination of a provider's participation with the CE or DBM;

(3) Responding to changes in the CE'S or DBM'S network of participating providers that affect access and ability to deliver services in a timely manner; and

(4) Access standards.

(b) **Provider network.**

(1) The CE and DBM must maintain, in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.206(b)(1), a network of appropriate participating providers that is supported by a signed provider agreement and is sufficient to provide adequate access and availability to all services covered under the Contract with the OHCA, including those with limited English proficiency or physical or mental disabilities.

(2) The CE and DBM must ensure that all requirements found at 42 C.F.R. § 438.3(q)(1) and (q)(3) are met.

(3) The CE and DBM must meet and require its participating providers to meet state standards for timely access to care and services, in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.206(c) and all contractual requirements.

(4) The OHCA shall monitor and review the CE's and DBM's compliance with all standards as part of all ongoing oversight activities.

(c) **Credentialing and recredentialing.**

(1) All CE and DBM must utilize the same single Credential Verification Organization (CVO) that is certified by a CMS-approved accrediting organization and approved by OHCA as part of its provider credentialing and recredentialing process. The CE and DBM credentialing and recredentialing processes shall comply with relevant state and federal regulations, including, but not limited to, 42 C.F.R. §§ 438.12, 438.206(b)(6), and 438.214, and all applicable contractual requirements.

(2) The CE and DBM must ensure that providers have been properly credentialed to ensure provider facilities, organizations, and staff meet all qualifications and requirements for participation in the Oklahoma Medicaid program. All applications must be credentialed and the CE's or DBM's claim systems must be able to recognize the provider as a SoonerSelect program network provider, within all applicable timeframes as outlined within the Contract with the OHCA.

(3) The recredentialing process must take into consideration provider performance data including Enrollee grievance and appeal, quality of care, and utilization management.

(4) The CE and DBM must review and approve the credentials of all applicable licensed and unlicensed participating and contracted providers who participate in the CE's or DBM's provider network at least once every three (3) years.

(5) If the CE or DBM fails to comply with the credentialing and recredentialing standards per OAC 317:55-5-12(c), the OHCA may impose any or all the CE intermediate sanctions, found at OAC 317:55-5-10 and the CE Contract, or DBM administrative remedies, found at OAC 317:55-5-11 and the DBM Contract.

(d) Non-discrimination against providers.

(1) The CE's and DBM's written policies and procedures shall not discriminate against providers that serve high-risk populations or specialize in conditions that require costly treatment, per 42 C.F.R. §§ 438.12(a)(2) and 438.214(a).

(2) In accordance with 56 O.S. § 4002.4(B), shall not exclude essential community providers, providers who receive directed payments in accordance with 42 C.F.R. Part 438, and such other providers, as directed by OHCA from execution of provider agreements.

317:55-3-13. Termination of managed care contract Time, distance, and access standards

(a) Termination of an MCO, permitted by 42 C.F.R. § 438.708. Members impacted by the contract termination of an MCO will be enrolled with a different MCO or be provided Medicaid benefits through options as prescribed in the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan. OHCA may terminate a contract with an MCO if OHCA determines that the MCO:

(1) Failed to carry out the substantive terms of the contract; or

(2) Failed to meet applicable requirements of sections 1903(m), 1905(t), or 1932 of the Act.

(b) Termination permitted by contract, MCO or DBM. Grounds for termination include:

(1) **Mutual consent.** OHCA and the MCO or DBM may terminate the contract by a mutually written agreement. The MCO or DBM does not have the right to appeal the termination. Enrollees impacted by the contract termination will be enrolled with a different MCO or DBM of their choosing or, if no choice is made, a default MCO or DBM.

(2) **Termination for convenience.** OHCA may terminate a contract for convenience, in whole or part, with a sixty (60) day written notice to the MCO or DBM if the State determines that termination is in the State's best interest. Any partial termination of the contract will not be construed as a waiver of, and will not affect, the rights and obligations of any party regarding portions of the contract that remain in effect. Upon receipt of notice of such termination, the MCO or DBM will immediately comply with the notice terms and take all necessary steps to minimize the incurrence of costs allocable to the work affected by the notice.

(3) **Termination for unavailability of funds.** OHCA may terminate a contract for lack of the availability of funds with written notice to the managed care. OHCA will give written notice to the MCO or DBM, effective the close of business on the day specified. OHCA is the final authority on the availability of funds, and the MCO or DBM does not have the right to appeal this termination.

(4) **Termination for lack of authority.** In the event that the State is determined, in whole or part, to lack Federal or State approval or authority to contract with an MCO or DBM, OHCA may terminate the contract immediately, effective on the close of business on the day specified. The MCO or DBM does not have the right to appeal this termination.

(5) **Termination for default.** OHCA may terminate the contract, in whole or in part, whenever the MCO has failed to carry out the terms of the contract or meet the applicable readiness requirements of §§ 1932, 1903(m) or 1905(t) of the Act.

(6) **Termination for financial instability.** In the event that OHCA, in its sole discretion, deems an MCO or DBM to be financially unstable to the point of threatening the ability of OHCA to obtain the services provided for under this contract, or to conduct business in the normal course, makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or suffers or permits the appointment of

a receiver for its business or its assets, then OHCA may, at its option, immediately terminate the contract effective on the close of business on the date specified. In the event OHCA elects to terminate the contract under this provision, the MCO or DBM will be notified in writing specifying the date of termination. In the event of the filing of a petition in bankruptcy court by or against a principal subcontractor, the MCO or DBM will immediately advise OHCA. The MCO or DBM will ensure that all tasks related to the subcontract are performed in accordance with the terms of the contract.

~~(7) **Termination for debarment.** Section 1932(d)(1) of the Act prohibits affiliations with individuals debarred by federal agencies. The MCO will not knowingly have an individual or affiliate, as defined in Section 1932(d)(1)(C), who has been debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from participating in procurement activities under the Federal Acquisition Regulation or from participating in non-procurement activities under regulations issued under Executive Order No. 12549 or under guidelines implementing Executive Order No. 12549.~~

~~(e) **Notice and pre-termination hearing.** Prior to terminating an MCO's contract for default, financial instability, or debarment, OHCA will provide the MCO a pre-termination hearing. OHCA will:~~

~~(1) Give the MCO written notice of the intent to terminate, the reason for termination, and the time and place of the hearing. The notice will detail how the MCO has failed to carry out the terms of the contract and/or failed to comply with the requirements of 1932, 1903(m) and 1905(t) of the Act. A time period will be provided, if applicable, in which the MCO is allowed to cure the default prior to the pre-termination hearing. If the MCO cures the default within the specified timeframe, no further action is required;~~

~~(2) After the hearing, the MCO will receive written notice of the decision affirming or reversing the proposed termination of the contract. In the event the decision is affirmed the notice is to include the effective date of the termination; and~~

~~(3) Upon affirmation of a decision, OHCA will give enrollees of the MCO written notice, comporting with the content requirements of 42 C.F.R. § 438.10, of the termination and information identifying options for receiving Medicaid services following the effective date of termination. This notice will be provided within five (5) business days of the affirming decision.~~

~~(d) **Hearing timing.** Though not required under federal regulation, OHCA provides each MCO the right, upon notice of a termination, to request a fair hearing before an administrative law judge (ALJ) retained by OHCA. The cost of actions necessary to process an MCO's request will be paid by OHCA.~~

~~(1) An MCO will file any request for fair hearing within thirty (30) days after receiving the notice.~~

~~(2) The ALJ has jurisdiction to hear any request under this section. The ALJ will review the appeal for legal authority and jurisdiction. If legal authority and jurisdictional requirements are met, the ALJ will conduct an administrative hearing according to the hearing practices of OAC 317:2-1-5, provide proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law to the parties, and send written notice to the parties of the final order sustaining or denying imposition of the sanction.~~

~~(3) At the ALJ's discretion, the ALJ will:~~

~~(A) Establish a scheduling order;~~

~~(B) Establish reasonable procedures such as authorizing pleadings to be filed by facsimile or electronic mail;~~

~~(C) Rule on all interlocutory motions;~~

~~(D) Require briefing of any or all issues;~~

~~(E) Conduct hearings in a forum and manner as determined by the ALJ;~~

- ~~(F) Rule on the admissibility of all evidence;~~
- ~~(G) Question witnesses;~~
- ~~(H) Impose appropriate sanctions against any person failing to obey an order of the ALJ or authorized under the rules in this section which will include:

 - ~~(i) Refusing to allow the person to assert or oppose designated claims or defenses, or prohibiting that person from introducing designated matters in evidence;~~
 - ~~(ii) Excluding all testimony of an unresponsive or evasive witness; or~~
 - ~~(iii) Expelling the person from further participation in the hearing;~~~~
- ~~(I) Take official notice of any material fact not appearing as evidence in the record, if the fact is among traditional matters of judicial notice;~~
- ~~(J) Administer oaths or affirmations;~~
- ~~(K) Determine the location of the hearing and manner in which it will be conducted;~~
- ~~(L) Allow either party to request that the hearing be recorded by a court reporter with costs to be borne by the requesting party. The original of such transcription, if ordered, will be given to the ALJ with a copy to be given to the requesting party;~~
- ~~(M) Recess and reconvene the hearing;~~
- ~~(N) Set and/or limit the time frame of the hearing;~~
- ~~(O) Make proposed findings of facts and conclusions of law; and~~
- ~~(P) Sustain or deny OHCA's imposition of the termination(s).~~

(a) The CE and DBM must meet all time and distance standards as established by the OHCA in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.68. The time and distance standards will apply to all geographic areas in which the CE or DBM operates, with standards varying for urban and rural areas, which will include, at a minimum:

- (1) Anticipated enrollment;
- (2) Expected utilization of services;
- (3) Characteristics and health care needs of all covered populations;
- (4) Provider-to-Enrollee ratios;
- (5) Travel time or distance to providers;
- (6) Percentage of contracted providers that are accepting new patients;
- (7) Ability to communicate with limited English proficiency Enrollees;
- (8) Ability to ensure physical access, reasonable accommodations, and accessible equipment for Enrollees with physical or mental disabilities;
- (9) Maximum wait times; and
- (10) Hours of operations.

(b) The standards listed in (a)(1) – (10) of this Section apply to the following medical provider types, in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.68(b) and specified in the Medical and Children's Specialty Contract:

- (1) Adult and pediatric PCPs;
- (2) Obstetrics and Gynecology (OB/GYN) providers;
- (3) Adult and pediatric mental health providers;
- (4) Adult and pediatric substance use disorder (SUD) providers;
- (5) Adult and pediatric specialists;
- (6) Hospitals;
- (7) Pharmacies; and
- (8) Essential community providers.

(c) The standards listed in (a)(1) – (10) of this Section apply to the following dental provider types, in accordance with 42 C.F.R § 438.68(b) and specified in the DBM Contract:

- (1) General dentistry providers;
- (2) Pediatric specialty dental providers;
- (3) Specialty dental providers; and
- (4) Essential community providers.

(d) If the CE or DBM fails to comply with the standards as set forth in this Section, the OHCA may impose any or all the CE intermediate sanctions, found at OAC 317:55-5-10 and the CE Contract, or DBM administrative remedies, found at OAC 317:55-5-11 and the DBM Contract.

317:55-3-14. Record retention Primary care requirements

In addition to the requirements found at OAC 317:30-3-15 and 317:30-5-70.2, the MCO or DBM and its affiliates, subcontractors, and employees must retain records in compliance with the provisions and spirit of 42 C.F.R. §§ 438.3(h) and (u), to the extent applicable.

(a) Primary care spending/expenses. No later than the end of the fourth (4th) year of the initial contracting period, each CE shall be currently spending not less than eleven percent (11%) of its total health care expenses on primary care services.

(b) Primary care expenditure reporting requirements.

(1) The CEs must submit a primary care implementation plan which describes the CEs strategies for increasing the percentage of total medical expenditures allocated to primary care over the initial four (4) year contract period.

(2) The plan shall include target annual percentage increases over the previous year baseline data that demonstrate the CEs ability to achieve eleven percent (11%) by the end of year four (4).

(c) Primary care expenditure calculations.

(1) CEs shall submit data on an annual basis for primary care and total medical expenditures made through paid claims amounts and non-claims payments to the OHCA, in the manner and timeline prescribed in the SoonerSelect Contract.

(2) The OHCA will consider non-claims-based investments into primary care including but not limited to investments in electronic health record (EHR) systems, health information exchange (HIE) costs, care coordination activities and systems, and recruitment/retention incentives for primary care providers in rural and medically underserved areas.

(3) Other non-claims-based investments may be reviewed and approved by the OHCA.

(4) The OHCA may impose a cap on the amount of non-claims-based investments considered in the primary care expenditure calculation.

317:55-3-15. Provider agreement/contract termination

(a) The CE and DBM and all participating providers have the right to terminate the Contract entered into with each other via a provider agreement.

(b) The CE and DBM and all participating providers may terminate the provider agreement for cause with thirty (30) days advance written notice and without cause with sixty (60) days advance written notice to the other party.

(c) The CE and DBM shall terminate its provider agreement with a participating provider immediately if any of the following circumstances occur:

(1) In order to protect the health and safety of all Enrollees;

(2) If a credible allegation of fraud results in a conviction of credible allegation on the participating provider;

(3) When the participating provider's licenses, certifications and/or accreditations are modified, revoked or in any other way making it unlawful for the provider to provide services under the

Contract; or

(4) If requested by the OHCA.

(d) The OHCA reserves the right to terminate a provider from SoonerCare participation. The OHCA will notify the CE or DBM regarding any termination. The CE and DBM shall be responsible for monitoring all state registries to review any participating providers that are terminated by OHCA and excluded from participation in the CE's or DBM's participating provider network.

317:55-3-16. Non-licensed providers

(a) The CE and DBM must ensure that all non-licensed providers are educated, trained, and qualified to perform all job responsibilities.

(b) Background checks and database screening in accordance with state and federal laws must be completed to ensure the non-licensed provider has not been excluded or debarred from participation in Medicare, Medicaid, or any federal health care program.

(c) All applicable state and federal regulations and contractual requirements must be followed when employing non-licensed providers.

PART 5. REQUIRED FEDERAL AUTHORIZATIONS, GRIEVANCE, APPEAL AND PROVIDER COMPLAINT SYSTEM

317:55-3-20. Authorizations SoonerSelect enrollee grievance and appeal system

Prior to the implementation of any MCP authorized under 42 C.F.R. Part 438, OHCA will receive the following authorizations:

(1) Federal authority through a State Plan Amendment or waiver of the Act;

(2) CMS approval of each contract in relation to the MCP;

(3) CMS approval of all contract rates authorized under the MCP; and

(4) CMS approval of direct payment arrangements authorized under the MCP.

(a) The CE or DBM shall have written grievance and appeal policies and procedures for an Enrollee, or an Enrollee's authorized representative, to appeal a CE's or DBM's action and/or file a grievance. The policies must address contractual requirements, including performance standards, and federal funding requirements, including 42 C.F.R. § 438 Subpart F and OAC 317:2-3-3.

(1) Timeframes, pursuant to OAC 317:2-3-2;

(2) Grievances, pursuant to OAC 317:2-3-4;

(3) Appeals, pursuant to OAC 317:2-3-5;

(4) Grievance and appeal notices, pursuant to OAC 317:2-3-8;

(5) State fair hearings, pursuant to OAC 317:2-3-12;

(6) Recordkeeping, pursuant to OAC 317:2-3-11; and

(7) Continuation of benefits, pursuant to OAC 317:2-1-2.6 and 317:2-3-5.1.

(b) If the CE or DBM fails to meet performance standards, the OHCA may impose any or all the CE intermediate sanctions, found at OAC 317:55-5-10 and the CE Contract, or DBM administrative remedies, found at OAC 317:55-5-11 and the DBM Contract.

317:55-3-21. Timing Provider complaint system

OHCA may only execute transition to a managed care delivery system ninety (90) days after CMS has approved all contracts entered into between OHCA and all MCOs or DBMs following OHCA's submission of readiness review results to CMS, pursuant to 42 C.F.R. § 438.66.

The CE or DBM shall have written provider complaint policies and procedures for an Enrollee, or an Enrollee's authorized representative, to appeal a CE's or DBM's action and/or file a grievance.

The policies must address contractual requirements, including performance standards, and federal funding requirements, including 42 C.F.R. Part 438 Subpart F and OAC 317:2-3-10.

- (1) Timeframes, pursuant to OAC 317:2-3-2;
- (2) Notices, pursuant to OAC 317:2-3-8; and
- (3) Recordkeeping, pursuant to OAC 317:2-3-11.

SUBCHAPTER 5. REQUIREMENTS FOR MANAGED CARE ORGANIZATIONS CONTRACTED ENTITIES AND DENTAL BENEFITS MANAGERS

PART 1. ACCREDITATION AND READINESS MONITORING, PROGRAM INTEGRITY, DATA, AND REPORTING

317:55-5-1. MCO or DBM accreditation Monitoring system for all SoonerSelect programs

~~All MCOs and DBMs will be accredited in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 165.275 by an accrediting entity recognized by the United States Department of Health and Human Services.~~

(a) In accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.66, the OHCA will monitor each CE or DBM to assess its ability and capacity to comply with program and Contract-specific requirements and to assess its ability to perform satisfactorily in all major operational areas.

(b) The CE or DBM shall have a reporting monitoring process for ensuring compliance with all Contract requirements, implementation deadlines for mandates and/or laws as directed by CMS, CDC, or other federal or state government entity. The CE or DBM shall report monthly on its compliance monitoring activities as required by the reporting manual.

317:55-5-2. MCO or DBM readiness Program integrity; data and reporting

~~(a) According to 42 C.F.R. § 438.66, during implementation and prior to enrollment effective dates, the MCO or DBM will participate in a readiness review process. To be deemed eligible to effect enrollments, the MCO or DBM will complete all readiness review activities to the satisfaction of OHCA and CMS. The readiness reviews will be conducted through one (1) or more desk reviews and one or more on-site reviews. The MCO or DBM must satisfactorily demonstrate readiness for MCP operations, including but not limited to focus areas identified at 42 C.F.R. § 438.66(b). At any stage(s) of the readiness review process, OHCA may but is not required to provide an MCO or DBM with notice(s) of deficiency and reasonable opportunity(ies) to cure the deficiency. As between the parties to the managed care contract, OHCA has sole authority to determine the readiness of any MCO or DBM.~~

~~(b) As a part of any readiness review, OHCA will ensure the MCO or DBM meets the requirements at 56 O.S. § 4002.10.~~

(a) **Program integrity standards.** The CE and DBM shall comply with all state and federal laws, regulations, and mandates including but not limited to 42 C.F.R. § 438.608. The CE and DBM shall have and implement written policies and procedures that are designed to detect and prevent fraud, waste, and abuse pursuant to the Contract and federal regulations. The CE and DBM shall:

- (1) Provide a monthly report (by close of the last calendar day of each month), of all open Program Integrity related audits and investigations related to fraud, waste, and abuse activities for identifying and collecting potential overpayments, utilization review, and provider compliance.
- (2) Refer credible allegations of fraud to OHCA's Legal Division in writing within three (3) business days of discovery.
- (3) Suspend all payments to the provider when a credible allegation of fraud exists.

(4) Participate in good faith at monthly Program Integrity meetings held jointly with MFCU and OHCA.

(5) Participate in good faith at monthly meetings with OHCA Program Integrity and Accountability Unit.

(6) Disclose any change in ownership and control information to OHCA within thirty-five (35) calendar days.

(7) Submit to OHCA or HHS, within thirty-five (35) days of request, full and complete information about:

(A) The ownership of any subcontractor with whom the CE/DBM has had business transactions totaling more than twenty-five thousand dollars (\$25,000) during the twelve (12-month) period ending on the date of the request; and

(B) Any significant business transactions between the CE/DBM and any wholly owned supplier, or between the provider and any subcontractor, during the five (5-year) period ending on the date of request.

(b) Data and reporting standards.

(1) The CE and DBM shall:

(A) Provide information responsive to specific requests made by OHCA, MFCU, or other authorized state and federal authorities (including, but not limited to, requests for records of Health Plan Enrollee and provider interviews), within three (3) business days of said request, unless otherwise agreed upon by OHCA.

(B) Submit weekly encounter data by the deadline established by OHCA and in accordance with OHCA accuracy standards.

(C) Submit a required report timely and/or accurately.

(2) The CE or DBM shall not falsify or misrepresent information that it furnishes to CMS or OHCA.

(c) Request for information. The CE or DBM shall provide and prioritize requests for information made by OHCA, MFCU, or other authorized state and federal authorities. The CE or DBM shall respond to urgent requests from OHCA within twenty-four hours (24-hours) and according to guidance and timelines provided by OHCA.

(d) Record retention. The CE or DBM shall retain records for a period of ten (10) years as well as comply with all state and federal regulations and contractual requirements.

(e) Non-compliance actions. If the CE or DBM fails to submit any OHCA-requested materials, as specified in this Section, without cause as determined by OHCA, on or before the due date, OHCA may impose any or all the CE sanctions, found at OAC 317:55-5-10 and the CE Contract, or DBM administrative penalties, found at OAC 317:55-5-11 and the DBM Contract.

317:55-5-3. Critical incident reporting system

(a) The CE shall ensure that any serious incident that harms or potentially harms the Enrollee's health, safety, or well-being, including incidents of seclusion and restraint, are immediately identified, reported, reviewed, investigated, and corrected, in compliance with state and federal law.

(b) When the Enrollee is in the care of a behavioral health inpatient, PRTE, or crisis stabilization unit, critical incidents shall include, but are not limited to the following:

(1) Suicide death;

(2) Non-suicide death;

(3) Death-cause unknown;

(4) Homicide;

(5) Homicide attempt with significant medical intervention;

- (6) Suicide attempt with significant medical intervention;
 - (7) Allegation of physical, sexual, or verbal abuse or neglect;
 - (8) Accidental injury with significant medical intervention;
 - (9) Use of restraints/seclusion (isolation);
 - (10) AWOL or absence from a mental health facility without permission; or
 - (11) Treatment complications (medication errors and adverse medication reaction) requiring significant medical intervention.
- (c) The CE shall develop and implement a critical incident reporting and tracking system for behavioral health adverse or critical incidents and shall require participating providers to report adverse or critical incidents to the CE, OHS, and the Enrollee's parent or legal guardian.
- (d) Participating providers shall contact the CE by phone no later than 5:00pm Central time on the business day following a serious occurrence and disclose, at a minimum:
- (1) The name of the Enrollee involved in the serious incident;
 - (2) A description of the occurrence; and
 - (3) The name, street address, and telephone number of the facility.
- (e) The participating provider must, within three (3) days of the serious occurrence, submit a written facility critical incident report to the CE.
- (1) The facility critical incident report must include specific information regarding the incident including the following:
 - (A) All information listed in OAC 317:55-5-3 (d)(1) through (3);
 - (B) Available follow-up information regarding the Enrollee's condition;
 - (B) Debriefings; and
 - (C) Any programmatic changes that were implemented.
 - (2) A copy of this report must be maintained in the Enrollee's record, along with the names of the persons at the CE and OHS to whom the occurrence was reported.
 - (3) A copy of the report must also be maintained in the incident and accident report logs kept by the facility.
 - (4) The CE shall review the participating provider's report and follow up with the participating provider as necessary to ensure that an appropriate investigation was conducted, and corrective actions were implemented within applicable timeframes.
- (f) The CE shall provide appropriate training and take corrective action as needed to ensure its staff and participating providers, as applicable, comply with all critical incident requirements, in the manner and format outlined in the reporting manual.

PART 3. PROVIDER REQUIREMENTS NON-COMPLIANCE OF A CE AND/OR DBM AND NOTIFICATIONS

317:55-5-10. Provider contracts and credentialing standards Non-compliance of contracted entities

- ~~(a) All MCOs and DBMs will formally credential and recredential network providers at a frequency required by a single, consolidated provider enrollment and credentialing process established by OHCA in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.214 and in coordination with MCOs and DBMs.~~
- ~~(b) All MCOs and DBMs will contract to the extent possible and practicable with all essential community providers who receive directed payments in accordance with 42 C.F.R. Part 438 and any other providers as specified by OHCA through contract.~~
- ~~(c) Every MCO and DBM will contract with every participating provider through a written provider agreement that:~~

- (1) Identifies the contractual obligations between the MCO or DBM and the participating provider; and
- (2) Incorporates any provision required by the contract between OHCA and the MCO or DBM for inclusion in the provider agreement.
- (d) An MCO or DBM or any subcontractor thereof will not enforce with any provider a policy or contract term that requires the provider to contract for all products currently offered or that may be offered in the future by the MCO, DBM, or subcontractor.
- (a) **Failure to comply.** If the CE fails to fulfill its duties and obligations or meet performance standards under 42 C.F.R. Part 438, 42 U.S.C. § 1396b(m), 42 U.S.C. § 1396u-2, Title 317 of the Oklahoma Administrative Code, or the CE Contract, OHCA will notify the CE of unmet performance expectations, violations or deficiencies, and may impose corrective actions or any sanctions in addition to or instead of any actions or sanctions specified in the Contract.
- (b) **Non-material compliance deficiencies.**
- (1) If OHCA determines that unmet performance expectations, violations, or deficiencies do not result in a material deficiency or delay in the implementation or operation of services, the CE will have five (5) business days (or the date specified by OHCA) of receipt of notice to provide the OHCA with a written response that:
- (A) Explains the reasons for the deficiency;
- (B) The CE's plan to address or cure the deficiency; and
- (C) The date and time by which the deficiency will be cured.
- (D) If the CE disagrees with OHCA's findings, the CE shall provide its reasons for disagreeing with OHCA's findings.
- (2) The CE's proposed cure of a non-material deficiency is subject to the approval of OHCA.
- (3) The CE's repeated commission of non-material deficiencies or repeated failure to resolve any such deficiencies may be regarded by OHCA as a material deficiency and entitle OHCA to pursue any other remedy provided in the Contract or any other appropriate remedy OHCA may have at law or equity.
- (c) **Material compliance deficiencies.**
- (1) An item of material non compliance means a specific action of the CE that:
- (A) Violates a substantive term of the Contract;
- (B) Fails to meet an agreed upon measure of performance; or
- (C) Represents a failure of the CE to be reasonably responsive to a reasonable request of OHCA relating to the Services for information, assistance, or support within the timeframe specified by OHCA.
- (2) If OHCA determines that unmet performance expectations, violations, or deficiencies result in a material deficiency, The CE may be required to submit a written CAP under the signature of the CE's CEO to correct or resolve a material breach of the Contract.
- (A) The CAP must:
- (i) Be submitted by the deadline set forth in the OHCA's request for a CAP.
- (ii) Be reviewed and approved by the OHCA.
- (B) Following the approval of the CAP, the OHCA may:
- (i) Condition such approval on completion of tasks in the order or priority that the OHCA prescribes;
- (ii) Disapprove portions of the CE's proposed CAP; or
- (iii) Require additional or different corrective action(s) or timelines/time limits.
- (C) The CE remains responsible for achieving the established performance criteria.

(3) OHCA may apply one (1) or more of the following non-compliance remedies for each item of material non-compliance listed in (2) of this Section.

(A) Conduct accelerated monitoring of the CE;

(B) Require additional, more detailed, financial and/or programmatic reports to be submitted by the CE;

(C) Decline to renew or extend the Contract;

(D) Require forfeiture of all or part of the CE's performance bond or other substitute; or

(E) Terminate the Contract in accordance with OAC 317:55-5-14.

(4) In addition to the non-compliance remedies, the OHCA may impose tailored remedies, including liquidated damages pursuant to (e) of this Section.

(d) **Imposition of intermediate sanctions.** In accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.702, if OHCA determines the CE is non-compliant and 42 C.F.R. § 438.700(b) is the basis for the Agency's determination, OHCA may impose the following intermediate sanctions:

(1) Imposition of civil money penalties in the amounts specified in 42 C.F.R. § 438.704;

(2) Grant Enrollee(s) the right to terminate enrollment without cause and notifying the affected Enrollees of their right to disenroll;

(3) Suspend all new enrollment of Enrollee(s), including default enrollment, after the date OHCA notifies the CE of a determination of a violation of any requirement under § 1903(m) or § 1932 of The Act;

(4) Suspend or recoup capitation payments to the CE for Enrollees enrolled after the effective date of the sanction and until OHCA is satisfied that the reason for imposition of the sanction no longer exist and is not likely to recur;

(5) Impose additional sanctions provided for under state statutes or regulations to address noncompliance in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.702(b); and

(6) Appoint temporary management in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.706. The CE shall comply with the contractual requirements found in Section 1.26.3.5 "Intermediate Sanctions" of the Contract.

(7) The CE shall be responsible for all reasonable expenses related to the direct operation of the SoonerSelect program, including but not limited to attorney fees, cost of preliminary or other audits of the CE and expenses related to the management of any office or other assets of the CE.

(e) **Liquidated damages.** OHCA may impose actual, consequential, and liquidated damages in accordance with Tit. 23 O.S. § 21, resulting from the CE's failure to comply with any of the terms of the Contract, Ch. 55, or any applicable state or federal regulations. Consequential and liquidated damages will be assessed if OHCA determines such failure is the fault of the CE, including the CE's subcontractors and/or consultants, and is not materially caused or contributed to by OHCA or its agents.

(f) **Other provisions.** The CE shall be responsible for all reasonable expenses related to the direct operation of the SoonerSelect Medical program, including but not limited to attorney fees, cost of preliminary or other audits of the CE and expenses related to the management of any office or other assets of the CE.

317:55-5-11. Network adequacy standards~~Non-compliance of dental benefit managers~~

~~In accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.604, the MCO or DBM will submit documentation for which OHCA will base its certification to CMS that the MCO or DBM has complied with requirements for availability and accessibility of services, including health professional shortage areas and adequacy of the MCO's or DBM's network, as set forth in 42 C.F.R. §§ 438.206, 438.14 and 438.68.~~

(a) **Failure to comply.** If the DBM fails to fulfill its duties and obligations or meet performance standards under 42 C.F.R. Part 438, 42 U.S.C. § 1396b(m), 42 U.S.C. § 1396u-2, Title 317 of the Oklahoma Administrative Code, or the DBM Contract, OHCA will notify the DBM of unmet performance expectations, violations, or deficiencies, and may impose corrective actions or any sanctions in addition to or instead of any actions or sanctions specified in the Contract.

(b) **Non-material compliance deficiencies.**

(1) If OHCA determines that unmet performance expectations, violations, or deficiencies do not result in a material deficiency or delay in the implementation or operation of services, the DBM will have five (5) business days (or the date specified by OHCA) of receipt of notice to provide the OHCA with a written response that:

(A) Explains the reasons for the deficiency;

(B) The DBM's plan to address or cure the deficiency; and

(C) The date and time by which the deficiency will be cured; or

(D) If the DBM disagrees with OHCA's findings, the DBM shall provide its reasons for disagreeing with OHCA's findings.

(2) The DBM's proposed cure of a non-material deficiency is subject to the approval of OHCA.

(3) The DBM's repeated commission of non-material deficiencies or repeated failure to resolve any such deficiencies may be regarded by OHCA as a material deficiency and entitle OHCA to pursue any other remedy provided in the Contract or any other appropriate remedy OHCA may have at law or equity.

(c) **Material compliance deficiencies.**

(1) An item of material non compliance means a specific action of the DBM that:

(A) Violates a substantive term of the Contract;

(B) Fails to meet an agreed upon measure of performance; or

(C) Represents a failure of the DBM to be reasonably responsive to a reasonable request of OHCA relating to the services for information, assistance, or support within the timeframe specified by OHCA.

(2) If OHCA determines that unmet performance expectations, violations, or deficiencies result in a material deficiency, the DBM may be required to submit a written CAP under the signature of the DBM's CEO to correct or resolve a material breach of the Contract.

(A) The CAP must:

(i) Be submitted by the deadline set forth in OHCA's request for a CAP.

(ii) Be reviewed and approved by OHCA.

(B) Following the approval of the CAP, the OHCA may:

(i) Condition such approval on completion of tasks in the order or priority that the OHCA prescribes;

(ii) Disapprove portions of the DBM's proposed CAP; or

(iii) Require additional or different corrective action(s) or timelines/time limits.

(C) The DBM remains responsible for achieving the established performance criteria.

(3) OHCA may apply one (1) or more of the administrative remedies found in (f) of this Section for each item of material non-compliance listed in (c)(2) of this Section.

(d) **Liquidated damages.** OHCA may impose actual, consequential, and liquidated damages in accordance with 23 O.S. § 21, resulting from the DBM's failure to comply with any of the terms of the Contract, Ch. 55, or any applicable state or federal regulations. Consequential and liquidated damages will be assessed if OHCA determines such failure is the fault of the DBM, including the CE's subcontractors and/or consultants, and is not materially caused or contributed to by OHCA or its agents.

(e) **Administrative remedies.** OHCA may impose the following remedies:

- (1) Conduct accelerated monitoring of the DBM;
- (2) Require additional, more detailed, financial and/or programmatic reports to be submitted by the DBM;
- (3) Decline to renew or extend the Contract;
- (4) Require forfeiture of all or part of the DBM's performance bond or other substitute; or
- (5) Terminate the Contract in accordance with OAC 317:55-5-14.
- (6) Grant Enrollee(s) the right to terminate enrollment without cause and notifying the affected Enrollees of their right to disenroll;
- (7) Suspend all new enrollment of Enrollee(s), including default enrollment, after the date OHCA notifies the CE or DBM of a determination of a violation of any requirement;
- (8) Suspend or recoup capitation payments to the DBM for Enrollees enrolled after the effective date of the sanction and until OHCA is satisfied that the reason for imposition of the sanction no longer exist and is not likely to recur; and
- (9) Appoint temporary management in accordance with 42 C.F.R. § 438.706. The DBM shall comply with the contractual requirements found in the Contract at Section 1.26.3.5 "Imposition of Liquidated Damages".

(f) **Other provisions.** The DBM shall be responsible for all reasonable expenses related to the direct operation of the SoonerSelect Dental program, including but not limited to attorney fees, cost of preliminary or other audits of the DBM and expenses related to the management of any office or other assets of the DBM.

317:55-5-12. ~~Prior authorization requirements, generally~~ Termination of contract

~~The OHCA will establish prior authorization requirements that are consistent with 56 O.S. §§ 4002-4004. MCOs and DBMs may establish prior authorization of benefits to the extent these are consistent with OHCA's policies and rules. The MCO or DBM may propose to impose additional prior authorization requirements, subject to OHCA's review and approval, except for those benefits identified in the Oklahoma Medicaid State Plan, rules, or practices as exempt from prior authorization. The MCO or DBM may be less restrictive on the requirements of a prior authorization than OHCA but may not impose greater restrictions.~~

(a) The Contract may be terminated prior to its scheduled expiration date only for the reasons specified in this Section.

- (1) **Termination for mutual consent.** OHCA and the CE or DBM may terminate the contract by mutual written agreement.
- (2) **Termination for convenience.** The OHCA may terminate the contract, in whole or in part, for convenience if it is determined that termination is in the state's best interest.
- (3) **Termination for default.** OHCA may, at its election, assign Enrollees to another DBM/CE or provide benefits through other State Plan authority if the DBM/CE has breached this contract and is unable or unwilling to cure such breach within the period of time as specified in writing by OHCA.
- (4) **Termination for unavailability of funds.** If state, federal, or other funding is not sufficiently appropriated, or is withdrawn, reduced, or limited in any way after the effective date of the contract, OHCA may terminate this contract immediately, effective on the close of business on the day specified. OHCA shall be the final authority as to the availability of funds.
- (5) **Termination for lack of authority.** If any necessary federal or state approval or authority to operate the SoonerSelect Medical or Dental program is not granted, or the Oklahoma Legislature prohibits OHCA from contracting with a CE or DBM for the provision of health

care for Eligibles or Enrollees, OHCA may terminate this contract immediately, effective on the close of business on the day specified.

(6) **Termination for financial instability.** If the OHCA deems, in its sole discretion, that the CE or DBM is financially unstable to the point of threatening the ability of OHCA to obtain the services provided for under this contract, ceases to conduct business in the normal course, makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or suffers or permits the appointment of a receiver for its business or its assets, then OHCA may, at its option, immediately terminate this Contract effective on the close of business on the date specified.

(7) **Termination for debarment.** The CE or DBM will not knowingly have a relationship with an individual or affiliate, as defined in 42 C.F.R. § 438.610.

(b) **Transition period requirements.** A transition period begins upon notification by the OHCA of intent to terminate the contract, notice by the CE or DBM or OHCA of intent not to extend the contract for a subsequent extension period, or if the CE or DBM has no remaining extension periods.

317:55-5-13. Notification of material change

An MCOA CE or DBM will promptly, within one (1) business day, notify OHCA of all changes materially affecting the delivery of care or the administration of the MCP plan.

317:55-5-14. Patient data

An MCOA CE or DBM will provide patient data to a provider upon request to the extent allowed under federal or State laws, rules, or regulations, including but not limited to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996.

PART 5. FINANCE

317:55-5-20. ~~Capitation rates~~ Financial standards and third-party liability

OHCA will contract with an actuary, as defined at 42 C.F.R. § 438.2, to establish actuarially sound capitation rates, as described at 42 C.F.R. §§ 438.3(e), 438.4, and 438.5, for OHCA to pay to MCOs and DBMs.

(a) **Financial standards.** The CE or DBM shall comply with Oklahoma Insurance Department requirements for minimum net worth and risk-based capital in accordance with applicable Oklahoma Statutes found in Title 36 Insurance.

(b) **Insolvency protection.** In accordance with the requirements found at 42 C.F.R. §§ 438.106, 438.116, 36 O.S. § 6901, et seq., and all contractual requirements, the CE and DBM will provide satisfactory assurances to the OHCA to ensure that neither Enrollees nor the OHCA is held liable or responsible for any of the following:

(1) Any debts obtained by the CE or DBM;

(2) Covered services that are provided to the Enrollee for which the OHCA does not pay the CE or DBM; or

(3) Payment for covered services that are in excess of the amount that the Enrollee would owe the CE or DBM if those services were covered directly.

(c) **Medical loss ratio.** A CE or DBM will have a medical loss ratio that, at minimum, meets the standards provided by 42 C.F.R. §§ 438.8, 438.74, and applicable Contract. OHCA will monitor compliance with this requirement. If CE or DBM are not compliant with submission of MLR reporting, OHCA will evaluate the CE's or DBM's status for penalties or termination. Monitoring procedures to ensure compliance with MLR reporting include review of timeliness and completeness of reporting requirement and audit of date contained within the report.

(d) **Third-party liability.** Medicaid should be the payer of last resort for all covered services pursuant to federal regulations including but not limited to 42 C.F.R. 433 Subpart D and 42 C.F.R. § 447.20. The OHCA will notify the CE and DBM for any known third-party resources identified or made available to OHCA at the time of an Applicant's or Eligible's eligibility determination or re-determination. The CE or DBM shall make every reasonable effort to:

- (1) Determine the liability of third parties to pay for services rendered to Enrollees;
- (2) Avoid costs which may be the responsibility of third parties;
- (3) Reduce payments based on payments by a third-party for any part of a service;
- (4) Recover any liability from responsible third-party sources, except for estate recovery and third-party subrogation which will remain OHCA's responsibility;
- (5) Treat funds recovered from third parties as reductions to claims payments as required in the Contract; and
- (6) Report all third-party liability collections as specified by the OHCA, the Contract, and reporting manual.

317:55-5-21. ~~Medical loss ratio~~Payment to CEs and DBMs

~~An MCO or DBM will have a medical loss ratio that, at minimum, meets the standards provided by 42 C.F.R. § 438.8.~~

(a) **Capitation rates.** In consideration for all services rendered by a CE or DBM under a contract with the OHCA, the CE and DBM will receive a monthly capitation payment for each Enrollee pursuant to 42 C.F.R. §§ 438.3(c), 438.4 and any other applicable state and/or federal regulation.

(b) **Capitation reconciliation.** The CE and DBM shall perform monthly reconciliation of enrollment roster data against capitation payments and notify discrepancies to the OHCA on schedule and as defined by the OHCA.

(c) **Denial of payment.** Capitation payments to the CE or DBM will be denied for new Enrollees when, and for so long as, payment for those Enrollees is denied by CMS under 42 C.F.R. § 438.730(e). CMS may deny payment to OHCA for new Enrollees if its determination is not contested timely by the CE. OHCA will define in writing to the CE the conditions for lifting the payment denials.

(d) **Recoupment for Medicare eligible Enrollees.** In the event an Enrollee becomes retroactively Medicare eligible, the CE or DBM shall recover claims payments made to providers during the months of retroactive Medicare eligibility. The CE or DBM shall also notify the provider of the requirement to submit the claim to Medicare for reimbursement. OHCA will recoup the capitation payments paid for months of retroactive Medicare eligibility.

317:55-5-22. ~~Value-based purchasing~~Payment to providers

~~In any contract for managed care services, OHCA may include provisions in which payments OHCA makes to an MCO or DBM are based in whole or in part on quality measures and/or any other performance metric as defined in the contract.~~

(a) **Provider payment.**

- (1) The CE and DBM shall establish rates for participating providers are reasonable to cover access to services.
- (2) The CE and DBM shall abide by state and federal requirements related to payment of specific provider types as described in the Contract.
- (3) Pursuant to 56 O.S. § 4002.12, the OHCA shall establish minimum rates of reimbursement from CEs to providers who elect not to enter into a value-based payment arrangement or other alternative payment arrangements for health care services rendered to Enrollees.

(4) Applicable exceptions to OAC 317:55-5-22(3) can be found at 56 O.S. § 4002.12(I).

(b) Non-participating provider payment. If the CE or DBM is unable to provide covered services to an Enrollee within its network of participating providers, the CE or DBM must adequately and timely arrange for the provision and payment of these services by non-participating providers. Except as otherwise provided by law and/or specified for IHCPs, FQHCs, RHCs, and CCBHs, the CE or DBM will reimburse non-participating providers for covered services provided to Enrollees at a minimum of ninety percent (90%) of the current Medicaid fee schedule, unless the CE or DBM and the non-participating provider has agreed to a different reimbursement amount.

(c) Value-based payments. The CE and DBM shall implement value-based payment strategies and quality improvement initiatives to promote better care, better health outcomes, and lower spending for publicly funded health care services. OHCA will follow the withhold payment schedule and perform annual assessments to ensure CEs and DBMs are adhering to the VBP target requirements in accordance with the Contract. Pursuant to 42 C.F.R. § 438.10(f)(3), if the CE uses physician financial incentive plans, the Contractor must make available information about the incentive program. The CE shall also provide information about any physician incentive plans to OHCA prior to its initial use and prior to any subsequent revisions, and report information to OHCA as specified in the reporting manual. Any such incentive plans must comply with all applicable laws, including, without limitation 42 U.S.C. § 1395mm(i)(8) and 42 C.F.R § 417.479.

317:55-5-23. Special contract provisions related to payment **Timely claims filing and processing**

(a) Federal regulation. Any special contract provision related to payment, as described at 42 C.F.R. § 438.6, will meet all related standards within the federal regulation.

(b) Provider payments.

(1) OHCA will establish minimum rates of reimbursement paid by MCOs and DBPs to providers who choose not to enter into value-based payment arrangements for health care items and services furnished by such providers to enrollees.

(A) For participating providers, the reimbursement rate until July 1, 2026, will be equal to or greater than one hundred percent (100%) of the reimbursement rate for the applicable item or service per the applicable OHCA fee schedule.

(B) For non-participating providers and subject to CMS approval as a directed payment or otherwise, the reimbursement rate, until July 1, 2026, will be equal to or greater than ninety percent (90%) of the reimbursement rate for the applicable item or service provided by a non-participating provider per the applicable OHCA fee schedule as of January 1, 2021.

(2) Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, OHCA will comply with payment methodologies required by federal law or regulation for specific types of providers including, but not limited to, Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs), rural health clinics (RHCs), pharmacies, Indian Health Care Providers (IHCPs), and emergency services.

(c) Optional value-based payments. The MCO or DBM will offer optional value-based payment arrangements to all providers. Reimbursement amounts to providers in value-based payment arrangements align with the quality measures OHCA applies to MCOs or DBMs, respectively.

(a) Timely claims filing. The CE or DBM shall adjudicate provider claims in accordance with timely filing limits specified in OAC 317:30-3-11.

(b) Timely payment. The CE or DBM shall meet timely claims payment standards specified in the Contract and 42 C.F.R § 447.45.

317:55-5-24. Hospital readmission damages

The OHCA will establish a hospital readmission damage program to reduce potentially preventable readmissions. The program will use a nationally recognized tool to establish a base measurement year and a performance year and will provide for risk-adjustment based on the population of the state Medicaid program covered by the ~~MCOs or DBMs~~ CEs. The program will be fully described in the ~~managed care contract~~ Contract so that the program will be founded on contract-current tools, populations, and other factors.

317:55-5-25. Claims processing and methodology; post payment audits

(a) **Claims payment systems.** The MCOCE or DBM will maintain a claims payment system capable of processing and adjudicating claims for payment in an accurate and timely manner and in full compliance with all ~~State and Federal~~ state and federal laws.

(b) **Claim filing.** A claim that is filed by a provider within six (6) months of the date the item or service was furnished will be considered timely, per ~~Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 317:30-3-11.~~

(c) **Clean claims.** The MCOCE or DBM will process a clean claim within the time frame outlined in 36 O.S. § 1219.

(1) The MCOCE or DBM will ensure that at least ninety percent (90%) of clean claims received from all providers are paid within fourteen (14) days of receipt.

(2) A clean claim that is not processed within the time frame will bear simple interest at the monthly rate of one and one-half percent (1.5%), which is payable to the provider.

(d) **Additional documentation.** After a claim has been paid but not prior to payment, the MCOCE or DBM may request medical records; if additional documentation is needed to review the claim for medical necessity.

(e) **Claim denials.**

(1) A claim denial will include the following information:

(A) Detailed explanation of the basis for the denial; and

(B) Detailed description of the additional information necessary to substantiate the claim.

(2) The MCOCE or DBM will establish a process for all claim denials by which the provider may identify and provide additional information to substantiate the claim.

(3) A provider will have six (6) months from the receipt of a claim denial to file an appeal per OAC 317:2-3-10.

(f) **Post payment audits.**

(1) In accordance with OAC 317:30-5-70.2, the MCOCE or DBM will comply with the post payment audit process established by OHCA.

(2) The MCOCE or DBM will adhere to limits set forth by OHCA regarding the percentage of claims that can be subjected to post payment audits.

(3) ~~An MCOA CE~~ A CE or DBM who has a claims denial error rate of greater than five percent (5%) will be subject to damages as set forth by OHCA in the ~~managed care contract~~ Contract.

317:55-5-26. Prohibited payments

(a) **Overpayment.** The CE or DBM shall report overpayments to OHCA and promptly recover identified overpayments.

(b) **Suspension of payments.** The CE or DBM shall suspend payments to providers for which the state determines there is a credible allegation of fraud in accordance with the Contract and 42 C.F.R. § 455.23.

(c) **Providers ineligible for payment.** The CE or DBM shall ensure that no Medicaid funds are

reimbursed to a provider whose payments are suspended or that has been terminated by the OHCA. (d) **Provider-preventable conditions.** In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 438.3(g), 434.6(a)(12)(i) and 447.26(b), the CE or DBM shall not make any payment to a provider for provider-preventable conditions as defined at 42 C.F.R. § 447.26(b). A list of provider-preventable conditions including health care-acquired conditions (HCACs) and other provider-preventable conditions (OPPCs) for which payment shall not be made can be found at OAC 317:30-3-62 and 30-3-63.

PART 7. THE MANAGED CARE QUALITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE

317:55-5-30. ~~Managed care~~ SoonerSelect quality advisory committee

(a) The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of OHCA will establish and appoint members to the ~~MC~~ Medicaid Delivery System Quality Advisory Committee (Committee). Committee members serve without compensation and at the pleasure of the CEO. The Committee will consist of:

- (1) Participating providers as a majority of the Committee members;
- (2) Representatives of hospitals and health systems;
- (3) Members of the health care community; and
- (4) Members of the academic community with an expertise in health care or other applicable field.

(b) The primary power and duty of the Committee is set forth at 56 O.S. § 4002.13.

(c) Committee meetings will be subject to the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act.

(d) The Committee will select from among its membership a chair and vice chair.

(e) The Committee may meet as often as may be required ~~in order~~ to perform the duties imposed on it.

(f) A quorum of the Committee will be required to approve any final ~~action~~ recommendations of the Committee. A majority of the members of the Committee will constitute a quorum.

317:55-5-31. Quality scorecard

(a) Within one (1) year of beginning steady state operations of any ~~MCP~~ plan, OHCA will create a quality scorecard, in accordance with 56 O.S. § 4002.11, that compares ~~MCOs~~ CEs to one another and DBMs to one another.

(b) OHCA will provide the most recent quarterly scorecard for ~~initial enrollees~~ first time Enrollees during choice counseling.

(c) OHCA will provide the most recent quarterly scorecard to all ~~enrollees~~ Enrollees at the beginning of each open enrollment period.

(d) OHCA will publish each quarterly scorecard on its website.